n REESIY L

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

R ..
¥ W
il et e e -.bul;ll-ﬂl'_ 9

ANNUAL
REP*RT

2 O 2 " FERS




is a state-funded and state-owned development finance institution. As an independent legal
entity directly overseen by the State Council, it is dedicated to supporting China’s economic
development in key industries and under-developed sectors.
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With a mission to support national development and deliver a better life for the people, CDB aligns its business
focus with China’s major medium- and long-term economic development strategies. Leveraging its strength

as a leading bank for medium- and long-term financing and comprehensive financial services, it mobilizes
economic resources and channels them towards eight key areas: (1) Socioeconomic development, such as
infrastructure, basic industries, pillar industries, public services and management; (2 ) Urbanization, urban-rural
integration and balanced regional development; (3) Programs essential for national competitiveness, including
the transformation, upgrading, and restructuring of traditional industries, energy conservation, environmental
protection, and advanced equipment manufacturing; (4) Public welfare, including affordable housing, poverty
alleviation, student loans, and inclusive finance; (5) Areas of strategic importance, including science and
technology, culture, and people-to-people exchange; (6) The Belt and Road Initiative (BRI), international
cooperation in industrial capacity, equipment manufacturing, infrastructure connectivity, energy and resources,
and Chinese enterprises “going global”; (7) Initiatives in support of development and economic and financial
reforms; (8) Other areas encouraged by national development strategies and policies.

Placing a strong premium on pioneering and innovation and tapping into its strengths as a development
finance institution, CDB keeps closely to national development strategies, operates on market principles with
the backing of sovereign credit, and ensures principal safety and modest profit. Its vigor, influence and risk
resilience has been growing continuously, putting it on track to be a world-class, modern development finance
institution and a steady force of support for China’s economic and social development.
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~ The year 2021 was a milestone in the history of the Communist Party of China (CPC) and the
' - country, as the CPC celebrated its centenary and the nation embarked on the journey to fully build
a modern socialist China. Under the strong leadership of the CPC Central Committee with Comrade
Xi Jinping at its core, CDB conscientiously implemented the decisions and instructions of the CPC
Central Committee and the State Council and upheld the guiding principle of pursuing progress
while ensuring stability. It acted on the new development philosophy under new circumstances,
promoted the new development paradigm, and supported high quality development, contributing
to a good start in the 14th Five-Year Plan period across all lines of business.
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Building strong CPC leadership. CDB made it the top political priority to study and implement Xi Jinping
Thought on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a New Era, acquired a deep understanding of the
decisive significance of the establishment of both Comrade Xi Jinping’s core position in the CPC Central
Committee and in the CPC as a whole and the guiding role of Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with Chinese
Characteristics for a New Era, and demonstrated with real action its commitment to political integrity, thinking
in big-picture terms, following the leadership core and keeping in alignment with the central Party leadership;
staying confident in the path, the theory, the system and the culture of socialism with Chinese characteristics;
and firmly upholding General Secretary Xi Jinping’s core position in the CPC Central Committee and in the
CPC as a whole, and upholding the Central Committee’s authority and its centralized, unified leadership.
CDB joined the Party-wide campaign on CPC history learning and education to study the CPC’s history,
understand its theories, do practical work and make new advances. The Bank marked the CPC’s centenary
with warm celebrations and promoted the great founding spirit of the CPC to align thinking and action, inspire
confidence, and motivate the entire staff.

Focusing on its mandate. Keenly aware of its role as a development bank with a mandate to implement the
lines of the CPC and the central government and facilitate national strategies and policies, CDB continued
to optimize its financing and credit structures. In addition to supporting infrastructure as the ballast of the
economy, CDB stepped up support to the priority and vulnerable areas, such as technological innovation,
balanced regional development, new urbanization, green growth, public services and livelihood programs, and
high-standard opening up. It scaled new heights in boosting economic growth through development finance.

Maintaining balance between growth and security. CDB enhanced its comprehensive risk management
mechanism, developed better tools for risk management, and conducted effective regular risk monitoring.
Building on the achievements made in the special campaign to prevent and defuse financial risks, CDB
intensified risk management and disposal in priority areas and programs to keep its sustainable and healthy
growth as a development finance institution.

Improving internal governance. CDB improved corporate governance in sync with the consolidation of
the Party’s leadership to ensure the implementation of major policies and plans made by the CPC Central
Committee and the State Council. The Bank drew up its own strategy for high quality development and
finalized its own business blueprint in the 14th Five-Year Plan period that dovetails with China’s 14th Five-Year
Plan and the long-range objectives through the year 2035, thus establishing an overarching framework for
CDB to implement national strategies.

As the nation enters a new era and embarks on a new journey, it is imperative that all are called into action
with renewed commitment. In 2022, CDB will follow with greater dedication the leadership of the CPC Central
Committee with Comrade Xi Jinping at its core, contextualize its work in the great rejuvenation of the Chinese
nation and worldwide changes of a scale unseen in a century, and root its actions in the overall national
interests so that it can leverage its development finance resources to serve the goals of the Party and nation
and benefit the people. CDB is determined to contribute more to the building of a modern socialist country in
all respects and make greater progress in the lead-up to a successful 20th National Congress of the CPC.
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The Board of Directors reviewed and approved this report at the second meeting in the 2022 financial year (the calendar year as adopted by the
Bank) on 27 April 2022.

The Bank’s financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2021 are prepared in accordance with Chinese Accounting Standards and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). BDO China SHU LUN PAN Certified Public Accountants LLP has audited these financial
statements in accordance with Auditing Standards for the Chinese Certified Public Accountants and International Standards on Auditing, and has
issued an unqualified auditor’s report with respect thereto.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

EERER: ERFLRIT (BR: FRRIT)

SRR AR CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK (485 : CDB)
EERERA: X

EMTEA: ARM4,212.481Z7T

JEAR Stk - EETmABXEXTAKRE18S

R I 4w A3 - 100031

BiE: 86-10-6830 6688

£H: 86-10-6830 6699

M3 www.cdb.com.cn

Registered Name in Chinese: E K& R1T (shortened to FF & RT)

Registered Name in English: CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK (abbreviated as CDB)
Legal Representative: ZHAO Huan

Registered Capital: RMB421,248 million

Registered Address: 18 Fuxingmennei Street, Xicheng District, Beijing
Post Code: 100031

Telephone: 86-10-6830 6688

Facsimile: 86-10-6830 6699

Website: www.cdb.com.cn
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(847 : ARM101Z7Tk & 2 b Billion RMB or %)

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

24 =
B 17,167.9 17,103.6 16,504.6 16,179.8 15,959.3
Total Assets
AR B RE
Gross Loans and Advances to Customers lentzes 18 e 2,208 T a7es [
TREHRE 9 9 9 9 9
Non-Performing Loan Ratio 0.84% 0.79% 0.95% 0.92% 0.70%
B ER
Allowance to Total Loans Ratio i BEee 2% e e
IS8k o

A 15,629.7 15,623.0 15,110.8 14,8791 14,718.8
Total Liabilities
ERITRFZIUES
Dl Seouies e, Eross 11,480.4 10,722.1 9,735.8 9,108.4 8,446.6
ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ@ 1,538.3 1,480.6 1,393.7 1,300.7 1,240.5
Total Equity
FFE
Profit for the Year 80.8 118.8 118.5 112.1 113.6
REAFTEE o 9 o 9 9
Capital Adequacy Ratio 11.66% 12.03% 1.71% 11.81% 11.57%

A1 RFEERE (BRMFIN) ROV SEERERETRERLSIHENRSE, BRESIRAN, ARTEMEFASEITOE, LA
RMARmmo

F2: ERPHEARTRERZBREES(BUWRTHEAGEINE (RT) Y SHARMETE. BEAN RPN AFEREFMVERT R RN
KEIRHNEFHORZ.

Note 1: All the financial data and indicators in the annual report (excluding appendices) are prepared in accordance with Chinese Accounting Standards and, unless
otherwise specified, the consolidated data of the Bank and its subsidiaries, denominated in RMB.

Note 2: The capital adequacy ratio in the above table has been calculated in accordance with relevant regulations including the Capital Rules for Commercial
Banks (Provisional) issued by the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission (CBIRC). Unless otherwise stated, the capital adequacy ratio is a
consolidated figure.
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DIRECTORS
“E A% 7Y HEER {EER AT 1)
Full Name Title of Position Gender Date of Birth In Office Since
R EERK NTES = 1963128 20185114
ZHAO Huan Chairman, Executive Director M December 1963 November 2018
[dEMEN=S BRIEEK . NITES E 1963401 H 20194124
OQUYANG Weimin Vice Chairman, Executive Director M January 1963 December 2019
BEE HWITES = 19624098 20174108
ZHOU Qingyu Executive Director M September 1962 October 2017
EHR HEES % 19624128 2017410A8
LIAN Weiliang Government Agency Director M December 1962 October 2017
ElIE HEEE “ 1963406 B 20194054
Z0U Jiayi Government Agency Director F June 1963 May 2019
RN HEESE E 19674028 20175108
LI Chenggang Government Agency Director M February 1967 October 2017
KRR WEES S 19584054 20174108
ZHANG Xiaohui Government Agency Director F May 1958 October 2017
KAES BANES 3 1966403 B 20174108
ZHANG Shenghui Equity Director M March 1966 October 2017
ik B BINEE E 1968406 B 20194018
ZHANG Yong Equity Director M June 1968 January 2019
e BINES e 1963404 A 2020%08A
WU Zhenpeng Equity Director M April 1963 August 2020
BEiNE BANES 3 19634058 2021£208H
CUI Hanzhong Equity Director M May 1963 August 2021
B & BNEE s 19664018 2022028
TAN Long Equity Director M January 1966 February 2022
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Full Name Title of Position Gender Date of Birth In Office Since

BEETER 7K B 19634018 20194128

OUYANG Weimin President M January 1963 December 2019

BEE EIEERS = 19624094 2016407 A

ZHOU Qingyu Executive Vice President M September 1962 July 2016

oA PIEEERY R SRS ZE 2R S

REF k3L L0 i . . 2 196242083 20194015
P Chief Inspector of Discipline Inspection and

SONG Xianping Supervision M August 1962 January 2019

3K AE EIEERS 2 19724048 20214028

ZHANG Hui Executive Vice President M April 1972 February 2021

DU ::: BT 2 1976504 H 2021%09A

LIU Jin Executive Vice President M April 1976 September 2021

B R . EECWP B 1962407 B 2008 12A

CHEN Min Secretary of the Board of Directors M July 1962 December 2008

ZEXS EREEITE ko4 19654118 20204097

YANG Baohua Chief Audit Officer F November 1965 September 2020

X355 HRELEE 3 19644084 20214F04 8

LIU Peiyong Chief Business Officer M August 1964 April 2021
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Profiles of Directors
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ZHAO Huan is Chairman and Executive Director of CDB. Prior to joining CDB, he held various positions successively in China Construction
Bank, including Deputy General Manager of Corporate Business Department, Deputy General Manager of Xiamen Branch, General Manager of
Corporate Business Department, General Manager of Shanghai Branch, and Executive Vice President. He also served as Executive Director of
China Everbright (Group) Corporation and China Everbright Group Ltd. and concurrently Executive Director and President of China Everbright
Bank; and Vice Chairman and President of Agricultural Bank of China (ABC).

KEER WEERALARTAIZEER ATES. TK. BEFEARRTERTEHRIVEEIHIK, BEIHHPOX
TITRFEZINCEERENTAHRBK, PERERENATFOERE, INEEIIK, THHEITK, TNHTER
Z BEXZERLE, T MNHEEZ . BITHK, TNHEEBIL, T REEIEK.

OUYANG Weimin is Vice Chairman, Executive Director and President of CDB. He previously worked in the People’s Bank of China (PBoC)
as Deputy Director-General of Non-Banking Financial Institutions Regulation Department, Head of the PBoC Xiamen Central Sub-branch and
concurrently Head of Xiamen Branch of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange (SAFE), Director-General of the China Anti-Money
Laundering Monitoring & Analysis Center, and Director-General of the PBoC Payment System Department. Later in his career, Mr. OUYANG
served successively as Vice Mayor of Guangzhou, member of the Standing Committee of the CPC Guangzhou Committee and Party Secretary
of Zengcheng District, member of the Standing Committee of the CPC Guangzhou Committee and Vice Mayor of Guangzhou, Deputy Party
Secretary of Guangzhou, and Vice Governor of Guangdong.
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ZHOU Qingyu is Executive Director and Executive Vice President of CDB. Previously, he served as Secretary of the CPC Discipline Inspection
Commission of CDB. Prior to joining CDB, he worked in the ABC, where he held such positions as Deputy General Manager of Industrial and
Commercial Loans Department, Deputy General Manager of Asset Preservation Department, Deputy General Manager and then General Manager
of Asset Risk Regulation Department, General Manager of Risk Asset Management Department, General Manager of Guizhou Branch, General
Manager of Agricultural Credit Department, Executive Deputy Director of the Office of Shareholding System Reform Leadership Group, and Chief
Officer of County Area Banking Business.

ELR NEERRKRAKXEZRRE TR, FRERRFARROTHEES. GEFLIHHK. TERIC, BEDTHK.®
ZEPic, JHEEEZ. . EMAHEDL, JHEERFEZ. AMNHEBHIC.

LIAN Weiliang is Vice Minister of China’s National Development and Reform Commission (NDRC), and concurrently CDB Government Agency
Director. Previously he worked in Henan, serving successively as Mayor and Party Secretary of Xinxiang, Mayor and Deputy Party Secretary
of Luoyang, member of the Standing Committee of the CPC Henan Committee and Party Secretary of Luoyang, and member of the Standing
Committee of the CPC Henan Committee and Party Secretary of Zhengzhou.

s NE2EBNXRZARIBIL. BRPK, REEBRFRXRITREZES. BEVMEHERI K, BREFXR
K, VEEEAKEIE, AREZFTHRINETERS/NADRNZELKRARK, ERFEMK, BEREREREER T
B EBEI &R o

ZOU Jiayi is Deputy Secretary of the Party Leadership Group of the Working Organs of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
(CPPCC) National Committee and Deputy Secretary-General of the CPPCC National Committee, and concurrently CDB Government Agency
Director. Previously she served as Director-General of International Department, Director-General of Department of International Economic
Relations, and Assistant Minister of the Ministry of Finance (MOF); Chief Inspector of Discipline Inspection and Supervision of CPC Central

Commission for Discipline Inspection (CCDI) at the Foreign Affairs Leading Group Office of the CPC Central Committee; Vice Minister of the
Ministry of Supervision; member of National Supervision Commission (NSC); and Vice Minister of the MOF.

=
&

ZEMN DEFERFHARSFALRR FHENAXE, REFRSEANEAZSLME T EMERALRBINER, 7T
ERALBRITHZES SERSHHAEOLXTFRSFEIBK, FLUEEIR T K. IK, §EEEKEE,

LI Chenggang is Permanent Representative and Ambassador Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary of the People’s Republic of China to the World
Trade Organization, Deputy Permanent Representative to the United Nations Office at Geneva and other international organizations based in
Switzerland, and concurrently CDB Government Agency Director. Previously he was Deputy Director-General of the Bureau for Fair Trade in

Import and Export, Deputy Director-General and then Director-General of Department of Treaty and Law, and Assistant Minister of the Ministry of
Commerce (MOFCOM).

KRS MEFEARFREBEOSHFRRK, REEBRFLRTHBEES. SEFEARRITEEMNRRLEFEREK, $
EREREDESARNTESSRML, PEARBRITEMTHIIK, BHEXRIIK, PEARBITITIKEE,
ZHANG Xiaohui is Dean of Tsinghua University PBoC School of Finance and concurrently CDB Government Agency Director. Previously, she

was the PBoC Chief Representative for the Americas, Senior Advisor to China’s IMF Executive Director, Director-General of the Department of
Financial Markets and the Department of Monetary Policies of the PBoC, and Assistant Governor of the PBoC.

kER MEERALRRITRNESR. SEEFIMNLERRERKZIETIK, EEREFEIFTK. FK, PEARRIT
FEMRERLERERER, BRIMNCEEB RS H.
ZHANG Shenghui is CDB Equity Director. Previously, he was Deputy Director-General of Balance of Payments Department of SAFE, Deputy

Director-General and then Director-General of Supervision and Inspection Department of SAFE, PBoC Chief Representative for the Americas, and
Chief Accountant of SAFE.
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kB MEERFALBRITENESZ. BEAFEIFROTEEGEENIZELE, FEEOGEHRKRATRNES.

ZHANG Yong is CDB Equity Director. Previously, he was Deputy General Manager of Information Management Department of the Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China, and Equity Director of China Export & Credit Insurance Corporation.

RIEWE NEERARRITRNESR. SEVERRULIBNIKETE, VEHFHBAETPOETERPESITRIBZIR
Ko

WU Zhenpeng is CDB Equity Director. Previously, he held positions in MOF successively as Deputy-Director-General-Level Official at Department
of Agriculture, and Director-General of the Staff Education Center and concurrently President of China Remote Learning College for Accounting.

BB NEERFRRITRNES. SEPELELRBZFRLE (F8) EFLEE, BNCEERPRINC LS
DEIFERGESH DS, PEHALEARITRINES.

CUI Hanzhong is CDB Equity Director. Previously, he was Managing Director of SAFE Investment Company Limited (Hong Kong), Deputy
Director-General and Director of the General Office of SAFE Investment Center, and Equity Director of the Export-Import Bank of China.

B WEERALRBRTERNES. SEVEBEESHOSSHH (BISKR) , WEGENEE SO0 EE, M
ERE S EI S — RN AR -

TAN Long is CDB Equity Director. Previously, he held positions in MOF successively as Chief Accountant (Deputy-Director-General-Level),
Deputy Director-General of the Treasury Payment Center, and Deputy Director-General and Level | Inspector of Tax Policy Department.

BEERRER

Proﬂles of Senior Management
MHEER.BESEEHFER EE2EH" 0. At REEERREGHUT:

Information on OUYANG Weimin and ZHOU Qingyu can be found in the Profiles of Directors. The profiles of other Senior Management members
are as follows:

REF NEFPREZERKEFERALBRTERBRABK . SERERUBITAHALERFE, HRERFFE. EE,
EMESITTRK NKEERLEE, NKEBLERXNOEER (=ZRXKEEFRO) SE8, FERIVARBRITLE
:Fhiao

SONG Xianping is Chief Inspector of Discipline Inspection and Supervision of CCDI and NSC at CDB. Previously, he was Secretary of the CPC
Discipline Inspection Commission of the Agricultural Development Bank of China. Earlier in his career, he worked in the ABC successively as
Deputy Director-General of the General Office, Deputy Director-General and then Director-General of the Research Office, General Manager of

Jilin Branch, General Manager of Risk Management Department, and Chief Risk Officer and General Manager of Risk Management Department
(County Area Risk Management Center).

SK A% :‘E”F_F%J-TE%EFIEUFI& BEXBRITAFREMEISEIE. BEE, NEEER (R=REH) ASEE, B
TATETIK. LEBE, AMETEIITK. K, KKEEER (B-REH) 28, aFENEERNQ SR ( Z4
BIEAAE) BREE (XE)

ZHANG Hui is Executive Vice President of CDB. Before joining CDB, he worked in the Bank of Communications of China as Deputy General Manager
and then General Manager of Asset Preservation Department; Deputy General Manager of Risk Management Department (Asset Preservation
Department); Deputy General Manager and Disciplinary Secretary of Shanghai Branch; Deputy General Manager and then General Manager of
Guizhou Branch, General Manager of Risk Management Department (Asset Preservation Department), Chief Risk Officer and concurrently General
Manager of Risk Management Department and Director-General of Office of Case Prevention Leadership Team.
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Wit MERRALBRTEITEFRARDTATIRK. EEERARXRITECRFAREZR I, HERZINBBEKFF LS
RFERbTK, BRFREE (T
LIU Jin is Executive Vice President of CDB, and concurrently General Manager of Beijing Branch. He worked successively at CDB as Deputy

Director-General of Policy Research Department, Director-General of Education & Training Department and Dean of CDB Institute of Development
Finance, and Director-General of Policy Research Department.

BRR NEERARBRITEZFSAD. BEEERFRRTERARZANERE. EE, EFHLEEE.

CHEN Min is Secretary of the Board of Directors of CDB. He worked at CDB successively as Deputy Director-General and then Director-General
of Policy Research Department, and Director-General of the Office of Board of Directors.

BEE NEERALBRTEFHITE. BTHLLE, SEERALBRTUSFEIBEK, EE8EREREK, UeRBEK,
FIELZRESERAIESK, BERARRITHITER K.
YANG Baohua is Chief Audit Officer and General Manager of Audit Department of CDB. She worked successively at CDB as Deputy Director-

General of Finance and Accounting Department, Director-General of Operations Department, Director-General of Finance and Accounting
Department, Chairperson of the China-Africa Development Fund, and Director-General of Audit Department.

XiEE IEERALRTEELSE. VSLRMBLEZE. BEAERRALARIT £AE0TEITK, FE_BRIBK. B
K, WEBK, VEEEBBK.
LIU Peiyong is Chief Business Officer and General Manager of Business Development Department of CDB. Previously, he worked successively at

CDB as Deputy General Manager of Guangdong Branch, Deputy Director-General and then Director-General of Project Appraisal Department II,
Director-General of Large Corporate Client Department, and Director-General of Business Development Department.

FIRZENER

CHANGES TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BRTEFR221FEZRSWHENBIHFRBRRESRE, EXNBIBERTRNES.. R TEZER2021FE RS
WHEIBESHRBRRESZE, EREEARTRNES. ERTESFR221FFLREWHENBIFRRRESRE,
XFHBERTETK. RRITESR2021FETRRWENBEY, FEEEATERLESE.

MEHRERR TREABEERITRNESTXE . AFRABEEIXRTITRK AL FABEERTERENKE-

As reviewed and approved at the third meeting of the Board of Directors in 2021 and confirmed by the CBIRC, CUI Hanzhong was appointed as
Equity Director. As reviewed and approved at the sixth meeting of the Board of Directors in 2021 and confirmed by the CBIRC, TAN Long was
appointed as Equity Director. As reviewed and approved at the fifth meeting of the Board of Directors in 2021 and confirmed by the CBIRC, LIU
Jin was appointed as Executive Vice President. As reviewed and approved at the second meeting of the Board of Directors in 2021, LIU Peiyong
was appointed as Chief Business Officer.

LIU Xiangdong, CHU Aiwu, and BIAN Ronghua no longer served as Equity Directors. HE Xingxiang and ZHOU Xuedong no longer served as
Executive Vice Presidents. MENG Yaping no longer served as Chief Risk Officer.

F 2 F BB R

ANNUAL REMUNERATION

BRAFHEE XTATAFIRIZBVEBCPREBEN A RAFHERETHENVNT, FHEHEEELRE
. SREFNEEHBEN . EERBEERTES LB HOREATARLFHFEEMGRZUINERETRE, BEF
ERELHY, RXEFCAZEFHERSHE, EEZTHER, REAREEMINBITEREFHEXRITEL M

o & o



. BREEEMAMATER

13

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

FRE 202148, RITTHEZ LR EMPFAFTAEREFNERNEFOLRMIAE, FIREKRTM2020FE AT AFHFH A
£ X2018-2020 F T EEM I N AZE L1k

Remuneration for executives. The remuneration policy for executives of the Bank is kept in compliance with the Provisional Standards for
the Remuneration of Leading Members of Senior Management of Financial Institutions Overseen by Central Authorities issued by the MOF.
Comprising an annual base salary, an annual performance-based salary, and term incentives, their salaries are calculated in accordance with
the base figure and performance evaluation results released by the competent state authorities every year. Their remuneration plan must first be
adopted by the CPC CDB Committee and then presented to the Committee on Human Resources and Remuneration of the Board of Directors for
review. It is filed with the competent state authorities and announced on the official website of the Bank after approved by the Board of Directors.
In 2021, their annual base salaries and annual performance-based salaries were paid in strict compliance with the above-mentioned standards
and regulations. The 2020 remuneration plan and the 2018-2020 term incentives were determined as required.

AITRRANEMSREREAR2021EEHIMBER

Remuneration of Executives and Other Members of Senior Management in 2021

(%fz: ARMAIT 10 Thousand RMB)

2021 B MARITIRIS IR BIFR BN 1BR
Total Remuneration Before Tax from the Bank in 2021
%A BASS HERE. DV EFES WIRETRERE
Full Name Title of Position FEEAREHNBUEEFES
EFA #HE Contribution by the Employer to Social
Remuneration Insurance, Annuities, Additional Medical
Prepaid Insurances and Housing Provident Funds
2021 FEFEREFERRA
Executives in Office at the End of 2021
W BEK NITES
ZHAO Huan Chairman, Executive Director Sl Uit
WP D R BEHK NGTES. K 6193 1618
OUYANG Weimin Vice Chairman, Executive Director, President ' :
BEE HITES. BIITK
ZHOU Qingyu Executive Director, Executive Vice President S 16.90
RIEF KU 246 SRR A K 5574 -
SONG Xianping Chief Inspector of Discipline Inspection and Supervision ’ ’
K HE EIESRS
ZHANG Hui Executive Vice President S9.7% IS0
PO EIERRS
LIU Jin Executive Vice President 82.52 949
021 FEHEREEHMEREEAR
Other Members of Senior Management at the End of 2021
=S EFESWP
CHEN Min Secretary of the Board of Directors Wrze Uers
WELE HEHEITE
YANG Baohua Chief Audit Officer 117.26 128
1% 5 BERLSE
LIU Peiyong Chief Business Officer Tezz 12.38

CRIBERBXRAE, B2015F1AR, RTATAHFWZBVEE PREPEWARAFHMERGTNE) HIT.
F2: ATMEEFNRNES AAERITREGH
A3 REERBAXNE, RTARANEMSREEAR0IFRALFINDERANISIED, SHINESABESETERITHRE.

Note 1: Since January 2015, in accordance with government regulations, the remuneration for executives of the Bank has been kept in compliance with the
Provisional Standards for the Remuneration of Leading Members of Senior Management of Financial Institutions Overseen by Central Authorities issued by the
MOF.

Note 2: Government Agency Directors and Equity Directors are not remunerated by the Bank.

Note 3: In accordance with the government regulations, the final remuneration for executives and other members of Senior Management in 2021 is still subject to final
confirmation. Additional details of remuneration will be disclosed when they have been determined.
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RIFMEE ATHFMEATAREGRIREIRESMAE FHEMERANRMUALEMBEXIE, BFEIR . Xe. 2
W SRR ERARE W FELE2021F, RITHRESLITUARM . SRR ONE I SIE , RETE 14 2 B AN
il RAGHHFWEEKFE #F—PRBURTIERERZEH, PRSI EEIRERIMAZZEREBRNENK, FHMHE
BOER—&NM. XERUALRUYERE THR, RARISEHFMNIEERNL, ZEHFWMTBROBMAORIER . 217
SIHE SRS TARI ISR, BEEAFRERE EXETRRE. Kl THNEFRIES, 325 HHE NS
LR, A NRATIHNRKER. ATRAKGE, AMHERBIVKEDERAATIZNEARZ S REAFZR
o, ERERFEMIIHESFERR, KITM2012FENRT R GV ES, HIZBIT RSB —ELAiHReVFS
B, ERLTRARGERITRIHTRM. 20215F, RITHLENBFLSIZEEE, AMRSESRAYGKE, REFSNE
FEEK,

Remuneration for the staff. Remuneration for the staff refers to all payments and expenditures in exchange for the services provided by the staff;
these include salaries, bonuses, allowances and benefits, social insurance, housing provident funds, and annuities. In 2021, the Bank continued
adopting a position- and performance-based salary policy. The remuneration policy was improved to provide more effective management of
performance-based salaries. The staff’s performance evaluation results were given more prominence to ensure that the allocation of performance-
based bonuses was linked to the performance evaluation results of each person himself/herself. The Bank also gave priority to staff working
in the front line, holding key positions and having excellent performance, in resources allocation, aiming to give full play to differentiated
performance-based salary distribution and provide more effective incentives and restraints. The Bank joins local government’s social insurance
schemes to provide coverage in basic endowment insurance, healthcare, unemployment, workplace injuries, and maternity, contributing monthly
to the premium in accordance with the threshold and percentage mandated by local authorities. Local social security departments are legally
bound to make pension payments to the Bank’s staff members after their retirement. In addition to the basic pension, CDB, approved and filed
by competent state authorities, set up annuity schemes for its staff in 2012. The accrued amount of annuity is based on a certain percentage of

the total salaries and will be paid as planned during retirement. In 2021, the Bank kept reinforcing the operation and management of annuity, and
continued improving the efficiency of annuity investment, which was to ensure the sustainable growth of annuity.

RILER

STAFF

BZE20218K, AEARBRAT1,702 A HFIONMRA THEARKRIULRF, 7T4%MRTHABHRERIULZR.
At the end of 2021, CDB Group had a staff of 11,702, of whom 99% held a bachelor’s degree or higher and 74% a master’s degree or higher.
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RB(ERALBRITER), RTAMBENTEE . NRER. MAZE. BRHENLRENG, FEHEHABERR

FREEENIRA 2021F , KT AT RELIRBERS

1A &5 31
BEE

IR BEXRATDRENATEXHAGFHEERER.

The Bank follows the CDB Articles of Association and puts in place a legally defined corporate governance system with transparent powers and

responsibilities, effective coordination, and balance between different functions. It keeps modernizing its system and capacity for governance.

In 2021, there was no significant difference between the actual corporate governance of the Bank and the normative documents issued by
regulators on corporate governance.

HRELRIKREEEZRS

Committee on Strategic Development

and Investment Management

£ b5

Board of Directors

HHERS
Audit Committee

e

Board of Supervisors

NEEBZRS
Risk Management Committee

BRERE

Senior Management

XBEXZRHERE
Committee on Related-Party
Transaction Control

AEEFHERR
Committee on Human Resources
and Remuneration
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MERPRSSREQTEE. ATREBMERNNSESZEATRERR—, EEAMEXLIEFL2BLE WNH—U
R HEZRTER BREPR BSHRRREBAERITHRES, SHRRUEZPREOGEARBRBREHITL
MERME RZAR " WNAL AREMEN, BRERPREFRE NS, FEFEMIIEFFHRTESEHS
EIXRE, RAEHRAEENER, BIER " IARIR BRETINBERE" MBI WA " BB LBRITEI . SR
REFINHE, FNFLPHE  FEEE ZERB.ZEATNEZE ERR AXLE FAHFENERER, RBES
FTERR, EH R EZIHBEERESL AT AR MEEZXEBEERNRBYUIE, EERNBIENBIRES

AFREBENHRR. ATRBAEXERZZEIN(EBRFLARTER). EZ2RHEZLZNZRTWEANNE, FERE2A

RIBALE, FETRA AT EERY MBNEFSNENRAESZHA, SEIEENERNUDRE, EXFMEAHXAING
SWHAFR, FEAFHBIRNTVE, REEFSARRE. EXEFRELTNERCRR, RENEFZHRRX
FER. AP RERIREKIASER I IHELURIEE . REDT. REEE, MIREFRTEENE, VITRER
THRER . &5 RIEFA B

AEREHERIR EXRRES( RITRENE R SRIBEN ), ARAREXIBRITMA, EWGE EEXTIELR. §E
BREZERREDNE, RERNEZRN. 20 EHRNERABEE NEBITEERENS, #2RNEENE
RENH, 1BBERIKE TERTH.

Strengthening CPC leadership and corporate governance. CDB improves corporate governance in sync with the consolidation of the Party’s
leadership. It fully implements the important instructions of General Secretary Xi Jinping to “uphold Party leadership and build modern corporate
systems in state-owned enterprises” to ensure the implementation of major policies and plans made by the CPC Central Committee and the
State Council, and to build a development finance institution which the CPC Central Committee trusts and the people are satisfied with. All Party
members acquire a deep understanding of the decisive significance of the establishment of both Comrade Xi Jinping’s core position in the CPC
Central Committee and in the CPC as a whole and the guiding role of Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a New
Era; maintain the centralized and unified leadership of the CPC Central Committee; and study and carry out Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with
Chinese Characteristics for a New Era. CDB exercises strong Party discipline, demonstrates with real action its commitment to political integrity,
thinking in big-picture terms, following the leadership core and keeping in alignment with the central Party leadership; staying confident in the
path, the theory, the system and the culture of socialism with Chinese characteristics; and firmly upholding General Secretary Xi Jinping’s core
position in the CPC Central Committee and in the CPC as a whole, and upholding the Central Committee’s authority and its centralized, unified
leadership. The Bank has promoted thorough and effective learning and education of the history of the CPC with careful consideration of its
reality. Party members are required to gain experience and draw lessons from the CPC history, boost confidence in the CPC, and emulate good
virtues, as CDB joined the Party-wide campaign on CPC history learning and education, with a view to studying the Party’s history, understanding
its theories, doing practical work and making new advances. The Bank also steps up the campaign to counter corruption and build a clean Party.

Improving corporate governance mechanisms. CDB keeps improving its corporate governance system and operational efficiency in
accordance with relevant laws and regulations, the CDB Articles of Association, and various rules of procedures of the Board of Directors and
Committees of the Board of Directors. It makes sound plans on the topics and proposals to be discussed by the Board of Directors, and sets a
proper pace for the deliberation of those proposals. All major issues are deliberated by means of on-site meetings, which allows the major issues
to be fully discussed and improves the quality of decision-making by the Board of Directors. The special committees have their responsibilities
clearly defined to advise the Board of Directors. The Employees Congress plays an active role in increasing democracy in corporate management
and supervision and protecting the rights of staff members in accessing information, participating in CDB management, expressing opinions and
exercising supervision.

Enhancing corporate governance regulations. CDB observes the Corporate Governance Standards for Banking and Insurance Institutions
issued by the CBIRC. The Bank organizes and carries out evaluation on the implementation of such standards, and formulates and implements
working plans one by one. It works out measures for guaranteeing the discharge of duties of equity directors so as to ensure that they can get
comprehensive and accurate information required for the discharge of duties in a timely manner. CDB fulfils its obligation in terms of information
disclosure and improves temporary information disclosure and reporting systems, making information disclosure more regulated.
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Within the reporting period, there was no change to the shareholders of the Bank. CDB’s shareholders and their shareholdings by the end of

2021 are shown as follows:

RERER FERM AL
Shareholder % of Total
T LR

Ministry of Finance 36.54%
FRCERBBRRIELD

Central Huijin Investment Ltd. 34.68%
BRNIREFEBRIERT 27 19%
Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. ' °
SEHSREESEES 1.50%
National Council for Social Security Fund o970
&it

Total 100.00%

VBB AESRARE], REREEV B URBEREIE . VEKES THENRWAREER].

PRICERBERTELRIREBE(PEARAMERATEZ)HEREREZNEBRE AT, RIF\ESRRN, LI HE
MARKRERMENEFER SOV ITEERARFNBETERANS, XNERERE~REEE.

BRANRAFEERTEIAIRMKBE(PEARKMELIZ)HEFINCEERERRINBRRELS, TENER

RIHMRE B R £ RARBULRAFZEEE . RAEHE.

cEHSFREESEETE2ENSREEENEEEENM.

The MOF is a macro-regulation body under the State Council, responsible for managing fiscal revenue and expenditure, formulating fiscal and tax

policies, and exercising fiscal supervision.

Central Huijin Investment Ltd. is a wholly state-owned limited liability company incorporated in accordance with the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China. As authorized by the State Council, it represents the government as an investor in key state-owned financial institutions, and
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, seeks to preserve and increase the value of state-owned financial assets.

Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. is a limited liability company incorporated in accordance with the Company Law of the People’s

Republic of China. It is solely funded by SAFE, investing in domestic and overseas projects, equities, debts, funds, and loans and engaging in

entrusted asset management and investment management.

The National Council for Social Security Fund is the operational arm of the National Social Security Fund.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BEEREM

Members of the Board of Directors

EBRESEAEN(ERAARITER) AMTESSHIBBRESAEAR, OF3BNTESR (BEEK). 42HMEEEMO6
ZRNES. BAl, ATESKARYIER, BIFESKHMALZREE, HTESEHE: BN KELIR.BEE; BEES
HEREARNEER. MEM. 55 ARRITERERKIZHEZATAEL, B ELER. MG, =M. KERE; RIX
EETHRRAREMER, BiF: KES KB RIRB.EXE B EE<WP: KR

As mandated by the CDB Articles of Association approved by the State Council, the Board of Directors has 13 members: three Executive
Directors (the Chairman included), four Government Agency Directors, and six Equity Directors. The incumbent Chairman is ZHAO Huan and
Vice Chairman OUYANG Weimin; the three Executive Directors are ZHAO Huan, OUYANG Weimin, and ZHOU Qingyu; the Government Agency
Directors are each appointed by the NDRC, the MOF, the MOFCOM, and the PBoC. They are LIAN Weiliang, ZOU Jiayi, LI Chenggang, and

ZHANG Xiaohui. The shareholders appoint ZHANG Shenghui, ZHANG Yong, WU Zhenpeng, CUI Hanzhong, and TAN Long as Equity Directors.
CHEN Min is the Secretary of the Board of Directors.

== A ==

EESRR

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

ATESFRBERBEXER . TEEM MNE(ERARRITEE) R(ERALRTESFTNEAN) IR ERE TR
R EBFCHNRNIECR  SIEFEMSMELR REANR MESELR. RISHRAR, EFSWNEANREEIT
AR ARBTERREERLHES, FERKPLARER . FELZEMINREL R, FERFRITITY, ARE
BAYNAENAAMALRZTAR, EAMAE, NKEER. AEEHSEABIEGE, NEERREY, —RIFAIN N
MRECBABENMESE, NEEITER . FETETUHMARE NG, FERES, URAENATEEKREEEIE
BEHRNEIE,

The Board of Directors fulfils its responsibilities as per applicable laws, regulations and rules as well as the CDB Articles of Association and
the Rules of Procedures of the Board of Directors of CDB. lts responsibilities include making annual financial budgets and statements, profit
sharing plans, losses compensation plans, rules of procedures of the Board of Directors and related revised plans, and policies and systems for
information disclosure of the Bank. It reviews and approves medium- and long-term development strategies, annual business operation plans
and investment plans, annual plans on bond issuance, plans on capital management and issuance of capital replenishment instruments, major
projects, management rules on risk management and internal control, internal management structure, plans on the establishment, adjustment and

cancellation of tier-one branches in and outside the Chinese mainland, charters, annual working plans and institutions of internal auditing, and
annual reports. It decides on the authorization to the Chairman and the senior management.

EEREBIE

Work of the Board of Directors

2021 F , ATESBSUINEFHNRFEREHSEIXBRIES, 2ERMRN+TAXRMTAER RSB, 21

FarMeEaEY, CRMARNE RUMARIESR, IIRSABAMENLZREER, e REaXRE, ST LTIER

B EESREBNBRNNGEZTE L RERSE —, CER. MFERR, 2FEBAEZESSWOR, FiEL
(ERARBITERELRKEY (ERARRIT +HE"WHBHLSLEMLY. 2021 FEEE L. 2021 FE M HETR

H. 2020 EMERE . 2021 FERAIMRERITITR. 20215+ FEEAV SRS AR ZRIRXEXNMEEE

RS2, B ARERITLZKE.

In 2021, following the guidance of Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a New Era, the Board of Directors of CDB put

into action the guiding principles of the 19th National Congress of the CPC and the plenary sessions of the 19th Central Committee of the CPC.
It made sure CDB lived up to its mission as a development finance institution, grounded its efforts in the new development circumstances, and
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applied the new development philosophy. It took the initiative in serving and integrating into the country’s new development paradigm, pursued
high quality development, and achieved fresh results in various lines of business. It improved corporate governance in sync with the consolidation
of the Party’s leadership, regulated the exercise of power and adopted scientific decision-making. Over the year, the Board of Directors convened
nine meetings, at which members deliberated and approved 52 proposals, giving strong guidance to CDB operations. Proposals adopted
included the High Quality Development Strategies of CDB, the CDB Business Development Plan in the 14th Five-Year Plan Period, the 2021
business operation plan, the 2021 financial budget, the 2020 financial statements, the 2021 onshore and offshore financial bond issuing plan, the
2021 semi-annual financial statements of the CDB Group, the establishment of departments related to rural revitalization.

BEESLTNERS

Committees of the Board of Directors

FTEFEETREBRRAIRZEEZRS T ERS NREEZRE  XKXIBEFHERES AESHFHMERESES
PMENEZRR, BENZRZRFEESFSRIUTRIME, OEZRHELZUERIREZIEIMETRER, HEFRA .

The Board of Directors has five committees: the Committee on Strategic Development and Investment Management, the Audit Committee, the
Risk Management Committee, the Committee on Related-Party Transaction Control, and the Committee on Human Resources and Remuneration,
all of which discharge their responsibilities as mandated by the Board of Directors, provide professional advice for the Board of Directors, decide
on technical matters, and report to the Board of Directors.

BERARMRBEEZERR . TEATHWNATKBLARABNEEEEB,, REVSBEERY KEREFELE
W REAERRTERURRSRERITER XRSEREABEANEEBRREITHR, DEZREBERRENS.
20215, RITHBARMIKBEEZRARBATREW, HIBET28MNE . WirN R HIN—BF & BRURPR
XFETONEFAUMN_O=ZAFZREFHNZH FRFUE(EARARRITSRERREE), ARTEFRSER
g XUMSRELXRETEM . FRFN(ERARRIT +HE" BV SLRAKY), ART  +HE"HPENERR
FERTIE.

Committee on Strategic Development and Investment Management. This committee deliberates on the long-term development strategies and
the overarching goal of business management of the Bank and provides suggestions on business changes; monitors the execution of the annual
business operation plans, investment plans and the fulfilment of corporate social responsibilities; studies national strategies and the supporting
policies and advises the Board of Directors. In 2021, the Committee convened seven mestings to review and adopt 28 proposals. To better
serve the national strategies and achieve high quality development, it formulated the High Quality Development Strategies of CDB, benchmarked
against the Two Centenary Goals and the arrangements of the CPC Central Committee regarding the 14th Five-Year Plan and the long-range
objectives through the year 2035. It studied and reviewed the CDB Business Development Plan in the 14th Five-Year Plan Period, charting the
course for the Bank’s reform and development in the 14th Five-Year Plan period.

HHERS TEARFRARFIHEEZERMNIAERS, FAPRBFHANAEZST TR, 35S 55 ERAT
MAERE Tt T, mBMIFNINE R IHAIE TE, REINEBH MBS EMB NS 20215, KITHITERS 9—?13
REW, BB 7O R . B KTV SERZNL, MENATREFRARMBNBEROIFTHH, REERSHHM
M, W SREET. MRS REM TIE, R UEHNER BUREARNRNELRR, BANEHERTER-
EMTHRATIFHR, BEEAFTRARERER, BEBAFIRZME . GREAMIT . B FE TESEEX,
EIRIINE TIERE .

Audit Committee. This committee examines important policies and work reports of internal audit and approves medium- and long-term audit
plans and annual audit plans; guides, supervises, evaluates and comments on internal audit; supervises and comments on external audit; and
advises on the hiring and changing of external auditors. In 2021, the Committee convened 13 meetings to review and adopt seven proposals. It
paid close attention to the changes of financial indicators, strengthened the analysis and judgment of the Bank’s assets, liabilities and earnings,
and kept its eyes on the financial impact of major events to keep the financial operation sound and stable. It strengthened the foundation for
internal control compliance, raised awareness of compliance, established an improved and effective internal control system, and enhanced the
implementation effect of the internal control system. It kept informed of the progress of internal audit work, and supervised major audit findings
and rectification, making internal audit more independent, effective and standardized. It laid down the overall requirements for external audit, and
promoted the quality of external audit.
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REEEZERS. TEATHWKNKREEKE, BE % REEBENEARKG. AKX CRNMERE . RERE . E 5K
RTWMPAFERE  FEXENEERZNEESERNLNZEFILZEERREIRER, SREBX. KRR NG ESZ
BENHEATERIT M, REZEXKREENASTZFHNELNE 20215, ATRNKREEZRASBFORSIN, FIGBISSTUN
R AT ENREEGERR, ERELENEEEX L. FRBEARTRRFBLE, MBXERHFESSNE. £
EEXKEEELYE, s EXTERUEXKEER, BHEA XK EIE TIERY.

Risk Management Committee. This committee considers risk management strategies; supervises the senior management in their control of
various risks with regard to credit, market, liquidity, operations, country, bank account interest rates, reputation, and IT as well as comprehensive
risk management; conducts regular assessments of risk policies, management, and resilience; and advises on how to improve risk management
and internal control. In 2021, the Committee convened four meetings to review and adopt five proposals. It kept improving the risk management
system and boosted the improvement of the overall risk management culture. It studied and defined the risk appetite of the Bank, and

strengthened the transmission and application of risk appetite. It accurately grasped the landscape of risk management, paid close attention to
risk control in key areas, and promoted the risk management quality and efficiency.

XBRGEHNZRES - TEARTXPEIZINER . FEMAE, BHXBEIZNE, MREATSERBEVME Z B XELR
SHEWELBEARAREN. 2021F, KTXEXSEFHNEZEREBA2REW, BB 1IINE, BIARTXEKAEE,
BHRESXKXSIRAN . FE BN RETERE, ROEHXBEIZRARE, FAMFIXREKZSHEEEM, RA XK
RS BENBEMENE R

Committee on Related-Party Transaction Control. This committee manages, reviews, and approves related-party transactions; controls the
risks of related-party transactions; and ensures integrity and fairness in the related-party transactions between CDB and its affiliates. In 2021,
the committee held two meetings to review and adopt one proposal, confirmed lists of related parties. It improved the identification, examination,

monitoring and reporting of related-party transactions, promoted the development of the related-party transaction system laying a good
foundation for and improving accuracy and efficiency in related-party transaction management in a sustained manner.

AEEFHERS TEARTHTURNTEBMARGEMECR, UERNTESHNSREEARNFIMAZ, nESREH
BlA RN, HFEBEAELE, IEEENSREBEARNEEREFNE, NESHNSAEEARTRIRETVSH
BRAODEESREBNE2021F, KITASZEHHMZERSBASASWN, BIBHITINE, RENBAEEESHRA, R
SREEERR, MREVEZERAES, RERTLS LR,

Committee on Human Resources and Remuneration. This committee reviews the incentive and restraint system and policies of the
Bank, draws up and executes the remuneration plans for the executive directors and senior management, advises the Board of Directors on
remuneration plans and supervises the implementation; decides on the procedures and standards for the selection of directors and senior
management, and preliminarily examines the qualification of candidates for the directors and senior management and advises the Board of
Directors on the matter. In 2021, the Committee convened five meetings to review and adopt nine proposals. It adjusted in a timely manner

the members of the board of directors, strengthened the senior management, and studied the performance appraisal targets and scheme to
safeguard the business development of the Bank.

SREEER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ATEREBEATK. . ATK. . ES M BRAMNSEEBARNM. SAEEERB(ERFLETER)REES
BONARAZEEREY), NESEERA T
The Bank’s senior management includes President, Executive Vice Presidents, Secretary of the Board of Directors, and other executives. They

discharge duties in operational management as mandated by the CDB Articles of Association and the Board of Directors, and report to the Board
of Directors.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

REBE(ERFRRITER), ABFHMIREARADESEARIIRE T1E. 20214F, RITARHITHITARR A H
REVTZRZZWEW, ELREER, BFEASE, AFEHRSEEHINE  BEXTEFRSSRERRE. FRKI
AR REFERBREREIT, REEREXNKBRERERELEAY. FREAZAEESE T, KHAHEATFREET
B FRIMNCER LS HFBUEH LS AREFAMEBEZ UL LZHSERIAHIT, RECTHUBRERING. FRESH
REEEIT, RAZERE, BREERE. TRROEEREIT. XEXSEIT, fRELSEN. EEINT. RERKFRFEIH
DTS ET, RESZIMRRELE . FRAS THBEFREF T, RERACASTHRERBN. ATFZEERATR
ERMARER, MBRFAE TR RN FLEXRER, BERIMNEH TR I EBE B G, BUHITHAREE .
FEEHAEITASEE, MRTEFTITHERR, SNBEFIHERRFRR, ¥ AFENZHITNA, MNBHITAEEZII,
RUTLERE A BES, RFHER 1T o

As mandated by the CDB Articles of Association, the internal audit function and its responsible persons report to the Board of Directors. In
2021, the internal audit function of CDB implemented the guidelines set at the meeting of the Audit Commission of the CPC Central Committee,
met regulatory requirements, focused on solving problems, and made progress on various audit programs, which enabled the Bank to better
serve high quality development. It carried out auditing of loans dedicated to the environmental conservation and green development of the
Yangtze River, ensuring that the major strategies and policy measures of the state produced their intended results. Auditing of the group client
management was carried out to improve the management of group clients. Auditing was carried out for foreign currency credit, M&A loans,
and NPL transfer and write-off compliance to contribute to preventing and containing credit risks. Auditing of IT management was carried out
to promote safe operation and ensure the quality of data. Auditing was completed of anti-money laundering and related-party transactions
to promote compliance and standardized management. Business auditing was carried out of overseas branches as required to promote their
prudent operation. Accountability audits were carried out to encourage appropriate and prudent exercise of power. Public complaints concerning
the CDB’s assets security were handled in a transparent manner, coupled with follow-up checks and risk reminders. In accordance with relevant
requirements, the long-acting procedures were improved for uncovering and addressing problems in internal and external audits to reinforce the
closed-loop auditing supervision. It kept promoting the integrated management of auditing, and accelerated the improvement of the auditing
system. Special efforts were made to enhance IT support for auditing and promote the use of off-site auditing. It strengthened training for the
team of auditors to improve their proficiency and therefore, raise auditing quality and efficiency.
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In 2021, CDB upheld the guiding principle of pursuing progress while ensuring stability, implemented the national macro policies, focused on
its mandate, and increased the provision of development finance for the real economy. It acted on the new development philosophy under
new circumstances and promoted the new development paradigm to drive high quality development. With steady improvement in its overall
performance, the Bank has made a good start in the 14th Five-Year Plan period and made positive headways across its line of business.

ZEMR

OPERATING PERFORMANCE

20214, RITEIVEAEB07.94MZ T FI B FRARKITREEZNVRARER, 2F LA BIFUAT,436.32127T-

In 2021, CDB made a net profit of RMB80.794 billion. Net interest income, as the leading source of the Bank’s income, reached RMB143.632 billion.

(847 : AR E T Milion RMB)

T
2021 2020 Change
+/(-)
EdLFE
Operating Profit 93,108 142,113 (49,005)
Hep: F BB
Net Interest Income 143,632 153,685 (10,053)
FEBERMEFBA
Net Fee and Commission Income 1,443 2,426 (983)
B INEA (ZH)
Net Non-Operating Income/( Expense) (26) (66) 40
FRiS#iZE A
Income Tax Expense 12,288 23,231 (10,943)
#F5E
Profit for the Year 80,794 118,816 (38,022)
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FINANCIAL CONDITIONS

BE20214K, RMTEZREH171,679.411Z7T, FELHEH0.38% . RIXRBAITHROET. B E 2021F K, K MER L HE
FFEEN127,916.66127T, @ EEIEHK1.20%, §2E 7 H74.51%. AR EF1156,296.61127T, @ LI 40.04% . K2 A1T
REEMRBERF BE 20215 K, ERITHRFIESFRE114,803.77127T, BELIEKT.07%, 52 75#973.45%.

At the end of 2021, CDB had the total assets of RMB17,167.941 billion, growing by 0.38% year on year. Loans remained the dominant form
of assets, with RMB12,791.666 billion of loans and advances, up by 1.20% year on year and accounting for 74.51% of the total assets. Total

liabilities stood at RMB15,629.661 billion, up by 0.04% year on year. Debt issuance was the primary source of funding. At the end of 2021, CDB
had a balance of RMB11,480.377 billion in debt securities, up by 7.07% year on year and accounting for 73.45% of total liabilities.

(g7 AR™EAIT Milion RMB)

Taf)
2021 2020 Change
+/(-)
EE&it
Total Assets 17,167,941 17,103,575 64,366
W& K7W LT R R R
Cash, Balances with Central Banks and Deposits with 287,609 473,207 (185,598)
Banks and Other Financial Institutions
&ﬁ&»f—‘cth&:}m‘
Loans and Advances to Customers 12,791,666 12,640,362 151,304
SRR
Investment Securities 2,925,505 2,993,619 (68,114)
Hith
Others 1,163,161 996,387 166,774
fmait
Total Liabilities 15,629,661 15,622,983 6,678
ERITRFZIUES
Dobt Securitios lssued 11,480,377 10,722,092 758,285
[0 BT A AR & BRAL A & 7R
Borrowings from Governments and Financial Institutions 448,961 499,052 (50,091)
ERIZEEXeIVSE-I RN
Deposits from Banks and Other Financial Institutions and 3,474,710 4,046,810 (572,100)
Due to Customers
Hts
Others 225,613 355,029 (129,416)
FREENEET
Total Equity 1,538,280 1,480,592 57,688
KUH
Share Capital 421,248 421,248 0
RARNTATMBEHATR
Capital Reserve and Surplus Reserve 383,784 368,281 15,503
— X EE
General Reserve 258,519 248,966 9,553
R BCAE A E A
Retained Earnings and Other Equity 450,895 417,274 33,621
DEIRG AR A
Non-Controlling Interests 23,834 24,823 (989)
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SCIENTIFIC AND TECHNOLOGICAL INNOVATION

20214, AATIR M B IF R e M B AT T E I,
REXF " THR"NBEMARMEBHR. BRERR
BUNAS. IE(FAMtERFERT Y RARIES
), AR LT E, By FIIER = W N 5ESE 0. 0
RIS EEN R R FF, SR ABIS LR LTSRN

In 2021, CDB created a special lending program to issue loans for
scientific and technological innovation and basic research, with a
focus on basic and applied research and conversion of research
outcomes in the 14th Five-Year Plan period. The Work Program for
Development Finance to Support Key Industries was formulated
to promote a better and balanced industrial structure and develop
stronger industrial and supply chains. The Bank increased financing
support for enterprises in the manufacturing sector to boost their
core competitiveness.

KITZEFR T ERIMSAR T LR =R SIImA
The R&D and Industrialization of Technologies for Engineering
Equipment Supported by CDB
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‘ TR —E UREIR

NEW INFRASTRUCTURE, NEW URBANIZATION AND MAJOR PROJECTS

@

X SFEERISHE NEW INFRASTRUCTURE

FTERZFHF IWBEN . — KU RBIES OSEREM G . BMEaEMRERR, ENERW . KBIE. ALEES
S5&E£FIRERS

CDB supported construction of information infrastructure and converged infrastructure, such as industrial Internet and integrated big data
centers, and promoted the deep infusion of the Internet, big data, and Al in various industries.

Eﬁ B $E1L NEW URBANIZATION

iR AR AT, MAX D EH . LEMAEZREROBEXE R ASHESOOFRER . RS,
WEZMAESETAXFNE, BERSUANZOK I B HEN .

Based on a market-based financing model, CDB stepped up input into urban renewal, urbanization in counties, ecology-oriented
development (EOD) models, industry-city integration, and urban-rural integration, offering substantial support to the new type of human-
centered urbanization.

FUM T 8 #A e =TS0 R SR3pf h SE 47 SEER X EOD
RRIE

EOD Pilot Program for Xianghu Sanjianghui Future
City Pilot Zone in Hangzhou

ZHMBRESFEES S RECIKIBR. HEHL
KR mlREREERR. ESEMREER
SRR, WFAMBEHAREZRTAEENEE
ZREBRRE .

This project involves the relocation of energy-intensive and
highly polluting businesses and the development of green
communities, industry carriers and supporting facilities, and
environmental protection infrastructure. It is a great boost
to the transformation of urban development model and the
green development of the city.
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B 47 RAILWAYS

ERXEF )W SHKETER
HEK& EpREBRGKBEET
I (%) KK SR ERZRARR.
MBS BEBRBINBERY BERIE.
ZEHIREWERAPEEMNL.

The focus of CDB’s support was on
the nationwide high-speed rail network
composed of “eight vertical and eight

horizontal” lines and their connecting
lines, inter-city and intra-city rails in

priority regions, railway collection and
distribution systems, electrification and
capacity expansion of existing rail lines,

FIIFHHERTEEMKEINR

; i ) : procurement of transport equipment,
Construction of Nanning-Yulin Railway Supported by CDB

maintenance and repair.

X JkF WATER RESOURCES

ERXFERSAK PR R HAKERSERKNER LR, MERNHKRE GTBESRIPFEES T ERK
MIAE o

CDB mainly supported national flagship projects, such as water resources diversion, flood prevention and mitigation, and water supply for
irrigation. CDB also supported major local efforts including water supply in rural areas and environmental rehabilitation of water systems.

BrEEE 5B Lz A
Water Diversion from Hanjiang River to Weihe River in Shaanxi Province

ZIERAERAMAR KT REROEBEKZREELR, &
REREREBRPEKFTREFTFE, YA BIRBESH
BRRRHRRKEEFHSTHFELRAGEER X.

This is a strategic project aimed to ease water shortages in Shaanxi Province.

Once completed, it will significantly increase water supply and improve the
ecological environment along the Weihe River, promoting economic and social

progress in the region.

Q hiNE 3@ URBAN RAIL TRANSIT

AR BRI AM KD BR RIEF2ANMEHHINERBINE , KERD AHBEFM, PWAKBEKEE.

CDB leveraged market-based financing for urban rail transit projects in 24 cities, including Zhengzhou, Changsha, Chongqging, and Dalian, to
improve traffic conditions and enhance regional connectivity.
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F4 A% HIGHWAYS

PERSEN . RNERBBIRENER, XFSRABAERSER, Ie7
ERSRAENERE, HENE BB TR, X" NTFRNEK" 1R,

CDB mainly suppertedsprovincial expressway networks and village road networks; financing
ring expressways, improving the quality of national expressway. networks, and supporting

demonstration projects for smart transport and the construction, management, maintenance
and use of village roads.

A E#it CIVIL AVIATION

RETINAXAXANIZFE GERZAEYT BB OXFAE, ERIFAM. AR EREFRAYNIZLIET 6.

CDB stepped up support for the construction, relocation, and upgrading of aviation hubs in Hangzhou, Xi’an and Chonggqing, etc.

FUN 5 L E BRLi7 = HAT B # R A sh A& K Bl 32 i@ R0 T2

New Terminal and Ground Transportation Center of Phase Il Project at Hangzhou International Airport

ZIER2022F MM T EZSEZEMEEDNE,
EREREERANZRERED, FRATMF
W E BRI B X g A =R Aty A B FRRE o

This is an important infrastructure project for the 19th Asian
Games Hangzhou 2022. After completion, it will be a huge

boost to the handling capacity of the airport and its position
as a regional aviation hub.
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BALANCED REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT
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In 2021, CDB continued to support major national strategies for
regional development and the strategy for coordinated regional
development and promote a more optimal economic layout that
allows different regions to draw on their advantages for high
quality development. In particular, CDB supported the coordinated
development of the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region, the development
of the Yangtze Economic Belt and the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area, integrated development in the Yangtze
River Delta, and ecological protection and high quality development
in the Yellow River basin. CDB issued RMB449.3 billion loans for
environmental conservation and green development of the Yangtze
River, RMB307.5 billion loans for the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area, RMB149.6 billion loans for ecological
protection and high quality development in the Yellow River basin,
RMB22.6 billion of special financial bonds for the coordinated
development of the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region, and RMB10
billion special green financial bonds for the Yangtze Economic Belt
and the ecological protection and high quality development in the
Yellow River basin respectively. CDB developed the financing plan
for the ecological protection and high quality development in the
Yellow River basin for nine provinces (regions) along the Yellow
River and Qingdao. CDB supported the large-scale development
in the western region, the full revitalization of the northeast, the
rise of the central region, and the trailblazing development of the
eastern region. CDB released the Implementation Guidelines for
Supporting High Quality Development in the Central Region in the
New Era. In response to the CPC’s development strategy for Tibet
and Xinjiang, CDB supported high quality development in the two
regions. CDB also supported invigoration of the old revolutionary
bases by financing their infrastructure, industrial and public
services programs.

IERAXERNZIREEFX (BHXE) FHs
—Him A

Industry-City Integration (Phase |) of Beijing Daxing
International Airport Economic Zone (Langfang section)

ZUERREICRIFEMINERN AEF M REHETTE
HEE, R EKFEFIE KRS Z RTOIIHRL, KIT”
FMY . RARE . REER", XIFZMERK.

This program hosts some non-essential functions relocated out of the
capital city, which makes it a demonstration project for Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei integration. It becomes a new engine of growth for its host area.

Following the national plan and taking a systemic approach, CDB
developed an innovative model that combined bonds and loans to

support the project.
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“The program aims.to considerably expand -the forestry oovera?ewand water. retention
capacity- of thé regjon, with a view to. building better forests and environmental
conservatior:l: of the Yangtze Rivir.
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GREEN, LOW-CARBON, AND CIRCULAR DEVELOPMENT

20215, RTRU AR MEERRSEZEMBMBEALRIENS , KA (ERFRIBRITI RS MMARE SIFHRIAERF
MATHHERY, BRARTRSREE. RPN TENESGUSE. ITaIBRMTIER, B Wk BRS5Ze Rl EE
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In 2021, CDB set up a working mechanism to provide development finance services for green, low-carbon and circular development. The Plan of
Action of CDB for Implementing Green and Low-carbon Strategy and Contributing to Carbon Peaking and Neutrality was released, which outlines

the priority areas, pathways, and systems of actions and develops processes and policies for green and low-carbon banking services to meet the
goals of carbon peaking and neutrality.

@% B (X) g5k, ;57K 48 SOLID WASTE AND SEWAGE TREATMENT IN TOWNSHIPS AND VILLAGES

FRE (X)EHuRkO5KAE  BEFLZ" FHWERRS, IFRFE (X)) 58 BHRN K. 5KOBRENEER
REIR, BEBIE200ME (X)), #HmFReEMRERIRER, REMEXNINIRXEREE B ERARHRS
RS LFMBELE.

CDB rolled out “RMB100 billion loans for 100 counties”, a special financing scheme to help townships and villages build infrastructure and
ancillary facilities for solid waste and sewage treatment in more than 200 counties (districts), and enhance infrastructural capacity for green

development. This fosters synergy between urbanization and rural revitalization, and promotes equal access to basic public services and
synchronized development between urban and rural areas.

BERMEPIIRA L BRER (—H) TiE
Tai’an Waste Sorting System (Phase 1)

ZMBRATHER"BE
T2 EME/BRENE
ZH R, WHESNRETE
2R A TE I IR AN IR R R

F2023F AR RE
AENIRTIHIERAAEE
This is an important pilot

program in CDB’s “RMB100
billion loans for 100 counties”

scheme. It is a critical step for

Tai’an to set up a comprehensive

system for waste sorting and
stop domestic waste landfill by

2023. :I-‘"_' A%
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£ &i56EE CLEAN ENERGY

R CERFRBITZHEFEIGE I X E. P KBEERTERTRY, REVWEFEBNIRES, KN FHEER
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CDB released the Plan of Action of CDB for Energy Sector to Realize Carbon Peaking and Neutrality Goals. CDB supported the development of

a modern power system, more intensive development of new sources of energy, major clean energy programs, and the construction of pumped-
storage power station, modern power storage, and cross-region, cross-province power distribution networks.

LA ETHKE GBI
Fengning Pumped-storage Power Station in Hebei Province

ZIN B X IE R B IE T A AR kAL KB RERIB A  IRIEILRE
RIGEEBHNATEER X,
The project increases the capacity of the power grid for load management, access

to clean energy in Zhangbei area, and green power supply for the venues of the
Beijing Winter Olympics.

=

AITZERT RERIREE LENETE
Xuwen Offshore Wind Power Program in Zhanjiang of
Guangdong Province Supported by CDB




.Q& #ik FORESTRY

ERXFEREEN. RAEE LK. SMREBBERT . ARBHEFESHLAE LR

CDB gave strong support for ecosystem carbon sink program, including national forestry reserves, large-scale afforestation, forestry resilience
improvement, and public parks in urban areas.

BB AEHTEZRUESRIPEEEEREENINE
Ecological Protection and Rehabilitation and National Forestry Reserve Program at Longquan Mountain in Chengdu

ZIMEREESMEASTHE, MBRMEEELE R REEBERNR, X REITEH R RGBT 50" REKT LI
AESREERAEAE N
Covering about 570,000 mu (380 square kilometers) of land, the program, upon completion, will enormously improve vegetation on Longguan

Mountain, contribute to Chengdu’s plan to become a “green heart” world-class city, and establish a stronger ecological barrier for the upper
streams of the Yangtze River.

-~ T T —— T
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CDB focused on consolidating poverty alleviation achievements
and pushing forward all-round rural revitalization, and increased
financing for agricultural modernization, rural infrastructure,
businesses that utilize local resources, and livelihood programs for
relocated households. CDB supported rural industrial chains and
green agriculture, set up demonstration zones for revitalizing rural
areas with development finance and supported counties identified
as priorities in the national rural revitalization program. CDB also
provided consultancy services and designed financing schemes
for counties supported by national policies of rural revitalization,
old revolutionary areas, and common prosperity demonstration
zones. It organized four workshops for a total of 384 government
officials from 50 places at various subnational levels.

HMREETEIER 2 Hk— LA
Water Supply Project for Huayuan
County in Hunan Province

ZIME R REKR B EMEIERN
WL MKEMERRBIEESTE,
X RRIRILIEHON 2 SHASH B AR
ZRPKBBEABEEZERE X

As a key water supply infrastructure project
in the county of Huayuan, where the
approach of targeted poverty alleviation
was first proposed, it greatly improved

access to safe drinking water for 130,000
people in nine villages in the county.

AITXFHEXTEMNER 2 RXER= LA ERE
RIE (—8)

Rural Revitalization Program (Phase I) for Pepper-growing in
Bozhou District of Zunyi Supported by CDB
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AMNTEBEXEHiEEE I SESERRRATE
Pilot Program for Holistic Land Management in Huangqgiao Sub-district, Xiangcheng District, Suzhou

ZMBEEERBLFLARIVAMBE AR BRERS <, AERHKIGRNRABEE ZRAMBENINETSHIREE K
MHRIPESFIVERLRBES, RATMEAUFNA, FRFLMESHSIFH 2 e XRM 2 HRXOFTERZ.

The program is tailored to local economic and natural resources conditions and takes a holistic approach to the management of farming land,
construction land and rural environment which promotes both arable land conservation and industrial cluster development and facilitates the
intensive land utilization. It offers a new pathway for development finance to support integrated urban-rural development and rural revitalization.

RAiizRERE A ESVERBEIZRINE
Millions-mu High-standard Farming Land Development of Dadi
Environment Investment Holdings Co., Ltd.

ZIE SR IZ R R AR T, R AR R R A B A 1% i <is
RN B A LA S A & IRA SR E . RER
BRREEBRREN.

CDB used innovative market-based financing models in the project,
which is instrumental in resolving the challenges for rural infrastructure
financing. It is an important endeavor of Shanxi Province to guarantee
the minimum acreage of arable land, improve farming land quality, and
ensure food security.
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1RFEM{EE AFFORDABLE HOUSING

HRELEREHESTAMBEIREFR, SIFRRER, PAREURELEATERS . AEBHNEEFRER N EEDN
FERREARZR, ERXFREMEEERS  HMEZ IBNRKEE, BREERPF X XS

Maintaining its position as the leading source of financing for affordable housing, CDB introduced new financing models for the development
of affordable housing system that includes affordable rental housing, public rental housing, and joint-ownership housing. The focus was on
affordable rental housing and renovating old urban residential areas, with continued support to shantytown renovation.

f@ f#EFF%E HEALTHCARE AND ELDERLY CARE

RARAERPEMRRES AQZERALEE, HHLRETRBRAGIANERES DEMER, WHRRSREE
T RERSUR, R FEWS 331" TiE, REFAELTMEAER, XHFRZRSARER.

CDB promoted equal access to high quality healthcare resources and strengthened healthcare services in lower levels of administration, which
contributed to building a high quality system of healthcare services. CDB continued to implement the “331 senior care program” which provided
special loans for developing an elderly care system. These efforts were aimed at supporting the national strategies for a Healthy China and coping
with the challenges of an aging population.

i /R MEDIUM, SMALL AND MICRO BUSINESSES

HEZRERTPNRELEBBRISER, ROREEZTEAR, 3|S ENSERITEBL GFFRF X, RN F
RIBE. Y E.BEM

CDB developed a multi-layered financial services system and made full use of on-lending facilities to encourage partner banks to lower interest rates
for loans to medium, small and micro businesses and help more of them benefit from lower-cost funding in more areas.

<®> gtk STUDENT LOANS

YERIFNFIRENADRITER,
F—HESEIMER. BHEE. ARRE
T RARESXTRSHZEZRIE.
MERFAENMEE, ©F@467H
BRELFEEFERMERFER
37912, BELE2TNE (BBXK. A
BW). 245910 B (K) REBFEINTY
HEMBERK.

As the leading issuing bank of student loans,
CDB swiftly put into action the new policy of
the MOF, the Ministry of Education, the PBoC
and the CBIRC for raising credit lines for
students and increasing loan purposes. Over

the year, CDB issued RMB37.9 billion loans to

4.67 million students with economic challenges,

covering 2,459 townships in 27 provincia-level (R ELIATEE 1A MR T A S A AMB A RIS B BN LY IR 5

regions and all the higher education institutions A College Student Applies for A Student Loan in Her Hometown Yining, Ili Kazakh
identified by the Ministry of Education. Autonomous Prefecture




& MERRAESERE EMERGENCY RESPONSE FOR DISASTER RELIEF AND ENERGY SUPPLY

XFNYNREEN, AFREX RN EARN2ER ENLESFTREREERRS, RIETMEANR, TREZREIE, 8
NTFERERBEHNZE2KE

CDB issued timely emergency loans to disaster-hit areas for emergency response and set up fast tracks for special loans, which contributed to
steady energy supply in winter and spring. These efforts were significant for guaranteeing people’s livelihood, development and security.

@RS . RAESMEW LR E TR
Special Energy Supply Loans for Businesses in
Shandong and Shaanxi Provinces

20214, K{TE LR BERE AL M RHEMEFK,
ATHTERY IV RESFHRRKBHEREHEDE
FRERE, SRAERVKIEAFRGE, XFH
RITBERE B8, RIEERIREM .

In 2021, CDB issued special energy supply loans to Shandong
Energy Group to support its coal-producing subsidiaries in
increasing coal storage and supply during the heating seasons
of winter and spring. CDB supported Shaanxi Coal and
Chemical Industry Group in increasing its production capacity
of coal and coal-fired power, which contributed to stable
energy supply.

‘ XFHE —F B eRELR

HIGH QUALITY DEVELOPMENT OF THE BELT AND ROAD INITIATIVE

20215, R TRF " SinE. . UHE. BERAE"BF, RRFARARERRE, F "' —H B BEREMREEKER. 8t
AE.ZRSENERESE BN —H R BEXRETVBRRMARLEERA . RUBLZHRIMNI TR, AEALF
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MEELTIMEH ( ZH) . 10{2ET " PREAREHE EWRHAOZET " PREFEFEE THRN, SRR
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E7RBFAAPTEBSRRIE, VISR " —H—5 " BEE " DR BiR.
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In 2021, aiming at “high standard, sustainable and people-centered” growth, CDB provided responsible financing for programs of infrastructure
connectivity, production capacity cooperation, economic and trade cooperation, and financial cooperation in partner countries under the BRI,
contributing to better lives in these countries. CDB rolled out the second phase of its special foreign trade loans and continued to issue special
loans for international logistics supply chains. CDB promoted cooperation under multilateral arrangements such as SCO Interbank Association,
China-CEEC Interbank Association, China-ASEAN Interbank Association, ASEAN-plus-Three Interbank Cooperation Mechanism, China-Arab
Countries Interbank Association, China-Africa Interbank Association, and China-Latin America Development Financial Institutions Association. An
RMB3O0 billion-equivalent special loan (phase Il) under the SCO Interbank Association, an RMB1 billion special loan for “China-LAC Development
Cooperation” and an RMB1 billion special loan for “China-LAC Digital Economy Cooperation” were introduced to promote financial exchanges
and project cooperation. CDB facilitated the cross-border use of RMB through RMB facility programs with the Korea Development Bank,
Vientiane-Vang Vieng Expressway in the Laos and Dakar Sewage Treatment in Senegal. CDB studied the financing rules for development finance
institutions and guidelines for the overseas use of RMB, funded 67 students from 16 countries to study in Chinese universities through the CDB
BRI Scholarship, and promoted the development of the BRI, software connectivity, and people-to-people connectivity.

X IR F P ERYISI B AL IR HERE N
CHINA RAILWAY Express (CR express) Infrastructure
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The CR express is a trunk line for land transportation between China and Europe. CDB released a plan of action to support CR express
infrastructure, strengthening its express+finance model for the construction of logistics and distribution hubs in cities such as Xi’an, Chengdu,

and Urumgji, port infrastructure in Alashankou, Horgos and other cities, and China-Belarus Industrial Park and the operation of “Qilu” CR express
block train.

@ O/ D ERBE Sl
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In 2021, the Bank formulated CDB Business Development Plan in the 14th Five-Year Period which dovetails with the national 14th Five-Year
Plan. In enhanced planning cooperation with ministries, subnational levels of governments and strategic clients, CDB produced financing plans

for various regional development programs. Financing plans were also prepared for priority regional and sectoral development strategies and
strategic clients in the areas of rural revitalization, old revolutionary bases, urban renewal, and marine economy.

In 2021, CDB formulated the Program of Work for Enhanced Research, which accelerated the development of a high-level think tank. The focus
was to enhance capacity in subject selection, research input, and outcome application. The Bank undertook 13 national research projects,
established CDB Think Tank Research journal, and produced 52 research reports with high quality. As part of the outcomes of the Belt and Road
Forum for International Cooperation, CDB established the Innovation and Development Center for BRI to work with government agencies and
international organizations on innovative research, project consulting, partnership development and capacity building.
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TREASURY
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In 2021, CDB raised funds in large quantities and in a prudent manner, and developed the primary and secondary markets for CDB bonds, providing
strong funding support for the business development of the Bank. Over the year, CDB issued RMB2.53 trillion financial bonds, with a balance
of RMB11 trillion bonds. USD6.6 billion foreign currency debentures in and outside the Chinese mainland and RMB2.5 billion overseas yuan-

denominated bonds were issued. International ratings agencies like Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s consistently rated CDB at the same level as
China’s sovereign rating.

Building the primary market. CDB issued special bonds for the coordinated development of the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region and rural
revitalization to raise funds from the market for the two national strategies. CDB issued bonds through direct bidding to global investors for the
first time, expanding access to China’s bond market for overseas institutions.

Enhancing interconnection between primary and secondary markets. CDB improved the system of indicators for evaluating market-making
operations of CDB bonds, regularly carried out two-way market-making support operations, and created a real-time bidding market and markers
of overseas demand to provide liquidity for the bond market. CDB rolled out CDB standard green bonds forward physical delivery, expanding the
forward business of CDB standard bonds. The annual trading volume of CDB bonds was RMB67 trillion, leading the market for eight years in a
row. Ten-year CDB bond was among the most traded on the market and regarded as a pacesetter.

Contributing to carbon peaking and neutrality. CDB issued special green bonds, for example, on carbon neutrality and development of low-
carbon transport system, under the Bond Connect scheme, introduced a green financial bond with a floating rate tied to DR benchmark, and
made use of two central bank instruments in support of the real economy, i.e. the carbon-reduction supporting tool and the re-lending program
for clean and efficient use of coal, to contribute to a greener economy and society.
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INTERMEDIARY BUSINESS

2021 F , KITGEEHER  REB.RRSHFELESHn, IHEXKEMELXE. ZFERRK HRESELIFIRE, BY
WHTEEFEWERMBTRA, BEMSIIT, BEFERT - HIEFRELSLE HEERZTHEREKR. B
WRAATREFPREGSABELITRS, BImZU AR He L EERT, 5ISTYRERSERE A,

In 2021, CDB made use of a variety of intermediary service products, including bills, factoring, and letters of guarantee, to support balanced
development across regions, green and low-carbon growth and livelihood programs. CDB helped the real economy reduce financing costs and
financial leverage and revitalize stock assets substantially, and expanded asset custody services to meet the clients’ diversified needs. CDB

served as a bond underwriter for 147 clients to mobilize financial resources on the markets to help businesses access direct financing and
support key national strategies.
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CREDIT MANAGEMENT
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In 2021, CDB maintained a good balance between business expansion and risk management and fully implemented reforms of the
comprehensive credit extension and review system. CDB brought into full play the function of credit review with high quality, and enabled the
medium- and long-term commitments of RMB to reach a record high, lending strong support to the Bank’s business development. It deepened
innovation in financing model, introduced a “total-factor resources management integrated review” model, and promoted market-based financing
for infrastructure in accordance with laws and regulations. It constantly strengthened the review and approval mechanism, with a lead examiner at
the executive-vice-president-level and an additional number of general-manager-level examiners. Full-time examiners were selected from across
the bank for the first time, and two road-show management measures were formulated. The Bank innovated and established a credit extension
monitoring and management structure with unique characteristics, issued the first credit extension monitoring measures and the first monitoring
exercise was completed, filling in an old gap. It completed the revision of the Review Management Manual (2021 ), making the credit extension
system more standardized.

“E5EElS
SETTLEMENT AND OPERATION
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In 2021, CDB continuously improved settlement services. The operational risk event incidence was kept at a low level of 0.22%c0 and bank-

enterprise reconciliation rate was 100%. CDB continued to develop the new-generation system for core services to build a multi-tiered, whole-
chain, and full-lifecycle integrated account system for domestic and foreign currencies.
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COOPERATION WITH OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
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In 2021, CDB continued to deepen its strategic cooperation with other banks and expanded areas of cooperation. CDB stepped up management
of on-lending partnerships for greater support for small and micro businesses and old revolutionary areas. It ensured good performance in loan
syndication to channel resources in the industry towards major development strategies for environmental conservation of the Yangtze River,

ecological protection and high quality development in the Yellow River basin, and the coordinated development of the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region,
etc. It remained China’s top provider of syndicated loans.

ANRFRESHEN

HUMAN RESOURCES AND ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE
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In 2021, following the CPC’s guidelines on organization in the new era, CDB continued to build a strong team of professionals. Its human resources
management system continued to undergo reform to provide a well-developed career ladder for professionals and the general staff. Answering the call
of the government to stabilize employment, CDB recruited staff members from various channels and offered better career development prospects to
motivate staff members. Organization, remuneration, and evaluation reforms were carried out to support high quality and sustained growth of the Bank.

In 2021, in an organizational improvement exercise, CDB created three tier-one departments, i.e. Rural Revitalization, Inclusive Finance, and
Economic Activity Department |V; streamlined the internal organization of branches; and reformed the management system and functions of its
representative offices. At the end 2021, the CDB network included 37 tier-one branches and four tier-two branches at home, one branch office
and ten representative offices overseas, and five majority-owned subsidiaries.

2T
STAFF TRAINING
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In 2021, CDB provided more professional, systematic, and standard-based internal training. The top political priority was to study and implement
the Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a New Era to enhance the theoretical knowledge and political awareness
of its staff members; 26 theoretical training sessions were held during the year. Focusing on its mandate, CDB held 71 training sessions on

professional knowledge and skills. New training formats and methods were introduced, more options were offered online, and a holistic approach
was adopted for better learning results.
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IT MANAGEMENT
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In 2021, CDB continued to improve its IT management system, strengthening IT risk management capacity to reinforce network security and
IT support. Preparations were completed for the operationalization of the new-generation system for core services. IT support systems were
developed for priority services, including student loans, treasury, operations, data application, and e-banking; procedures were streamlined for

student loans to support services innovation and growth. The framework composed of three centers in two geographical regions was strengthened
to provide strong IT support for financial activities.
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CDB Capital Co., Ltd.
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CDB Capital Co., Ltd. (CDB Capital) was founded in August 2009 with a registered capital of RMB77.475 billion. In 2021, the company
carried out its development finance mandate by supporting key national development strategies for industrial and supply chains stability and
competitiveness, balanced development across regions, urban-rural integration, and Beautiful and Healthy China. It supported various economic
sectors and the overall development. The company continued to improve its operations and control existing and emerging sources of risks,

ensuring its own healthy growth and contributing positively to the CDB Group. At the end of 2021, its total asset was RMB192.507 billion and its
asset under management was over RMB500 billion.
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CDB Securities Co., Ltd.
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CDB Securities Co., Ltd. (CDB Securities) was founded in August 2010 and completed its restructuring into a joint stock company in August

2017, with a registered capital of RMB9.5 billion. In 2021, leveraging its strengths in bond services, CDB Securities made greater efforts in bond

underwriting. It was rated a class-A securities dealer by China Securities Regulatory Commission for the fifth consecutive year and Best Securities
Company of the Year for Supporting High Quality Development by the Financial News. At the end of 2021, its total asset was RMB42.334 billion.
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CDB Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.
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CDB Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. (CDB Financial Leasing) was listed on the main board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in July 2016 with a

registered capital of RMB12.642 billion. In 2021, the company increased support for key industries and under-developed sectors in line with the
strategies of the CDB Group. It witnessed progress in scale, quality, and profits. At the end of 2021, its total asset was RMB341.838 billion.
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China-Africa Development Fund
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China-Africa Development Fund (CADFund) was established in June 2007 as the first equity investment fund in China specializing in Africa
investments, with a capital amount of USD10 billion. In 2021, it continued to support and encourage more investment in Africa. In the priority
areas of digital economy, green manufacturing, and infrastructure connectivity, it increased investment commitments in Africa. At the end of 2021,
its total investment commitments in Africa reached USD5.997 billion, which could translate into about USD27 billion of investments from China to
Africa.
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The Board of Directors of CDB focuses on integrating development and security, continuously improves comprehensive risk management,
strengthens risk management capacity and supervises senior management in carrying out comprehensive risk management, to make risk
management more scientific and effective. The senior management is responsible for implementing comprehensive risk management, establishing

a comprehensive risk management committee, and improving the comprehensive risk management mechanism, strengthening risk management
in key areas, and handling risk disposal to maintain business sustainability.
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COMPREHENSIVE RISK MANAGEMENT
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In risk management, CDB follows the principle of symmetry, comprehensiveness, independence, and effectiveness. Its robust risk governance
structure works closely together to keep risks under control at various levels.

In 2021, CDB maintained its prudent risk appetite in response to the complexities, risks and challenges at home and abroad. It made a special
effort to strengthen its risk management system to create a clear governance structure and fully-developed procedures, modernize the toolkit
and carry out effective monitoring. It refined its risk management system, processes, and tools, and effectively handled various sources of risks.
A group-wide exercise was carried out to pinpoint, evaluate, and categorize risks and determine responses. A group risk appetite statement was
prepared and a multi-layered risk appetite management framework established for improved risk appetite decomposition and implementation. The
group client management system was improved to make it more elaborate and scientific. The system of consolidated statement management was
enhanced to provide a panoramic view for decision-making. Risk awareness of the entire staff was increased and the idea of “everyone taking
responsibility for risk management” established, which enhanced CDB’s “soft power” for risk management.

In 2021, CDB participated in the climate-related risk stress testing organized by the PBoC to assess the potential impact on the Bank’s credit
assets as a result of the transition toward carbon peaking and neutrality goals. The result showed an increase in credit risk for CDB customers in
the thermal power, steel and cement sectors under the stressful situation, but the overall impact on the Bank’s risk profile was controllable.
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In 2021, CDB further refined credit rating management by developing special methods for clients in key sectors, which strengthened risk
management for industrial chain clients in manufacturing. Credit management was improved with a complete update of the Credit Management
Manual, which filled in some gaps in the 1+N non-performing assets handling system. Credit spot inspection and off-site monitoring was
enhanced; more measures were taken to review the approval of funds and provision of guarantee; collection of exemplary risk management cases
and credit management training was improved. Credit assets were managed throughout the full life cycle. Progress was made in building a big-
data early warning system to make risk warning and monitoring smarter and more agile. Risk management was intensified in key areas; quarterly
reviews were carried out in branches; clients in high-risk areas were monitored monthly. CDB established a risk alerting mechanism, with which
risk alerts were put out timely for clients with significant potential risks. Key clients with significant risks were put on a special list and plans
were tailor-made to enable proactive measures. CDB headquarters supported subsidiaries such as CDB Securities and CDB Financial Leasing
in developing internal rating systems, which contributed to better risk management of the whole group. Existing risks were constantly addressed
with intensity, rigorousness and urgency to answer the government’s call for continuously guarding against financial risks. Over the year, CDB
dealt with RMB71.8 billion of risky assets and RMB20.5 billion of NPL, which helped to enhance the resilience of the Bank. Focusing on key

areas, CDB conducted more intensive risk monitoring and paid great attention to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the macro-economy
and financial markets, making its risk management more forward-looking and targeted.
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MARKET RISK
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CDB’s goal of market risk management is to create a well-functioning system that promptly recognizes, accurately measures, consistently

monitors and effectively controls market risks in both transactional and non-transactional business so as to keep them under control and achieve
a good balance between risks and returns.
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In 2021, CDB continuously strengthened market risk management across the group. Sticking to a prudent risk appetite, it followed closely
developments on the international and domestic financial markets, especially risks in its main lines of business, for enhanced market risk
management and reporting of the whole group. It developed the foreign exchange market self-regulation mechanism; under the “risk neutral”
concept, it further improved foreign exchange rate management strategies and maintained effective control over its exchange rate risk exposure.
It improved management of risks associated with interest rates on bank books by complying with laws and regulations, focusing on real impact,
and taking a cautious approach. It kept improving the management processes and systems for treasury transaction, strengthened the top-level
design of market risk management and the building of long-term mechanisms, and promoted the steady development of treasury services.
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LIQUIDITY RISK
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CDB consistently follows a prudent approach to liquidity risk management which maintains maturity matching between assets and liabilities
and structural balance and constantly updates strategies in light of business growth and market dynamics. In 2021, with a prudent liquidity risk
appetite, CDB continuously improved its liquidity risk management mechanisms, taking into account the sources of funding and purposes of

financial services of a development finance institution. The management framework covers the whole spectrum of CDB's services, including the
upper, middle, and lower streams and provides multiple tools to monitor risks to ensure reasonable liquidity reserves and liquidity safety.
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OPERATIONAL RISK
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In 2021, CDB continuously improved its three tools for managing operational risk, establishing a database for sources of operational risk across
all business lines and improving the systems of key indicators of operational risks and for collecting and reporting risk events. Procedures and
criteria for outsourcing risk management were embedded in the outsourcing system. Outsourcing risk management in IT, business operation,
professional services, and support services was further standardized. Long-acting frameworks and procedures for case prevention and control
were improved to reduce sources of risk, exercise strict control over the whole procedure, keep risks under tight control, and punish breach of
regulations. In tandem with the development of institutions, input of resources was guaranteed under stronger central coordination to strengthen
the management of case prevention and control and effectively forestall and defuse various risk incidents. Related transactions and internal
transactions were managed in a whole-of-group way to properly review compliance and approval procedures; lists of related parties were updated
and monitoring, statistics collection and reporting of related-party transactions conducted.
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In 2021, CDB constantly improved the top-level design of its compliance risk management framework. The Board of Directors exercised strategic
decision-making and supervisory powers over the compliance management; the senior management assumed leadership responsibilities in
managing the critical tasks of compliance management. The governance system of compliance management was further improved to strengthen
whole-of-process management. Greater efforts were made for compliance risk prediction and pre-examination, in-process monitoring, and
post-examination and correction to fully utilize the “three lines of defence”. Corrections were made upon investigation across the group under

centralized management to implement regulatory advice efficiently and consolidate gains. A compliance culture was fostered that encouraged all
to take responsibility and increase awareness.
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REPUTATIONAL RISK
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In 2021, CDB further improved the whole-of-process management of reputational risk and made it a regular effort. The CDB Reputational Risk
Management Rules (2021) was released and a three-tiered contact mechanism created to strengthen the system. Responses to public opinions
were more timely and effective as a result of better monitoring, informed analysis of situation, and a multi-pronged approach. CDB improved daily

management of reputational risks, strengthened examination and emergency drills, conducted stress tests and organized training and check-ups.
Entities within the group were held accountable for reputational risk management, which helped deliver good results across the group.

[ 7 XU B

COUNTRY RISK

2021, KT EEMERIY SR ERBAEFNE IR, A TEERLSXEEENERR, FEaCENRNEERE
EESNKESSER, cEEIENNLEERBMAOLELRER, RAFRERANKRERDTZEHH , ROKER
FEIEXE R S A RMIEMDS| SR REER.

In 2021, CDB placed a high premium on developing mechanisms for managing risks in international business; strengthened the early warning
system, country risk concentration management, and total risk control; fully executed strategies for country risk management and exercised

category-specific control; and conducted special studies and quarterly reviews on major risks. Strong country risk management provided support,
incentive, and guarantee for the growth of CDB’s international business.
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RISK MANAGEMENT
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STRATEGIC RISK

20214 , RATHRGNN BN ZF BN TRHAH, B 1RE" NEBXKRT, BREXTRI W, BRI RNKBXKEES, 9
ALHENGERBER, HFEEA KRB EEKFE.
In 2021, CDB carried out in-depth, forward-looking study of the economy, stuck to the prudent risk appetite, focused on its mandate, and

monitored group-wide strategic risk on a quarterly basis. Strategic risk management was made an organic part of CDB’s comprehensive risk
management system, which saw continued progress in its capacity for strategic risk management.

1l=l [ *‘I’ ?iﬂ, IZ_L

IT RISK

20214, RTHE T EGERMENKREERR, SLERMRNEZEHLEGEEMNSEERE. HIECERFLRITE
EREXKEEEIFE=FTETL), FREERENKE £ HIFHE, EEJJL\%IJ#E“ﬁ\% ZE BB B U X o #H— 1
HZEE2ANMNERRRNE S NERAER, 2UERBRIRNE B SN AR ETLH .

In 2021, CDB improved its IT risk management system and strengthened the three lines of defence and management procedures. A Three-year

Program of Work for Comprehensive Reviews of CDB IT Risk was formulated to enable comprehensive reviews and early risk discovery and control.
A system of IT risk monitoring indicators was further developed to cover multiple layers and sectors to enhance regular monitoring and reporting.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

202145, RATHEBU AT H EIE MU T ERNEERN, @2 X3RS REZH, ﬁ@"?zﬂﬁj
EABRNHSEEITE, STMBRIUR S REEZ. W?ﬁﬁfﬁ?aﬁ%?ﬁ’]lﬂﬂﬁﬁm?L+9¥E%Eﬁ"*/—\“P\]E BB
REES, MR HIEORRE . RR AR T B XUW/\ADTE, RETEIRSSI. (N STER. BUERE, ﬁ/ﬁi“ QE-
WE-B-RA REER RAF RS INMRIZTRME, IMEBUSKEANMEAINENEE S %EL_%UJ#*/%)EPC
Big, NesE THR " HSEE, BENEEAGIEER, HHEEIT1I5AEEMGE, RANZEEMEENETRAIE.

202145, RTH LT EN T FIFNERRIR, RIES I AR HI TR R R AT AR G ENTFNE, BRTFRR
EITH BRI RBAITRAMEHERREBAIAEER, FTREMARLRIMAZHEARGFEEARE, AMEHL
BFEY, N —LEEGFRENSE, A17ERBUAN Lz HIEE.

In 2021, CDB continuously strengthened internal control management. The structure for authorization management and mechanism for differentiated
authorization and dynamic adjustments were strengthened; dynamic adjustments of basic authorization in branches were carried out; the scope of
authorization was delimited based on performance assessment and the system of internal control indicators. CDB carried out measures identified in
the Year of Internal Control Management of the CBIRC; weaknesses were located and management enhanced in the eight areas of structure, rules,
procedures, system, personnel, execution, supervision and culture, building a virtuous cycle of examination, review, reform and improvement. Internal
control reviews were carried out in all CDB branches, covering its major lines of business. CDB continued to develop and refine a standard-based
system, creating, reforming and abolishing various standards as soon as the necessity arose. The internal control system was more elaborate, with
15 rules added or amended, which enhanced the effectiveness of internal control management.

In 2021, CDB further improved its internal control evaluation system and carried out evaluations based on the internal control systems of various
entities and CDB'’s internal control system and evaluation methods. No major defects, as per the CDB’s definition, was discovered in the internal
control system during the reporting period, pointing to effective work in this area; improvements were made where necessary.
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

FITRAEEUBRSERERE HERAREER XUNEERARERENER, RORETEAYRTIESLROS.
5| SHMREIER .

20215, RITRHFRABHNEERN, NERARNERREM, RAEMHARSESRRERE. FMTREEARAE
BIER AEFLAMERIMEMLIER, A TEEARAEENHES . XTHFETEUREAREEAZONEERY
RLE, BUEARAEERENER T, EUEARNBRAREITHMNRZAERITGEN " SUTHE"]KR, SIEFEEAR
RRXEENY, BEUEARARATMERR, AMRARAEERY, BRAERAELS|S RREEMMEFLT @
BYER, FEMBRAEERZSARIIFES, REFTEUBERALNRSSHERR.

BRRRES(HAWVRITRASENZE (RT))SEXMETE, BE 2021FK, ATHERORETARH17,182.521Z 7T,
—REARREN14,615.211270, O —RERLDEH14,602.911270, RAFREE11.66%, —RAEAAFTEEI.85%, L —R
BARFRERIBLY%; KITRATEAORERRZEN6,908.22127T, O —RER DI —REKRZRE14,312.82127T, &
AREBEI1.62%, MO —RAAREEN—RAEAEATEEI.82%,

The purpose of CDB’s capital management is to promote national development strategies, comply with capital management regulations, and
preserve and increase the value of state assets. CDB manages its capital in a way that supports, directs and guarantees the growth of its
business.

In 2021, in line with the principle of principal safety and modest profit, CDB strengthened its capacity to independently generate capital, and
both the capital structure and total volume remained stable. Following its capital management philosophy and in line with the nature and features
of development finance, CDB continued to improve its capital management mechanism. The capital restraint mechanism, which is based on
capital adequacy ratio, was enhanced; the top-level design for capital management of the CDB Group was improved, which saw the creation of
a “double-evaluation” system—internal capital adequacy assessment process and capital management assessment, annual management plan
for capital adequacy ratio, and a capital budgetary system. Capital management continued to perform better, playing an effective role in directing
business plans and encouraging the right flow of resources. Capital management was further strengthened for supporting decision-making to
better tackle financial risks and promote high quality growth of the Bank.

As calculated in accordance with the Capital Rules for Commercial Banks (Provisional) and other relevant regulations, as of the end of 2021, the
Bank, in consolidation terms, had a total capital of RMB1,718.252 billion, total Tier 1 capital RMB1,451.521 billion, total Common Equity Tier 1
capital RMB1,450.291 billion, capital adequacy ratio 11.66%, Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 9.85%, and Common Equity Tier 1 capital adequacy
ratio 9.84%. As for the parent company, the total capital was RMB1,690.822 billion, both total Tier 1 capital and total Common Equity Tier 1
capital RMB1,431.282 billion, capital adequacy ratio 11.62%, and both total Tier 1 capital and total Common Equity Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio
9.82%.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

20215, ATHES 1BRE N  HERE "HED, LERRRMER. RIIHLRIER.
REMBAMBEFRERERDS, BREXHZI L, BTHSRE BEFRSERKEK. IZ
HARBUL, WAXMESRE. EEWER. EMAF. ETHKLENELRE. RRSNE
E2W, IRBTHERE. TMITFLERBRNEEHE ENEATESEIK, &
FRENERXFUFELROSISNANEWA.

FITEEB(ERFRRIT2A1FTHFLLRRE), HEAITELSTEMTHFE
ZRGHES 5T K.

In 2021, as mandated by its mission to support national development and deliver a better life for the
people, CDB grounded its work in China’s new development circumstances, implemented the new
development philosophy, and promoted the new development paradigm. It focused on its mandate
and fulfilled social responsibilities to promote national strategies, improve people’s well-being, and
support higher quality, more efficient, fairer, and more sustainable development. CDB took an active
part in conferences to share best practices in fulfiling corporate social responsibility and promoting
sustainable development, communicate CDB’s values and practices, and better leverage the role of
finance in supporting sustainable development.

The CDB Sustainability Report 2021 shall be released to communicate its approaches and practices
in corporate social responsibility and sustainable development.
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HONORS AND AWARDS

(ARBIRY People’s Daily

INIRAXIEFEG Excellent Case of Rural Revitalization

AR People.cn

ARGV HEFTFEZELEZRM People’s Enterprise Social Responsibility Award for Green
Development Case

e Xinhuanet.com

FEACIVHERERSEZELRAFEN

HEFIHEEN

Chinese Enterprise Social Responsibility Award for Excellent
Case of Serving Green Development

Official website of CPC History Learning & Education

EEREIMRZRDREMFEHRS

Outstanding Organizer of Finals of National Contest of CPC
History Learning

( £&REATIR ) Financial News

FERERTHLARIESIR Best Bank of the Year for Implementing New Development
Philosophy

(R ERITRER ) China Banking and Insurance News

PEEEEREELE (BRFRRITHER
BEZEM)

ST IR AR

(HERITIE )

Exemplary Case of Inclusive Finance Communications (case of
new media communications of CDB student loans)

China Banking

PERITL R RIFARMTHRITLE (2020) RS

Excellent Organization for Selection of Outstanding Research
Work in China Banking Industry Development Studies (2020)

R & Sina Finance

FESEXRARARERET Best Bank for Responsible Investment of the Year
FEEMBEBETHEMRRS. PRIMERNEIZE China Finance Political Work Research Institute, Studies of
CHERETR VREL Party Building in Party and Government Organs Magazine

of the Working Committee of CPC Central Organs and
Central Government Departments

THAEEERARATERLED

REH SR FIEN TR

100 Excellent Cases of New Era for Party Building in Chinese
Financial Sector

Institute for Chinese Social Sciences Research and Assessment

2021 FHEREREZEA

PEARASFREES

2021 Featured Case of Chinese Think Tanks

Western China Human Resources Development Foundation

ZORIE S

Outstanding Donor

2021118
November 2021

20224018
January 2022

20224018
January 2022

20215098
September 2021

20214128
December 2021

20212058
May 2021

20215028
February 2021

20214128
December 2021

20214078
July 2021

20214098
September 2021

20215098
September 2021



HESET

HONORS AND AWARDS

RBER Ministry of Civil Affairs 20214098
FRIEERER China Charity Award September 2021
FEEMIS Chinese Financial Workers’ Union 20215128

cEEMA—FHRE

LSRR B

National May 1st Labor Medal for Financial Sector

SCO Secretariat

December 2021

20224038

‘ EBEFALR0RE KE

RRERBICEEARIEAT

SCO 20th Anniversary Medal

China Central Depository & Clearing Co., Ltd.

March 2022

20224% 018

2021 FE R RAENA

2021 FEMFHRMERELITNN

2021 FEEEBWSRFERITNG
2021 FEBEHH 10058

EBIESZHM

2021 Leading Institute on Bond Market

2021 Outstanding Issuer of Policy Financial Bonds
2021 Outstanding Issuer of OTC Products

2021 Top 100 Proprietary Trading Bond Dealer

Shanghai Stock Exchange

January 2022

2022%F01H

202N FEEREFMFLITA

RYNESF R 5 R

2021 Excellent Issuer of Financial Bonds

Shenzhen Stock Exchange

January 2022

20224028

2N FEMFHRMERESFZTA

2021 Excellent Issuer of Policy Financial Bonds

February 2022

20225018

FEINCR S China Foreign Exchange Trade System
2021 EEHIFE I HK 2021 Market Influence Award
2021 FEEHIFtI L 2021 Market Innovation Award

RITE NI BEMRBERAE

Clearing House Financial Market Co., Ltd.

January 2022

20224018

2021 EEMBFLITA
21 FEGBEERMEK

REBEERAT

2021 Outstanding Issuer
2021 Green Finance Award

Bond Connect Co., Ltd.

January 2022

20215078

2021 fRFB—RH AL FE
2021 RFBRFRITA

PEEOERREAS

2021 Bond Connect Primary Market Innovation Award
2021 Bond Connect Outstanding Issuer

China Export and Credit Insurance Corporation

July 2021

20214F04H

2020 EBIMERIRREIERN
20204 EESGRIR A 1E R

2020 Overseas Investment Banking-Insurance Cooperation Case
2020 ESG Banking-Insurance Cooperation Case

April 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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KEH

N& RFHRFRBITHRIM 1 92,565 131,354 92,011 130,840
FRE LRI 2 195,044 341,853 221,139 364,480
wRERE 3 371,086 106,536 371,086 106,536
PTEEmA~ 4 16,978 37,737 16,901 37,455
ENBE SR> 5 495,214 588,312 488,334 581,625
R GER AR 6 12,791,666 12,640,362 12,640,761 12,513,295
SRR
RS HERA 7 1,005,966 1,055,703 839,684 905,311
RN H 8 1,146,917 1,273,000 1,145,265 1,268,683
H AR 9 766,562 660,106 746,090 639,350
Hihia TREHE 10 6,060 4,810 2,055 1,516
KEARRAN IR 7 11 443 518 101,730 91,155
& i A 7 12 109,531 94,521 17,309 18,041
P75 13 1,940 2,068 1,587 1,675
BE 14 707 709 = -
BTSRRI 15 138,127 124,221 121,800 109,027
HE ™ 16 29,135 41,765 9,639 11,835
HERIt 17,167,941 17,103,575 16,815,391 16,780,824
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2021F12A31H  (BRAFZIWI, £MBAHNAARTEAT)

EHA &IT
Bk % H Ath & @A FER I 17 2,395,514 2,879,272 2,395,617 2,880,272
= BUS A H & R fE K 18 448,961 499,052 216,028 293,217
N 19 69,680 92,864 55,790 90,862
T 5 EE R 20 2,085 2,051 = -
PTEERR AR 4 9,359 26,843 8,801 25,473
S B 0 R R 7= AR 21 21,205 124,725 3,152 107,174
R A7 5R 22 1,079,196 1,167,538 1,188,693 1,268,452
R AR T3 23 3,270 3,050 2,619 2,561
N 24 27,539 12,740 26,533 11,243
it sz 25 17,981 16,600 17,894 16,479
ERTHREIES 26 11,480,377 10,722,092 11,433,372 10,661,347
3 I FTS L 1 B 15 8,274 4,695 - -
HAthffR 27 66,220 71,461 35,610 36,489
ARET 15,629,661 15,622,983 15,384,109 15,393,569

KU FE A 28 421,248 421,248 421,248 421,248
RAERTR 29 182,650 182,650 182,195 182,195
Hhz Al 30 (14,988) (17,412) 3,473 932
BEAR 31 201,134 185,631 201,134 185,631
— R 32 258,519 248,966 253,382 244,206
KO EFE 33 465,883 434,686 369,850 353,043
HEFEAIMEENGEEIT 1,514,446 1,455,769 1,431,282 1,387,255
DB RN S 34 23,834 24,823 = -
FEENEETT 1,538,280 1,480,592 1,431,282 1,387,255
SR EENE 2T 17,167,941 17,103,575 16,815,391 16,780,824
JE MM SRR M E AR M S IRFNEREBS .
AMEH/RFEATIARTAZE .
EFEEK BlESK. 7K FEMEEITK JE PN
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AEH 17
—. Bl BN 195,019 173,253 157,014 122,750
FEA A 35 143,632 153,685 135,236 143,619
FEWAN 601,133 607,531 584,279 590,422
F B (457,501) (453,846) (449,043) (446,803)
FEHERAERBEAN 36 1,443 2,426 869 1,517
FEBRMEBN 2,373 3,376 1,462 2,154
FEHERAEXE (930) (950) (593) (637)
REWE 37 26,680 26,648 20,157 9,022
He . AHEMNEELVHRARES 650 82 = -
PR AT RN SRR =L L HIA= £ - 125 B B

s 28

ARMEEH R 38 18,228 13,529 9,077 1,182
CHMRzE 39 (10,230) (34,789) (10,147) (34,070)
N ON 40 13,460 10,065 230 134
HethU s 1,806 1,689 1,592 1,346
Z.BElBRETH (101,911) (31,140) (88,661) (17,261)
Bi & XMt A0 41 (4,335) (4,384) (4,106) (4,121)
Y REEHE 42 (12,837) (12,275) (10,658) (10,285)
ERBERK 43 (76,642) (4,321) (73,895) (2,832)
HHE = ERK (1,069) (1,597) ) (23)
HAth b 5 B A 44 (7,028) (8,563) = -
=, BlFE 93,108 142,113 68,353 105,489
o E SN 168 150 60 128
b= (194) (216) (165) (191)
. e S A 93,082 142,047 68,248 105,426
"o FTiEEiE A 45 (12,288) (23,231) (4,055) (14,597)
. &R 80,794 118,816 64,193 90,829
REFEASRAENEFE 78,960 117,376 64,193 90,829
DERER S 1,834 1,440 = -
N, HtE SR EmE RS 30 2,575 (4,515) 2,541 (442)
HEFEBASMAENEMBEEWENTE 28 2,424 (3,913) 2,541 (442)
(—) MEARRESXHRFENEME SRR 997 (277) 146 (4)
1L EFITERERHITUEDHM 116 3 116 3
2HMME TERANANEESD 881 (280) 30 7)
(Z) B ESRBRAMH LSRR 1,427 (3,636) 2,395 (438)
1 H MG E A R MEES 2,162 (928) 2,382 (419)
2 HMBRIURREARKES 165 169 13 (18)
3RS IRRITEZM (1,392) (2,558) = -
4. HAfth 492 (319) = (1)
BT OB R H AL & U TR % 151 (602) = -
t. GEkEEaH 83,369 114,301 66,734 90,387
HEFEATIMBEENGERESM 81,384 113,463 66,734 90,387
HEFLHERENEZEWE B 1,985 838 = -

Ja B SRR MDE DAY SRR AR .
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20215 E  (BRBHIMIN, SHBAHHARTEI )
HEFBARREENS
—. 20211 B1E&H 421248 182,650  (17,412) 185631 248966 434,686 1455769 24,823 1,480,592
Z. AERETHER
(=) %% - - - - - 78960 78,960 1,834 80,794
(Z) g Al 30 - - 2,424 - - - 2,424 151 2,575
SalELM - - 2,424 - - 78960 81,384 1,985 83,369
(Z) BEERDER = = - - - - - (2,490)  (2,490)
() #5858
1TREBRAR 31 = = - 15503 - (15,503) = = =
2RB—RR % 32 - - - - 9,553 (9,553) - - -
3B ENDE 33 = = = = - (22,707) (22,707) (484)  (23,191)
=. 20214 12H31B &% 421,248 182,650  (14,.988) 201,134 258519 465883 1,514,446 _ 23,834 1,538,280
—. 20201 B1H&H 421248 182,650  (13,499) 165399 238344 376,035 1,370,177 23558 1,393,735
Z. AEBBEHEH
(—) BHHE - - - - - 117,376 117,376 1,440 118,816
(Z) HhipE s 30 - - (3,913) - - - (3,913) (602) (4,515)
GalELM - - (3919 - - 117,376 113,463 838 114,301
(Z) BERDAAK - - - - - - - 984 984
() #5858
1TREBRAR 31 - - - 20,232 - (20,232) - - -
2RB—RR % 32 - - - - 10,622 (10,622 - - -
3B HENDE 33 - - - - - (27.871)  (27,871) (557)  (28,428)
=. 20204 12A31H&H 421248 182,650  (17,412) 185631 248966 434,686 1455769 24,823 1,480,592
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WITHEEN LR

2021 E (BRAFEIMN, STRMYHARTEI )

—. 20211 B1E&H 421,248 182,195 932 185,631 244,206 353,043 1,387,255
=, AEEBTHER
(—) %78 - - - - = 64,193 64,193
(Z) Hfesralas 30 - - 2,541 - - - 2,541
SAEWE B - - 2,541 - - 64,193 66,734
(Z)FENE
1TRBERAR 31 = = = 15,503 = (15,508) =
2RR—BRE AR 32 - = = = 9,176 (9,176) =
SXHENNE 33 = = = = = (22,707) (22,707)
=. 2021512831 BRH 421,248 182,195 3,473 201,134 253,382 369,850 1,431,282
—. 202051 H1ARH 421,248 182,195 1,374 165,399 233,994 320,529 1,324,739
. AERETHEH
(—) %% - - - - - 90,829 90,829
(Z) Hfbiz il 30 - - (442) - - - (442)
SEKHE B - - (442) - - 90,829 90,387
(Z)FEHE
1TRBBRAR 31 - - - 20,232 - (20,232) -
2RI — MRS & 32 - - - - 10,212 (10,212) -
3B HEMHE 33 - - - - - (27,871) (27,871)
=. 2020512831 A 421,248 182,195 932 185,631 244,206 353,043 1,387,255

Ja B 55 $R R B A A Y S5 AR R A A AR )
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BHERRITHUERER

2021 E (BRBETHIN, &HBERHYNARTEAT)

AEH 1T

i pEIAN 20214 20204 20214 20204

—. BEEHFENRERE -
TFI R SRR TN E] b SR I % 8 D B 161,883 187,356 179,960 187,389
o b & RGN R £ 418 INER 6,779 22,550 - 20,554
15 H b & BAAL I 3 £ 050m D BT - 6,269 = 6,269
BEBFR. FEHERAEESHIAE 589,297 581,861 559,815 557,016
KEHMBSKREENEXNUS 130,625 156,588 113,260 58,251
ZEFRHMER/NMT 888,584 954,624 853,035 829,479
RIS L AN E (448,448) (1,011,563) (424,770) (989,302)
EEMESENERAREBR DM - - (33,129) -
o H b & BRI R &0 N (55,071) - (55,071) -
& PRI b T AR IS R D B (563,183) (437,972) (555,502) (561,351)
TAFE. FEERASHAS (91,544) (108,621) (86,158) (102,677)
IRHGIRIRARTEANRAE (7,256) (6,423) (6,088) (5,080)
AR B TR 2R (43,780) (75,745) (35,844) (64,435)
X HMEZEFRDNHEXNAS (115,811) (167,433) (107,074) (140,090)
ZEFEHAMERE Mt (1,325,093) (1,807,757) (1,3083,636) (1,862,935)
ZEFRNTENAETE ST 46(1) (436,509) (853,133) (450,601) (1,033,456)

. BRAERSHFENRERE
B R KBRS 1,147,849 805,212 1,109,092 837,876
BERARGEWEINIE 61,632 67,521 69,918 67,828
BRI HMERATENEXNAL 6,685 5,939 336 170
BEERHAETNNT 1,216,166 878,672 1,179,346 905,874
BHEZMAHRE (1,129,687) (914,834) (1,104,269) (907,659)
MEEEHF\ ERR=MHE MK R =X M (25.247) (17.572) (680) (602)

VHl&

BEEHIE R Mt (1,154,934) (932,406) (1,104,949) (908,261)
R EDEENME TR R 61,232 (53,734) 74,397 (2,387)

=, BEREHFENRERE
R FE R I < 564 999 = -
He FASRBEDBERERAGINAS 564 999 = -
RITRFIEFREINIE 2,640,976 2,472,703 2,629,757 2,461,908
B SRNBEREE NS 54,025 115,616 49,821 77,340
WE HAM S5 ERFHELNANE = 2,246 = -
EREHUETNMI 2,695,565 2,591,564 2,679,578 2,539,248
EEFFIANAE (2,023,570) (1,588,066) (1,996,329) (1,566,341)
SECREA . MBS EAREXARIE (390,383) (365,843) (375,889) (360,866)
HAp . FRIXMFHRDEBRROBRF . FE (223) (519) = -
XA HMEERFDHELONE (3,328) - = -
ERFHUEFTH /T (2,417,281) (1,953,909) (2,372,218) (1,927,207)
ERBPTENAERE ST 278,284 637,655 307,360 612,041
M. CEEHERERASENMIHFIE (5,632) (9,377) (4,972) (6,428)
. RERAEENWRRDH (102,625) (278,589) (73,816) (430,230)
m. EMRERALENYRT 859,006 1,137,595 863,014 1,293,244
N, EXRRERASENIRE 46(2) 756,381 859,006 789,198 863,014

[E B W 55 4R AR M O A Y 55 R R A AR ER
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2021 (BRAAEEWN, SPBAIYAARTEL )

—. BEXER

ERFARBRIT (IATER AT )NEH ML T1994F3817
AMEABRMESRIL, RESRME BRFXRITF2008
F1R2BNBEGRGAERARXBRITRNDERAS, BFEAR
HMEMBE (L TER MBS R EFRTEL
SUTERCEAS ) HRERIR,

ZPERTRELEEEZRS (R PERTIEEEEZER
S 5HERREEERZAS. UMTHR RRES")HE
AR IHTHREEVNXZEZTERIL, F2017448198 .7
RARBTRNER LS BHREEN " BRFARRT " ARE
XHABRDERADIEENERFELS, FELETTHTHEEE
BR (R IERTIFTHERR HARLKE—HLERARES
9111000000001845485 Wik A B Wi BB, 3 F201746513
HZRRESZAERKXG0O001H111000001 5 &R IFTIE, THE
BENTFATEEMNNFIMKENXSHYEZ W, TEBILHE.
RITAYET RERTRBRITENAERAIEHES . . KF
5.

AEETAS (UTER AKEA" )N EREN. HERE" A
ey, REESRSEREFERNTRARRER KETKH
SRANGEERRSNSE 25 SISTEEHSAS XHE
MR, BV MTES L AHBRETEESEFHEER
U, RN S — R R REAR RS, F5 0
RATTRMERRE DERHEAR. SREEHEFRIAER
RHENNTE, REUMLZEIR KRAFR BERR. TELR
FRAARBUIE, B XU AXXRFEREBFEN
g BR. BRSESENEENE e Bk
BEKER. BFRAR. PRLCLY EEE FERAERSE, &
SERARFTEMNEREFERAENEXAE, FaERER
LSRR S 0 9 H AL

TR PEREANINHRATEREAIMEIHTAES

MATRANAE", PERSMN IR E P ERINEMR AT
NEVGIRA T FEIMILAE.

= WEHRRm S A

R &R F AR R BART2006F 28 158 K MUF HA 8 M 4m f9 (£
WEHEN - BEREMIFMEHERSITOEN . S SHENK
AiER. fUSTENEREREMBEIAE (MTEHR " bLs
AN )G,

A ERTIUIFELE HEMGEH,
=. BREEWS AN ERH
AMERBRFELWSIENMNER, EXL. BRI T AE
AR ATF2021F12A31HMN A F RBRITM SRR U R2021F
ENAEHFRBRITLEARNUSRE.
M., EESIHBRESIHAIT
1. SitEE
AEANSITHEESABIBIAREI12E31HL,
2. iCKAALH
AEABEANBHIEKACT AART, BIMIBRELZ

EMANEREFRERERCKEALT. KRRARH AN
SWEMXANTEHAART.
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3. ICMKERLFNIT =
FERASTBENRF LA DCHREM, RRESUTA
BUA S BT B A 1T 2008 4 B ) 50 5 U 7 S U K
I E N EASS, A 5B R UD L ARA &
B, AP MR R ERE, B AR TR AR R 6OR
3

4. Shmdk SIS RIRRITE
(1) shmdlss
SHEPEMEBNGRAX SR EBOMITENE. F
AP ffRE, ShH RN A R AR BT EAE IS
WA . B %AW E S BTN BT — A R
R BMPTERRET = QT HER, REBERR AR

FRAZINEMIKERAR N~ ENFTEZFITANE LR
HlES, WA SRS

AP SE AT ERISNHIEE R I B BINZ 7R 4 B RN
CEMEMERALTERMITE NARNMET 2RI THIE
BEHMmE . XAAANEREBNRECETE, EEHN
LERAMTH &S RIEMAM T EHMAEH, T UARMN
EFEAELTHITAEMEERENEREA ™ FHIANEML
SalE STUARANETEEETHITARDNSE
FREMAE, Wt ARE.

(2) MR FFHE
ARG EIFRBITMESRE, BIINEEMIINT M SRFTIZIN
TIHEFEAARTRE.

- AFERGRERRI TR~ MRGIEZRRAS kB
RIECRBTIE

- FMEENGETBRARDEFEIE S, R AN K ETET
RHfHE.

- TURARTHMAETERRRIADEREHAIIEZR
KA R BVEC R R R AR PUCRITE

- MERAFELNESNHEERMBEMAEENGELTME &
TEHHZE, WINAINTREFTEZN. IR A HMEGS
Wz

- SRS RBUERESIMIBNIISREME, XAl
MEREHNNPCERTE. LXEHNALEALS
NEH, fRSRERT YU CERHNAL RN
SEMYNT I BMIIT.

5. ME&ERMEZEN
NeRNLENYRIEELGNS . THREBTAHER, I
REAHMEESERABI=ABN. AsHER. 5 TRENE
MEWNE RNETHRBRRNGET A=,

6. RRMERE=ZTEX
AAMBERTHSEEFLETETHF (HXHEETETHN,
ERENTHT) AHBRARENAEFRZ T WEASF
BERERFEEL - HEMEXMONE. FELRTHH
ERIE, UERTHHHNRNBEEAANE. A FERR
THNERIR XAGERABEEAANE, HERAE
BEEMBHSE5EREHTHAEFX ST EANONE. AL
MENIE INENELREMTHSE5EE ANGER
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PNANETERTAANENGANENTARERNRIZEF
BMAENAANMETTEEGNERS, FUIA=IEKX.

F-RARANERETEREBRENHERA R ARER
R EAREFHBIRD,

BE_BRRBNERBRE-—BRRGNEMIXF R ARER
CALE= R RYE-J:NEPNIER

BZRRANERBEXA I AGNFTRNERAE.

. EMIAR

HAERABASRIAARERTH—TN, BIAMERHN S
MA~H SN

(1) ERA~HSHE

AEAREEESRASNLSREANEHA~NERAE
MERL, BERASUWD AMUT =2,

(1) MRERBRATENSRES. ARAFFHMNHERRA
TENSRAFIRERERTRRORI. FREL
RO IFHES IANBRESRA > MR AITEH
R . GIUER A H A R kT

@) MaramETBEERHITARMBESRENSMA
AEAFEHUAANETEAETHITAEMES
ENEHASIRERAMENRARAGANAELR
BA.

Q) MAAMETEAEENTALHRENESHAS. &
EAFENNAANETEEEENITALSHRENS
RMAFTEERETHIUERA~RITESRA™.

VHEERRRT AEAMFAEESBRASN~ERER. 4
e, ARANEGRERARRE~NaRNLRE, 2
BEUERERASRENBRINEESRA N B, M
KULAMBEABTER (FM, UZHABNFAE LA
) BAZENSREASALESER A HMB", FoEA
AAMETEERZTHITALSHRE. AEHAEHE—4HE
RAFVSEANEENERSE. DUTNREIZAR ™
ML SR IZAR L SGMEITHE I LIRGRBEEAR.
R eI EMEE, MRV SEEARRGRMATIR.

MRV EHEXABRERALRE, AEFURERALR
BMEESHATHONERN, AREAK T HESRHEA~ I
ERBRANANASIA B, ETIZITEN, KEHAE
BERAERERESERERRAMANT, DA NEBREE
mEENE. EARE. EMEEREENENRSERERR
AEFRRAMA BN, EERFRSIRT SERER
ZHATHNE IR O, WX SRE~DLKAUAR
METTEAH TSI A LR,
HTERARTELRANERAS” EHEARAERER
BRARESHF BHOAH, REEEA—NBEDIT.
AERANFESFTEMNETIANTEDT

BmEIR

BEIARENEGTTAESMTESRNBEXNIA,
BN BERFMA S 6HE. 7RETIRNIRSRLITE
BUART. (WAKAEEZASHLSRNE R2)1ZA I

EREBRAL.

ETRERZ, AEABEBRSIRAYDP HAUT=MITE

IR

(1) MHERAATE: MREEZLBAS R NERAERI
EREHNER EZERAFSHNARASREBNANAE
EMFABNIM, BN FRIEEZERAT AU RMN
BEtEEETMTASHARSE, BAZE S RRBERK
Kitg,

@ MUarrmETEEEZTHITARLMGEKE. MREE
ZERAFHOLSEXEUNEMERAEREANBIRX
MNEEZEMASHER ZERAFHNaRAERE
RANKEMF BN, AR FRIEEZEHMAT A
MARMETEEETHITA LGRS, BLAZET K
BUrANMETTEEEEIT AR MG K.

Q) ManrMETTEEETHITALTHRE . FHE MR
MATENERASTUAANETTEEHAEHITAR
e RERENES MARNETEEEZMITA
SRk

EVEHIANN, MREBERIEZROSUEER, 2%H
T ERATEEN U ANETEEETHITA LR
. IZIEE—EME, FEREE.

e
NBEIARENERTTARN T ENEEXHN IR, A
BENRNERXFSAZTERTRTASE S ME KK
IR flmEdk,

AEF I T RRA A AN ET R BTN LB
% BEBEC MR TREEENA AN ET R AT
AR A HB SN, AREIR B ISR B 3
3 5 A% TRBAIEE S MUA AN ET B AR ERHIHAL
fosm s,

(2) SRMAFHEH %
AEAATHEELMAF WU SHERE B HFEZHM
MBXSBAFESEN L BEEHLARRAAKRE S
SEHFRXSITNE, FEXN U SBANTE. Rk (8
ERERASAG) RF LS FENBE, EHXE RIES
HAKANSHAFBTEN KRNI SERARETERNE
MREBDHE—R.

(3) SRS %

RE TG SR G KD DB RRAT BORE, BRUAR
PEHRBETHD AL PRAEOSRAGBRI. %0
ARNETEBR BRI L B8 0 S8 0 s AT
TR ZHMSmRENEMBERIARIEED A AN AT
B AT LIRS RSB,

(4) MBI IHE
AEANERT RIS HESRAS TXHEHTHIA,
XA, BIERAKBXKEIASEZHERA~BH,

VIETINERE TR R A6, MARNMETE. ¥ TUAR
METEAHEEMNITALHRENSREASNSHAE A
KX ZHAERTANLSIREGE, W FHMENNOSRE ™
HERN G, WX P HEAITAYETIASTL.

EVEFIAR , BETIFHNESRABTTUEHEENNA R
METEEETHITASHRANESR AR (1)EEBIHEK
FEERSSUHEE: QREEXBEXGHANELRE
REERRHEARR. DAANEIEMISRAKRASTH
ERMAFMEMAKAEHTEEML SV, FELKH
WU B X BEEARRSE . ZIEE—EME, R
SHIEHE.



HTERAFBIULAFELLERAZFEMBAIAN SR AE,
HZEUE AT S LI RINZ R, REEARIEIZE LB
NN FINERL B, HAERSHEHINRIZAE~ENME
%A,

(5) REItE

SRIRNRLITEBIURTHY .

a. MRRAATTENSRESMER NG
NTEMASREHATORKRAR, FENZSRASR
ERNEHNVEFHIASTETIEBENERFE. (1)K
EEENEAS: QMR ERBRENREFIZIBTIA
WS EH B ST < 8 fZHH T E TR R REET
QBRI RNREER (RERATEREAS) . AEHAX
AR EZTEZFR S MAGRHASRARN S,
FABFITRA FRRN R MEIE",

KhEAE RESSHAS AR ARETTFEHNMEI
KEAERE WA AZSR A~ KA R (BIMBRIE A
& ZBTAIMER A ) SZ S5 GRS AR AR AR ot
EMAEEMBERREL BEEEXSHM ENIITNH. )
BT R 69 B T SRR R AR A9 T

NTRERMAEREERRENSRA ™ KEFAREZ
SRIAFOMANEA (MERKAHRA) HEZERBERHL
RAME FEEGITRRASREMNEMAEBRENZ W
HNEIE,

WFFEMMEERA T SOFNMEERAE, URRTHH
REHMNAERENEHELERZLGRFE, WRF
REMASFIINNRERAFOVEHASTETEH
ANBHEFEEHESH, WRRINEARANEGRE R
SN ZA TR N KEE S EERZ 0,

HEAKAN TR RARFAAE T RATELN, SRA~
H e N RNKENERRE LT ARASRENR
KRRFIRFTIM RN ERETIHE, BT ARA.

AEFARFESHATKEARFTRMULENRTEHEN UK
N, BETFIERERSN

(1) ¥TWASRENCREFHRENSRAS. BVE
WIAE, BRZEBASNORERAANEERAENS
FRA R #E H TS

@ NTMASRENRREFRARE. BEFLEHAEMN
EREFEARENSRES BRRIZERME ™ HMRNK
A (B RN BRI B R K & 2 R RS E) A1t
FRHEFTEBEEMNSBRN. B2 TRAERFSYE
REFEHAREERAEMABEFERFHRE, FEX—
HEEENLITENAEAMEZREENE —E41
KR NERIEHNEEMIZESA S KARIKITE
WEM BN,

b. MAAMETEBEREZINITARLMGERENSRE ™
REIR

S5ZE&mAFMARMARRNBERESNE. AEBRAR
SMCH B HIRR T A S HIRE BRIk 50, IENMERE Y
TTARMEE SRS,

ZERASLEFHIAN, AKEANESRINNSNUERE

BUHAEMGEERENAANERH R IR MO, it
NZ R,
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WHFEITHR

A IR T RIS 0 A A A B AR ZFT
ARG AREHSBAT K, ZSRAFHAANERD
ERMSERBPATHN, BEETEESLEMS (8
FRALERY) . {5 2% RO R 75 Y 2 b T3 7
WA AL BRES . (VARARRBIGRACERE,
() SBABENZFHERTERNAEE, QBRNHSH
S TRIE.

o. UARHHAN BER TN L BRI N EBA>

#5 IR

MTEENAARANMETEERTHITALHRAFEFET
EHXRA-BANRSRATENNERREL, XEHR~H
HAER KR AT I A L HARE.

RNEITR

UraMETEEERHTASPRENNE TRRANN
M EIIREIT A LR,

d MUAANEITEEETDNIT AL RGNS AR
WFHEEAUAANEITEEEZNITARAN S AR,
HAaaMERSTIRT B SERXE R TNH LR
HlaE, HRBOUTARGE BMRERTRE~4HT K&
IR, BLBRTESERAREMH A AMERSBITARE.

BIREANARAMETTEEE T A LI RAN SR A HR
ZUEFIAN, ZAITARBGAREN RN ERIRES S
NEMGEREPEY TAEFRE.

(6) &M I EHEE

HF R RAITTERM A AN EITEBETINIT AL ML
ARENGEESIERST MREFRENMSIBRER, &%
A& SRIEMEEHRAT T MBERREATH. AEAEESD
& BHFIAER IR R EE,

AEANTHREAREOTERRT UTEHER.

(1) BN —FRII T8RS R HE LRI T
9.

(2) BHEENE:

Q) ERFNHEERELF N ERDEMNTIMLASE S AT
KEMNE RS EET. GADRTNRRKEFRRITN
MEEEERENES.

NFHAMBPEARKITENSHMIE ARAWEHEXS
RIENEANKEAENEHINGREEEZEEM A" =
e R EERES T EHREES . WIATHERRE.

F— R MRZEMIENFEANEBIRFIAEFRE
EFEM ARAZRBAEYS TZE& TR KRKI12D B RITHEE
REMNSTIEERLES,

BEIMBR MRZEMIANEANKEBMERIAGEERE
HBn FERBHANEREGEARE AEAZREST
ZERIAENEFSHRNTMERARINSTOIEHRE
HEE,

BB N TEREGARENSMTE AEFAZEAY
TZERm IAEENFEHRTHERRANSTITEHRE
i
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MARMETEERENHTARBGERENGS IAR
A ARAEHMSARETHIAERCES FHRERKE
FRFITANLGIBRE EFRNR D ZERASER ™ NRE
IR IKE NME.

HH—SITHEELEZRES T T AR FLHAME
FERABRANESTHET RS EEYPR~NFHER. Z
ERMIAENBRETEVMHEHIAGE RN EZEEMIER
B, ARAELSHAS MHEERERREAS T RKI2AARM
HEARINESFIHEZER T ENREES, AR
RMREZENEOSTENRENSITALSHRE BMXH
BRENEREFERARENSEA KRN, X TMEZIREN
ERXEFRARENSHAS ARAESHASNHAKA
PaHINE B BN THERR AN RITRaBHIA LR
KEE.

HEMEASATRE, AERAEMESROEFHITE
ERRRSTHEN  BiZ S a7 R R AR R AR E A& I
2. ST ZEEX KNS, T AL RS,

(7) ERERMNEK
NTAEAEHHEREXRFARRANEANSEEEAE
MEEZUERL ARASWHERENEREREETE
ETRREMREL.

MREBEERFARETRRMENE L, AEFABLILH
INEERA” FUARMEFIN I ERA T~ BXHA
FERTE-TRARENR, AXMELT HEHENE
MAFKARERERN, SEHEEAREESSHIEZEF
e AR LR EREXBEEAMBTIAER. 0T £
RFRWINNERAS AEACENHEEEVERHIANRES
ERXEFERARE BHELSARENREERS ANEET
IR ERN AR AN WENMERA AL IEFIAS %
GSENESEEnESAPN k8

MREXNFERAERHRRELRMENT/L, WEREHT
SSRERASNELEHA AEAREEENEGRAE
REEFUTESRASNKE L, HBERIFFRMET
ANIRE . EHEFHNIKE S, 7 EAMHERAE (S8
ABRENEREEARENSRA S ZERRARNIERT
) WEsUENI S REHTII,

(8) &RH = MILLILARIA

WETIFMAZ—MNERAS FUELLERIA. (EBEIZE
RMAFAERENARNAELE, QZEMA~EEE A
BERMASMERLILFRBONEIRMEBRENTT
QZEMAFEEY. RRAXKRARREEBHEERES
MAFAANEILFRENRENREM, BERRFT HizE
St Nk N

EARARRBRBURERESHASMENLLFME
B RBEFIIREN , BRI IZ SR~ B 6), NIk R4k L
WS ERAFNREERHINEXSRA S, FRINER
.

ERMAFEEHELUEFAFEN, EREEERA K
EMEREEZ MR AN 5RITARLMBESRENAR
METHR TN ZFEA S HPRE.,

RFIESF LS
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B SRENEICE LR E N EMTURE, BFERT
REBTADNRKGTEMEHU TR, — BHXFRA
BRNEUSERHECHROAXERRET Bk, A%
B4 i 17 E AR

MBEFAINEFEFINZBE, AEAFHEEANE
HEE: MeEKFEFINZAEFELANEGIERE. WTE
EHARIFER-—EZFTELEF VAN TAE, HEMWXHE
ENZEAREIISRECLBRASHIBRMNEHIAL

30.
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REBRT. AEALEAEARFNRA ST EMENNE
BFATANEGIEHE.

SR RIEEFIM T A A9EEITTH, FOREURF
RAREARTEGRUHOREERR (PIWRRNNS
THEEESMAX) NEE, TSZETABEXEDNKRES S
R ENZH.

TRAEMKRENG. SHERERGARETAETRTH
BN D IEADBRENE . PERFRERABET
PERANGERESTERHFMSMERPAAEENG. &
MR EARE SHIT BIRY) R,

BEHEFAVESHREN, TRAISEATRANSHERASI
HER—80, ZFRATHSTERIS TR BN T2 =M
SWMEITHENEE.

SERERRHT. X HEARLIANBES T Y SRR RGN
FRURSE. IR Z MK TR T H = BIER KB E R E
ARERIFEF TIRE.

ERTLEFNABERT B LE N F 256K RN
R AGHVEFRERT, LBENRSLEKHRPIRFEY
NEETRAEBMUXBEREIFBFRFETENS AN
ZEMEREBRANR, REAARTEARDN BEER
g,

FAE AR AR A H MR E kT W RE T2 5 EHN
B MRBRZREERAEFHNENAANERTENIT
B RBERINRSHNNSHERNARNEZM, KERER
FRILGITENZARFASAML B FRFEITERRR
FRHHZEHNER. FARAEFNEHER RS DR
HREE. SRETARRNKRABXNEMES RS, £k
REHI A 0 HEAR A s .

SHBHEE

T Y R AT AR B A M 2 TR AR R ALE T 2021 F £ 31

BS5AKHANEERX,

(1) (eI ENRREE145)

WMEEBT2021F2R2A %4 7 (v 2 ENREE145)
(M=[2021]15, T EH BEE145") B Az BE

7. 2021 E1ATR E-RITEMBHN B XS, RIBBES

145 {TIEE.

BEFUSHEEAN XA ESE S TRARMBE SR

*UERENHERMRETENBEREL T EHUSITLE

M,

RIFZMBBEAINE, 2020F12R31 BRI R ERE AN KK
BERXWVE NEH#ATEMNFHE EWEHERITITHER
Sh, TRBBETHLLRM SREREIE. EZBBETH. £8
A eRNRFEKANES HRENEZBZEH ITTA
ZBBERTAREFEERENENAVBETRASEMES
Wz,
RITBBEVASRNARARKTHM SRR NEERR™
EERPW,

(2) (X FIRBE<HEMREEEXEERILSITAENE >
EREE @A)

T B AR 20206 B19R & 7 (B i K BHE X TH SR

IERTHRAEMEN M= [20201105 ), W THEFFNBMTE

R EEEHSIANASRE. ERZGESFHESRIL, £

W BT PR R AR T ERH TR,
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M BERF2021E5 B26H A A T X TRE<HEM A EE
HEBERILS T RIENE>E RSB BMN (S [2021]
95), HR021E5H26H M T, B EM A EIEHE XS
ISR EME) AU BB R R AR BEX
FASRILA9IE ASEE B 7 EE (NS 202146 5 308 BT A9 &2
TR FE R " BALNE 202246 A 30H B Y R+
MEARH HthEAEHTRE.

AT EREEBENFAXHNEEARE S EEXRA
B EETSITLIE, WEBEEREEF A K HREM
FEARMEPRAGLTEHTSITQRE, FNBHNELH
FEXAHEEEH#TUTQLENEXAESEHTENE
B ERNEBEIHALRMYSRKREIE W2021FE1H1HEZ
BHRTEZEARENRRBIZBNAEHTSITLIENAE
XMEEEIL, RIBIZBMEITIHE,

ATEHERNARARATHMSRAMEERR~EE

AP

i, BRASITERDAMHEZAENS TG

AT RARXBRIZMAHERR
AEREEARINF R T BELES, BT EEEDHN
ENFREN, ARAFENERAWITBOBRTE HIKEN
TSN (R RBIR . BN B R T EERY
EMFLER, FEXERMARE L QER LR, KR
RIS ARRANETFELR.

AEFANFR AN AT RIEFSLENER LHTEHNE
B, STHTHNEERENEE LN AXWBERELHT
M#IA B EELSHANmARAEN, AR ELTEY
BRI ARSI T IXHIA.

THRFNGRE AEATX Y SRETE ST THAM AT
REEGFESSBEASMORAKENEERKI2NHA BN
EXNFAENEZNEHRBREMNT

1. BBERRENITE
HF R AAT BIA RN ETEAETHITANEMEE
WSS RA S URRRRERMSBRAR, FEAES
RIHE 115 B AT IR 5 PR R AR A

MBERRE, BRENEESANNR INEN SR TRE
RFREBMNFIE. FRREA RIEAEARRESENEX
. REGRRZKOME SR SR ES A KEE AT
FHeREZENED, BedRSEROIE. A, I T
FEAMIHEFENEREFHRENSRAS . NERZ
SR AERIBRA KRR RFTR.

PHAERRAERED S RRBEN. SHMBRNEILIE
PEZ, FINMNRRHOEREFEATNERANERITAHN
T (Bl BRBANTREMERBRERK) . W HHIEBR
KM EFETZERAM, F0.

s BEBARUGEANESENLEUAR-—IMES, ®EF
RYERITERE FRETTERXNXESL.

- ERRREEEI. BANE K 4 FRE QAN
. AFHEMTENSTI. SFERRINENRA,
.+ ESHBEMARRRABKOKKIAE RN,

2. ZHUEEBEH

HAKAEAEWUIETHN A EBRARIEARAAN,
AEARERREEFZEMLEIEIFEHANEGIHTEEN
MEHERHM, AEATE T XZEMTHERNANNNSE
MBS MU EEERT, DN T EMUEFTE
Bl BREFRTIEN A~ EEEIRSNHOREHTE
BRARATERR BENRRRE MERENEHEE
FRHBT R HMIE., S, RERAEEWUEHE
RHPEEEIEREAECEREANAEHTT AN 8
BOFMITERE T NERUETERENGEE. REER~E
BENRESVMREAE = EERSMREHRMKTE. A
BEMAEAR P A E M G ATRIE T & mHR A KBS A K& HoAth
S 5T EFRRBUERAL,

- EMIAEQRMNE

WRERBRZSTHNEHTE AEAEAGERAHE
HAANME. REHERATZEQRBASRFTIE BE>
. MBI AR EEESE. AREANERIAAANEN
HEEBR R ERTNRNTHEYE, B — L9, o
REAMZ ZNFHERRR . IRFRARBEA . K EEIEK
R omstim fEX mHIA S EHFHEXRE. U
FEEEENHEATMHT. REAXBRENZTAET ST
BEH R RMESEF 0.

. ERMAEBRILIETRIA

AEAGCELRZEFNTREENATRARS . B-IESHL. 2
HEMBNESHATRNEIULSHA” . EHERBHNSRE
FREEBEHIEDDELEWHANIET, AEAFTEE
HE R AR

EAEHABEEMURFEBERATEFRENIGE, K
FRAPMTESHRENXAZENXRREXFRARE
H X 2R B M SRR B E RN BT R .

AEARBENTESHMA S EBARNERA SRR TX
&, NAEREXTHERERLR S HELLEFINEM.

- REEBERERIASTHNT HALRAREEHE
HF NEREBAMIE=TT,

- HEERAFAEREHREMRMEBRERE,

- BARHRRBEEBPOURERESMASMENLILF
FAERNNEMRHN AEARESTTEREAZS]
FITHERASNES MREAKARTHREFINC K
I ERA T,

. Friew

ELEFNEERNT. BAXHNENHRER S EMFAE
FHEN. EHTRSLEN, AEAFEELE XA,
MRRXEBRFSEMHRLINEERERVEITNETFE
EZ57 ZEFEXNEH LR RENERENRERET =%

g,

. FEMBEFRIE

AEREAEH SR A S ITRETE. MBHER S TRE
EHRETHERTEKENE. MRBERLE TH~HKE
METELTEEBEE, EXAFESUANERE, FELH
INRERK.

AEAEBITRBTADFENFENASREINER, X
HAKISREHT 7T M, HEB TR HOMAXFFt
HIE. ARAEMIT T RASIRKASREN, XAHEXBEA.
X MBI EIEN AT R E R,
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. EERBIM

. A ERBH

RIBC AR EFE D W FFEHEY, AER BRI L FTEBABE 525%,

A 82 [ 5 ML A 92 BB 24 My 7 2R 7 24 3 80 4 4 U BB R,

SV FREBNE NGB R RBERE XMERT.

2. H{ER
AEFARHRS. ARERBSHBER S REILL S B EBRBES BEH6%,
REVBESHERESAR(ETHRER. BT R. XEHHZIRERBRNEM) (YH[2016]1408) (£ FRE > Qi
ERAE X BTN BMN ME[2017122) MR EFRE> LIBEBE X6 B (YH[2017]562) E AR~ REE
AEEREFRITEPREMBERNRTY, B2018E1 510 (&) £, HERGH TR I, R B%E KRG8 ER

3. WHHEINEIEH
AR B 55 P WL AD 2  8 1 %- 7% ST T A 40 R RS

4. HEZHMM
A 82 ] 5 7R L AG SR BB A 5% 19 3%-5% 1 43 B B I

. ERFLAREEHER

MASHEEHTBETFATEAERIIFMT.

EFEmMAERTELS A E K B BAIR A ARM77,475 100%EEHFHE
EF2RESERAT o E AR Paeatl AR 50,000 100% EE455
FERXRESHRAT ElESPN HeRARER ARM32,548 84.99% 8 5 H
EREmAERMFRAST o E K B HE ARM12,642 64.40%EEHFF
EFIESRBERA S ElESpN iE% AR 9,500 BO%EERE
ERERAFRRAE HEEE BHEER JEE51,684 100%EEHH

AFEREAN T ASINFHRIEGIRZERANLAREE T L, T021FEM2020FE, ARAFRFEEREAR R EEEAR
BRI ERRS.

N, MERREETBMIE
1. RERFHHRRITRH

AEHE 1T

EBrNE 3 3 3 3
FH R RBITHRI 92,562 131,351 92,008 130,837
At 92,565 131,354 92,011 130,840

2. R LRI

A EH AT

| 202112H31H  2020%12F31H | 2021%12H31H  2020412A31H
BFRIEREAMRT 109,191 276,557 150,161 320,793
FRIR A ERT SR 12,480 10,075 12,379 10,074
FRUIESNL AR T 73,088 53,509 58,385 31,963
&it 194,759 340,141 220,925 362,830
NItFS 294 1,719 223 1,657
B 195,053 341,860 221,148 364,487
B BEAEE
Hi g—M& ©) 7) ©) @)
HER 195,044 341,853 221,139 364,480

Fo021E12831H, AERABFME W ER T R R & M FR P ARTF187.95(27T (20204128310 . ARM116.36127T), T B AHFHE
RITATHEERENERATNRIES.
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3. FH&#E
AEH AT
| e#RASIE | 2020F12A31E | 2021F12A31E  200%12A31H
FRIERNEAMRIT() 294,833 64,940 294,833 64,940
HRIREAERTERA - 1,000 - 1,000
FRIRINEAMRTT 75,828 40,550 75,828 40,550
Ait 370,661 106,490 370,661 106,490
R itF A 585 60 585 60
B 371,246 106,550 371,246 106,550
AR EEE
Hip BB (131) (14) (131) (14)
EZHER (29) - (29) -
N 371,086 106,536 371,086 106,536

(1) BUHEENE, AT TN ERRAVERFIMNEHERE AT FAZEZTIRERSTAESIKR., F2021F12H318, B EHRE
MAANRT2,597.2312 7T,

ATEERMET KA

(1) {TEEMIA

PSR TROAR/EX ST DA RERNFHANA =X ARN L AN ERBLRER BFF—EARZTRNKKI
SRBRUNAANE, 67— ERRRAEAFARNERARRRTHAL. TESMTANAANERE SEEAFKER

N HHEMINOLRERENRATMEL, BENEREAEN (FIAHHE ) HAH (RIARGR) OEE, L WITRER
REEBRKIE,

THRFNGEERR, ARAFFNTEERTIANESR/AXERRE AR NETTNT !

H

&M 2021412H31H
CRLTETR
BHER (BFEIXEMHELTR) 686,502 9,561 (2,820)
SMTIEEAFN SN EAX 3,632 48 (7)
INGF 9,609 (2,827)
FERLTETR
F) % 557,243 7,256 (6,419)
S 6,383 113 (113)
INF 7,369 (6,532)
&3t 16,978 (9,359)
20204£12H31H
CELTETR
BMEHK (BFEIXEHAEER) 981,097 26,726 (16,846)
SO ERF SN EIR 5,161 327 (78)
It 27,053 (16,924)
FELTHETR
FIR 5 # 831,536 10,446 (9,681)
FI ZEHAAL 7,434 238 (238)
NG 10,684 (9,919)
)

&1t 37,737 (26,843
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T 20214128318

CERGETHR

BHEHR (BFEIXEHHEER) 684,311 9,544 (2,813)
SN B A ST IR 285 7 7)
It 9,551 (2,820)
HELTETR

FIR HH# 531,983 7,237 (5,868)
F ZE AR 6,383 113 (113)
N 7,350 (5,981)
&t 16,901 (8,801)

20204£12H31H

CRLGETHR

BhmEHR (BFEIXEHHELR) 974,431 26,682 (16,846)
SN B F ST EIR 952 43 (42)
N 26,725 (16,888)
FEETETR

FIRHH# 803,684 10,492 (8,347)
Fil R HAR 7,434 238 (238)
It 10,730 (8,585)
&1t 37,455 (25,473)
(2) EfSI

iy 2RMEEH
AEAFMBRERHREBANHRENSHNAANMETNHATERRE HEHNE IAEBALITHRATEILEHES 5
NTFRERGR RIEER P BRE2021FE12A3HNEXEAEHART75.23127T (20205128310 ARM108.31127T).
AEAEHTENLAANBEZTLNHERNE REHXE A EREINAANEEZN NG FFRIANER LS = LR
HIYLREK.

(i) MEREEH
AEAFAFEEREERNFAXREHSENUSAETHETERRE WEPMBE W AEAAREELS PR EhRTER
ANER A XERHHAEREREEMFEMCERENSENNSRETHECEHRE, HEHME VX TTETLE
EREHMAERNERATELITHES., LRARMEH I ESHE2021FE12A3THNBXNEAED HHART260.24{ZTMAR
M8.751Z7T (2020128 31H . AR M295.06{ZcFIA R M66.66127T).

F20214F12831H R2020F12A31H. AEHAE LT ARG A RANALREEH T A AANERS ~ENRIHRAET
EX,
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A&
BIBREMIR .
&% 494,383 586,804 488,162 581,460
Hith 2,963 3,710 - -
&ait 497,346 590,514 488,162 581,460
RITFE 174 171 172 165
B 497,520 590,685 488,334 581,625
B BEAEE
He . S—E = ) - -
EIER - - - -
EZME (2,3006) (2,371) = -
it (2,306) (2,373) = -
ki 495214 588,312 488,334 581,625
AEATFEINRERGFRENIBRYERTE+—. SERYPIHEE.
6. ZREFFFIEK
(1) EEERIBERSHIBERINT:
A& AT
I AR 845 (a) 12,746,593 12,597,398 12,595,688 12,470,331
MAsMEITEBEENIT AL HRED) 45,073 42 964 45,073 42,964
&it 12,791,666 12,640,362 12,640,761 12,513,295
(@) MIERMAITTENRBRERMERSFTAT .
AEH P
ESS RS 13,020,110 12,834,470 13,047,509 12,861,989
R R F %%&ﬁﬂﬁ 199,479 173,991 = -
Nt 13,219,589 13,008,461 13,047,509 12,861,989
RITFIE 30,902 30,195 29,967 29,342
B 13,250,491 13,038,656 13,077,476 12,891,331
Hep. E—MER 11,915,177 11,593,194 11,767,411 11,482,070
EZHER 1,205,460 1,329,834 1,182,445 1,296,461
E=ME 129,854 115,628 127,620 112,800
R EEE
Hep B (192,457) (124,211) (185,832) (121,023)
ETHER (229,513) (244,654) (215,214) (228,974)
EZME (81,928) (72,393) (80,742) (71,0083)
Nt (503,898) (441,258) (481,788) (421,000)
ki 12,746,593 12,597,398 12,595,688 12,470,331
b)) UrAMETEEETEIT AL RENEZRNRRIOERSFTOT .
AEH Pis
BRARFMBERAS 42,909 41,463 42,909 41,463
ARMEETE 2,164 1,501 2,164 1,501
&it 45,073 42 964 45,073 42 964

AE VR AR A9 Rl B AR 5 N R FE M+ —

. SERYTIKE.
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(2) RMGFHIMBTREEEEE

R EE ]
o %ThR #EHE

20211811 124,211 244,654 72,393 441,258
B ER#L 75 .
BEE—MER 17,706 (17,708) = -
BEETHEE (20,124) 23,255 (3,131) =
BEE=ME - (8,590) 8,590 -
Wi 28,013 23 9 28,045
EFITEQ) 61,204 14,177 22,981 98,362
TR EEE (17,761) (22,158) (12,464) (52,383)
g - s (10,494) (10,494)
W e 2 4% 55 E R - - 5,976 5,976
ERE RIS F B i - - (643) (643)
SN E Z (792) (4,142) (1,289) (6,223)
20214E12831H 192,457 229,513 81,928 503,898

S smR #THER BERE
202051 B1H 187,602 231,113 98,377 517,092
MR TS .
REE MR 7,299 (7,299) - -
REEMR (35,195) 39,323 (4,128) -
BEE=MEH - (18,708) 18,708 -
Wi 19,510 914 - 20,424
EHITE(@Q) (39,940) 9,512 34,558 4,130
R B (13,577) (4,111) (5,424) (23,112)
(353 - - (64,554) (64,554)
ERE RS F S iy - - (368) (368)
SN E ZER (1,488) (6,090) (4,776) (12,354)
20204128311 124,211 244,654 72,393 441,258
AT

20211818 121,023 228,974 71,003 421,000
MR TS .

BEE MR 16,799 (16,799) = -
BEEMER (20,052) 23,183 (3,131) =
BERE=MER - (8,291) 8,291 =
iz 26,854 = = 26,854
EHiTE() 59,029 12,926 22,791 94,746
R R (17,038) (20,641) (11,858) (49,537)
5 = = (10,401) (10,401)
W B 2 4% 55 R - - 5,976 5,976
B R E R F B iy - - (643) (643)
SN E ZEE (783) (4,138) (1,286) (6,207)

202112831H 185,832 215,214 80,742 481,788
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E—E EZMER E=NEE
e

e ST AR it
2020E1 B 1H 184,544 215,601 95,919 496,064
B EE RS .
BEE-MER 6,336 (6,336) - -
BEETHMER (34,988) 39,099 (4,111) -
BERE=MER - (18,410) 18,410 -
i 18,821 - - 18,821
EFitEQ) (39,093) 8,193 34,233 3,333
TR B (13,132) (3,087) (4,141) (20,360)
%54 - - (64,270) (64,270)
B RUA SR R 2o g - - (368) (368)
SN EZER (1,465) (6,086) (4,669) (12,220)
20204E128 310 121,023 208,974 71,003 421,000

(a) BFRASHNENEN (LLNBARER BARKERFANONEN)  ATEARINEREARGEZEMILERE
ARE MSBEFRRTEREE-—NR. F-NR. E=MRZEREEE NEEAESBRAEENITERMEI2NA
MBS FEPMBERREZENER,

() 2021 % NEKARKEEERBRAFMNEBRANERESRH TR B

FVMBE—ERMRRAER S EEERRAFNLERESTN9%, MIESHBK FEARNEN R — R ER ALK E S
F9 4% B B 293%PIEL

FUNE - RAERHER G BRERNRANARLSIN10%, BMBE—#EBENR _HEALIMBE - FUNEALY1%,

FHNBZEMRRFER S BERENERNERESTMN 1%, EMBE 2B ENBR=ZNEE EMEBZEMAREL92%, 2021
FRBRZAMRANERARESERRZE SIS FURMA18%, B FBH BN RERSBAREERHEIN,

(i) 2021EE, ZEARESEAUNEREER (ASERRLLEHIN) MSBHEXRRREESEHNBRZERENE - S ANER=
BMBRZHEAINMBR—NRAEESHTAEX,

(3) BHEIGEFFNBE IR T

WRRREASHFN @I, WNIZERE DL ABPRA. TS RARATRXNEENRRMER, MRE D2 0, W
ZRREBRFPHIED LK AEHARK.

AEH el
| SMAMA  ShREIE s sEME A&

2021412H31A
(N EN 6,042 782 13,296 508 20,628
RIETER 815 328 7,028 - 8,171
[(EERES/NAE N

— IR 11,236 9,742 35,863 6,362 63,203

— BRI 4,265 1,145 6,565 3,457 15,432
&it 22,358 11,997 62,752 10,327 107,434
2020412H31H
ERER 5,415 12,248 527 391 18,581
RIETEK 5,504 1,739 235 174 7,652
[(REERES/NAE N

— LI 16,973 32,162 26,258 7,215 82,608

— BT 799 7,097 8,417 100 16,413

A1t 28,691 53,246 35,437 7,880 125,254
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T it

20214£12H31H

(B EN 6,042 623 13,296 508 20,469
RIETER 815 328 7,028 = 8,171
HHBIR Y FE R
— IEHRTERK 4,255 9,383 35,564 6,125 55,327
— B TEEK 4,265 1,145 6,565 3,457 15,432
&it 15,377 11,479 62,453 10,090 99,399
2020412H31H
B 5,415 12,248 527 391 18,581
RIETEK 5,504 1,739 235 174 7,652
HHER ¥ BE R
— MR 10,169 31,561 26,240 6,757 74,727
— RIRGERK 799 7,097 8,417 100 16,413
&it 21,887 52,645 35,419 7,422 117,373

7. ERRE - XHUEMHT

P S T

MZ 7 EHNFENERAS R EMUARNE
HEAHTHITALYHRANSRA ™

BURF & & BURLAS i35 11,861 15,321 11,801 14,516
SRAEFESE 49,646 41,685 47,305 39,460
AT RS 17,358 19,443 14,318 16,260
BRI - 16 378 782
ERZE-"1 171,243 206,146 171,243 206,096
BEEERT 391 420 = -
BRERESHE 16,425 13,806 = -
AT R AT = & 4,542 9,071 = -
WHEITHR 733,860 746,809 593,999 625,251
INF 1,005,326 1,052,717 839,044 902,365
BEMAANMETERRETHITA Y HREN
SRE~(1)
RN - 40 - -
NERE 573 2,321 573 2,321
G Esant 51 - 51 -
REEEETR 16 625 16 625
N7 640 2,986 640 2,946
A1t 1,005,966 1,055,703 839,684 905,311

(1) ARFEEAURXANETEEREEHITALGHRENSRAT TR ARKA019F R INFIERZARTEY >~ aMEEA
& BATHRFERHNGTER>.
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8. ERIIRHE — HAURH

AEH T
| eiFIASIA 200%12A31A | 202112A31H  2020812A01H
BUF X ABURIEHS 1,038,916 1,157,272 1,038,916 1,157,272
SRV GRS 500 1,103 500 600
AERE 95,348 97,621 95,348 97,571
FRIT R E A 3,208 6,428 = -
Nt 1,137,972 1,262,424 1,134,764 1,255,443
RitF & 15,949 18,671 15,923 18,633
BE 1,153,921 1,281,095 1,150,687 1,274,076
He . E—HE& 1,151,761 1,277,550 1,150,332 1,273,718
EZME - 13 - -
EZER 2,160 3,532 355 358
AR EEE
Hp B (5,214) (5,216) (5,191) (5,162)
E_MER = (5) = -
B (1,790) (2,874) (231) (231)
Nt (7,004) (8,095) (5,422) (5,393)
B 1,146,917 1,273,000 1,145,265 1,268,683
Fo0NNFER2020FE, AEARATHINR R ESHRBZXEEBNESMAEK,
(1) B RBE AR TS
&M 20214
20211 B 1H 5216 5 2,874 8,095
B R 75 .
NEZMBREBEEZNE - (5) 5 =
i 86 = = 86
EHITE(Q) 71 = 20 91
e (47) - (1,111) (1,158)
SMRHTEZR (112) - 2 (110)
20214E12H31H 5,214 = 1,790 7,004
20204
20201 B1H 5,196 1 2,391 7,588
B R 75 .
NE—MBREBEEZNR ™ - 1 -
NEZMBREBEEZNER - (1) 1 -
i 5 - 270 275
EHITE(Q) 361 5 238 604
R (47) - (17) (64)
SN E ZER (298) - (10) (308)
20204124 31H 5,216 5 2,874 8,095
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1T 20214

202141810 5,162 = 231 5,393

g 86 = = 86

EFITE@Q 72 - - 72

BIHA e (7 - - )

SNHITEZE (112) - - (12)

20214E12831H 5,191 - 231 5,422
20204

20201811 5,151 1 - 5,152
B EREEF5 .

MEZMBREBEEZNE - (1) 1 -
i - - - -
EX g ()] 340 - 230 570
B HASk 4 (31) - - (31)
SNTITE ZER (298) - - (298)
20204128 31H 5,162 - 231 5,393

(@) EMITREIEQFESAME. SARKEESHNEY . RRBREBIHYBRNERAEES.
9. IR — HAbEAUH

AREH AT

B REB A 65RE 223,971 158,269 219,137 153,832
SRR Z 9,345 27,520 8,788 26,091
NERE 81,474 109,004 68,059 94,962
B AFIESH 281 351 = 51
ERZEa: 446,527 359,046 445,556 358,949
REEETR - 1,013 - 1,013
INF 761,598 655,203 741,540 634,898
RitFIR 4,964 4,903 4,550 4,452
ait 766,562 660,106 746,090 639,350
Hi - 766,460 658,928 746,090 639,350

B = - . _

E=ME& 102 1,178 - -

Fo02NFER2020FE, REFARATHEMEMNRAEEMRELELBHSTLEK,
(1) EfeEig R &L

P 20214

202118 1A 74 - 726 800
i 51 - - 51

FHITE(Q) 23 - 323 346
B H W (31) - (15) (46)

202112831H 117 = 1,034 1,151
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20204

202051818 165 1 243 409
iz 25 - - 25
EFITEQ) (3) - 726 723
EEC = (112) (1 (243) (356)
ShRITEER (1) - - (1)
2020£12831H 74 - 726 800
17 20214

2021181H 48 = 15 63

iz 51 = = 51

EHITE() 8 = = 8
A (31) = (15) (46)
2021#12831H 76 = = 76

2020€181H 81 - - 81

i 35 - 15 50
Exipan{C) (19) - - (19)
B (48) - - (48)
ST T ZEE Q) - - M
2020 12H31H 48 - 15 63

(@) BN EIETORBANE BARLRESHOTY. ANRESIHYBRNERRELES.
10. &/ E - HNETAKE

AEH T
TR 4,060 3,310 55 16
IE £ AR 2,000 1,500 2,000 1,500
A1t 6,060 4,810 2,055 1,516

AEABEZHURGE TARTFATHHEBEEANAANETEEE R AR MG ERAN SRR~ FLEN  Z5ENE
IAERARMTARMBSZSREN A ANELHERSWED LKHRA.

T ARBRAUIR B

A AT
| e#1RASIE 2020F12A31H | 2021%12A31A  200%12A31H
¥ FN B R - - 120,683 110,108
WECERAE SV HERE 443 1,046 = -
&it 443 1,046 120,683 110,108
R EAEE - (528) (18,953) (18,953)
HER 443 518 101,730 91,155

Fo021F12A31H, ARAMNBKEEMEGESVNBR AL RELERZ AN (2020F12831H: ARM5.28{27T) , RITHF AR
BlEEEETAANRT189.531Z7T (20204E12831H . AR T 189.53127T).



I <
5 mE 81

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TEFRAEEANER BAKIL. TERENSELLEAXEEIRUT:

FrERAEEGRAS o E K ff KREEHEREH ARM100 45%[81E15H
FHCEAR = KRR S o E A B BRAEEREN AR T400 A4%[EEFH
FRRSCIR W R S BIE () HRAT PEAE  HAEERAW AR 24 50%I8 E#5H
FRFERBRIEARSEEHRAT FEAR  HAEERAW ART10 S0%[E#HH
12.[E E 3=
AEH Fiy
B1E(a) 137,984 119,486 25,302 25,018
ZitH4FIA(a) (25,987) (22,723) (9,403) (8,386)
AR % (a) (3,088) (2,865) = -
& E 7 A TE 622 623 1,410 1,409
&t 109,531 94,521 17,309 18,041

(a) BEERE. RiTFERBEESESEITMOT:
FER

Bl
[

20204127318 22,347 3,578 14,890 77,304 1,367 119,486
20214128318 22,323 3,413 28,401 82,403 1,444 137,984
Kit#IH

20204124315 (6,564) (2,599) (1,010) (12,550) = (22,723)
2021£12F31H (7,422) (2,736) (1,872) (13,957) = (25,987)
BEEE

202012315 (66) (294) (240) (2,227) (38) (2,865)
20214 12H31H (67) (15) (325) (2,642) (39) (3,088)
WE M E

2020412310 15,717 685 13,640 62,527 1,329 93,898
20214 12H31H 14,834 662 26,204 65,804 1,405 108,909
T

RE

20204127318 21,055 2,529 109 1,325 25,018
20214127318 21,059 2,776 106 1,361 25,302
Kit#IA

20204127318 (6,233) (2,055) (98) - (8,386)
20214 12H31H (7,065) (2,244) (94) - (9,403)
WEMHE

2020£12F31H 14,822 474 11 1,325 16,632

2021128 31H 13,994 532 12 1,361 15,899
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13. A=
TR EEEFEE. RS9 %TROT.
ALEH

B
[

202041283101 1,692 1,853 3,545
20214128310 1,432 2,140 3,572
R
20204128310 (386) (1,091) (1,477)
20214E12831H (356) (1,276) (1,632)
THEIME
20204128 31H 1,306 762 2,068
20214E12831H 1,076 864 1,940
RIFMHBER () 23-38 1-10
T

L A e &b
RiE
20204E12831H 1,329 1,597 2,926
20214E12831H 1,080 1,865 2,945
FitHeH
20204E12831H (305) (946) (1,251)
20214E12831H (272) (1,086) (1,358)
WENME
20204E12831H 1,024 651 1,675
20214128 31H 808 779 1,587
FIRPHERR (£F) 23-38 1-10

14. /5%

AEH
| eFIZASIE 200F12A0IE
T T SR & 1,241 1,243
A R (534) (534)
T & 707 709

AREFUTEARAS AN TRESHN, AT EEEM SN AEMBH AT RKASRTN. REAXBOFHERKEFET
WREPFEMTN, TR B IlEN R SEX AR~ HE XN ERRE.

Fo0214 128310, AERMBEEERME, BESF N ARTSE.341Z7 (20204128318 . ART5.34{Z7T)
15 BERBHRETRAR

AEH 1T
TR R R 138,127 124,221 121,800 109,027
BIEFRRR AR (8,274) (4,695) = -

b3 129,853 119,626 121,800 109,027




I <
5 mE 83

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) BEMEHHIEHERIROT:

202141 81H 119,526 109,027
TIPSR (HE/\. 45) 11,228 13,577
TTAEMER AL (/. 30) (947) (804)
HAth 46 -
20214E12H31H 129,853 121,800
20201811 133,663 121,250
TENIRE (HE/N. 45) (14,803) (12,365)
TTANHAMLR A (FHE/\. 30) 671 142
Hits ®) -
20204E12831H 119,526 109,027

(2) EIRAETAIBIERTSHE S~ RA BRI EREESRIITNT:

7 S 2021412H31H 2020412H31H

BT AT ISR 5

HEREEE 515,195 128,799 454,822 113,706
ERBRARMEES 56,078 13,971 69,236 17,309
it = 17,106 4,277 15,591 3,898
Hith 1,580 358 1,697 388
NI 589,959 147,405 541,346 135,301

BIEFTSH S 1%

ERERAANMEES (61,835) (15,458) (59,959) (14,990)
Hith (15,582) (2,094) (6,217) (785)
It (77,417) (17,552) (66,176) (15,775)
R 512,542 129,853 475,170 119,526
AT

BEFRERA

R EEE 491,859 122,965 432,945 108,236
SRR AANEEZ 13,262 3,315 30,009 7,502

it s = 17,106 4,277 15,589 3,897

N 522,227 130,557 478,543 119,635

BRFE AT ISHE S iR

SRBRENANEE (35,028) (8,757) (42,432) (10,608)

P ) 487,199 121,800 436,111 109,027




84 ERFERIT CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

16. E fth 7=

AEH PN
| eFIASIE 200%12A31A | 2021F12A31H  2020512A01H
TS R BRI 12,263 276 221
R F S 3,301 3,147 2,678
M 2,428 = -
fEARA > 943 1,085 1,385
KEARSME S A 751 203 223
EHEXGEEENS 261 = -
BEHER> - = -
BRAFIEHCBRESNEF - 299 631
Hith 11,854 4,678 6,814
Nt 31,801 9,688 11,952
B R EEE
. gIH S (154) - -
Hith (2,512) (49) (117)
Nt (2,666) (49) 17)
R 29,135 9,639 11,835
17.[5) b B EAth & R LA 72 BRI
AR ¥

BRHEAMRT 2,337,622 2,337,622 2,751,749
BRIERT SR 20,719 20,822 83,976
BINEAIRTT 30,093 30,093 39,357
BINERTT SR 4,916 4,916 1,237
Nt 2,393,350 2,393,453 2,876,319
RzitF A 2,164 2,164 3,953
Ait 2,395,514 2,395,617 2,880,272

18. [ BUAF F1 E At & R A R K

B
i
=
7
1

BRHEAMBITRIERTESENMEERK 370,163 190,976 259,584
BN M ERIT R RITE R ER 56,288 3,620 12,783
SNEBUF K 20,777 20,777 18,862
NG 447,228 215,373 291,229
NITH S 1,733 655 1,988
Ait 448,961 216,028 293,217

AEHRT EBUFNE M SR AR 2 IR R E DT+ —. SIBRMPIKE.

194F N NEE

B
o
=
7
1

BEREMBITHRA 55,426 41,548 72,601
BFANEMERITIRA 14,218 14,218 18,098
N 69,644 55,766 90,699
NitF 8 36 24 163
&it 69,680 55,790 90,862
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20.x S e M AR
F2021E12831H X2020E128318 , AKRAX MM AR T EAREF B NG REFNANER.

21. 32 [ W & AR 3% 7= K

Fix S T

ZBERMII

7% 21,188 124,623 3,150 107,100
N 21,188 124,623 3,150 107,100
NItFS 17 102 2 74
&1t 21,205 124,725 3,152 107,174

AER AT RHEME S OERAYENET— SBRYPRE.
22. IR K

&R T

| e®2A%IH 200%12A%IA | 2021F12A3IE 2020%12A01H
A SEEIFR 854,627 905,818 940,551 989,391
4l T HATF R 118,332 113,117 141,837 130,394
A ARIE SR 2,903 3,110 2,903 3,110
REEJ i E#F S 101,401 143,251 101,401 143,251
N 1,077,263 1,165,296 1,186,692 1,266,146
RitFIR 1,933 2,242 2,001 2,306
&it 1,079,196 1,167,538 1,188,693 1,268,452

23. [ {FBR T %7 A
AEEH 20214

o e kEMW SRS SRR
IH. &€ RIEFMIE 975 5,500 (5,193) 1,282
RIEH % - 226 (226) =
RIKIEF 1,240 (136) (60) 1,044
MRRE R FTRE 244 1,229 (1,231) 242
FEEARS 1 369 (369) 1
TITSABNMRMIABETLH 589 229 (118) 700
Hith 1 60 (60) 1
At 3,050 7,477 (7,257) 3,270

20204

o mel wEER kEES ERM
TH. &% RIEFMIE 558 5,219 (4,802) 975
RITEF % - 202 (202) -
RKIEF 1,247 33 (40) 1,240
MR R TRE 106 1,016 (878) 244
EEARS 1 349 (349) 1
TITSABMRMIABFTLH 496 216 (123) 589
Hith - 71 (70) 1
&it 2,408 7,106 (6,464) 3,050
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T 20214
o mem wERR REES ERM
TH. X4 EWMMAIG 634 4,490 (4,338) 786
R T3EF 2% - 177 (177) =
BIREF 1,223 (142) (39) 1,042
HERE T R TR 198 1,034 (1,048) 184
FEEAR 1 321 (321) 1
TSKABMRIHERS 505 198 (97) 606
Hith - 56 (56) =
&it 2,561 6,134 (6,076) 2,619
20204
o mel wERR REES SRM

TH. e R - 4,381 (3,747) 634
R T3&EF %% - 157 (157) -
BIREF 1,247 6 (30) 1,223
HEREE R RIFTRE 27 864 (693) 198
FEBEAR 1 298 (298) 1
ISEEBEMRIBELHE 414 192 (101) 505
Hfth - 65 (65) -
&1t 1,689 5,963 (5,091) 2,561

F202112H31H X2020F 128310, AEFA LR NRITHFMET D IH LTE TR ERNE.
24. N 3T FL R

B
i
=
7
1

VR 17,445 2,922 16,623 1,664
WER 8,823 8,578 8,679 8,395
Hith 1,271 1,240 1,231 1,184
it 27,539 12,740 26,533 11,243

25. %t st

B
i
=
7
1

BRI (1) 16,918 15,432 16,919 15,433
& BR(1) 275 278 187 156
BRPF RN SR E 788 890 788 890
Ait 17,981 16,600 17,894 16,479

(1) Bt Es

A 20214

202141 B 1H 2,596 12,564 550 15,710
®H.

BREEHMER (168) 168 = =
EHitE() 354 (1) 2 355
iz 1,943 2,085 = 4,028
A (694) (1,753) (304) (2,751)
SN EEE (12) (133) 4) (149)

2021128318 4,019 12,930 244 17,193
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20204

20201 1R 6,862 7,202 1,386 15,450
%75,

HEE—ME 4,407 (4,407) - -
REFEZNER (441) 441 - .
HEE=MR - (97) 97 -
EHiTE() (7,440) 8,849 (832) 577
g 1,123 3,947 - 5,070
A (1,862) (2,997) (101) (4,960)
SNTHTE EH (53) (374) - (427)
20204E12831H 2,596 12,564 550 15,710
T 20214

202141 B1H 2,721 12,564 304 15,589

%75,

BEETHER (168) 168 - =

EHITE(@) 386 ©) 4 389

il 1,943 2,085 - 4,028

B> (694) (1,753) (304) (2,751)
SNHITEER (12) (133) (4) (149)
20214E12831H 4,176 12,930 = 17,106

20204

202018 1H

7,145 7,202 738 15,085
%%,

BEE—MR 4,407 (4,407) - -
BEENER (441) 441 - -
BEE=ME - (97) 97 -
EFiTE@Q) (7,598) 8,849 (430) 821

g 1,123 3,947 - 5,070
" (1,862) (2,997) (101) (4,960)
SNTHTE EH (53) (374) - (427
20204E12831H 2,721 12,564 304 15,589

(a) BREZRASHNEAETMLMBAME SHORIXREARONENR. BTRFRERYSEREBREEEEMIEERE
RARE MSERFRERVSEREE—MER. F-NR. E=MRZEEEED WERAESERAEENITEEMAE2

MR MBENFEINTHRERRE Z B E,
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26.BER{TRFIES

AEH AT
| conEI2ASIE 2020512A01H | 2021F12A31H  2020%12A31H
A& ESEA) 11,142,456 10,361,137 11,100,173 10,310,957
RAHRBFEE Q) 30,010 35,010 30,010 30,010
R A ZRERRQ) 84,222 114,389 79,807 109,876
R AR = X FE S - 588 = -
INF 11,256,688 10,511,124 11,209,990 10,450,843
NITH & 223,689 210,968 223,382 210,504
Ait 11,480,377 10,722,092 11,433,372 10,661,347

T20215F12R31 HK20205F12A31H  AKFARATETHHSFIEF XA HIERAE . A SHRE AN ELIER.
(1) FZfF&Rhfss

HRERRAAT 2021412A31H
o aeER HBEE EEAE% RE

BREATARTSRGS 2002-2021 2022-2065 1.86-5.90 9,758,861
BRETARD TGS 2015-2021 2022-2037 3.01-4.27 1,173,317
BRRTING ER RS 2021 2022-2023 0.38-0.80 19,123
BINRTT AR T &R 2012-2021 2023-2032 2.65-4.50 14,782
BINR TN £ RS 2016-2021 2022-2037 0.00-4.00 134,090
TR & BRE R 11,100,173
FRERIRITHIINT ZE 2012-2021 2022-2027 0.80-3.75 40,361
FREFERETHARTHSE 2017-2018 2022-2023 4.50-4.70 9,989
FRE\HRTHARTRIE 2019 2022 3.58 269
A EERTAEFENAREARITHRSE (8,336)
AR B R AT & RARH RN 11,142,456

2020412H31H

BRETART &GS 2001-2020 2021-2065 1.11-5.90 8,896,855
BAXTARDZIHES 2015-2020 2021-2037 2.96-4.62 1,231,702
BINRIT AR T &R 2012-2020 2023-2032 3.03-4.50 12,300
BINRATIND SRR 2016-2020 2021-2037 0.00-4.00 170,100
TR & RRERT 10,310,957
FABIRINKITHIINTG Z R 2012-2020 2021-2027 1.21-4.25 44,275
FAIARARITHAR M HRE 2017-2018 2021-2023 4.35-4.70 8,488
FRE\HIRTHARTRIE 2019 2021-2022 2.94-3.65 713
B RARTEFENAEARTHNRS (3,296)
AER AT ERRS R 10,361,137

(2) FTRFHSHF

AERRAEIT 2021412H31H

ATENETARTRE RS 2011-2012 2041-2062 5.50-6.05 30,010
2020412H31H

ATBERNEGTARTARAE GRS 2011-2012 2041-2062 5.50-6.05 30,010

FATNERNEFTARTRARES 2016 2021 3.58 5,000

KERAXTREEEETT 35,010

AITEFTHRBHEEHIMEAFARTRARE N LK. EATKE B #HERNTRTERENF, BORSFNZEHESBERR
SKE,
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(3) Efd =B FE AR

AEAREIT 2021412H31H

ATERNETART ZRERG 2018-2020 2028-2030 3.88-4.45 79,807

FRABBIIRITERT R RAEMR 2020 2030 2.88 4,415

AERARTZREARRAIT 84,202
20204 12H31H

AFTFERNRTART ZREARR 2016-2020 2026-2030 3.65-4.45 109,876

FRAIBIRITERZRRAER 2020 2030 2.88 4,513

AEARTZREAARRAIT 114,389

AEFADHIT2018FM2020F R1TT ZRAAMS, WHEEF LGS, £RIRRESHAERRERTXHHATHEEDR &4
BERT, AERAENERTEATEELNMTRFEENEE—H, FEE—AUBO I BREZFRS. MAEAFTERED
N, EEFIREFRE.

ERBHEREEEARATAENBICHL SREATXHTAENEEREAEGN, ARAENEEERENASHETEIRIL,
FET RN RREAT ST TBEIA.

27. Hfth St

EH 4T
| we®2A%IH 200%12A%IA | 2021F1ZA3IA 2020%12A01H
ERM B F RN MRS 26,840 28,078 26,840 28,078
A& HERLEEREMITEERM 13,454 16,368 = -
HAERIES 7,221 7,591 = -
TR 6,694 7,468 2,500 2,556
B A R A 3R 2,584 586 = -
HfiEwEs 1,604 2,462 = -
Gl 935 1,245 1,103 1,407
RELFZIEHK 45 78 = -
BEFERR - 1,157 = -
BEREFIEHBES N R - - 299 631
Hith 6,843 6,428 4,868 3,817
A1t 66,220 71,461 35,610 36,489

20214E % 2020412 H31H
A
T BUER 153,908 36.54
C&AF) 146,092 34.68
ERRRAFE BRI 114,537 27.19
LEHSREESEES 6,711 1.59
&1t 421,248 100.00

2021 K2020FE , AT REEFBR SR SR K E T (L.
29. 7 AR

AEH 20214 % 20204
BA N 182,650 - - 182,650
T 20214 20204

AN 182,195 = = 182,195
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30.HithsR & W im
(1) AR HSRE RN AERER:

P S T

FREEN R R MR MRS

EFTEREZ RIS OGS RZNED 116 3 116 3
HNETERFE LA ANEEZS 891 (664) 40 (9)
B TS HL s e (10) 384 (10) 2
Nt 997 (277) 146 4)
BENXFRBENEMEE RS
E A T o iR M H A G & Lz (261) - = -
HthHEERAARNMEES 2,903 (1,616) 3,177 (614)
B BTEIT AR LR S s K B AR 5 206 () 55
HMFENIREERREES 300 391 13 (18)
SMHIRFIMTEZR (1,445) (2,936) = -
Hfth 1,013 (570) = (1)
B T8RRI (937) 287 (794) 140
N 1,578 (4,238) 2,395 (438)
A1t 2,575 (4,515) 2,541 (442)

(2) HFERRRPHEMGREIE:

K&

20201 E1R (196) 7,033 (21,119) 370 874 (461) (13,499)
REHRER 3 (928) (280) 169 (2,558) (319) (3913)
20204126318 (193) 6,105 (21,399) 539 (1,684) (780) (17,412)
RERATH 116 2,162 881 165 (1,392) 492 2,424
202146126318 (77) 8,267 (20,518) 704 (3,076) (288) (14,988)

(1) TRERALREEHNERBS.

&7

202051510 (196) 1,575 (59) 81 (26) (1) 1,374
KEBRE 3 (419) (7 (18) - (1) (442)
2020412F31H (193) 1,156 (66) 63 (26) @ 932
AEERR 116 2,382 30 13 = = 2,541
20214£12H318 (77) 3,538 (36) 76 (26) @) 3,473

N.BFRAR
REERGASEENT, XTARBLVSIHEN THEFEERI0%ELEEREAR, ¥AFTEEREAREIF AT
KRR KRM50%E  THURFRR, 2ESESMAE ATERNEERAARTATFRIATNSRREBMATRRAAR, 518
SRAKE, IBENEERRARTB O FATLREANY%, B, ATELEFLHARDEIBREAR,
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32. —MRXBE

i N3 1T
_ 20204128310 20204128310

£5(1) 253,382 244,206 253,382 244,206
FAF(©2) 5,137 4,760 = -
&t 258,519 248,966 253,382 244,206

(1) RITEMESH SO I ESSITREEMEN M £[2012]205 ) WHE, AEREASREESHEME BT —RRRES
FBERIMRATERIRBIA 5 RS R =B RAEE TR IRK . R E—RRE AR AMET R R~ FRRIM.5%,

(2 BEXLKENE, AT TASERDPEIEFRERR—ESTEA—RAREE,

33. kS EFINE
EH T

D mme s | aaE e

FHRE 434,686 376,035 353,043 320,529
. AEFEASFRAEENSTE 78,960 117,376 64,193 90,829
B RBUEERRAT() (6,420) (9,084) (6,420) (9,084)
REEBRRATREQ)) (9,083) (11,148) (9,083) (11,148)
TRER— R KU 2 (2) (i) (9,553) (10,622) (9,176) (10,212)
BF 43 B (2) (iii) (22,707) (27,871) (22,707) (27,871)
FERFH 465,883 434,686 369,850 353,043

(1) 20214 EFIE4 B

RITU2021EES A A B H, REVAE B R ARMART64. 2012 T HITAN2021E F, 2021 EHMF AN B AR B EFE SN,
(2) 2020F EFIE S ER

EFEEST2021F125 188 A ARTT2020FE EFH B ITRM T .

() RBERERARART0.831ZT.

(i) RE—BMHEAEREARTI.761Z7T,

(i) PRI LBFIART227.07127T ., WFEHEITA2021FE,

F2021F12831H , BREF2020F E 4 FHRMANEER R ARART0.8312 T 21T N2020F EW R KN, LRFINEE
A1 FEMERE, LRUSRFIE2TRE.

(3) F2021412831H 20204128318, ARERHRHUBAFFAEFATRRABATTHENRRARKMIART
67.301Z TR AR T46.58(Z .

34. > HR R i
A E D BRRETIRIT

EF&mAERRTAS 9,805 12,147
EREmAERNFRAS 10,718 9,480
EFIEERHBBERAS 3,311 3,196

&it 23,834 24,823
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35.7 2iFIBN
AEH AT
e e 2021F 200%
F BN
R GEFR AR 524,409 525,361 509,299 510,206
REIRERED) 57,881 64,973 56,787 63,760
FHAERINRESHA 13,124 8,031 13,058 7,952
B HRBITRERE LR 5,716 9,163 5,135 8,504
Hith 8 3 - -
Nt 601,133 607,531 584,279 590,422
FI B H
ERFTHRFIESH (365,994) (343,151) (364,185) (341,239)
&) b R H fth < Bh AL A 17 BRI (74,296) (87,895) (74,313) (87,896)
R U 73K (7,335) (9,673) (7,774) (10,555)
15 BT FE A € BRAL A R K (8,865) (11,248) (2,281) (5,699)
Hit (1,011) (1,879) (490) (1,414)
INF (457,501) (453,846) (449,043) (446,803)
F 2N 143,632 153,685 135,236 143,619
F BN ELE.
ERFEESRE = FEEA 643 368 643 368
(1) REIERRFBWABFEHEDIRE . EAGEHIR T T RBA,
36.FEHRAEHFBN
IREH b
L mmE . mos 2021E 2005
FHEARAEBNA
SRS EERS 1,225 1,529 809 1,124
TR HEH 330 519 330 519
{5 AR 70 156 70 156
B o) % 18 2 91 323 6 32
RIEZSE S F RN 2 68 = -
Hith 655 781 247 323
INGF 2,373 3,376 1,462 2,154
FHHERBEEIH (930) (950) (593) (637)
FEHERBEFBEAN 1,443 2,426 869 1,517
37. /| E W
IR b
L mmE . om  221E 2005
R 5 ERE > 23,312 24,637 6,914 5,165
PESMTIA 189 223 289 233
AR H 102 125 = -
HAM BRI 16 33 1 1
HthE TEHRRE 68 - 1 -
KEARRAIR 558 82 10,517 2,075
Hith 2,435 1,548 2,435 1,548

&1t 26,680 26,648 20,157 9,022
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38. AR MEL FIRE

AEH &7
T emA~ 17,690 12,853 8,553 484
THESRITA (89) (54) (103) (32)
R GE RN IR 627 730 627 730
&t 18,228 13,529 9,077 1,182
39.;C AR
CHRSTEORIINTEIUESNAGRITESENRE. MERINCETESm T A~ £ MRS,
40. E Atk SN
AEH AT
FAFERA 11,666 8,697 119 121
Hith 1,794 1,368 111 13
At 13,460 10,065 230 134

1. T & R i

AEH AT
WA ERT 2,235 2,263 2,142 2,155
BE MM 1,638 1,657 1,569 1,575
Hith 462 464 395 391
&t 4,335 4,384 4,106 4,121

R2NEFRERRE

AEH pi )
RIZHA 7,593 7,109 6,250 5,966
He TH. R EEFAI 5,500 5,219 4,490 4,381
V&% 3,343 3,228 2,716 2,597
WIRFRHEE A 1,901 1,938 1,692 1,722
&It 12,837 12,275 10,658 10,285

43 B ER X

&M T
R GE RN EER 74,024 1,442 72,063 1,794
R (444) 815 141 539
HE A i & 351 558 13 (17)
BRRE 1,486 951 1,486 948
MEIERER (3) (691) 31 (444)
Hith 1,228 1,246 161 12

&it 76,642 4,321 73,895 2,832
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44 Bl & A
A& Py
ZEMEBRER ™A 4,317 4,070 = -
Hith 2,711 4,493 = -
it 7,028 8,563 = —
45. FriSFi 2t A
AEH AT
LHERSHER 23,516 8,428 17,632 2,232
IR E R A (11,228) 14,803 (13,577) 12,365
A1t 12,288 23,231 4,055 14,597
AEARKTIHRERERSSTFENBEDTRAT .
AEH 4T
FliERE 93,082 142,047 68,248 105,426
A ERR25%BITE M SR A 23,270 35,512 17,062 26,357
FATXRABREBEMF=ERNT M (550) (293) = -
G BN 4T 52 1 (11,596) (13,738) (13,788) (13,012)
RFGATHAINE B M Z R AORF R0 17 330 = -
AR E AR R FZm 1,147 1,420 781 1,252
FRrEf#EA 12,288 23,231 4,055 14,597
46.MEMERII T HH
(1) BEAERATALEENNERE
AEH Py
HFE 80,794 118,816 64,193 90,829
. s RRERK 76,642 4,321 73,895 2,832
HMFE = mERK 1,069 1,597 2 23
PrIRFOPES 6,218 6,008 1,692 1,722
BB EESTIIAE (643) (368) (643) (368)
REBEBEER™. TRAFMHMKIAR~HRE (804) (585) (109) (7)
NRAMEEHNRE (18,228) (13,529) (9,077) (1,182)
EREFEN = EF BRI AT 312,000 289,426 309,680 283,178
BR W= (639) (240) (10,519) (2,076)
TR 31,037 30,503 29,536 25,496
BEFREREA (11,228) 14,803 (13,577) 12,365
2 R UOR B BRI AR (270,023) (817,428) (223,396) (887,201)
ZE MR AT B B8R 8 (642,704) (486,457) (672,278) (559,067)
ZEENFENNE TEET (436,509) (853,133) (450,601) (1,033,456)
(2) FIRTUERERFHUERUEENNERE:
AEH 1T
FH AR R B ITHE L FRI 160,878 189,932 193,695 194,345
REFHELRBEI=1AM.
BNt 488,162 581,865 488,162 581,460
KRS 105,391 87,209 105,391 87,209
BUR RS 1,950 - 1,950 -

&t 756,381 859,006 789,198 863,014
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A7 FEERME EHR PRI E
(1) MANEIEE S EG
AERART REREBHMASHEENERU IR EAEARRER SIS MY SHEESARERATRIMBEEBMNE
. AEARXEREENAFEEINRES. AT AEANBAENUIARERS BES5REFHETETEER, FEE
887155 AN AL ERAA N H R TR EIR, Bt A 2 B X b K G M L E AT AE R4,

T2021F12R31H, ERPUAEH BB LML EENA NI AR T206.87125T (20206F12A331H . ARM299.79127T ).
(2) KRPNEHEERI S EE
(a) AKHART. REREENEMUER

AEARLRIFERABNNENLUIE, SERSIHIES AFEETY E2MEN > R%E ARAFEHASEERS.
REANRHANEGIERNEMUTERTFRAM SR H BT,

T2021F12A31 0, AEARBRINREFFHEBUIEMNZ~HRAHART1,346.03125T(2020F12831H : AR 1,726.23
27t), AERABR R TREEM L EEMFOKENENART75.33127T (20205127310 . AR T53.25{27T) LR H R
RET RREANXEEM U ETEHRANEHO.

(b) HE=TNHRTHEERNEBLERE

AEAFEBRDAE=ZTNHROLEENENLIENSE, BIANAZ S ESRA S~ THARNKRE. F2021F12A310, ¥ F
ZERMAGIEENEML TGN EENE, TAFITREOTHAR,

T2021F12A31H, ARAFHFHMINMETHEMUIFNRARTAART229.61{25T(2020F12831H: ARM263.511Z
) B TRZUERASIRORARTAART226.40125T(2020F12831H : AR T262.52127T); T HENKATIIRAIK A
FHHART0.91ZITT(2020F12A31H : ) THMBENB AT RAR AR AART2.30{27T (20206128310 : ART0.99
f27t), LR X GRFRRT AEANZFEMUETERANIEHA .

48. EREBT R

EREXST, AEARERATHERHRENERE BRBKRENGERARAZTRTAS IFHIES. RIENEN. 7@)fkHE
I AMFHIETEOE ARASERMEMRMARBREERZEWT T2, 2MHANEELUEFBIAEXERE

F2021F12R31H, E¥ILERBHANER A~ RERKEREAARTS.11{Z5T (202061283180 : ARH20.57{27T) ., H.

- WFEHEFBILKEREARDS 1125 (20205F12831H. ARM18.861Z7t)  AKFIAARE THXFHRENERENE
RERD RS FREN , #d H AR IEFRIA

— F2021%F12831HK2020F 128310, KERA LKL H NEILNEHRES,

- T2021F12A31H . AEATEAEFHINFHFHNERILERASRF AT (2020F128310 . THERASHKILKEREAA
EMm1.71Zt, WENEERRANEHAAARTONMIT, KEFIANFFELIEFIANEM).

. HEBRE

AERBIEFEEDMBI/REFTLHETENFHREFTRENDE, MEEERBEREARNBEEMIRE —BN T RNETIIR,

DEEZ PR W ZFRKE KT, ABFHILENSBHHHEEE, FETEF I LSRR F B,
AERAFERUT LS HEB#TIIR .

RIT S

ZOBIFEEFELAIRTULE  KTHRFLEEESVS., ATRTLSBHENEME TR #HRES . RERS. MR 558KRE.

RNEEERS  LRMNEERS  RERSERBRBSE. ROBHFLSHANEFTUSIRZRSKE. ALV SEERTTHRS.
SMCTHR S RETHR S REIMNCKREETERGRAFNRERE.

R A3 Bl 55
AN BOEBABA LS.
G

FAMERARAEALEANRAEELSREERELS.
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IEFHF
ADMBBIESFSMNELNV S BELSRIEHFKBELS.
AEH
| WTLS  REEELS  ERUSE ESLE ANEEE &b
20214
IV ON 591,113 746 10,131 1,257 (2,114) 601,133
MEZH (448,833) (2,021) (8,088) (715) 2,156 (457,501)
F RN &R 142,280 (1,275) 2,043 542 42 143,632
R XfIP 35 F SN EET 141,120 87 2,123 302 - 143,632
BB F YN 2 ET 1,160 (1,362) (80) 240 42 =
FEAERMEHBN 868 301 (82) 351 5 1,443
B If5pE 5 FLEHR A PN 810 301 (13) 345 - 1,443
7B IE] FEE# R AF 2 BN 58 - (69) 6 5 =
HE WA/ () 17,755 19,916 13,185 175 (1,087) 49,944
Bl X (88,917) (2,284) (9,607) (850) (253) (101,911)
IR SR 2 1 (77) (14) (3) 68 = (26)
FE B A 72,909 16,644 5,536 286 (1,293) 93,082
2021412H31H
AT = 16,619,924 217,855 340,163 41,540 (189,668) 17,029,814
RO BE > 138,127
BR™ 17,167,941
HE IR 15,458,288 64,002 309,909 26,082 (236,894) 15,621,387
R E R 8,274
B 15,629,661
Hith:
Hr 1B ARk 5 1,692 231 4,349 68 (122) 6,218
TARM I H 593 1 24,551 16 - 25,161
ERRBERX 74,037 (504) 2,443 270 396 76,642
HMHE = HERK 2 - 1,067 - - 1,069

BERRE 3,555,880 244 = = (19,376) 3,536,748
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‘
i
=]

20204
FEBA 597,630 864 9,476 1,250 (1,689) 607,531
FEXH (446,125) (2,285) (6,981) (673) 2,218 (453,846)
F BN 25 151,505 (1,421) 2,495 577 529 153,685
E 1. ISP G FIEWN BT 150,605 (83) 2,652 511 - 153,685
7 EBEFI BN BT 900 (1,338) (157) 66 529 -
FHRARBERBEN 1,517 427 (81) 567 (4) 2,426
B WG FLEHERMLERN 1,458 428 (16) 555 1 2,426
5 BR8] F L # RAF £ I3 WN 59 (1) (65) 12 (5) -
HAE WA (13,126) 21,760 9,854 592 (1,938) 17,142
ElxH (16,733) (5,477) (7,674) (1,565) 309 (31,140)
ERR N EREE 1 (62) (4) (10) 10 - (66)
F5E 2 H 123,101 15,285 4,584 181 (1,104) 142,047
2020412H31H
HER 16,646,720 202,143 301,999 43,403 (214,911) 16,979,354
P 124,221
BR™ 17,103,575
S ER LR 15,320,537 71,539 275,943 28,115 (77,846) 15,618,288
RO EC R 4,695
B 15,622,983
Hith:
HrIRFIRE S 1,722 259 4,134 78 (185) 6,008
HAMZE 602 15 16,931 24 - 17,572
ERBER K 2,174 516 708 1,025 (102) 4,321
HHE = ERK 23 - 1,574 - - 1,597
BV 373 3,512,038 244 - - (23,524) 3,488,758
T. XBEAXERXS
1. MEER

T BB 2 E 5 B A9 A A AR IT) , F20214E12 831 H K 2020412831 H , WEERI9H A A 1736.54% A9 BN .

AEASVEBHTHEF LS FREETHIERET TREEELAATRBIIREILVEBETHERS., TR~ AfHRE
H. ZFXZMERELNT .

EREREH 80,734 74,432
Fi 2 X [a] (%) 0-4.68 1.99-4.68

IISUON 2,294 2,429
B Al & 45 94
2. iC&RT

CEAARTERTAERTITAINEEFAT, M AFEILR EMBLRAIARTS,282.0927T. (L&A TALREFIRIFEN,
SNERSENMHATREE, FNEHM L HELERD. L AIREKPERFRETESRTHNFIFINS, F20214£12
A31HK2020FE12H31H, L&A1 K 1734.68% I BEN .

FHREMUERERD, ARAFBENLLARNRTNGES TRAHRBERHEREMT .

oS mA> 2,992 4,099
H A s & 49,833 42,539
Fil R X 8] (%) 2.15-4.38 2.15-5.15
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EIISU N 1,647 1,106
R 96 173

AEASLEAS AR ERARRFNARHTHABLERS REERLFRHET.

B REEFREELR
BRRRATAERFEAT (UTER BRMNLD ) RERMCEERL AR LN~ ABRFKEAT, SEEEHEAIGR
B.BAX. 10, £ BHQH. AFFAEE. RAEE REAASHANTE . SEXBNHEETTAREER) .

F20215F % 2020512831 H , BRI A =455 AK1727.19% M IR
AEASERHASRAEGHEAREFNNAIHETHEELSR S BRESHLER#HET,
5FAFAMES

ATAFNRERNEFEE5FRAINKRTIRET .

®

&

"=

PTEERE~ 19 46
R GEFR AR 42,175 43,232
R HHERA - 40
H AR T 126 -
& E 3 = - 787
HE ™ 4 1,214
ffR

Bk % H At & @A F R 103 1,000
Ul ec 109,497 100,914
ERTREIES 8,269 3,139
HAth R 22 676

F2021F12A31H, 5F LS AN ERRKERALRBXIBREMAART193.76127t (20205F12831H . AR M235.2412
JTt).

AT ERNETEEE5FAINRETIITMNT .

FEBA 1,685 1,657
F B H (693) (919)
FEHARMEBA 70 66
FHHERAEXH (1) ®)
RAE 10,517 2,075
ARMEEH B = (31)

AITEFATZ AN ZIRB—RE L FRMNES L SRBF#HTT,

5. SRREMEEATNRS
AEFASHEMNAEATZAORENU—BIHNE D SNER BT E R Y EH#T, T2021ER2020%E , ALFAK SEER
SENDNRETBREREFXS, ERUEEAXES LM,

6. XBEEAR
K@EWARSISHENGEREIR SRR AEREFNHAR, F2021ER20204 , B IEE R MM AL SXREEA
RS EHHIAEA,

7. Bl EE

BRIE® BRI, T2021 F R2020F  AKRARAITEATRIMF SRR EERREKTL S .
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T—. HEEBRKIE

1. EEIFL
Fo021412A31 8, AEARAGTEES FABFAFR. ATERRNNZEARRRNRARNASERT RN ARARKTH
WESSETELESES SR 7]

2. BARMKIE
AEH Fixy
EEARMT
— BT 38,440 38,365 = -
- BERER 37,911 53,133 648 645
&it 76,351 91,498 648 645

AEAMNBEER S RAKBETIENMXATBEER S HAANMKIE. T2021H12A8310, AEABULERTAEEH ~HNALN
RIEEMAARM372.02127t (20205E12831H . ARM523.33127T).

3. FhekiE

ZEEH KT
| F2ASIA 200F12A31A | 2021F12A31H  2020512A%1H
HKIE 3,515,207 3,454,884 3,528,207 3,471,883
FFHARERIBR 9,262 17,526 15,394 23,807
WITRRILCE 8,700 9,606 8,700 9,606
FHERIE 3,579 6,742 3,579 6,742
&1t 3,536,748 3,488,758 3,555,880 3,512,038

F2021F12B31H, RHRIETARZHMBE—FUANSTAARTS42.94(Z5T (20204128 31H: 960.99127T) , HE&RFHK
HERIHEYE—FN L.

. MBESEFKE
FHREREERD . WETHRTHEORARLSAERNT.

D

|
i
=

BAAESESHM 30,184 29,046

F20214 R20204 128310, AER MR AR ERE H—ERRA,
5. &R

(1) fEAHBRYGE =

BEAERE, WS M RO KENMED T

‘
i
=

R 22,792 128,994
1T
R 3,219 110,597

F2021F12A31H, AEARATREEMESMA S RAS A HAART211.88{ZT R ART31.501Z5T (20205128318 . 4
AART,246.231Z TR ART1,071.001Z7T) . B A B @I LI L ESURSFE A E .

F2021F12A31H, AEAFARKRABRER. EEHRENA KENERATEXNORURIKENESITAARD
714.061Z7T (20205128318 . ARM340.01127T) .

(2) WEIHERY

AREFAELNEE LS FES TIESENIRERY . T2021F12831H R2020F 128310, AKALREI AT & EHHF X )
SMEIRAYIE SRR .
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T=. REEE

SRS BB R EE

REFWNZEENHEIESTHESRNAG AEAELEIEDITXLLESR N REASHTIRG . 2F . BIEMRE. RZXEE2E
BV S RO, ARV SO ATBEMEIERE XK. Bt AEFAN BIRE I RKERFXEMNE IR FE, F T8 XEE
EX WS S BEART 06,

AEATREURTARHBRHBEFNEZMINFRGHEERS HBERLERT BE—X P KANBRFRUREIZE. €8
R, AEARBTANHESNFERRLSHEENE, ARAREESATNHEEETREARBTENRETHEHEATHNIE
ATBEETAE MBS R EERESMARIEINFE.

AREERERNEARTE, AEAHTT - LENHENNTESRIARS BREETIH. EHMMNXERMAMXTRANE.

AERAMNEEEBREE T E LN NERFAMESFR, B RNENAESRGRENNEEMRFAHTER, BRIR
MDA RS AEFAEHF AN EEBRNASE, RNRERRTH. = RATAE HIANREXSERUFH TENEEE,
AEFABERNEESRNG RO FRNE . 79Xk 2R R,

15 RXUBS:

AEEAMERNEANKRZEZEFIXGI FOEAGAEAT R TENBEERIONE. FANEEAEAVSHRNRER
R, B EBEENEANEREERERE. GANREIRETERAS MENRRMERANTESTAS VS RIPSRIA
Blan &S ERERMEHKELEFEERANR.

AEAZRRRESETHORBTRERBRLEERES] F64A5ALSHERLTERATLRGR, 8FETHRTE R 811
HERE TEHRSGE. ZERA_LEEATRER, NEERNE A BORENE A ERTFEIITEE A EYEFIREAER
RIS BITR. BN, AT RIEFRNAERSEE, EFHETBRITFE. TOOER  BRIFRMTLIFRENRAE.

(1) FERARKHERE

AEANBREREFFENER XEFEEHM. MFEZX. REEENTRENEESATNERLSERERTIEHEE. B
EFEEISEERBRERE BARIIFEE FRARE. R ARERIREEES2REEE REMRNRERENR, MRA
REARUBRBRLE HH*FEREEREHENEFTFREAREITARANE AR EERKFE.

LYAREANT THALENEFFNAALTESERPTRE A~ N EAS 0N, WEHATRE. RPLESERH
JREIRMMTERBE: (1)BHRTELELE, QFAKANKE T EZREIFLEBRR, ENHHERAONELEBEZEHA
=

BRERAFSGAERATREAREI, S TALZELS AEAEREFEAFELEAKENZ SN T, FEHEEARKE SHRA
BHER GESERMMERTIRES. PERE, FTRENNFEEERASHERARKREHESENN YRLEEVSHNER
REEHITER. I, AERAAFFRHEFINYSEBREBMERXELS ARFEREAEAMTAEAREE A RN TE
M, FFEIB S ERARE AN, B I A S F X b 2 b 5508 A S BE Al 55 48 S A LB 42 1 72 i R BUSR SR PR RAZ A5 A R

(2) H|EHRY

AEARET —RIEANEEZBRNBURMNEE ZHEEXAHN, CREREENEREEZRERARMIRY. AEANESE
BERRFEDNTEZINREARRERZESE T RERS FERFAREIPDITHER.

MR T B AR R FE >, FmR s Bih~ . DhEAN RNRIES. RS FRUENMIRE . BREERMER Z MY
Htp S RASHIRAIEY BT AASHURRE. BEELT, KNSR TAAGRMEAIFNASIHMISHEUE
MIES, fi%5 ERMEMEREERIEER. T2021F12A310, AEARFEERIMER>,

() FERITH

AEFAXBABEFAERITIRARRENT SN FHEAMRITEER, ENREEINZ SN FRATEN A BITRAER, BN
ABRBEERFEL (G180 ERAREERAMITIL 3 2K) MEANTFRRE BEERAIMBEIEEANTELR. Wi, o EEER
R EEA RAVT R AWK o] e R E AR RRE R E RANE RITER.

(4) BHAERmEITE

MTFMRREATEMUAANETTEEETNITARBGERENRS TRSRA ™ AMSRE ™ NREFKEMY SERF
a8, AEHAZA " MHERRARE HRAEER . ARARTERA S THERREBRENKNTTED KRGS BER %,
NTAATHBERARETENSRTIE AEATEBAXEMTIANGEANEEMNRTINEREEREZEM, A =ZH&R" #E
WA FITEBEIRKEE . WIAMEERRX.

F—HE BVRFIAEERARRAREZEMNERIR RAMERUD AE—ME,

BN BVERHINEERARKEEZEMNSRIR EFREEAACREEARENERIE REANRUD HEZME.
BN NTEREGFARENSRTIE REANRUDS AE=HEK.
E-NREMTIEARREYTZERIARKLDAATHEAREANSTUEERIES E-MBENE=MELMTAZRR
HETFZESRIAB N FEPATBERARENSITEERELER.
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WASREEREFERARENSRATRIEENRPBIANNFECEARENSRES . RER~RELES I BN FEANTH
ERfKk.

AERAEEREMHESATRIERRETE THEARINUTETER T EXNRENRER, XEERRESRAKRNE

MEFERMERANERRR (Fln, BAEANTEEREERE) . ARARBESITTENNZRETAREAXEHITEHE

AT A Rig R, 8.

— EAUE AR A A R 5

- MEERBRKITENS . RRRMETRA

— ERNE S Z BN AR

- BAMEREERRERNH TR

- TR ENEFER. EFERRANENXA

— BZMBRER MR ER AR RI &R ION

KOMERAREAE D

AEAHEFRUNRBENRARTIA. EHTOEN, AEAXETERALE TR EXAR BERAXBEFEE,

BREAGANRS AN TEM.

EAE AT EHS . RREMAEITERA

RIEEANEREREZEBMUREREREEARE. AKRAMTRNE =25 M2 ARENFEBNTRERRETE

RiEAR. IHERRATENXESHEEEAME  SORMRRMBLREH A K& D27 KBS E AT B AR TFRE

FEEM REFSHTRAANNER ZEHEFUHEE (NS FIIR BRARXNKIMRIFYE . ERXTRE) HEENT

EREEMES BUBAOME BARKRRSONEHOKE,

HXEXMT:

- BAMERERSAERKRINAREBNMNFKFEY, TEBTEEAX SN TEN . RERAN B LR NN HITFRETR
ERAEMBATEE, MAEEES. MRRLEFEZULFTETHHES AN [RBAHEX,

- BARAEREAKEANBEANGRBERXERAEERUOTY. REXZIFHLE BROTXNMLER, NRBRIZH
AR, BARIRBERRE. BARERAFTARERN N O REOE DL,

- BARKRHMARE, EEAREN, AEANKESHEI,

REAXRAANBEATRARRENZ G TFOBAMEFEER, ENAREFINZ I FRAFE R BIFRER, 7£ 7R H

BENRENERARBERREEBRANTRRE, AEATHERFELTAFEAREITERRNRE SREHRTHNE

AR RIERYNENEER.

TR0 FE, it RAGIXBBREREEERT L.

B RN B E B ANE HI AR

REAEGNM A ARKBITEAX SR IANEARKBVEHIANGESEEZ G, AEA# TSR A~ NR KN RN

ANEERREGHANEEGHIAEZLAUNEMEEERKENER . BERAEMER. ARANENES T AN EM Bt

REMIAERSNMRRAREBZANNE SEVIRHRIANBREFTANNE, MRAESRIATTEEANEESEANEHNEL

B,

AEFABTREERZ. ENMENANESRTIANGEANKEMERNERERERER N, AMFETIEGRERS ASARX

HEL ERRESEATUNEREMERPAEAREEZZMNER, EHNSRTANEARNKEBYEHINEREEEZIEMA,

ARERAREFEN X TEHBEI0RMAFEARERZEMOBRE. WREREEERTIAFHENRERMEAN L, K&H

BRRZEMTANEANKEBMERINEITAEZEN. MRS TAEARMOBAON G, ERACEHNE A RIBAE kK

HWREEARNESRNS, BEBTXSENTHEKPEAZFME L &R Z/MAMER, WiZzem TRABADEETRKEE

AR,

MABRBESRERERE ARARBFAEN THIZRBEZWNERARRENEEHERTENERTH. I T LALE

AR BN, AEARFLRERE A, SZEEERERAEEEN . ERENNIRBEZWELNTL, ITEEXS

RMIANGERRKRBEVMARFHIANEREEEEMN.

BAME R 4AFARENHERE

EHFERTIAENTARERESRECHAREN, AEAMXBNRERE SAMHNEXSRTRENERARREIEBRRE

—¥ FNEEER. EMER. ARATEGESARTREFAREN, TXEZENTEE:

- RONERFAREETRM S EHE

- BEEABERAE MEMHNELASFTALEHRIANRARANETAAS . 23 FSHRAH LS HEFEHBIFORX.

- BERARTERSAMSEAREXRNEFIERER B THESAETAEMIER THRASHE LT,
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- BEEARTEBE~IHTHEMESEE.

- RANEMREAMSEESBIZEMATHARTRIER.

- MREFINMESORE —MERA S ZMRR T ZEFERRANES,

ERMAFREERARE, FTRESNEHFHNHRERME, RS2 TEMIRFHEFMEK.

ATRIEMITENAFER. £FERRANENRA

ERAREZEENNITHEMERRROITENSRIELEER. ARABTHTHEEIEDT, R L ZmE L FEBEHR
G RIEME IR M X BEFRN, MERNEFRIUER. DIV REH. BEFRUEEE. ZELFRTRYEOMEMBAMREER
I, WARERIN S RBBRRE. AEFAGEERAIMIBEHFITDNTHEZLZFEFSEAMEMBEOREEZ @YX

R, REFAEHNZLELFIERETIHETON, FFRER AR EST, FEHARUTFEHER.

FEALSRUTNMERKBERN. BEARERNES THEFRNEENE. ARANZHERETFINEERTRELENE

AERRETRREFENIAFLZCESNTEESR. AEANGEHHET TRBERONE, AKAFEANEEINES T

Hbipsz M, RERAMMRA 12D BIMEERRE (F—HR) SN ENESHMBERREL (E-MBREE=NR)iTE

BEROMEEZ. LRAMRERREIRBIITN—RI TN E R ENTHEBERMNESH.

TREE Ak RS O 88 AL S R TAE ARANT W, THUSREFHANTPERARENOMNST RS TRXAEEL
BRUTESHNER, T221FE, ARAZEE T ARANENEFTER GoFEBRASEESRENEFRREBHNT N, X
RMATHRRETRE TN Edr, BT A HEE MR AN E N & 7 218 (GDP) B =Rt R K R A2022F fy h #H1E R T HUl
SEEE H4.6%-5.9%.

BEROEBEFIEFLFHTIE10%, AEFAT20214E12831 BIHEMREAE XA L LA FBIL5%.
BREBERNERZTZMEH

BENEZRRUAMTHERT Az —. REFNBELHRNERZMI0%. MEABLANERLD10%: HEREENBELHNESR
M10%, MEABEHRER D 10%, AEEATF2021F128 31 BITRBERE RO LN LLHIFEILE%.,
BEZMBRENERIERA RIS RN

AEAEGINHAN KT SEREEARERBXNRXREHASRAN, HEZER-—ENHAXRFIEME REASREKNR
ERNIE,

(5) AE ISR H A5 A B R HE TE R & K 45 A KUB i OO

THRFNFEERR, RRERNERANESMNT.

AREH AT

| 20214128310 20204128310 2021412310 2020%12A31H
FRHNIE
B HRBITRI 92,562 131,351 92,008 130,837
R E b SR 195,044 341,853 221,139 364,480
HFE RS 371,086 106,536 371,086 106,536
PTESRE > 16,978 37,737 16,901 37,455
INEESRE™ 495,214 588,312 488,334 581,625
RINGEFR ALK 12,791,666 12,640,362 12,640,761 12,513,295
RHMERA~ 829,888 914,493 819,892 899,465
AR 1,146,917 1,273,000 1,145,265 1,268,683
H b RN 766,562 660,106 746,090 639,350
Hith 6,097 10,100 3,798 4,823
N 16,712,014 16,703,850 16,545,274 16,546,549
FIMNRE
BRI 3,515,207 3,454,884 3,528,207 3,471,883
FFHAREH 9,262 17,526 15,394 23,807
RITRFILCE 8,700 9,606 8,700 9,606
FHERIE 3,579 6,742 3,579 6,742
NG 3,536,748 3,488,758 3,555,880 3,512,038
Bit 20,248,762 20,192,608 20,101,154 20,058,587

ERHHIFIFT F021FR20205F 128310, ARARATERTHERTOR MRS, 0% B EFFFRRIML L
ERRAHBNEARRRO. HFAF AERAE, LR EARR KO ET R QHERKE BT,
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AERAXHMRAMBERNERFEX 2D "HMAR". " FRE" M SRR, ERAE" EERANERRRKARE, BLA5E
FREEREMEFEMENEARENZE, " FRE EERXABFSELERIRE, EIMERNHEEES T —
TITHEARKSBAMEM, SRR IEERABSEEHNTRREAE, AMEETIMEZTNRNECHITESEEEY,

BARKEK,

TEF, FEE T

MANBETEEEN SR TAREFLTRERREINEITET . RIEFHIEA, E-—MBERARI2PAMBERRE. £

EE=MBRARENFEHABMMAERRE.

aozr 127301 C mwm sTem mzem w0
ERER

AREH

&R 11,892,965 = = 11,892,965
AR = 1,197,129 = 1,197,129
S - - 129,495 129,495
At 11,892,965 1,197,129 129,495 13,219,589
e ERREES (192,457) (229,513) (81,928) (503,898)
N 11,700,508 967,616 47 567 12,715,691
T

RS 11,746,075 = = 11,746,075
AR - 1,174,169 = 1,174,169
S - - 127,265 127,265
At 11,746,075 1,174,169 127,265 13,047,509
W ERREES (185,832) (215,214) (80,742) (481,788)
#ER 11,560,243 958,955 46,523 12,565,721
20205 12H31H F—NE EME E=ME &it
ERER

AREH

RS 11,570,166 - - 11,570,166
AR B - 1,322,929 E 1,322,929
S - - 115,366 115,366
At 11,570,166 1,322,929 115,366 13,008,461
B ERREES (124,211) (244,654) (72,393) (441,258)
P ) 11,445,955 1,078,275 42,973 12,567,203
T

MRS 11,459,784 - - 11,459,784
AR - 1,289,661 - 1,289,661
S - - 112,544 112,544
&It 11,459,784 1,289,661 112,544 12,861,989
B ERAREEE (121,023) (228,974) (71,003) (421,000)
N 11,338,761 1,060,687 41,541 12,440,989
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FRIR R

wxgrRASIE L #-WR #SRR ®=me A
ER%ER
ZAEH
KRB 1,151,761 = = 1,151,761
RS - - - -
s - - 2,160 2,160
&it 1,151,761 = 2,160 1,153,921
B ERREES (5,214) = (1,790) (7,004)
#ER 1,146,547 - 370 1,146,917
AT
i 1,150,332 - - 1,150,332
2oy - - - -
S - - 355 355
&it 1,150,332 = 355 1,150,687
B ERREES (6,191) - (231) (5,422)
HER 1,145,141 = 124 1,145,265

z0FARIE #-BB ®THR ®=mR &t
ERER
&M
L9 1,277,550 - - 1,277,550
RS - 13 - 13
S8 - - 3,532 3,532
&it 1,277,550 13 3,532 1,281,095
W ERREREE (5,216) (©) (2,874) (8,095)
N 1,272,334 8 658 1,273,000
AT
KRB 1,273,718 - - 1,273,718
RS - - - -
=R - - 358 358
&it 1,273,718 - 358 1,274,076
B ERAREAES (5,162) - (231) (5,393)
B 1,268,556 - 127 1,268,683

HAb A &

wngrRASIE L #-HBR #SRR ®EmR A
ERE%
ZAEH
RRLBS 766,460 = = 766,460
B - - - -
= R = = 102 102
&it 766,460 = 102 766,562
ERRELES (117) = (1,034) (1,151)
AT
KBS 746,090 = = 746,090
RS - - - -
S8 - - - -
A1t 746,090 = = 746,090
ERREE® (76) = = (76)
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=R%ER
IR
R 658,928 - - 658,928
R B - - - -
= R - - 1,178 1,178
&1t 658,928 - 1,178 660,106
ERREE® (74) - (726) (800)
AT
TERBE 639,350 - - 639,350
R B - - - -
= KU - - - _
&it 639,350 - - 639,350
ERREES (48) - (15) (63)
fETERIE

ERE%R

AN EE ]

RS 3,414,777 = . 3,414,777
RS - 121,727 = 121,727
= KB - - 244 244
&1t 3,414,777 121,727 244 3,536,748
1T

R XUBS 3,434,153 - - 3,434,153
RS - 121,727 - 121,727
= KU - - = =
&3t 3,434,153 121,727 = 3,555,880

ERER

AEH

R 3,376,927 - - 3,376,927
KB - 109,564 - 109,564
= KB - - 2,267 2,267
&it 3,376,927 109,564 2,267 3,488,758
AT

RR B 3,400,451 - - 3,400,451
RS - 109,564 - 109,564
= RS - - 2,023 2,023
&it 3,400,451 109,564 2,023 3,512,038

EHER

ZEH

1R 4,807 - - 4,807
eyl - 12,930 = 12,930
= X - = 244 244
&t 4,807 12,930 244 17,981
&1T

1R XUBE 4,964 = - 4,964
RS - 12,930 = 12,930
= MU - - - -
&1t 4,964 12,930 = 17,894
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ER%E%R

&M

RRES 3,486 - - 3,486

RS - 12,564 - 12,564

SR - - 550 550

&t 3,486 12,564 550 16,600

T

R 3,611 - - 3,611

R s - 12,564 - 12,564

= Rk - - 304 304

&t 3,611 12,564 304 16,479
ER A E At S RIER

AEABVEEEREEARENSRASNENERS, BARRTHMBRL, AEHANEMEEERRATRRXLESER
M RENER. EREGARENSRAT MEABRREEERATMFENERKNEITNOT.

A EEH

BEREEHBEN R

R GERR R 129,854 (81,928) 47,926 60,253
AR H 2,160 (1,790) 370 =
HtbFAURE 102 (1,034) 102 =
A 132,116 (84,752) 48,398 60,253
AT

BREGERRBERN S

RILEFRFELR 127,620 (80,742) 46,878 60,253
R H 355 (231) 124 -
S 127,975 (80,973) 47,002 60,253
A EEH]

BREERRERNEE

KRR 115,628 (72,393) 43,235 65,638
AR H 3,532 (2,874) 658 -
HpHENIE R 1,178 (726) 1,178 -
R 120,338 (75,993) 45,071 65,638
AT

BREGERRBERNES

RILEFRFELR 112,800 (71,003) 41,797 65,638
R 358 (231) 127 -
HAbFAR R - (15) - -
N 113,158 (71,249) 41,924 65,638

LFRFEAM A ANESH, NEMERNET - EXMRRMERNERREEH A AR,
T2021F12R31 0, ARARKTHERNAERBEANERRESERN,
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(7) RIEERFIETK
RERFMBER 2GS RAAEHREERT A HELNT

AREEH
e amsE sEME A
2021412H31H
I EN 411,358 1,002,629 1,904,140 3,318,127
RIE TR 102,432 222,029 664,318 988,779
ARG 77,593 157,008 1,482,030 1,716,631
ilEN 15,142 53,730 7,170,089 7,238,961
&it 606,525 1,435,396 11,220,577 13,262,498
20204128310
(B EN 696,201 850,506 1,843,022 3,389,729
RIEGEK 117,532 221,455 590,933 929,920
AT 69,370 134,830 1,379,521 1,583,721
e 20,188 44,281 7,082,085 7,146,554
&it 903,291 1,251,072 10,895,561 13,049,924

T

2021412H31H

B 411,068 1,005,221 1,931,651 3,347,940
FRAE 523K 102,431 222,252 661,934 986,617
HEFR BT 25,375 46,037 1,446,698 1,518,110
BB TR 14,967 53,444 7,169,340 7,237,751
&it 553,841 1,326,954 11,209,623 13,090,418
20204 12H31H

(el EN 698,098 852,123 1,867,122 3,417,343
RIETTRK 117,522 221,771 589,316 928,609
AR 33,596 44,948 1,333,393 1,411,937
BARGER 20,012 43,899 7,081,652 7,145,563
&it 869,228 1,162,741 10,871,483 12,903,452

RHRRAMERZEFHTLDHERNT .

AEH 2021412831H 20204£12H31H
L % am %
P X g 2,924,303 22 3,092,802 24
18 B3 far 2,451,616 18 2,695,315 21
B R EKAE =R 1,289,544 10 1,086,599 8
KF) RERPFA IR HEE IR 1,236,152 9 1,034,051 8
Wi AR 956,820 7 737,599 6
FRERIZHr 945,765 7 901,978 7
W 833,559 6 781,640 6
AR AT 566,233 4 692,729 5
HAthiz 392,847 3 329,675 3
RE A 310,443 2 304,316 2
BB 253,652 2 189,082 1
ot 212,995 2 429,914 3
BEMEMER RS L 83,118 1 70,094 1
HAth 805,451 7 704,130 5

ait 13,262,498 100 13,049,924 100
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T 20214£12H31H 20204128318
e
X B0E 2,923,863 22 3,091,711 24
RS R 2,451,146 19 2,673,460 21
B SRR E TN 1,256,685 10 1,060,801 8
KF, BRERP RN IR IR 1,233,323 9 986,846 8
WA AR 930,029 7 732,949 6
FREIZH AL 887,146 7 890,920 7
g 831,115 6 757,810 6
Al AT 566,211 4 692,729 5
Hithizi 384,705 3 312,931 2
KE A 310,443 2 303,793 2
HE 253,652 2 189,082 1
a2 197,965 2 455,269 4
BEMEMESLHRS L 82,716 1 69,749 1
Hith 781,419 6 685,402 5
&it 13,090,418 100 12,903,452 100

~

EATTRMER

ERBRHRREBEEIRAAMSERABUNB LA ZBERRAERERNERLT, AEAMATEERAETHEERTEANRE
HERERENERZHMERARTERSETFTRIRM B, XEEEHRERZFEMHER. F20214£128318, A& H
MAFTEARR ST AARMTA78.70127T (20205FE12F31H . ARM237.89127T).

(8) BRI
TRIRT ZEARATEAREREREMER T 5 TR IATHERITRVENERTRIEER.

&M

BUF R A BUF NSRS 98,097 817 10 = 1,194,808 - 1,293,732
SRAE RS 64,408 987 4,846 3,885 - - 74,126
NEEE 182,518 4,269 - 2,759 = 2,757 192,303
H RIS 247 128 - - = = 375
B EE) 592,210 = 13,891 10,715 = = 616,816
TR ITHEM & = = - - - 4,542 4,542
FHRIT R E A = = = - - 960 960
BEEET = = - - - 407 407
&it 937,480 6,201 18,747 17,359 1,194,808 8,666 2,183,261
B R AR EES 42,468 - 2,104 - 1,307,063 - 1,351,635
SRYEES 52,457 966 21,529 2,514 - - 77,466
NERE 213,954 5,064 - 4,759 - 2,821 226,598
=S 217 229 - - - 16 462
E 7 (1) 521,222 9,498 34,394 - - 148 565,262
T RITRIER Y = & - - - - - 9,071 9,071
FEHH R At - - - - - 2,426 2,426
g - - - - - 1,466 1,466

&it 830,318 15,757 58,027 7,273 1,307,063 15,948 2,234,386
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T

B BOEBUR YA 625 98,097 817 10 - 1,189,858 - 1,288,782
SR G 63,059 = 4,656 2,531 = - 70,246
NEFFH 173,255 410 = 1,187 = = 174,852
= XIS - 51 - - - 378 429
A FE) 592,210 - 13,891 10,715 = = 616,816
R B - - - - - 16 16
&it 926,621 1,278 18,557 14,433 1,189,858 394 2,151,141

B R AR EES 42,302 - 2,104 - 1,301,930 - 1,346,336
SR B 51,320 - 21,529 391 - - 73,240
NERSE 204,763 712 - 2,343 - 99 207,917
RIS - 52 - - - 782 834
EFE1) 521,223 9,498 34,394 - - - 565,115
REEEITR - - - - - 1,046 1,046
&it 819,608 10,262 58,027 2,734 1,301,930 1,927 2,194,488

(1) BTFETAFESFRELFEEARE.

(2) RTRBFEABMTNMBESFNETARRTEBFNEEBANME, MR, PEARRT CEASMBRMERT.
(8) RIFEHAMBNMRA BFRER A SIRER. BEMRES . AFEEIT Y. LRTRAEY >R MNELITUE.

(9) EMAFRE LS

R HABER DN E b SR H 7~

‘
i
=]

20214£12H31H

B RBITRI 92,562 - - 92,562
FIE AL R - 195,044 = 195,044
HAE - 371,086 - 371,086
[ 5,417 9,377 2,184 16,978
ENEBESRE ™ - 494,557 657 495,214
R PHSRE = 177,260 239,334 413,294 829,888
AR H 1,054,245 513 92,159 1,146,917
H IR HE 227,122 455,944 83,496 766,562
Hith & raE ™ 2,102 1,495 2,500 6,097
&1t 1,558,708 1,767,350 594,290 3,920,348
2020&12H31H

B RBITHRIM 131,351 - - 131,351
FFHUE b FR I - 341,853 - 341,853
HeHEE - 106,536 - 106,536
PTHESRE > 15,774 18,136 3,827 37,737
ENBEERA > - 586,273 2,039 588,312
TGS 199,313 263,847 451,333 914,493
BRI 1,175,433 636 96,931 1,273,000
HA AR E 127,302 386,651 146,153 660,106
Hit &A™ 1,937 2,007 6,156 10,100

ait 1,651,110

—_

,705,939 706,439 4,063,488




110

ERF%4RTT CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

20214£12H31H

B RBITHRI 92,008 - - 92,008
FRE LRI - 221,139 = 221,139
HHAS - 371,086 - 371,086
TTHESRmAS 5,417 9,300 2,184 16,901
ENERE ST~ - 488,334 - 488,334
oSBT 177,200 232,523 410,169 819,892
R B 1,054,245 513 90,507 1,145,265
HAbGRAUR 222,232 454,405 69,453 746,090
Hih &A™ 2,102 1,176 520 3,798
&it 1,553,204 1,778,476 572,833 3,904,513
2020412H31H

BB RBITRI 130,837 - - 130,837
FRUE b FRIRT - 364,480 - 364,480
HEES - 106,536 - 106,536
PTEERE ™ 15,774 17,854 3,827 37,455
INEBEE SR - 581,625 - 581,625
R PSRBT 14,516 253,327 631,622 899,465
BRI H 1,175,433 616 92,634 1,268,683
H AR 120,123 385,194 134,033 639,350
Hit &R~ 1,937 1,275 1,611 4,823
&it 1,458,620 1,710,907 863,727 4,033,254

3. mIARE

THRERERTHNE (FIE CE RENEME RN AT mERTERANRMESEEREORGE, AEFARE IR
NIRRT EARETKESZAKENTIR CERE,

AEATHREEENERIBIBRTARMNT AN EIRER, TR CERITE FEENNEEHNZZMEZZ LSS
TR, RN ESEAERATEZEER, ST AR TSR T,

FEARBEZSRAMBZASERNRERIAXEETHNE. NEEETKANSEEEATZRE B3 EHETEI
FHANEEERE. BREMTHNENEREE.

325 HE S5 RITIKE R R 5

AEFARBNTHNE T BEFETIHWESRITWES,

XHWERIEAXZ BRI AEMBIMEANERFEFNTUNEAZ SNSRI ANFRLT. RTKERENEZH B O
B RAMNTERUANZZWENRABERLLEFHA.

R ZMKEMRITHERN TN AR EEBML SR RBAES ANRITVEBZAHTEENER. Hd . NEEERADEE
OTHRE. FREAEERSXHUESHTHRE: L ESERBI2ATHES AREEREFAE], HhFMmIXREME
PSR R BB IR T HA 4 4R AT A R RS AU R e IR R .

TIARE T B RAMEE S E

THREBERFERE. HEEMRE. AMDT. RODHT. GUEMERF TR TRE,

MR ZME, AEEAR A ORFUZS . EIRRIIES . SUBHERFEHEF R &R RERR.
AEAZEETHRRHERNEE T WEERELZEFRFTRERXRA. N EEMHTRHMWESKTHNEE O IR T
B hEfRE.

SRITIK

MEETKE, AT TERECERRE  FIRNE ARSI, 2EEETHRERR. Ef, REEERBITEEG. A0
WEAXEAREERTKAASRERRITEIER, LS ERBEMBIFHRO . GUBEDT. MO F 77 AT F KBS FC K KB

RERIRT R

B R A RS AT R PBS A B M AT AL, L 3(N) MR MBS R 3(2) TR M ( BFERTKENZ ZHKE)
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(1) FIRRE
BEKERRRGBISFIRKT BRENSBERE RN ED SHRAKSEARRNSFNEESREONR.

AEAGETPEXRMBXAETLSENIIENELFEEMARRTEDERAZMW. FEARBRTIARTEAEF R EL T #H
E.AFEMIMRETLRUE THERKFEKE, —KRih 5. B—H# BRGRAESE NG AGNTIRRE R,

ROMBFRXNEEREFTEMNRBTEFNERNARITINHNEZANEENTN, SEEARODT. KA. SFSRANE
WEF BIEHARASAREMEN AR ZFETRH#TRTMEN KRG ER. X HWE O KRG FZ BT SR RRH
REURMEN T DMK A 2T AR S o mHTER.

EITEMERNXNETE, ARAZHITENREENRO . APFHER, WEEFTRFRES (BMER) TN RBRATE
TEX TR LR G

EEMRODH
ZERMNEXEENAMIHAEFREENL ARARTTESHA ™ R SR O HRF R R A 25 UKE N ET RN T

AEH

2021412H31H

ERETT

& R A7 HRRITHRIM 85,786 - - - - 6,779 92,565
FHE L FRI 132,486 43,223 - - - 19,335 195,044
HERE 162,345 169,818 38,338 = = 585 371,086
PTESRE ™ = = = - - 16,978 16,978
ENBE SRR = 494,383 = = = = 831 495,214
R 4,435,990 7,265,345 239,544 125,226 670,945 54,616 12,791,666
X5 SR 279,338 4,461 14,949 1,829 81 705,308 1,005,966
AR # 7,868 205,071 630,649 196,861 90,210 16,258 1,146,917
H AR 349,273 157,785 199,062 41,344 14,009 5,089 766,562
Hhias TRE/RE = = - - - 6,060 6,060
HAth 385 44 19 - - 5,649 6,097
SR~ AT 5,947,854 7,845,747 1,122,561 365,260 775,245 837,488 16,894,155
SRR

& Mk R E S BRATLAG 7 BRI 524,248 1,859,955 - - - 11,311 2,395,514
1) BT O HL th € BRANLAG B3R 185,569 211,831 2,291 40,283 7,304 1,683 448,961
N 65,070 1,739 1,839 403 593 36 69,680
ZH ML R0 - - - - - 2,085 2,085
PTES AR = = - - - 9,359 9,359
SE 1B & R =K 20,940 248 = = = 17 21,205
R UL 7R 978,000 81,422 8,216 2,837 2,951 5,770 1,079,196
ERTREIESH 804,750 1,408,085 4,578,240 3,823,058 642,555 223,689 11,480,377
Hith 124 501 726 - - 5,306 6,657
EMABMATT 2,578,701 3,563,781 4,591,312 3,866,581 653,403 259,256 15,513,034

FEEFHFEMNHRO ST 3,369,153 4281966  (3,468,751)  (3,501,321) 121,842 578,232 1,381,121
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RERNEXEENBEMIHEFREEN X ARASNERMA ™ KSR OGN X R M A 26 UKE N ET =0T -

AEH

3MAMA 3E124A 1ZE54 5Z 104 104 £ EER &it
2020412H31H
ERE:
Me K AF M H RBITHRIN 127,762 - - - - 3,592 131,354
FFRUE b FR IR 156,761 158,772 126 - - 26,194 341,853
FHRE 99,684 6,792 - - - 60 106,536
TTHESmAS~ - - - - - 37,737 37,737
ZNBELRA~ 587,394 265 - - - 653 588,312
R 5,225,663 4,564,712 375,742 450,321 1,980,561 43,363 12,640,362
THHERE 145,342 81,660 57,403 12,540 81 758,677 1,055,703
AR 24,230 139,180 705,620 292,535 92,321 19,114 1,273,000
HAhRAURH 279,971 157,869 141,264 73,511 2,462 5,029 660,106
Hihilzs TRER - - - - - 4,810 4,810
Hitb 1,069 33 - - - 8,998 10,100
SRA~AIT 6,647,876 5,109,283 1,280,155 828,907 2,075,425 908,227 16,849,873
AN
5 b & ELAth S B AT 7 BRI 715,714 2,142,346 100 - - 21,112 2,879,272
BB RS R EER 196,180 295,126 3,720 913 - 3,113 499,052
HARE 85,861 6,834 - - - 169 92,864
X5 SR AR - - - - - 2,051 2,051
PTTE SR AR - - - - - 26,843 26,843
Sz B 4 Rl 7 = 5K 124,615 8 - - - 102 124,725
R I 47 3K 1,063,736 80,886 12,850 1,169 5,793 3,104 1,167,538
ERfTREIES 1,009,402 1,219,377 4,137,682 3,510,988 633,675 210,968 10,722,092
Hith 177 67 77 21 - 22,398 22,740
SR GRATT 3,195,685 3,744,644 4,154,429 3,513,091 639,468 289,860 15,537,177
FEEFHEMERD AT 3,452,191 1,364,639  (2,874,274) (2,684,184) 1,435,957 618,367 1,312,696

RERMNXEENMEHMIHETREED K ARASMERE ™ RS/ AHEHNE XA 26 UKENES TN T

AT

20214£12H31H

ERE:

M e K AF M HRBITHRIN 85,232 = = = = 6,779 92,011
FRUE b FRIRT 166,789 35,025 = = = 19,325 221,139
/RS 162,345 169,818 38,338 = = 585 371,086
ot - - - - - 16,901 16,901
ENBEESRE™ 488,162 - - - - 172 488,334
BRI 4,288,093 7,263,888 239,246 124,896 670,946 53,692 12,640,761
ZHHEERE 136,073 48,554 57,622 12,167 2,917 582,351 839,684
FERR A 7,821 204,597 630,058 196,657 90,209 15,923 1,145,265
HAGRARH 348,166 157,154 186,222 36,657 13,341 4,550 746,090
Hthiidm TREER - - - - - 2,055 2,055
HAth = = - - - 3,798 3,798
SRA~AIT 5,682,681 7,879,036 1,151,486 370,377 777,413 706,131 16,567,124
AR

Bk K H fth < Bh AL A9 77 AR 524,351 1,859,955 = = = 11,311 2,395,617
= BUS R H fth @ R ALA (K 82,845 119,463 2,853 10,212 = 655 216,028
HANAS 51,192 1,739 1,839 403 593 24 55,790
PR 3 Bk = = - - - 8,801 8,801
32 B 1 € Rl 7 7= 5K 3,150 - - - - 2 3,152
R U 73K 1,074,562 94,357 8,216 2,837 2,951 5,770 1,188,693
ERTHREIES 797,845 1,392,004 4,551,943 3,825,643 642,555 223,382 11,433,372
Hith - - - - - 5,061 5,061
SR GATT 2,533,945 3,467,518 4,564,851 3,839,095 646,099 255,006 15,306,514

FEREHEMHEAETT 3,148,736 4411518  (3,413,365)  (3,468,718) 131,314 451,125 1,260,610
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ZERMNXEENAMIHAEFREENL ARASTNESHA ™ R SR O HEF R R A 25 UKE N ET RN T

AT

3MARK  3E129A 1ZE545 5Z 104 105 E E£ER &it
2020412H31H
BRI
W4 R AFH R R ITER IR 127,248 - - - - 3,592 130,840
FFRUE b FR I 186,794 151,575 - - - 26,111 364,480
HHES 99,684 6,792 - - - 60 106,536
BT S RUA - - - - - 37,455 37,455
T NIRE SRR = 581,460 - - - - 165 581,625
R GFR AR 5,152,543 4,519,759 358,372 373,740 2,066,413 42,468 12,513,295
THM LA 140,342 77,933 56,143 8,337 - 622,556 905,311
AR 23,939 138,165 703,287 292,338 92,321 18,633 1,268,683
HABGRARHE 279,627 156,075 129,145 68,348 1,704 4,451 639,350
HAam TRER - - - - - 1,516 1,516
Hith - - - - - 4,823 4,823
EBMA~ AT 6,591,637 5,050,299 1,246,947 742,763 2,160,438 761,830 16,553,914
SRR
Bk & E At & R AL F R 715,714 2,143,346 100 - - 21,112 2,880,272
1) BT 0 HL & BRATLAG A 5K 113,523 176,988 718 - - 1,988 293,217
HARE 83,865 6,834 - - - 163 90,862
FTHE SRR - - - - - 25,473 25,473
S B 1 £ 8 R 5K 107,100 - - - - 74 107,174
R UL 775K 1,151,452 94,084 12,850 1,169 5,793 3,104 1,268,452
ERTHREIES 1,006,278 1,197,720 4,102,958 3,510,212 633,675 210,504 10,661,347
HAth - - - - - 3,343 3,343
SRABMAETT 3,177,932 3,618,972 4,116,626 3,511,381 639,468 265,761 15,330,140
MEEHENGRAST 3,413,705 1,431,327  (2,869,679) (2,768,618) 1,520,970 496,069 1,223,774

FRF AR E MRS s A SUR MDA
TRIRTHEBRBUEEHERNFTEARTEIONERNERLT, BT RERAEANERAR~S[

L1R

BEVEM . R

B
k12N A AR BRI R E bR &R T/~ £ A B AR AT 00, Z A RIRFTE AR AT R DARRIEE R, KRR LR K
BT E TR LA TAER.

KEH 20214 20204

KEFRRTY | meskA RsakE | ResEN  Rbsaks
FF1000 & 45,537 (11,605) 35,324 (9,274)
TH100M &S (45,537) 12,342 (35,324) 10,230
1T

REFEAEL N

EF100ME & 44,095 (10,880) 35,237 (8,644)
TH100MNE 5 (44,095) 11,598 (35,237) 9,003

X BFRANHF IRIE—EFE R ARFE N RR—FEAF TR EENHSBA >~ R SR G~ £ AT 2 0FEA R
20, ZOMTBRERARBENERASRARNEMREAE. REFFTH. BARR R GRHFRITEENHANERLEEEA.

WEMGERENEMEEETE-EFNRTHNNPRFENABENRALETELE LA ANERHHNZ W,
FEANAZBEHFREFRAFANESEARNERNEEENBER, AL EAFWIRSXEEATEER. A, LRFIRE
AR RZENGIE, BRES DI REERRAEATABRFIRRERR T, A ERATMEME SR ENEITE. BiZ
TR R E R R ARF 2 MBS o) 8E R AN A RS B A
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(2) SCEREE
RERFFIBINTICR B~ ERPCRAR  ZREEZmE TS RAMASRE.

AEANKHALESEART LS, WiMEET. Ko, BoMEMNFIT LS, KREANLCENEETEEFEET. XERAE
FRATCELTETAEN B ETHROFTH N, 2021EEF, ARTXNETCEFABEARTO0.149270/13£ 58 (2020FEEABEART
0.45137t/1%7T) .,

AEFATBEBISMNOHMO OCRGREMED TR K E (EaR)EFERT X RUNRITEENT W, FRUTEBL EHFER >R
REMEMENAZHE T RETLRNGER.

AEAEDHCEREHADE, MERFTASHNARTEARTKEANEITMOT

IR EEH]

20214£12H31H

EREE

N& RIFHFRBITHIM 85,719 6,560 286 6,846 92,565
FRE LRI 82,279 87,799 24,966 112,765 195,044
FEAS 289,645 80,719 722 81,441 371,086
TTHESRmAS 13,342 2,196 1,440 3,636 16,978
EINBESRA~ 495,214 - - - 495,214
R FRFELR 11,658,348 961,579 171,739 1,133,318 12,791,666
RHMERMA> 974,499 30,785 682 31,467 1,005,966
AR 7 1,056,299 90,618 - 90,618 1,146,917
HAb AR H 704,456 60,737 1,369 62,106 766,562
Hithilzs TRERE 2,055 - 4,005 4,005 6,060
Hit 4,002 1,805 290 2,095 6,097
ERMA~ G 15,365,858 1,322,798 205,499 1,528,297 16,894,155
EREGUR:

Bk % H At £ m AL 7RI 2,343,074 43,896 8,544 52,440 2,395,514
= BUS A H fth S R fE K 225,508 221,297 2,156 223,453 448,961
HARS 8,503 53,537 7,640 61,177 69,680
RHMHEmMNEH 2,084 1 - 1 2,085
PTE SR AR 6,427 2,665 267 2,932 9,359
S B SRR 5K 21,205 = = = 21,205
Ul ec2 907,856 126,314 45,026 171,340 1,079,196
ERTESIES 11,281,871 142,958 55,548 198,506 11,480,377
HAth 4,153 2,030 474 2,504 6,657
SRAMEIT 14,800,681 592,698 119,655 712,353 15,513,034
RN B L% 565,177 730,100 85,844 815,944 1,381,121
CELTETR (AR/ZXEE) 299,286 (204,259) (57,908) (262,165) 37,121

FHRIE 3,314,874 199,879 21,995 221,874 3,536,748
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&R

AR EnHART HttmiTART smFART/NT &it
2020&12H31H
SRR
& R A7 H RRITHRIM 127,728 3,626 - 3,626 131,354
FRUE L FR IR 237,505 79,859 24,489 104,348 341,853
HE#Ee 62,087 36,262 8,187 44,449 106,536
LT SRVA 31,570 3,827 2,340 6,167 37,737
ENBREESRA = 588,312 - - - 588,312
R GEER AR 11,350,895 1,104,430 185,037 1,289,467 12,640,362
TP MERAE = 1,040,834 13,852 1,017 14,869 1,055,703
FAIR R 1,179,534 93,466 - 93,466 1,273,000
HA G 556,607 90,620 12,879 103,499 660,106
Ha i TRERA 1,516 - 3,294 3,294 4,810
Hits 7,618 2,214 268 2,482 10,100
SRR~ AT 15,184,206 1,428,156 237,511 1,665,667 16,849,873
ERIfR:
Bk R H At 4 R LM FF R T 2,666,954 196,208 16,110 212,318 2,879,272
=) BUR A1 H fth & R AL 3K 185,773 304,794 8,485 313,279 499,052
WARS 64,889 13,973 14,002 27,975 92,864
7L et kv 2,050 1 - 1 2,051
LT SRR 21,598 4,926 319 5,245 26,843
S B 4 R R K 124,725 - - - 124,725
W 7F 58 957,551 145,061 64,926 209,987 1,167,538
ERITREIUES 10,502,630 132,048 87,414 219,462 10,722,092
Hit 22,210 169 361 530 22,740
ERAGRATT 14,548,380 797,180 191,617 988,797 15,537,177
FRAINE LT5H 635,826 630,976 45,894 676,870 1,312,696
CELETR (SER/BXE]) 162,399 (79,380) (32,862) (112,242) 50,157
(B 37 3,231,391 222,557 34,810 257,367 3,488,758

T

20214£12H31H

ERER:

N & RAFHHRBITHRI 85,232 6,493 286 6,779 92,011
FE W FR I 134,589 61,737 24,813 86,550 221,139
HHEES 289,645 80,719 722 81,441 371,086
LT SRR 13,342 2,120 1,439 3,559 16,901
ENBRESRE = 488,334 - = = 488,334
R R 11,514,951 954,114 171,696 1,125,810 12,640,761
TR SR 839,684 - - - 839,684
IR R 1,054,881 90,384 - 90,384 1,145,265
HARARH 683,984 60,737 1,369 62,106 746,090
Hibhilz TRER 2,055 - - - 2,055
Htb 3,438 136 224 360 3,798
SRA~AI 15,110,135 1,256,440 200,549 1,456,989 16,567,124
ERfR:

& Mk R H fth & BATLAD F BRI 2,343,177 43,896 8,544 52,440 2,395,617
1) AT RO & B A4 B K 49,456 164,417 2,155 166,572 216,028
WARE - 48,150 7,640 55,790 55,790
EoTRe St Bk 6,427 2,107 267 2,374 8,801
52 B 0 R 7= K 3,152 = = = 3,152
R W 73K 992,328 148,199 48,166 196,365 1,188,693
ERITESIES 11,279,711 100,046 53,615 153,661 11,433,372
Hth 3,374 1,304 383 1,687 5,061
k= n 14,677,625 508,119 120,770 628,889 15,306,514
RN A L% 432,510 748,321 79,779 828,100 1,260,610
CEGETR (AR/BXEH) 299,286 (236,584) (57,906) (294,490) 4,796
5 R 3,327,631 206,254 21,995 228,249 3,555,880
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AT

AR ETMART Httm#HwART SIHFART N &it
2020412H31H
ERBR:
M4 K17 R FTERIR 127,248 3,592 - 3,592 130,840
FRUE L FR IR 294,785 45,781 23,914 69,695 364,480
HHES 62,087 36,262 8,187 44,449 106,536
ETE SRR 31,570 3,545 2,340 5,885 37,455
ENEESRT = 581,625 - - - 581,625
R GER AN IR 11,228,429 1,100,036 184,830 1,284,866 12,513,295
XHUERE= 905,311 - - - 905,311
AR 1,176,176 92,507 - 92,507 1,268,683
HAb AR H 535,851 90,620 12,879 103,499 639,350
Hihizs TEERE 1,516 - - - 1,516
Hith 4,258 302 263 565 4,823
SRUA G 14,948,856 1,372,645 232,413 1,605,058 16,553,914
SRR
Bk B H At 4 e AL AR IR 2,667,954 196,208 16,110 212,318 2,880,272
1) BT 7O H Ath & BR AL 4G fE 3R 41,022 245,518 6,677 252,195 293,217
HANAS 63,083 13,777 14,002 27,779 90,862
R 5 m AR - - - - -
LTTHEEmM AR 21,598 3,556 319 3,875 25,473
SE B € R 7 5K 107,174 - - - 107,174
R I 17 3K 1,040,760 161,252 66,440 227,692 1,268,452
ERTREIUES 10,490,764 89,230 81,353 170,583 10,661,347
Hits 2,870 163 310 473 3,343
RAKET 14,435,225 709,704 185,211 894,915 15,330,140
RAWE L5 513,631 662,941 47,202 710,143 1,023,774
CELFETR (FR/EXEM) 162,399 (120,256) (32,862) (153,118) 9,281
ERRIE 3,248,147 229,081 34,810 263,891 3,512,038

TRINTFTAERARATHEEMCREHANETEITHRSTHTARTILRBRNEHIBHNERLT, IHETHR~S5 R

BRSO R EH AT TRS T I BRI AE R E

oM, ERICEREHNAEARATHHMBGERGEFMAERK,

R EEH AT
e mes aek s
ETHBARTICEED
EFH1% 5,263 5,627 5117 5,427
TH1% (5,263) (5,527) (5,117) (5,427)

DACERBH R FINZ N AEAZAECHREIESR HFREENTESE.

- AFABRERAEAREEAERTATHANEZL,
- CERESMNEFATARIEM,
- CERRHINTHNERIFZE.

. mENERUEE

RAMENERIEARARBEEEN. ELERNUSERARTRERS U N A= B RE AR AGRS R, R ERE
TRRIERTEBTEERNA . FRANXS URTEZBRERHEIRASHER.

AEARY—BERNMERBRNRR, @FNRKEHRAASROERTNEE . EONKITURE 2T E, BE

RS

20214, ATH#ERE A TEMAEFHERAZT R, RERGRESHOREXH BEFRNREKPURBRESRHENRE.

RERGEIHR . FATESEIETH EMERERRTHENTNFERMEA.

I

AR B IR R B AR iR AR
AEAARSLXEARASEINER AP EEEFHFR. IHNEPER. BERS. BRAN. BETERRAGISEENET
FERTAMMRER.



BARAFNFREP BRI REEEFHESESEZRZ
AERARANUNEEENERRG. BT LSEERREN
HRAMARNERN ARARFRASMAGNENTE TR
EAULHN. REEMLTTRSESRE, ERNEEES
EMEARE . REFAB NBREBRBE > AL TEGE
BESEEZA,

VEERBINASBRZRANMENE R EEERTT. AEH
HRE M EE RS

- FNEZBEDHOALSRE, FHENEERRE
- BRAFAFRSIMGRA,

- BEGSIHMBANEDEHL,

- EEGHSREITT.

AEFAREEBBLETS ERTHENTRATHRE I
WA, ERIHFEREHRE SRERNAINME. B, R
W|HEER, BE—BoIHN AR, MERFER, HIA<E
FHERE MEZBAKEA, EXHRENATMANES
TR, AFEART T EEARNSRANMER>.

BEBALT, KARAHRNAAE=TTSZRIERSFFENEBIE
FARENETSIMRERA S, AREERMAREHILENS
HNES—MSBTFARKBENST. B, 355 BRIETEE

=R
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HH PUSERHAETNERF G ETHEXFRET, FBiLE
RABENERESTIHFADRRERKMBNEHBASHTR.

SR T RS

AEFAEHE RN ERE, WRERAHRET. =R 5
PR, AL A B .

AEANRABKENEBIRERSRATHNSERY
RERATHNEEHER, PUAFIRATRNERERTE
MKERETE EMLAHREBEFTDNORESTRREAER
EMEMN. AEABRSATEENERLEZHREREHL
FEEERABR, REREFTEBALEEN, UEAEANE
EEBEAEREIHPZAIRKRE, B2, FANERNHHEEN
AAERERTHRERNRIOI . F2021F12831H, A%
AKER (FBHBEE—FRX—FEN L) EXFTRSIESHEM
AT AARMII7THZT, Htt KHARGES (BRI & HAh
SRBERRI. AEFAEtESRIAMER. SHEME
BE R MR ER) @MAEIT A ART1,040.78125T.

RERAENHRPRD L ARAFESTE SR T RS
PMEFEENTTESRIARERNARA SRS HII TN
T.AEANXESHTEFANASRES TRPH DN
TRAEENER.

b i 20214128310
- R

FiTESRR>
Ne RFHHRBTHR - 92,419 147 - - - - = 92,566
FIRAE L HTR 12,566 121,984 8,669 15,260 38,054 = = = 196,533
KA - - 115,336 49113 173,265 39,470 = = 377,184
INEBESBA™ 659 = 494,685 = = = = = 495,344
VG G 95,781 = 168,865 281,897 1500075 5566693 4544671 6475459 18,633,441
ZHHEHA= 161,598 3,990 52,143 89,861 54,438 123,452 138,607 397,639 1,021,728
DS 854 - 831 15,322 240,131 735,315 220,422 97268 1,310,143
HAt R % - - 117,243 222,850 176,051 229,190 46,974 21,478 813,786
HUMETARE 6,060 - - - - - - = 6,060
ity 75 3,447 47 453 48 1,873 124 30 6,097
F A SBAF B 277,593 221,840 957,966 674756 2182062 6695993 4950798 6991874 22952882
FfiTESRAG
B R 2 By F R - 51,337 1,703 483734 1,883,788 114 = - 2420676
B B ARt SRR - = 31,051 139,425 201,035 72,229 11,579 = 455,319
KNEE - - 35,062 30,074 1,855 2,204 439 650 70,284
R HHERARK 2,085 - - - - - - - 2,085
THEHE AR - - 18,084 2,887 250 - - - 21,221
R = 919,891 18,345 37,828 83,531 12,122 4315 3719 1,079,751
EXRTREIESH - - 365,879 191,168 1,697,860 5878325 4,511,951 1,050,538 13,695,721
Hitr 243 2,694 64 978 1,348 1,314 6 10 6,657
FEEBAGRRAR 2,328 973,922 470,188 886,094  30869,667 5966308 4528290 1054917 17,751,714
B3kt 275,265 (752,082) 487,778 (211,338)  (1,687,605) 729,685 422508 5936957 5,201,168
fTESRTARSH
RAREENTTESHTIA - - 102 8 (50) 475 526 320 1,381
BRBLENTESMIA

RN = = 140,191 121,749 452,310 2938 = = 717,188

e = - (139,998)  (120,493)  (444,063) (2,890) - - (707,444)
TR IARER AT - = 295 1,264 8,197 503 506 320 11,125
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KER 2020512318
JHTEEBAF
e RAERRRBITHR - 131,280 74 - - - - - 131,354
FRE L FI 19,531 112,324 4,700 46,005 162,616 107 - - 345,373
it - - 88,849 10,927 6,817 - - - 106,593
FANBESRAS - 28 587,095 - 1,357 - - - 588,480
RIGEs AR 108,577 - 48,622 241040 1,937,245 5223086 4355824 6339519 18253913
TR HERE~ 119,655 1,729 22,765 124,329 89,089 98,282 140,257 465253 1,061,359
ERRA 513 - - 30,722 177,634 821,837 321,563 101,849 1454118
HA AR R - - 210,317 56,655 167,260 186,799 86,006 2,560 709,597
Hinila TRER 4,810 - - - - - - - 4810
Hith 1,469 4172 21 514 324 3,561 - 39 10,100
FETESRAS BT 254,555 249,533 962,443 510282 2542342 6333672 4903650 6909220 22,665,697
T SRAR
B R R Ath & R4 F AT - 64,174 119,813 553,160 2,171,115 103 - - 2908365
BB FRE SR EER - - 28,571 133,341 263,294 70,935 12,130 13,361 521,632
N - - 5,440 80,015 4172 124 3,487 762 94,000
XMt ERN R 2,051 - - - - - - - 2,051
S EHERAHK - - 119,765 5,027 8 - - - 124,800
LA - 975,631 25,084 56,560 106,430 22,311 2,709 6880 1,195,605
ERTTREIES - - 207,486 505963 1382932 5503307 4202351 1,074,640 12,896,679
Hith 2 20,806 167 243 1,086 1,309 740 10 24,363
FESHARER 2053 1,060,611 526326 15334309 3920037 5598089 4,221,417  1,095653 17,767,495
L 252502 (811078) 436117  (824,027) (1,386,695) 735583 682,233 5813567 4,898,202
TTHESMIANSR
BAREENTTESBIA - - 219 1 (276) 320 596 468 1,438
RRMAENITESRIA

RN - - 193,503 326,440 625,961 19,079 88 - 116507

e - - (194106)  (329,500)  (609,906) (17,060) (85) - (1,150,657)
fTESMIARS R - - (384) (2,949) 15,779 2339 599 468 15,852
{7 20214512318
JHTEEBAF
RERFRFRBOIFA - 92,011 - - - - - - 92,011
e EN B 12,566 173,359 - - 35,860 = = = 221,785
b3 - - 115,336 49,113 173,265 39,470 = = 377,184
INBELRAS - - 488,459 - - - - - 488,459
R FAALER 86,205 = 163,608 264,141 1,460,764 5451947 4536877 6,476,171 18,439,713
M ERA* 18,159 - 52,143 89,289 52,746 106,505 138,146 397,547 854,535
RN R - - 813 15,272 238,857 722,660 218,235 97,268 1,203,105
HA R R - - 116,616 221,734 173,910 211,421 40,919 20,609 785,209
HiiE TARE 2,055 - - - - - - - 2,055
Hit = 1,778 2 6 4 1,854 124 30 3,798
FOTESRAT BH 118,985 267,148 936,977 639,555 2135406 6533857 4934301 6991625 22,557,854
FTEERAER

B R H & RN FRRT - 51,439 1,703 483734 1,883,788 114 = - 2420778
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2021128310

B B A E S B - - 11 80,277 77,356 50,665 10,418 - 218,727
N - - 27,984 23,236 1,855 2,204 439 650 56,368
S EBEBATR - - 3,153 - - - - - 3,153
R - 1,005,828 23,369 38,601 101,295 12,122 4315 3719 1,189,249
EXTREFIUES - - 364,298 188553 1684984 5843262 4515087  1,050538 13,646,722
Hity - 2,649 63 899 846 588 6 10 5,061
FELRARER - 1,059916 420,581 815300 3,750,124 5908955 4530265 1054917 17,540,058
A3k f 118985  (792,768) 516396  (175745) (1614718 624,902 404036 5936708  5017,796
fTESBTANSR
HEMERENTESMIA - - 42 100 128 701 507 320 1,818
BRTAENITESRTA

RERN - - 139,840 121,263 452,289 1,927 - - 715,319

A&t = ~  (139,649)  (120,006)  (444,056) (1,874) = - (705585)
fTEEMIANERA! - - 233 1,357 8,361 754 507 320 11,552
&7 20204£12F31H
HTEERAT
RNEREHFRETHR - 130,840 - - - - - - 130,840
BRELHH 10,273 156,208 - 45,657 155,623 - - - 367,761
et - - 88,849 10927 6817 - - - 106,593
FANBESRAS - - 581,774 - - - - - 581,774
R AR 106,377 - 46,205 225655 1907584 5125716 4354543 6335747 18,101,827
XHUERAS 5,277 - 22,565 124,204 86,401 94,606 126,380 465,152 924,605
IR A 127 - - 30,495 177,041 819,060 321,094 101,849 1,449,666
Hth i # - - 210,317 55,548 166,597 164,155 72,567 2,031 671215
Hitila TRER 1516 - - - - - - - 1,516
Hth - 1,970 21 514 278 2,001 - 39 4823
ForE oA~ B8 123,570 289,018 949,731 493,020 2,500,341 6205538 4874584 6904818 22,340,620
HTEERAR
B R H At & R4 TF MR - 65,174 119,813 553,160 2,171,115 103 - - 2,909,365
e BT AE fth £ AR AR - - 12 87,309 159,087 40,207 10,600 - 297,215
iIN7 %3 - - 5136 78,314 4172 124 3,487 762 91,995
S EBERATR - - 102,192 5,027 - - - - 107,219
R 7R - 1,059,268 25,345 60,377 119,628 22,311 2,709 6881 1296519
EXfHRELEH - - 205,835 503274 1361211 5465722 4201603 1074640 12,832,285
Hito - 67 167 144 1,016 1,223 719 6 3342
FESRARER - 1,124,509 478500 1287605 3816220 5529600 4219118 1082289 17,537,940
kT 123,570 (835,491) 471,231 (794,585)  (1,315,888) 675,848 655466 5822529 4,802,680
fTESMIANSR
BHMAERTESRIA - - 21 133 139 1,138 611 469 2511
BRMAERTESRIA

RN - - 191,819 325,490 622,547 18,145 88 - 1,158,089

NeHk - - (192433)  (328562)  (606,506) (16,135) (85) - (1,143,721)
TEEBMIANERAT - - (593) (2,939) 16,180 3,148 614 469 16,879




120

ERF%4RTT CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

HF=RRRINIE
AERATHKE. FHRE . ROTRKAZLEERFALERENERSTREREPEAI GBI FET .

AREH

2021412H31H

TFHKE 3,015 6,873 87,411 254,943 234,365 2,928,600 3,515,207
FFHARERIBR 1,441 114 2,141 3,566 2,000 - 9,262
RITRHLE 507 1,640 6,553 - = = 8,700
FHERIE 270 767 2,533 9 = = 3,579
&it 5,233 9,394 98,638 258,518 236,365 2,928,600 3,536,748
2020412H31H

TR E 8,612 35,461 186,918 223,425 212,993 2,787,475 3,454,884
FF R R R ABIR 232 398 2,275 14,621 - - 17,526
RITRFILCE 2,125 1,194 6,287 - - - 9,606
FdfERIE 467 2,317 3,892 66 - - 6,742
&it 11,436 39,370 199,372 238,112 212,993 2,787,475 3,488,758
4T

2021412H31H

TR 3,015 6,873 87,411 254,943 234,365 2,941,600 3,528,207
FHERERIBR 1,441 114 8,517 3,322 2,000 - 15,394
RITRFILCE 507 1,640 6,553 - - - 8,700
FHERIE 270 767 2,533 9 - - 3,579
&it 5,233 9,394 105,014 258,274 236,365 2,941,600 3,555,880
2020412H31H

BRI 8,611 35,461 186,918 223,425 212,993 2,804,475 3,471,883
FFHAR R KABR 232 398 2,275 20,902 - - 23,807
RITREILE 2,125 1,194 6,287 - - - 9,606
FHERIE 467 2,317 3,892 66 - - 6,742
&it 11,435 39,370 199,372 244,393 212,993 2,804,475 3,512,038

5. @R MEmMARMARNME

ERIAAANENREIEERBRAR~RARAEETRT S L RSRENIRN ., ATENERTH LRBURN K, KEFBIL
ERAKRBESHTIANARNE. MERAGRAREREZ AUV AT HEE, BN TR BREAEE S SEIE, X
SEMXANEERABGEERTHSSEEENIRTHSENMEER HSAANERIAEENEFERRE—BL

AEAUDHE-EXNEHIATREREXZIAXFINIESEES XARRASEERTZTHRNITE (REBEE).

AERUDPAE_ERRNEHITIATREAFIESFRE . TESN BEAULAANETEAERHNIT AL HRENRRAREY >
GERNEERTE. ARTRENAANERRIREGELEEERTELINHELERAE IFHEFNLANERRY
BEENHEEZRHE. TESAXRAFARSRENTRR - TN REEREFT AN EH#THE. MEEREESEIIATS
THE,

FEAYAPHEZRERNER I AT BZNARAFENRELR TRV HEATESR T AMNBRN, EEEERAGERATE
ARME. HRAHEERATBZEGRASRIFIE BE~F JHATE, ERARNENTERA T WEESEERFZWHR
TNESH ZESHEIB VRIS FHERARE . IR ARA KSBRKR RN FEX HHTHASEHE.
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AEANAANMETTENSRTRZ=1BERITNT:
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A EEH]
EREF
ETHESRA~
CRGETHR - 9,609 - 9,609
MELGFETHR - 7,369 - 7,369
RINGER AR - - 45,073 45,073
SRIRHE
IRZENFAENESHA~RAMUARNE
HEAETHITALYBRENSHA
s 4,249 73,748 868 78,865
ERIZ:3] - 171,243 - 171,243
BRERESHER 5,489 867 10,069 16,425
TR ITHEY > R 72 = 4,470 4,542
W@ TE 17,527 14,102 702,231 733,860
HrEEEIT - 376 15 391
EEMAANMETEARETHIT AL RS
ol S
s - 624 - 624
REEEITR - 16 - 16
HAb AR R
% 19,399 300,517 103 320,019
ERZE3] - 446,543 - 446,543
BEEEIY - - - =
Hhis TREE 4,060 - 2,000 6,060
ait 50,796 1,025,014 764,829 1,840,639
ERAGR
X HHEEmAR (1) - (2,084) (2,085)
FTHE SRR
CERGETR = (2,827) = (2,827)
FELTETR - (6,532) = (6,532)
&it (1) (9,359) (2,084) (11,444)
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SRR~
LTTHESmE
CELTETHR - 27,053 - 27,053
MELTETR - 10,684 - 10,684
KRR - - 42,964 42,964
SRUE T

AXZENFENERAT REMMNARNE
HEAETHITALPRAENSRA >

B 173 71,903 4,389 76,465
Bk 7 5 50 206,096 - 206,146
BERES/E 2,834 234 10,738 13,806
T RITHEY ™A 50 1,614 7,407 9,071
WNHETH 8 7,011 739,790 746,809
REEETL - 420 - 420
BEMARMETEBREHITA L HIRGE
SRt
iz - 2,361 - 2,361
HEEEITL - 625 - 625
HAM G &
"% 11,152 288,388 436 299,976
[ERZES - 359,115 - 359,115
REEETR - - 1,015 1,015
Hithizs TRER 3,294 - 1,516 4,810
&it 17,561 975,504 808,255 1,801,320
SRR
X5 R AR (38) (2,013) - (2,051)
LR AR
CEREFETR - (16,924) - (16,924)
FELTETR - (9,919) - (9,919)
&it (38) (28,856) - (28,894)
T
2o21%123t | ®-BR  #ZBER  ®=Ex &t
ERE~
PTEERARS
CEREFETR - 9,551 - 9,551
FELTETHR - 7,350 - 7,350
BRI - - 45,073 45,073
SRUE T

ARG ENFENERATRAMBUAIANE
HEEERHITALIMREN SR A~

it - 72,555 1,247 73,802
ERZE3-] = 171,243 = 171,243
WHETH 17,514 14,102 562,383 593,999
BEMAANMETEBRREHITA Y HIRGE
AR
% = 624 - 624
BB - 16 - 16
HA AR E
i - 300,517 - 300,517
ERNZE] - 445,573 = 445,573
Hithizs TRER 55 - 2,000 2,055
&it 17,569 1,021,531 610,703 1,649,803
SRR
FTELR R
CELTETAR - (2,820) - (2,820)
FELTETR = (5,981) = (5,981)

&it - 8,801 - 8,801
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘aozosr2A3A #-RKR $SER ®=SER &t
SRR
PTHE SRR~
CELGETR - 26,725 - 26,725
MEHFETR - 10,730 - 10,730
RN GERR AR - - 42,964 42,964
SRR
HXHBEMFENERASRAMUARMNE
THEEETHIT A LR E N SRE
% - 68,020 2,998 71,018
ERIZc3::] - 206,096 - 206,096
WHETR - 7,011 618,240 625,251
BEMAANETERETHIT AL RS
okt b
% - 2,321 - 2,321
BRI - 625 - 625
Htb AR R
% - 279,317 - 279,317
B 7 - 359,018 - 359,018
g - - 1,015 1,015
Hihizs TREHE - - 1,516 1,516
&it - 959,863 666,733 1,626,596
SRR
LTSRN
CEETETR - (16,888) - (16,888)
FELTETR - (8,585) - (8,585)
&it - (25,473) - (25,473)
2021 EF20205FE, ARBE—ERME_BREMITAZ B LERER,
AERAERE=ZRXEMTEZNNT:
&R SRE
S eeteRRER SSMSRAS  RRRREE  RERETARE  SRAFAH
202141810 42,964 762,324 1,451 1,516 808,255
i - (16,396) - = (16,396)
0 6,186 27,212 = 500 33,898
%5 (4,740) (71,049) (1,527) - (77,316)
NE=ZEREE - (7,285) - (16) (7,301)
REAI
2] 663 22,838 24 - 23,525
Hitz & - 9 155 - 164
20214£12831H 45,073 717,653 103 2,000 764,829
FHENR=/ UGS
TARB RO (%) 663 18,003 - - 18,666

TTARMEZE RS - 9 179 = 188
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A& ERE
S rMBRRER SBESERT  ARGEER  RERATARR  SBEFAR
202051 H1H 38,291 791,853 1,882 1,025 833,051
i - (22,111) - - (22,111)
-yl 3,988 25,228 - 500 29,716
£ - (49,741) (879) - (50,620)
MNE=ZREREH - (1,224) 1,145 - (79)
RE &t
gz 685 19,059 (4) 9) 19,731
HitZ el - (740) (693) - (1,433)
20204£12H31H 42,964 762,324 1,451 1,516 808,255
FRENAF/HRH.
IEARBEERFHEE/ (HK) 685 17,679 (4) 9) 18,351
IR AR - (740) (693) - (1,433)
AT ERE=ZEREMTETHNT:
F.x) ERB
S eetwERR DSMSBAS  RERNE  RERETANR  SRAFAY
202141 F1H 42,964 621,238 1,015 1,516 666,733
B - - = = -
#hn 6,186 1,354 = 500 8,040
75 (4,740) (59,908) (1,015) = (65,663)
NE=ZEREY - (4,335) = (16) (4,351)
B@EAT
gz 663 5,281 24 - 5,968
Hitm a1 - = (24) = (24)
20214£12H31H 45,073 563,630 = 2,000 610,703
FHENE>/ RS,
ITABRBERFHRE/ (H]RK) 663 (2,615) = = (1,952)
ARG AR S - - - - =
bixy ERB
L hESERRR SSMRRES  RREEE  RERSTRER  SRASAH
20204£1F 18 38,291 661,173 - 1,025 700,489
#hn 3,988 3,919 1,000 500 9,407
#E - (44,663) - - (44,663)
RE AT
g 685 809 9) (9) 1,476
Hipm & - - 24 - 24
20204E12H31H 42,964 621,238 1,015 1,516 666,733
FHAENAF/ET.
TEARBEER OB/ (H]K) 685 (745) 9) (9) (78)
AR MG ERE - - 24 - 24

() FEUARMETENEMIE

AEAEURAANETENELXASMOER, AAANEGTET TITTHNITENRE, ARNERREIZUSHEZER.

() ALRFRPRETRM. FRRYZRI. FEAS IANRESHAS BULERHEIHRI. RAEHER FARS. T8
o] 1 4 R % 7 K . L At 3 7 0L 97 5% R — £ A B A A A S MR R A R

HFUEERB~REMAGNIHARTIE—FMUR, BSUTHTHHNERSETNEN, HKENERIREAANE.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(i) B

ETFRIESBRANAANENTRESOTHRNDEMR. I TELTHIESRE, WEARBNERIZESFRARKBGA SRR
TIHRMIEFR A BN A ERARTE.

(il) R TR

BT FSIMNERRNARIBREPEARBTEANIFEH R BERLE AKANESEAANENSEEIL. BEF
RERAAAMENA S RENIUEFE  WWIRE A 5IZFRAOR S HRIE AT ERTIE,

(iv) EEFIRER AER. B FREMER

BEFRZEAFER. BLFRMERNAANENRSREMIVERE , WA RE RS ZERSERNFRHREMORTHE,
EROEV)FRUAANETENSRASMARHKENEESRLEARNE.

V) ERFTHRFIES

BENAARNENTZRNIBUISEFLUSHRIANTHIRNAE. S TEERSTHRNALCUESRIATHRNORK
%, HARNENSIZEH R KR L EM KRR S R A RIS RENIEHE.

TRITTERTRFIEFNIKEMENRBREAARNE

2021412H31H 2020412H31H
| MEAE ARHE REAE acdE
AEH
EXTRFIES 11,480,377 11,572,243 10,722,092 10,854,183
T
ERTTBFIESH 11,433,372 11,524,787 10,661,347 10,791,934

6. RAEE
FEAHRTHRAEENN AL LA~ NHEETN " NE" HEEA Z HENERE.
- BREAKHAZLEMAMRTEEVNERENERER,
- RUEAEABSLERNUEEBRHEANMAEREDR,
- REEENAREMUIFLSEE.

AEFAEEREETEERZRSHNEXIES MRBRRESHLEBNE INERAANERCRNLERANEABER. A58
ZEERRES LIRFIERNEAER, T2021F12831H, AEAREARMAART17,182.52{27T, —REABTAARST
14515211250, b — B AR BT HART14,502.91127 . BAKXER H11.66%, —HAAKER H9.85%, b—REREL
K H49.84%, RITEARRFAART16,908.2212 7, b —REAXRBHFM—RELABHHART14,312.82{ZT, BEAFERERN
11.62%, tZIb—RAEKFTEEMN—RERTBE49.82%,

T=. AFAGRERER
ARARATEEEAS AHERAEFL,
TH. WERRZHAE

KITHRTREHFMEGIRRT2022FE4F27THE R R TEE S,
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2RO

I

Board of Supervisors

MIR R IMIE & T

EE

Board of Directors

EHITER
Audit Department

SRERE

Senior Management

VAYNES BERRZE PPN
. 5 o~ . [ = =\
(BEHAE) (REE () L8 A 55 Se HHRE
} N ) A Business Development P
Executive Office Policy Research Department Planning Department Department Rural Revitalization Department
(CPC Committee Office) (CPC Committee Publicity Depanmem)) y y y
S e = oy 1T\ —3 1T — 3 T =3
lsfzﬁ?l' %@ﬁﬁ jé%ﬁﬁﬂ =8 Ec10jn—0Jr-nLic Ac‘:tliEity ECLIOJrJr;c_ActiEity EcLI()JrJr;c_ActtliEity
Credit Review Department Inclusive Finance Department Department | Department I Department I
J v, J v, S
\ \ \ \ \
AN ZRER REMMTIERSNANAZE k3= M s
(B ZAL) (HRBERIRDAE) (B EGHE) %’?ﬂfgf BEE
Human Resources Department Office of the Steering Group for CPC Department of Party, Trade Union and Youth CDB Head ‘ua s General Office
(CPC Committee Organization Departmeth) Disciplinary Inspection (CPC Ethics Ofﬂceb Affars (CPC Committee Unfted Front DSD?MW% q y y
EESRIFAE EbreriE &R
Housing Program Finance CDB Global Finance
J/ ‘ J/
\ \ \ \
AN — [ = 32 = — =
EESRP (Eh";mf?gﬁ EFRS 5 ERRA{E— 6 EFRA{E— 2B
T Interational F'nanl;De arment International Loan International Business International Business
9 P (Tnterr:altiona\ ('700 Ceratiopn Orfrf;ge) Management Department Department | Department Il
J L J J J J
\ \ \ \ \
tR=P1T RENMT A3 4T LFg 51T ARE DT
Beijing Branch Tianjin Branch Hebei Branch Shanxi Branch Inner Mongolia Branch
/ / / /
\ \ \ \ \
AMAT LT TR AT BT BENT
Suzhou Branch Zhejiang Branch Ningbo Branch Anhui Branch Fujian Branch
/ / / / /
\ \ \ \ \
R T I HRA1T AT AT BRET
Hunan Branch Guangdong Branch Shenzhen Branch Guangxi Branch Hainan Branch
/ / /
\ \ \ \
FIENIT HEOT TEHT BT
Xinjiang Branch Qinghai Branch Ningxia Branch Tibet Branch
J/ J/ / /
\ \ \ \ \
EEAS FBRELL BRI R BLARASRELL IR AL
H Representative Office Representative Office Representative Office Representative Office
long Kong Branch . i A ol ] i
in Cairo in Moscow in Rio de Janeiro in Caracas
J/ / /
A f— = 3 = =T =]
FEEZERAT EFSMARSINT BEFISRHERLAE BEREMAERHERLT

Group Subsidiaries

CDB Capital Co., Ltd.

CDB Securities Co., Ltd.

CDB Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.
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ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE AND DIRECTORY OF BRANCHES AND SUBSIDIARIES

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE AND DIRECTORY OF BRANCHES
AND SUBSIDIARIES

AEEHFMERS
Committee on Human Resources
and Remuneration

KR SHIEHERE
Committee on Related-Party
Transaction Control

K ERAKREERRS

REEEERS

Risk Management Committee

EoR = A
HITERS

Committee on Strategic Development sl G

and Investment Management

BEECHAE

Board of Directors Office

MmiZ5RHEH EEREHE =% REHED KU E IR EL
Market Development & Equity Legal and Compliance Finance & Accounting Treasury & Financial Risk Management
Investment Department Department Department Market Department Department
J J J J J
il PO AR EREIRE RS PR SRR TR
} - o Sz EEER
Economic Activity Loan Management Strategic Client Information Technology OpEtlls Pepainert
Department IV Department Department Department P P
J J J J J
\ \ \ \
. . N R FHITHER - R
BIRIRTFEBTAEEB (—H—BE QFE R L) (FF&R M2 BIFERR) Al 21
Retired Staff Department Financial Research Institute (CDB Party School Procurement Center
(Innovation and Development Center for BRI) (CDB Instute of Development Finance)
J / J S
\
FREfE=2B
International Business
Department Ill
S
\ \ \ \ \ |
LT 21T KIESY B BRTIHIT EiBA1T SIAT
Liaoning Branch Dalian Branch Jilin Branch Heilongjiang Branch Shanghai Branch Jiangsu Branch
J J J / /
\ \ \ \ \
BT AT RS 1T BEN1T AR T AT
Xiamen Branch Jiangxi Branch Shandong Branch Qingdao Branch Henan Branch Hubei Branch
S S J
\ \ \ \ \ \
BRAT )47 "MAAT =REAT BREG 1T Bl 21T
Chongging Branch Sichuan Branch Guizhou Branch Yunnan Branch Shaanxi Branch Gansu Branch
/ J /
\ \ \ \ \ \
feRL GEREZE FTETIE AR R R AL RRETEALERAL FEMME R FRAL IS
Representative Office Representative Office Representative Office Representative Office Representative Office Representative Office
in London in Vientiane in Astana in Minsk in Jakarta in Sydney
PERRESHRAT EFZRESHRAT S AR N E EER R B AR

China-Africa Development Fund CDB Development Fund

Note: As at the publication date of the annual report.
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=27

BEIJING BRANCH

ok A RH A K E XTI A# 1585 ¥ K ESE
Add: 8/F, COSCO Mansion, 158 Fuxingmennei Street,
Xicheng District, Beijing

31 (Tel):(010) 63223100

1&H(Fax):(010) 66412282

B4R (Zip): 100031

REMMT

TIANJIN BRANCH

Mok KR X EAKEIRISINNE LR OAE26ZE
Add: 26/F, Huanbohai Development Center A, 9 Binshui
Road, Hexi District, Tianjin

#81E(Tel):(022) 85681234

£ E (Fax):(022) 88355858

B4R (Zip):300061

AT

HEBEI BRANCH

it ARETAEAEISHE HBE

Add: Building B Yuyuan Plaza, 9 Yuhuaxi Road,
Shijiazhuang

E31E(Tel):(0311) 85288100

f&H(Fax):(0311) 85288112

B4R (Zip):060051

WE31T

SHANXI BRANCH

Mk KRET/NE XK KAE327S

Add: 327 Changzhi Road, Xiaodian District, Taiyuan
317 (Tel):(0351) 4937222

1&H(Fax):(0351) 4937224

B4R (Zip):030006

AREIT

INNER MONGOLIA BRANCH

ok RS T RER B AH165

Add: 16 Chilechuan Street, Saihan District, Hohhot
E83E(Tel):(0471) 3310014

£ & (Fax):(0471) 3310021

B4R (Zip):010098

TFaT

LIAONING BRANCH

ik SRR L X B E A #1095

Add: 109 Qingnian Street, Shenhe District, Shenyang
E117E (Tel):(024) 22952975

1& H(Fax):(024) 22953371

HB4R(Zip): 110014

KEMT

DALIAN BRANCH

ik KIEHPURARK15-17SEREMAE25ZE
Add: 25/F, International Finance Plaza, 15-17 Renmin
Road, Zhongshan District, Dalian

EiE(Tel):(0411) 82810918

1&H(Fax):(0411) 82633839

R 4R (Zip): 116001

BEMDT

JILIN BRANCH

ik KED R AKI99S

Add: 399 Nanhu Road, Changchun
B335 (Tel):(0431) 85279600
1&H(Fax):(0431) 85279700

k4R (Zip): 130022

BRIINT

HEILONGJIANG BRANCH

ik BRI X S 82775

Add: 277 Chuangxin 2 Road, Songbei District, Harbin
E83E(Tel):(0451) 53907900

£ E (Fax):(0451) 53907808

B4R (Zip): 150028

lobi=5 )

SHANGHAI BRANCH

ik EiETIHARE68S

Add: 68 Puming Road, Shanghai
E83E(Tel):(021) 20266688

f£ E (Fax):(021) 58883659

B4R (Zip):200120

IHMT

JIANGSU BRANCH

ek BRMIIARREK2325

Add: 232 Jiangdong Middle Road, Nanjing
E317E (Tel):(025) 83276222

& H(Fax):(025) 83276204

B4R (Zip):210019

M T

SUZHOU BRANCH

bk M Tk X REMET2S

Add: 2 Donghualin Street, Suzhou Industrial Park, Suzhou
E8iE(Tel):(0512) 67887142

f£E(Fax):(0512) 67887114

B4R (Zip):215123

LT

ZHEJIANG BRANCH

Sk N LT X IE2 BE695 3144

Add: 31/F, 69 Chengxing Road, Jianggan District,
Hangzhou

31E(Tel):(0571) 81686131

£ E (Fax):(0571) 89778068

B4R (Zip):310020

TIRAT

NINGBO BRANCH

ik TR M B ERIEETTS

Add: 577 Haiyan North Road, Yinzhou District, Ningbo
31E(Tel):(0574) 83872888

& & (Fax):(0574) 83872100

B4R (Zip):315040

AT

ANHUI BRANCH

Mok ST B L XELL K99S5

Add: 699 Qianshan Road, Shushan District, Hefei
B1iE(Tel):(0551) 62867889

1& H(Fax):(0551) 62875868

R 4R (Zip):230071

BEST

FUJIAN BRANCH

ik BN RE X ERATESRE127S

Add: 127 Degui Road, Wenquan Street, Gulou District,
Fuzhou

835 (Tel):(0591) 87856844

1& H(Fax):(0591) 87856408

B4R (Zip):350003

ENST

XIAMEN BRANCH

Hodk: BT BAXELE100SALE WAL EIIME
iy )35-402

Add: 35/F-40/F, Fortune Center, 100 Lujiang Road,
Siming District, Xiamen

3% (Tel):(0592) 2394308

1& H(Fax):(0592) 2393111

HR4R (Zip):361001

IAEDT

JIANGXI BRANCH

ot FE HARMX EMFRKEI1005

Add: 1100 Fenghe Middle Avenue, Honggutan District,
Nanchang

E31E(Tel):(0791) 86592323

1&H(Fax):(0791) 86592333

B4R (Zip):330038

LR SHT

SHANDONG BRANCH

ik KR H A 15116665 AL F 0D

Add: Block D, Olympic Financial Center, 11666 Jingshi
Road, Jinan

E31E(Tel):(0531) 81928100

1£H(Fax):(0531) 81928282

B4R (Zip):260014

ERT

QINGDAO BRANCH

Mol FEEHABEEISSRKBAEITE

Add: 17/F, Liantong Building, 15A Donghai West Road,
Qingdao

E33E(Tel):(0532) 81978277

£ E (Fax):(0532) 81978288

B4R (Zip):26607 1

AEAT

HENAN BRANCH

ik : KM T EIKEE2665

Add: 266 Jinshui Road, Zhengzhou
£33 (Tel):(0371) 66000888

£ H (Fax):(0371) 66000777

B4R (Zip):450008

LT

HUBEI BRANCH

ek FINHR 8 K RIEAEI08S

Add: 308 Youyi Avenue, Wuchang District, Wuhan
B35 (Tel):(027) 86759777

1& H(Fax):(027) 86759666

R 4R (Zip):430062

BT

HUNAN BRANCH

Mt AOPH RO K MTHEE ZR118SHTRE

Add: CDB Plaza, 118 Block 2, Xiangjiang Middle Road,
Tianxin District, Changsha

E11E(Tel):(0731) 84906658

1& K (Fax):(0731) 84906699

B4R (Zip):410002

I"HR34T

GUANGDONG BRANCH

M SNH R IR EHAEF00S 2 —E BRI HARBA
Add: 23A, Tower A of R&F Yingtai Plaza, 100 West
Huangpu Road, Tianhe District, Guangzhou
E33E(Tel):(020) 38633017

& & (Fax):(020) 38633000

B4R (Zip):510627

AT

SHENZHEN BRANCH

ik YRR X @ = 820035 ER &R PO KE06
E. 18Z. 192, 28-332

Add: 6/F, 18/F, 19/F, 28/F-33/F, CDB Financial Center,
2003 Fuzhong Third Road, Futian District, Shenzhen
E31E(Tel):(0755) 25985666

1& H(Fax):(0755) 25987800

184w (Zip):518038

AT

GUANGXI BRANCH

it BT REKE1495
Add: 149 Minzu Avenue, Nanning
BiE(Tel):(0771) 8018114
1&H(Fax):(0771) 8018510

B4R (Zip):530028

BRET

HAINAN BRANCH

ik BAMFRERKIGER1S

Add: Jia 1 Changyi Road, Xiuying District, Haikou
31 (Tel):(0898) 68551901

£ E (Fax):(0898) 68551933

B4R (Zip):570311
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CHONGQING BRANCH

ik ERTIIR ERE1S

Add: 1 Jinrong Street, Jiangbei District, Chongaing
815 (Tel):(023) 67858000

£ & (Fax):(023) 67858114

B4R (Zip):400023

)l 347

SICHUAN BRANCH

ik AT MK RREI205SERFRIRITRE
Add: CDB Plaza, 120 Tiantai Road, High-tech Zone,
Chengdu

81 (Tel):(028) 86029998

& H(Fax):(028) 86029617

B4R (Zip):610041

"MST

GUIZHOU BRANCH

it : REATH R K66 S L ER HERE#10-212
Add: 10/F-21/F, Huijin International Plaza, 66 Yanan West
Road, Guiyang

815 (Tel):(0851) 88651588

1& H(Fax):(0851) 88651605

B4R (Zip):550003

LRSI

YUNNAN BRANCH

ok BAAT T 1REE176S

Add: 176 Guangfu Road, Kunming
815 (Tel):(0871) 63634094
1&H(Fax):(0871) 63634001

1R 4%(Zip):650228

BREE T

SHAANXI BRANCH

i AR T e —E2SERARRTRE

Add: China Development Bank Building, 2 Hi-Tech Road
Oneg, Xi'an

#33%(Tel):(029) 87660578

1& H (Fax):(029) 87660581

1R 4%(Zip): 710075

HR2T

GANSU BRANCH

ik ZMHE 817285

Add: 1728 Nanchang Road, Lanzhou
81 (Tel):(0931) 8866628

1& HE(Fax):(0931) 8866237

1R 4%(Zip): 730030

WEMMT

XINJIANG BRANCH

it BEARFH LIS ERARRITRE
Add: CDB Plaza, 333 Zhongshan Road, Urumgi
31 (Tel):(0991) 2335001

& B (Fax):(0991) 2335002

HR 4R (Zip):830002

BEMMT

QINGHAI BRANCH
ik T RS
Add: 2 Kunlun Road, Xining
8% (Tel):(0971) 6161887
£ E (Fax):(0971) 6161900
#R4R(Zip):810001

TEHMT

NINGXIA BRANCH

ik SRITEREFREILEHTS

Add: 1 Yinjiaqu North Street, Jinfeng District, Yinchuan
E31E(Tel):(0951) 5695900

1&H (Fax):(0951) 5695813

B4R (Zip): 750004
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BT

TIBET BRANCH

ik AIEET )\ — R 285 A

Add: 28A Bayi South Road, Lhasa
81E(Tel):(0891) 6623825

£ H(Fax):(0891) 6623818

B4R (Zip):850000

BENT

HONG KONG BRANCH

ik FERIEEE SERS AP O—EI33%

Add: 33/F One International Finance Center, 1 Harbour
View Street, Central, Hong Kong

81 (Tel):(00852) 28016218

£ H(Fax):(00852) 25304083

FEHRRL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN CAIRO

ik B FF 2 BRNEER 186418 (A )BT, 285
Add: Apartment No. 1 & 2, Building 41 (A), St. 18, Maadi,
Sarayat, Cairo, Egypt

3%(Tel):(002-02) 27507406

EHrRMLRL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN MOSCOW
ik T HBGREIR T E RIS X AE1S
Add: 1 Novatorov St., Moscow, Russian Federation
#33%(Tel):(007-495) 9894612

1&H(Fax):(007-495) 9894611

BYHRRARRLE

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN RIO DE
JANEIRO

i EFELBRN AT RO RIS RAREHIS5S510E
Add: 10/F, Presidente Vargas St., No.955, Central District,
Rio de Janeiro City, Brazil

81E(Tel):(0055-21) 981796921

NRIANErAR R AL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN CARACAS
ik EARRMNAINETHH SBEEPERIZEM
Add: Base de CITIC, Fuerte Tiuna, Caracas Venezuela

eBRRL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN LONDON
ik EECH DR E D IEH60S

Add: 60 Gresham Street, London, EC2V 7BB, UK
E31E(Tel): (0044)2079338702

GEL e

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN VIENTIANE
ik ERARTREEGEFLX

Add: Saysettha Development Zone, Vientiane Capital of
Lao PDR.

317 (Tel):(00856)-20-56791136

P HTIE AR R AL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN ASTANA
ik BEERANERRAR T S HF R AE165218
Add: 21/F, 16 Dostyk Street, Nur-Sultan, Kazakhstan

AR R AE R AL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN MINSK
ik B S T R IR R REAHTT0S
Add: 70 Myasnikova Street, Minsk, Belarus
815 (Tel):(00375) 444559461

A FRL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN JAKARTA

Stk EDEE R P WHENNIA K o T H Sopo Del K BARE22 2
Add: 22/F, Sopo Del Tower A, Mega Kuningan, Jakarta,
Indonesia

81E(Tel):(0062) 02150806518

ERARL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN SYDNEY

otk SRAF LR AR ENB IR ESEREL B
Add: 49/F, Governor Phillip Tower, 1 Farrer Place,
Sydney, NSW, 2000, Australia

835 (Tel):(0061) 402278978

EFEMARIELE

CDB CAPITAL CO., LTD.

Hodk: AR H A K S RAS7TSRERRSMAOI10E
Add: 10/F, Winland International Finance Center, 7
Financial Street, Xicheng District, Beijing

E81E(Tel):(010) 88308477

1& H(Fax):(010) 66553276

B4R (Zip): 100033

EFESRBERAS

CDB SECURITIES CO., LTD.

Mok LR AEBX BAIIIIRE29S

Add: 29 Fuchengmenwai Street, Xicheng District, Beijing
81E(Tel):(010) 88300999

R4 (Zip): 100037

EREREERBERAT

CDB FINANCIAL LEASING CO., LTD.

ik SRYIHIRE X8R =82003 S BREMA/OKE
2. 7. 8. 21-27. 342

Add: 2/F, 7/F, 8/F, 21/F-27/F, 34/F, CDB Financial Center,
2003 Fuzhong Third Road, Futian District, Shenzhen
31 (Tel):(0755) 23980999

1& H(Fax):(0755) 23980900

B4R (Zip):518038

PIELREESHERAT

CHINA-AFRICA DEVELOPMENT FUND

Add: 10/F-11/F, Tower C, Chemsunny World Trade
Center, 28 Fuxingmennei Street, Xicheng District, Beijing
E81E(Tel):(010) 59892900

1& H(Fax):(010) 59566969

B4R (Zip): 100031
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Directors of China Development Bank

(Incorporated in the People's Republic of China with limited liability)

2022-ZAB022

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Development Bank (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 134 to 190, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2021 and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”").

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”) issued by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) issued by International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
. Measurement of expected credit loss for loans and advances to customers at amortized cost and loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts;
. Consolidation of structured entities.
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Measurement of expected credit loss for loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost and loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's gross loans and advances to customers
at amortized cost recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position
amounted to RMB13,250.49 billion with a credit loss allowance of RMB503.90
billion. The exposure of loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts was
RMB3,536.75 billion, for which a provision of RMB17.19 billion was recognized.
The credit impairment losses on loans and advances to customers at amortized
cost, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts recognized in the
Group's consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December 2021
amounted to RMB75.51 billion.

The credit loss allowances for loans and advances to customers at amortized
cost, together with the provisions for loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts, as of 31 December 2021 represented management’s best estimate of
expected credit loss (‘ECL") at that date under International Financial Reporting
Standard 9: Financial Instruments ECL model.

Management assessed whether the credit risk of loans and advances to customers
at amortized cost and loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts has
increased significantly since their initial recognition, and applied a three-stage
impairment model to calculate their ECL. Management assessed the credit loss
allowance and provisions in light of forward-looking information and using the risk
parameter model that incorporates key parameters, including probability of default,
loss given default, exposure at default and discount rates.

The measurement models for ECL involved significant management judgments and
assumptions, primarily including the following:

(1) Segmentation of business operations sharing similar credit risk characteristics,
selection of appropriate model and determination of relevant key measurement
parameters;

(2) Determination of the criteria for significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”),
default or credit-impaired;

(8) Adoption of economic indicators, economic scenarios and their weights for
forward-looking measurement;

(4) The estimated future cash flows for loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost in Stage 3.

The Group established governance process and controls over the measurement of
ECL.

The Group developed complex models, employed numerous parameters and
data inputs, and applied significant management judgments and assumptions
in measuring the ECL, and the amounts of ECL and provisions estimated are
significant. These reasons resulted in this matter being identified as a key audit
matter.

Relevant disclosures are included in Note 3(13)(f), Note 4(1), Note 14, Note 21,
Note 36 and Note 49(2) to the Group's consolidated financial statements.

We evaluated and tested the effectiveness of the design and operation of the
Group's internal controls related to the measurement of ECL for the loans and
advances, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts which comprised:

(1) Internal controls over ECL models, including the selection, approval and
application of methodologies of models, and the ongoing monitoring and
optimization of such models;

(2) Internal controls related to the review and approval of significant management
judgments and assumptions of the Group, including portfolio segmentation,
model selections, parameters determination, the criteria for SICR, the
definition of default and credit-impaired, the use of forward-looking scenarios;

(3) Internal controls over the accuracy and completeness of key inputs used by
the models;

(4) Internal controls relating to estimated future cash flows and calculations of
present values of such cash flows for loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost in Stage 3;

(5) Internal controls over the information systems for ECL measurement.
The substantive procedures we performed include:

(1) We reviewed the ECL modelling methodologies and assessed the
reasonableness of the portfolio segmentation, model selection, key
parameters estimation, significant judgements and assumptions in relation to
the models. We examined the ECL calculation engines on a sample basis, to
validate whether or not the ECL calculation engines reflect management’s
modelling methodologies.

(2) We performed testing on a sample basis based on financial and non-financial
information, relevant external evidence and other factors of the borrowers, to
assess the appropriateness of management’s identification of SICR, defaults
and credit-impaired loans.

(8) For forward-looking scenarios, we reviewed the basis management used
for determining the economic indicators, number of scenarios and relative
weightings, assessed the reasonableness of forecasted economic indicators,
economic scenarios and relevant weightings.

(4) We examined major data inputs to the ECL models for selected samples,
including historical data and data at the measurement date, to assess their
accuracy and completeness. We also tested the major data transfers between
the ECL calculation engines and relevant information systems, to verify their
accuracy and completeness.

(5) For loans and advances in Stage 3, we tested on a sample basis on the credit
loss allowance computed by management based on estimated future cash
flows and discount rates with reference to financial information of borrowers
and guarantors, the latest collateral valuations, and other information including
forward-looking factors, etc.

Consolidation of structured entities

Structured entities primarily included asset-backed securities, assets management
plans, funds and wealth management products that were issued, initiated,
managed or invested by the Group. As at 31 December 2021, total assets of
the consolidated structured entities and unconsolidated structured entities,
issued, initiated and managed by the Group, amounted to RMB20.69 billion and
RMB134.60 billion, respectively. In addition, as at 31 December 2021, the carrying
amount of unconsolidated structured entities invested by the Group which were
issued, initiated and managed by other institutions included in the consolidated
statement of financial position amounted to RMB22.96 billion.

The Group evaluated the following aspects to determine whether the above

structured entities need to be consolidated in the consolidated financial statements:

. its power over these structured entities;

. its exposure to variable returns from its involvement with these structured
entities; and

. its ability to use its power to affect the amount of its variable returns from
these structured entities.

The significant judgement exercised by management in assessing whether the
Group had control of structured entities and the significant amount of such
structured entities resulted in this matter being identified as a key area of audit
focus.

Relevant disclosures are included in Note 3(4), Note 4(2) and Note 44 to the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

For different types of structured entities, we performed the following tests:

(1) Evaluated and tested the effectiveness of the design and operation of the
Group's internal controls related to the Group's assessment of whether it
controls a structured entity;

(2) Assessed the Group’s contractual rights and obligations in light of the
transaction structures, and evaluated the Group’s power over the structured
entities through review of related contracts and agreements;

(8) Performed independent analysis and tests on the variable returns from the
structured entities, including but not limited to commission income earned
and asset management fees earned as the asset manager or service provider,
the retention of residual income, and, if any, the liquidity and other support
provided to the structured entities; and

(4) Assessed whether the Group acted as a principal or an agent, through
analysis of the scope of the Group's decision-making authority over the
structured entities, the remuneration to which the Group was entitled for its
role as the assets manager or service provider, the Group's exposure to
variability of returns from its other interests in the structured entities, and the
rights held by other parties in the structured entities.
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OTHER INFORMATION

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Group’s 2021 Annual Report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

] Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

] Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

] Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with

them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial

statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure

about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner of the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Zhu Jiandi.

BDO China SHU LUN PAN Certified Public Accountants LLP
Shanghai, the People's Republic of China

27 April 2022
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

Interest income 7 601,133 607,531

Interest expense 7 (457,501) (453,846)
Net interest income 7 143,632 153,685

Fee and commission income 8 2,373 3,376
Fee and commission expense 8 (930) (950)
Net fee and commission income 8 1,443 2,426
Net trading and foreign exchange gain/(loss) 9 23,750 (6,390)
Net gain on financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss - 171

Net gain on derecognition of debt instruments at amortized cost 102 125

Dividend income 10 10,953 11,367
Net (loss)/gain on investment securities 11 (445) 33
Other income, net 12 7,880 3,125
Operating income 187,315 164,542
Share of profit of associates and joint ventures 650 82
Operating expenses 13 (17,172) (16,659)
Credit impairment losses 14 (76,642) (4,321)
Other impairment losses on assets (1,069) (1,597)
Profit before income tax 93,082 142,047
Income tax expense 15 (12,288) (23,231)
Profit for the year 80,794 118,816

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 78,960 117,376
Non-controlling interests 1,834 1,440
80,794 118,816

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

Profit for the year 80,794 118,816

Other comprehensive income:

ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Remeasurement of supplemental retirement benefits obligation 116 3
Net gain/(loss) on in\./est.ments in equity instruments through 881 (280)
other comprehensive income
Subtotal 997 (277)
Iltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (1,445) (2,936)
Net gain/(loss) of debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 2,144 (805)
Others 879 (497)
Subtotal 1,578 (4,238)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 2,575 (4,515)
Total comprehensive income for the year 83,369 114,301
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 81,384 113,463
Non-controlling interests 1,985 838
83,369 114,301

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

As at 31 December

Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 16 92,565 131,354
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 17 195,044 341,853
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 18 371,086 106,536
Derivative financial assets 19 16,978 37,737
Financial assets held under resale agreements 20 495,214 588,312
Loans and advances to customers 21 12,791,666 12,640,362

Financial Investments

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 22 1,005,966 1,055,703
Debt instruments at amortized cost 23 1,146,917 1,273,000
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 24 772,622 664,916
Investments in associates and joint ventures 25 443 518
Property and equipment 26 109,531 94,521
Deferred tax assets 27 138,127 124,221
Other assets 28 31,782 44,542
Total assets 17,167,941 17,103,575
Liabilities

Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 29 2,395,514 2,879,272
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 30 448,961 499,062
Placements from banks 31 69,680 92,864
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss 32 2,085 2,051
Derivative financial liabilities 19 9,359 26,843
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 33 21,205 124,725
Due to customers 34 1,079,196 1,167,538
Debt securities issued 35 11,480,377 10,722,092
Current tax liabilities 17,445 2,922
Deferred tax liabilities 27 8,274 4,695
Other liabilities 36 97,565 100,929

Total liabilities 15,629,661 15,622,983
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

As at 31 December

Equity
Share capital 37 421,248 421,248
Capital reserve 38 182,285 181,677
Investment revaluation reserve 39 (11,547) (14,755)
Surplus reserve 40 201,134 185,631
General reserve 40 258,519 248,966
Currency translation reserve (3,076) (1,684)
Retained earnings 41 465,883 434,686
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Bank 1,614,446 1,455,769
Non-controlling interests 42 23,834 24,823

Total equity 1,638,280 1,480,592

Total liabilities and equity 17,167,941 17,103,575

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are signed on its behalf by:

Executive Vice President,

in charge of the finance function Head of Finance

Chairman President
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
Year ended 31 December
Notes _ 2020
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax 93,082 142,047
Adjustments:
Impairment losses on assets 77,711 5918
Depreciation and amortization 6,218 6,008
Interest expense for debt securities issued 365,994 343,151
Interest expense for borrowings from governments and financial institutions 8,865 11,248
Interest income for investment securities (57,881) (64,973)
Interest income arising from impaired loans and advances to customers (643) (368)
Net gain on financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss (18,228) (13,529)
Net loss/(gain) on investment securities 343 (158)
Net gain on disposal of property and equipment, intangible assets and (804) (585)
other long-term assets
Net foreign exchange loss 31,037 30,503
Share of profit of associate and joint ventures (650) (82)
Dividend income (68) -
Subtotal 504,976 459,180
Net change in operating assets and operating liabilities:
Ne;t(;g::;?na::czgl ki):;r;;:ﬁsnvsvith central banks and deposits with banks and 161883 187,356
Net increase in financial assets held under resale agreements (535) (4,071)
Net decrease/(increase) in financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 26,301 (46,269)
Net increase in loans and advances to customers (448,448) (1,011,563)
Net (increase)/decrease in placements with banks and other financial institutions (55,071) 6,269
Net decrease in other operating assets 45,847 50,850
Net decrgase ?n que.to pustomers and deposits from banks and (563.183) (437.972)
other financial institutions
Net increase in placements from banks 6,779 22,550
Net (decrease)/increase in financial assets sold under repurchase agreements (103,435) 12,084
Net decrease in other operating liabilities (2,630) (51,918)
Subtotal (932,492) (1,272,684)
Income tax paid (8,993) (39,629)
Net cash outflows from operating activities (436,509) (853,133)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

Notes 2020

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash received from disposal/redemption of debt instruments at amortized cost

and financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 147,849 805,212
Cash received from returns on investment securities 61,632 67,521
Cash received from other investing activities 6,685 5,939
Cash paid for purchase of property and equipment, intangible assets and (25.247) (17572)

other long-term assets
Ca§h palid for purchasg of debt instruments at amortized lcoslt and (1.129.687) (914.834)

financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Net cash inflows from investing activities 61,232 (53,734)
Cash flows from financing activities
Cash received from debt securities issued 2,640,976 2,472,703
Cash received from borrowings from governments and other institutions 54,025 115,616
Cash (paid for)/received from other financing activities (3,328) 2,246
Transactions with non-controlling interests 341 480
Cash paiq for repayments of debt securitieg is§ue‘d and (2,023,570) (1,588,066)
borrowings from governments and other institutions
Cash paylment for interest on debt securitieg isgugd and (367.453) (337.453)
borrowings from governments and other institutions
Dividends paid (22,707) (27,871)
Net cash inflows from financing activities 278,284 637,655
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (5,632) (9,377)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (102,625) (278,589)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 859,006 1,137,595
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 43(1) 756,381 859,006
Net cash flows from operating activities include:
Interest received 543,442 542,212
Interest paid (84,957) (107,671)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

China Development Bank (the “Bank”) was formerly a wholly state-owned policy
bank which was established on 17 March 1994. Approved by the State Council
of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), China Development Bank was
converted into a joint stock corporation on 11 December 2008, established
jointly by the Ministry of Finance (the "MOF") and Central Huijin Investment Ltd.
(“Huijin™), and renamed as China Development Bank Corporation.

On 19 April 2017, with the approval of the China Banking and Insurance
Regulatory Commission (the former “China Banking Regulatory Commission,
CBRC” and “China Insurance Regulatory Commission, CIRC', the “CBIRC")
and after completing the review by and registration of corporate changes with
the State Administration of Business and Commerce, China Development
Bank Corporation changed its name to China Development Bank, and
changed its form of organization from a joint stock corporation to a limited
liability company. After these changes, the Bank operates under business
license No. 911100000000184548 issued by Beijing Administration of
Industry and Commerce on 19 April 2017, and financial institution license No.
GO001H111000001 issued by the CBIRC on 13 June 2017. The registration of
corporate changes does not affect the rights and obligations of the Bank. After
the changes, the Bank assumes all the assets, creditor’'s rights, debts and
businesses of the former China Development Bank Corporation

Committed to strengthening national competitiveness and improving people’s
livelihood, the Bank and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) align
their business focus with China’s major medium - and long-term economic
development strategies by leveraging its unrivalled position as a leading bank
for medium and long-term financing and comprehensive financial services, so
as to raise and channel economic resources in support of the following areas:

- Economic and social development, including infrastructures, basic
industries, pillar industries, public services and management;

- New urbanization, urban-rural integration, and balanced regional
development;

- Programs vital for national competitiveness, including energy conservation,
environmental protection, high-end manufacturing, and the transformation
and upgrading of traditional industries;

- Public welfare, including affordable housing, poverty alleviation, student
loans, and inclusive finance;

- National strategies, including those in science and technology, culture,
and people-to-people exchange;

- International cooperation, including the Belt and Road Initiative,
industrial capacity and equipment manufacturing projects, infrastructure
connectivity, energy and resources, and Chinese enterprises “Going
Global”;

- Initiatives that support China’s development needs and economic and
financial reforms; and

- Other areas as mandated by and aligned with national development
strategies and policies.

The head office and domestic branches of the Bank and its subsidiaries
registered in the Mainland China are referred to as the “Domestic Operations”.
Branches and subsidiaries registered outside of the Mainland China are
referred to as the “Overseas Operations”.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

2.1 Amendments to the accounting standards effective in 2021 relevant to and adopted by the Group
The following amendments have been adopted by the Group for the first time during the financial year ended 31 December 2021:

(1) Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16
(2)  Amendments to IFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

(1) Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2

The amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 address the accounting issues that arise when financial instruments that reference Interbank
Offered Rates (“IBOR") transition to nearly risk-free rates (“RFRs”). The amendments include a practical expedient for modifications, which permits contractual
changes, or changes to cash flows that are directly required by the IBOR reform, to be treated as changes to a floating interest rate. The amendments also
permit changes required by IBOR reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation under both IFRS 9 and IAS 39 without the hedging
relationship being discontinued. In addition, while IFRS 9 and IAS 39 require that a risk component (or a designated portion) is “separately identifiable” to be
eligible for hedge accounting, the amendments provide temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR
instrument is designated as a hedge of a risk component. Disclose information about new risks arising from the reform and how it manages the transition to

alternative benchmark rates is required by the amendments.

(2) IFRS 16 Amendments: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

Effective 1 June 2020, IFRS 16 was amended to provide a practical expedient for lessees accounting for rent concessions that arise as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and satisfy the qualifying criteria. Rent concessions that satisfy the criteria may be accounted for in accordance with the
practical expedient, which means the lessee does not assess whether the rent concession meets the definition of a lease modification. Lessees apply other

requirements in IFRS 16 in accounting for the concession.

On 31 March 2021, the IASB issued another amendment to IFRS 16: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021, which extended the above
practical expedient to reductions in lease payments that were originally due on or before 30 June 2022. This amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with earlier application permitted. The amendment is to be applied mandatorily by those entities that have elected to apply

the previous amendment COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions.

The adoption of the above standards and amendments does not have any significant impact on the operating results, financial position and comprehensive

income of the Group.
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2.2 Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective and have not been adopted before their

effective dates in 2021

The Group has not adopted the following new and amended standards IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.

(1) Amendments to IAS 16 Intended Use

(2)  Amendments to IAS 37

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-
2020 Cycle (issued in May 2020)

(4)  Amendments to IAS 1

IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2
Amendments

(6)  Amendments to IAS 8

(7) ~ Amendments to IAS 12 ) :
a single transaction

(8)  IFRS 17 and Amendments Insurance Contracts

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

Definition of Accounting Estimates
Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after

1 January 2022
1 January 2022
1 January 2022
1 January 2023
1 January 2023
1 January 2023
1 January 2023

1 January 2023

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

(9)  Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

(1) Amendments to IAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use

IAS 16 Amendments prohibit entities from deducting from the cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment, any proceeds of the sale of items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognizes the proceeds from selling such items, and
the costs of producing those items, in profit or loss.

(2) Amendments to IAS 37: Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

IAS 37 Amendments specify which costs an entity needs to include when
assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-making. The amendments
apply a “directly related cost approach”. The costs that relate directly to a
contract to provide goods or services include both incremental costs and
an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities. General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded
unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the
contract.

(3) Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2021 Cycle

The 2018-2021 cycle of annual improvements make minor amendments to
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards,
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, IAS 41 Agriculture and the illustrative
examples accompanying IFRS 16 Leases.

(4) Amendments to IAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

IAS 1 Amendments specify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current. The amendments clarify what is meant by a
right to defer settlement that a right to defer must exist at the end of the
reporting period, classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an
entity will exercise its deferral right, and only if an embedded derivative
in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument, would the terms of a
liability not impact its classification.

(5) IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Amendments: Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

The amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 change
the disclosure requirements with respect to accounting policies
from “significant accounting policies” to “material accounting policy
Information”. The amendments provide guidance on when accounting
policy information is likely to be considered material.

(6) Amendments to IAS 8: Definition of Accounting Estimates

IAS 8 Amendments added the definition of Accounting Estimates in IAS
8. The amendments also clarified that the effects of a change in an input
or measurement technique are changes in accounting estimates, unless
resulting from correction of prior period errors.

(7) Amendments to IAS 12: Deferred tax related to assets and
liabilities arising from a single transaction

The amendments clarify whether the initial recognition exemption applies
to certain transactions that result in both an asset and a liability being

its Associate or Joint Venture

Effective date has been deferred indefinitely

recognized simultaneously (e.g. a lease in the scope of IFRS 16). The
amendments introduce an additional criterion for the initial recognition
exemption under IAS 12.15, whereby the exemption does not apply
to the initial recognition of an asset or liability which at the time of
the transaction, gives rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences.

(8) IFRS 17 and Amendments: Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and IFRS 17 amendments replaced IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts. The standard provides a general model for insurance
contracts and two additional approaches: the variable fee approach and
the premium allocation approach. IFRS 17 and amendments cover the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance
contracts and apply to all types of insurance contracts.

(9) Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution between an investor and its associate or
joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognized in the investor’'s profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investor's interest in that associate or joint venture.

The adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretations will
have no material impact on the financial statements.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated

Accounting period
The accounting year starts on 1 January and ends on 31 December.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with IFRSs, as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB").

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for assets and that is received (or
in some circumstances the amount expected to be paid) with respect to
liabilities.

The preparation of financial statements under IFRSs requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
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policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Bank and entities (including structured entities) controlled by the Bank
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Bank:

- has power over the investee;

- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee; and

- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Bank reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Bank obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Bank loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income, expenses and cash flows of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of cash flows from the date
the Bank gain control until the date when the Bank ceases to control the
subsidiary. The Group consolidates all entities that it controls, including
those controlled through investment entity subsidiaries.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting
or similar rights are not the dominant factor in deciding who controls
the entity, such as when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks
only and the relevant activities are directed by means of contractual
arrangements.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Bank and to the non-controlling interests.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners
of the Bank and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into alignment with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup transactions, balances and unrealized gain on transactions
are eliminated in full on consolidation. Unrealized loss is also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred assets.

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognized directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Bank.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognized in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (i) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e., recognized in the consolidated income statement). When
the Group retains an interest in the former subsidiary and the retained
interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition in accordance with IFRS 9.

At the acquisition date, irrespective of non-controlling interests, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed are recognized at their fair values; except that deferred tax
assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognized and measured in accordance with IAS 12 -
Income Taxes and IAS 19 — Employee Benefits, respectively.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the difference between (i) the
consideration transferred, the fair value of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree, and the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) and (i) the net fair value of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities and contingent liabilities incurred or
assumed.

(5)
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Non-controlling interests that represent ownership interests in the
acquiree, and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are accounted for at either fair value
or the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share in the recognized
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

Interest in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but does not constitute control
or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognized in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost.

On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognized as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognized immediately in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which the investment is acquired.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is adjusted thereafter to
recognize the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. When the Group's share of
loss of an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group'’s interest in that
associate or the joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or
the joint venture), the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further
loss. Additional loss is recognized only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate or joint venture.

The Group periodically assesses whether it is necessary to recognize any
impairment loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate
or a joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognized
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognized in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when
the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or when
the investment is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate or former joint venture and the retained
interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition in accordance with IFRS 9. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or the joint venture at the date the equity
method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest and
any proceeds from disposing of a part of the interest in the associate
or the joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate or the joint venture. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate or the joint venture on the same basis
as would be required if that associate or the joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognized in other comprehensive income by that associate or
the joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity
method is discontinued, excepted for equity instrument designated as fair
value through other comprehensive.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of the
Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and loss resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognized
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related to the Group.



144

ERFA4$R1T CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

(6) Revenue recognition

~

-

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for services provided in the
normal course of business, net of sales related taxes. Specific recognition
criteria for different nature of revenue are disclosed below.

(a)
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of financial assets, except for:

Interest income

- Purchased or originated credit-impaired (“POCI") financial assets, the
Group calculates the credit-adjusted effective interest rate, which is
calculated based on the amortized cost of the financial asset instead
of its gross carrying amount and incorporates the impact of expected
credit loss in estimated future cash flows.

- Financial assets that are not ‘POCI" but have subsequently become
credit-impaired (or ‘Stage 3'), for which interest revenue is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to their amortized cost (i.e., net
of the expected credit loss provision).

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset (i.e., its amortized cost before any impairment allowance) or to the
amortized cost of a financial liability. The calculation does not consider
expected credit loss (‘ECL) and includes transaction costs, premiums
or discounts and fees and points paid or received that are integral to the
effective interest rate.

(b)

Fee and commission income is recognized when the service is provided.

Fee and commission income

Interest expense

Interest expense for all interest-bearing financial liabilities, except for
those designated at fair value through profit or loss or held for trading, are
recognized within “Interest expense” in the consolidated income statement
using the effective interest method.

Foreign currency transactions
(a) Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Domestic Operations is Renminbi (‘RMB”).
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s Overseas
Operations are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates. The presentation currency of the
Group and the Bank is RMB.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gain and loss resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognized in the consolidated income statement.

Changes in the fair value of monetary assets denominated in foreign
currency classified as fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI") are analyzed between translation differences resulting from
changes in the amortized cost of the monetary assets and other changes
in the carrying amount. Translation differences related to changes in the
amortized cost are recognized in the consolidated income statement,
and other changes in the carrying amount are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at historical cost
in foreign currencies are translated using the foreign exchange rates at
the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss
are recognized in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equities classified
as FVTOCI are recognized in other comprehensive income.

(c)
The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from RMB are translated as follows:

Translation of financial statements in foreign currency

- assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that

-

statement of financial position; except the retained earnings, other
items in equity holders’ equity are translated at the rate prevailing at
the date when they occurred;

- income and expenses for each income statement and statement of
comprehensive income are translated at the exchange rate prevailing
on the date when the items occurred, or a rate that approximates the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Taxation
Income taxes comprise current income tax and deferred income tax.

(a)
Current income tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year. The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before income tax as reported in the
consolidated income statement because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

(b)
Deferred income tax is recognized on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither taxable profit nor accounting profit.

Current income tax

Deferred income tax

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests
in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognized in the consolidated income
statement, except when they related to items that are recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a
net basis.

(10) Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given and other relevant
expenditures incurred by the Group in exchange for services rendered by
employees or for termination of the employment contracts. These benefits
include short-term employee benefits, post-employment benefits and early
retirement benefits.



(a) Short-term employee benefits

In the reporting period in which an employee has rendered services, the
Group recognizes the short-term employee benefits payable for those
services as a liability with the corresponding amounts recognized as
expenses in the consolidated income statement. Short-term employee
benefits include salaries, bonuses, staff welfare, medical insurance,
employment injury insurance, maternity insurance, housing funds as well
as labor union fees and staff education expenses.

(b) Post-employment benefits

The Group’s post-employment benefits are primarily the payments for
basic pensions and unemployment insurance related to government
mandated social welfare programs, as well as the annuity scheme
established. The group operates various post-employment schemes,
including both defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans.

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to the basic pensions and unemployment insurance plan are
recognized in the consolidated income statement for the period in which
the related payment obligation is incurred.

The employees of the Bank's head office and domestic branches
(“Domestic Institutions”) participate in an annuity scheme established by
the Bank (the “Annuity Scheme”). The Bank pays annuity contributions with
reference to employees’ salaries, and such contributions are expensed in
the consolidated income statement when incurred.

Defined benefit plans

The Group provides supplemental pension benefit and post-retirement
healthcare benefit to the retirees retired on or before 31 December 2011.
The entitlement to the benefits is conditional on one or more factors such
as age, years of service and compensation.

The liability recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position
in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows using interest rates of RMB treasury bonds that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation.
Differences arising from changes in assumptions and estimates of the
present value of the liabilities are recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income when incurred.

(c) Early retirement benefits

Early retirement benefits have been paid to those employees who accept
voluntary retirement before the normal retirement date, as approved by
management. The related benefit payments are made from the date of
early retirement to the normal retirement date.

The accounting treatment of the early retirement benefits is in accordance
with termination benefits as determined in IAS 19. The liability is
recognized for the early retirement benefit payments from the date
of early retirement to the normal retirement date when the criteria for
recognition as termination benefit is met with a corresponding charge in
the consolidated income statement. Differences arising from changes
in assumptions and estimates of the present value of the liabilities are
recognized in the consolidated income statement when incurred.

(11) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short term and highly liquid assets,
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other financial
institutions and other short-term and highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less.

(12) Determination of fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
in the principal market (or in the absence of a principal market, the most
advantageous market) at the measurement date.

For financial instruments traded in active markets, the determination of
fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities is based on quoted
market prices. For financial instruments traded in inactive markets, fair
value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation
techniques include the use of recent transaction prices, discounted
cash flow analysis, option pricing model and other valuation techniques
commonly used by market participants.
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For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized
into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data.

(13) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

(a) Classification of financial assets

Financial assets are classified on the basis of the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the assets:

(i)  Amortized cost ("AC”). Financial assets at amortized cost primarily
include balances with central banks, deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, placements with banks and other financial
institutions, financial assets held under resale agreements, loans
and advances to customers at amortized cost, debt instruments at
amortized cost and other receivables.

(i) FVTOCI. Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income include debt securities, and equity
instruments designated as fair value through other comprehensive
income which are not held for trading purpose.

(i

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL’). Financial assets measured
at fair value through profit or loss primarily include held-for-trading
financial assets, loan and advances to customers measured at fair
value through profit or loss, equity instruments other than designated
at FVTOCI, debt investments that do not meet the criteria for
amortized cost or FVTOCI.

The business model reflects how the Group manages the assets in order
to generate cash flows. That is, whether the Group’s objective is solely
to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets or is to collect
both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of
assets. If neither of these is applicable (e.g., financial assets are held for
trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of other
business model and measured at FVTPL. Factors considered by the Group
in determining the business model for a group of assets include past
experience on how the cash flows for these assets were collected, how
the asset’s performance is evaluated and reported to key management
personnel, how risks are assessed and managed and how managers are
compensated.

Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows or to collect contractual cash flows and sell, the Group assesses
whether the financial instruments’ cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest (“SPPI”). In making this assessment, the Group
considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic
lending arrangement i.e., interest includes only consideration for the time
value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin
that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual
terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a
basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety
when determine whether their cash flows are SPPI.

The classification requirements for debt instruments and equity
instruments are described as below:

Debt Instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a
financial liability from the issuer’'s perspective, such as government and
corporate bonds. Classification and subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depend on the Group's business model for managing the
asset and the cash flow characteristics of asset.

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt instruments into one
of the following three measurement categories:

(i) Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent SPPI, and that are not
designated at FVTPL, are measured at amortized cost.



146

ERFA4$R1T CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

(i) FVTOCI: Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent SPPI, and that are not designated at FVTPL, are measured
at FVTOCI.

(i) FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

The Group may also irrevocably designate financial assets at FVTPL if
doing so significantly reduces or eliminates a mismatch created by assets
and liabilities being measured on different bases.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective; that is, instruments that do not contain a
contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the
issuer’s net assets. Examples of equity instruments include basic ordinary
shares.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at FVTPL, except
where the Group’s management has elected, at initial recognition, to
irrevocably designate an equity investment at FVTOCI. The Group’s policy
is to designate equity investments as FVTOCI when those investments are
held for purposes other than to generate investment returns.

(b) Reclassification of financial assets

When the Group changes its business model for managing financial
assets, it shall reclassify all affected financial assets, and apply the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date. The Group
does not restate any previously recognized gain, loss (including
impairment gains or losses) or interest. Reclassification date is the first
day of the first reporting period following the change in business model
that results in the Group reclassifying financial assets.

(c) Classification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at amortized
cost, except for financial liabilities at FVTPL, which is applied to
derivatives, financial liabilities held for trading and other financial liabilities
designated as such at initial recognition.

(d) Initial recognition and measurement

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and
derecognized on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or financial
liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset
or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of the financial asset or financial liability. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

The Group may, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial
liability as measured at FVTPL: (i) it eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as an
accounting mismatch); (i) a group of financial liabilities or financial assets
and financial liabilities is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and information about the group is provided internally
on that basis to the entity’s key management personnel.

Financial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial assets which did
not qualify for derecognition whereby a financial liability is recognized for
the consideration received for the transfer. In subsequent periods, the
Group recognizes any expense incurred on the financial liability.

(e) Subsequent measurement

Subsequent measurement of financial instruments depends on the
categories:

Amortized cost

The amortized cost is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liability is measured at initial recognition: (i) minus the principal
repayments; (ii) plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount; (iii) for financial assets, adjusted for any credit
loss allowance. Interest income and interest expense from these financial
assets is included in “Interest income” and “Interest expense” using the
effective interest rate method.

For floating-rate financial assets and floating-rate financial liabilities,
periodic re-estimation of cash flows to reflect the movements in the market
rates of interest alters the effective interest rate. If a floating-rate financial
asset or a floating-rate financial liability is recognized initially at an amount
equal to the principal receivable or payable on maturity, re-estimating the
future interest payments normally has no significant effect on the carrying
amount of the asset or the liability.

If the Group revises its estimates of payments or receipts, it shall
recalculate the carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability
as the present value of the revised estimated future cash flows, and the
carrying amount discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
adjustment is recognized in profit or loss as income or expense.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
Debt instruments

Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for
the recognition of impairment gain or loss, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gain and loss on the instrument's amortized cost which are
recognized in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognized,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified
to profit or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
“interest income” using the effective interest rate method.

Equity instruments

The equity instrument investments that are held for purposes other than
to generate investment returns are designated as FVTOCI. When this
election is used, fair value gain and loss is recognized in OCl and are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal.
Dividends, when representing a return on such investments, continue to
be recognized in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established, and it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group, and the amounts of the dividends can
be measured reliably.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Debt instruments

A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is
recognized in profit or loss and presented in the income statement within
“Net trading and foreign exchange gain” in the period in which it arises,
unless it arises from debt instruments that were designated at fair value or
which are not held for trading, in which case they are presented separated
in “Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss”.

Equity instruments

Gain and loss on equity investments at FVTPL are included in the “Net
trading and foreign exchange gain” in the income statement of.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Gain or loss on financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL are presented
partially in other comprehensive income (the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability, which is determined as the amount that is not
attributable to changes in market conditions that give rise to market risk)
and partially profit or loss (the remaining amount of change in the fair
value of the liability). This is unless such a presentation would create,
or enlarge, an accounting mismatch, in which case the gain or loss
attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability are also presented
in profit or loss. The gain and loss from financial liabilities including the
effects of credit risk variance should be recognized in current profit and
loss by the Group.

When the liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss is
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to retained earnings.

(f) Impairment of financial instruments

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL associated with
its debt instrument assets carried at amortized cost and FVTOCI and with
exposure arising from some loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts.

The Group measures ECL of a financial instrument reflects:

(i) an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

(i) the time value of money; and



(i) reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

For financial instruments whose credit loss allowance are measured using
the ECL model, the Group assesses whether their credit risk has increased
significantly since their initial recognition, and applies a three-stage
impairment model to calculate their credit loss and recognize their ECL,
as follows:

Stage 1: If the credit risk has not increased significantly since its initial
recognition, the financial asset is included in Stage 1 and have its ECL
measured at an amount equivalent to the ECL of the financial instrument
for the next 12 months.

Stage 2: If the credit risk has increased significantly since its initial
recognition but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired, the financial
instrument is included in Stage 2 and have its ECL measured at an
amount equivalent to the ECL over the lifetime of the financial instrument.

Stage 3: If the financial instruments is credit-impaired, the financial
instrument is included in Stage 3 and have its ECL measured at an
amount equivalent to the ECL over the lifetime of the financial instrument.

The Group applies the impairment requirements for the recognition and
measurement of credit loss allowance for debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI. The credit impairment loss is recognized in profit
or loss, and it should not be presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a reduction of the carrying amount of the
financial asset.

The Group has measured the credit loss allowance for a financial
instrument other than POCI at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit loss in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current
reporting date that the credit risk on the financial instruments has
increased significantly since initial recognition is no longer met, the Group
measures the credit loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit loss at the current reporting date and the amount of
expected credit loss reversal is recognized in profit or loss. For POCI,
at the reporting date, the Group only recognize the cumulative changes
in lifetime expected credit loss since initial recognition as credit loss
allowance for POCI financial assets.

When a financial asset is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

(g) Contractual modification of loans

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual
cash flows of loans to customers. When this happens, the Group assesses
whether or not the new terms are substantially different to the original
terms.

If the terms are substantially different, the Group derecognizes the original
financial asset and recognizes a ‘new’ asset at fair value and recalculates
a new effective interest rate for the asset. The date of renegotiation is
consequently considered to be the date of initial recognition for credit loss
allowance calculation purposes, including for the purpose of determining
whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred. However,
the Group also assesses whether the new financial asset recognized
is deemed to be credit-impaired at initial recognition, especially in
circumstances where the renegotiation was driven by the debtor being
unable to make the originally agreed payments. Differences in the carrying
amount are also recognized as gain or loss on derecognition of debt
instrument at amortized cost.

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or modification
does not result in derecognition, and the Group recalculates the gross
carrying amount based on the revised cash flows of the financial asset
and recognizes a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross
carrying amount is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at
the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate
for POCI financial assets).

(h) Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognize the asset to the extent
of its continuing involvement and recognizes an associated liability. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the financial
asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable, the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in
profit or loss.

Securitization

As part of its operational activities, the Group undertakes securitization
transactions through which it transfers certain financial assets to special
purpose trusts which issue asset-backed securities ("ABS”) to investors.
The Group holds part of the senior and sub-ordinated tranche of these
ABS. As the asset manager of these ABS, the Group provides services
including collecting payments from loans in the assets pool, maintaining
account records related to the assets pool, providing service reports and
other services.

After payment of tax and related costs, the trust assets should firstly
be used for principal and interest payment to holders of senior tranche
ABS, and then to holders of sub-ordinated tranche ABS. The Group
derecognizes or partially derecognizes the transferred financial assets
according to the extent of transfer of the risks and rewards of ownership
of the transferred financial assets.

(i) Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in the
consolidated income statement.

(j) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported
in the consolidated statement of financial position when there is a current
legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and the Group
has an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
of the Group or the counterparty. Otherwise, financial assets and financial
liabilities are reported separately.

(k) Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due, in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees are initially recognized at fair value on the date
the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s
liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial
amount, less amortization of guarantee fees recognized in accordance
with the revenue recognition policy, and the impairment allowance
determined by the expected credit loss (“ECL’) model. Any increase in the
liability relating to guarantee is taken to the income statement.

The credit loss allowance of loan commitments provided by the Group
is measured by ECL. The Group has not provided any commitment to
provide loans at a below-market interest rate, or that can be settled net in
cash or by delivering or issuing another financial instrument.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the credit
loss allowance is recognized as a provision. However, for contracts that
include both a loan and an undrawn commitment and the Group cannot
separately identify the expected credit loss on the undrawn commitment
component from those on the loan component, the expected credit loss
on the undrawn commitment are recognized together with the credit loss
allowance for the loan. To the extent that the combined expected credit
loss exceeds the gross carrying amount of the loan, the expected credit
loss is recognized as a provision.

(14)Financial assets held under resale agreements and

financial assets sold under repurchase agreements

Financial assets held under resale agreements are transactions where the
Group acquires financial assets which will be resold at a predetermined
price at a future date under resale agreements. Financial assets sold
under repurchase agreements are transactions where the Group sells
financial assets which will be repurchased at a predetermined price at a
future date under repurchase agreements.

Both financial assets held under resale agreements and financial assets
sold under repurchase agreements of the Group are in the form of
pledged repo. The cash advanced or received is recognized as amounts
held under resale or sold under repurchase agreements in the statement
of financial position. Assets held under resale agreements are not
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recognized. Assets sold under repurchase agreements continue to be
recognized in the statement of financial position.

The difference between the purchase and resale consideration, and that
between the sale and repurchase consideration, is amortized over the
period of the respective transaction using the effective interest method
and is included in interest income and interest expenses respectively.

(15) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair
value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognized in profit or loss.

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contract which contains a host that is
a non-financial assets, are treated as separate derivatives when their
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the hybrid
contracts and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are separately accounted for at FVTPL unless the Group
choose to designate the hybrid contract at fair value through profit or loss.

In order to avoid certain risk, the Group has designated certain derivative
instruments as hedging instruments. The Group uses hedge accounting
to account for these hedging instruments which satisfy specified criteria.
The Group’s hedging relationship include fair value hedges and cash flow
hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the
relationship between hedging instrument and hedged item, as well as
its risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both
at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item.

(a) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as
fair value hedges are recognized in the consolidated income statement,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability
that are attributable to the hedged risk. Changes in the fair value of the
derivatives, which are hedged for the risk exposure from fair value change
of non-trading equity investment designated as at FVTOCI, are recognized
in other comprehensive income.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the
adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which the effective
interest method is used is amortized to profit or loss over the period to
maturity. If the hedged item is derecognized, the unamortized carrying
value adjustment is recognized in profit or loss.

(b) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualified as cash flow hedges is recognized in other
comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion
is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are recognized in profit or loss in the periods
when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same line as the
recognized hedged item. When the hedged forecast transaction results in
the recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the
same period during which the hedged forecast transaction affect profit or
loss.

Hedge accounting is discontinued under following situations:

- When the hedged cash flow affects profit or loss, the gain or loss on
the hedging instrument recognized directly in other comprehensive
income is recycled in the corresponding income or expense line of
the income statement. When the hedging relationship ceases to meet
the qualifying criteria after taking into account any rebalancing of the
hedging relationship, including the hedging instrument has expired
or has been sold, terminated or exercised, any cumulative gain or
loss existing in other comprehensive income at that time remains in
other comprehensive income until the hedged forecast transaction
ultimately occurs.

- When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, any
cumulative gain or loss in equity is transferred immediately to profit
or loss.

(16) Equity instruments issued by the group

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognized at the fair value of
proceeds received, net of direct issuance costs.

(17) Property and equipment

The Group’s property and equipment comprise buildings, office and
machinery equipment, motor vehicles and vessels, aircrafts and
construction in progress.

All property and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent expenditures are included in the asset's carrying amount or are recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the consolidated income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of such assets to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as

follows:
Useful lives Residual value rates Annual depreciation rates
Buildings 20-35 years 0%-5% 2.71%-5.00%
Office and machinery equipment 3-25 years 0%-5% 3.80%-33.33%
Motor vehicles and vessels 4-6 years 0%-5% 15.83%-25.00%
Aircrafts 11-20 years 15% 4.25%-7.73%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Properties in the course of construction for supply of services or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognized
impairment loss. Such properties are classified to the appropriate category
of property and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.

Gain and loss on disposal of property and equipment are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount. These are included in
profit or loss.

(18) Foreclosed assets

Foreclosed assets are initially recognized at fair value of assets not
retained plus related costs, and subsequently measured at the lower of
their carrying amount and fair value, less costs to sell, at the end of each

reporting period. When the fair value, less costs to sell, is lower than a
foreclosed asset’s carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized in
the consolidated income statement.

Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the foreclosed asset is included
in the consolidated income statement in the period in which the item is
disposed.

The Group disposes of foreclosed assets through various means. In
principle, foreclosed assets should not be transferred for own use,
but, in the event that they are needed for the Group's own business or
management purposes, they are transferred at their net carrying amounts
and managed as newly acquired property and equipment.

(19) Investment property

Investment property is property held to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation, or both.



Investment property is initially measured at its acquisition cost.
Subsequent expenditures incurred for the investment property are
included in the cost of the investment property if it is probable that
economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and
the subsequent expenditures can be measured reliably. Other subsequent
expenditures are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

Investment properties are measured using the cost model. Depreciation
and amortization are recognized the same way as property and equipment
and land use rights.

When an investment property is sold, transferred, retired or damaged,
the Group recognizes the amount of any proceeds on disposal, net of the
carrying amount and related expenses, in profit or loss.

(20) Leases

(a) Identification of leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of one or more identified assets for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time, the Group assesses whether, throughout the period of use, customer
has both of the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits
from use of the identified asset and the right to direct the use of the
identified asset.

(b) As Lessee
Lease modifications

Lease modification is a change in the scope of a lease, or the
consideration for a lease, that was not part of the original terms and
conditions of the lease, for example, adding or terminating the right to use
one or more underlying assets, or extending or shortening the contractual
lease term.

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if both:

(i)  the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right
to use one or more underlying assets; and

(i) the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope
and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect
the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease,
at the effective date of the lease modification the Group remeasures the
lease liability by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate. The revised discount rate is determined as the interest rate
implicit in the lease for the remainder of the lease term, or the Group's
incremental borrowing rate at the effective date of the modification, if the
interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the
Group accounts for the remeasurement of the lease liability by:

(i)  decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect
the partial or full termination of the lease for lease modifications that
decrease the scope or term of the lease, and recognising the gain or
loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease in profit or
loss; or

(i) making a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset for all
other lease modifications.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group considers a lease that, at the commencement date of the
lease, has a lease term of 12 months or less, and does not contains any
purchase option as a short-term lease; and a lease for which the value of
the individual underlying asset is not more than RMB50,000 when it is new
as a lease of low-value assets. The Group chooses not to recognize the
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets, and the rental expenses are recognized as “Operating
expenses” in the income statement on a straight-line basis over each
period of the lease term.

(c) As Lessor

At the inception date, a lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset. Otherwise, a lease is classified as an operating lease.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes finance
lease receivable and derecognizes the assets under finance leases. The
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Group presents lease receivable at an amount equal to the net investment
in the lease for the initial measurement. The net investment in the lease is
the present value of the sum of the unguaranteed residual value and the
unreceived lease payments receivable at the commencement date, which
is discounted by the interest rate implicit in the lease.

The Group calculates and recognizes the interest income in each period
during the lease term using the constant periodic rate of interest, and
recognizes such interest income in profit or loss.

(d) Lessee’s incremental borrowing rate

The Group uses the incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate to
calculate the present value of lease payment. The economic circumstance
and the observable interest rate set the foundation for each institution of
the Group in determining the incremental borrowing rate. On this basis,
the applicable incremental borrowing rate is calculated through the
adjustment of the reference interest rate, which is determined according to
the situation of the institution and the underlying asset, the lease term, the
amount of lease liability and other specific conditions of the lease.

(e) Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets of the Group mainly include buildings, vehicles
and other right-of-use assets.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes a
right-of-use asset. The cost of the right-of-use asset comprises:

(i) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

(i) any lease payments made at or before the commencement date of
the lease less any lease incentives received;

(i) any initial direct costs incurred when the Group is a lessee; and

(iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is
located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
subsequently by the Group. If the Group is reasonably certain that the
ownership of the underlying asset will be transferred to the Group at
the end of the lease term, the Group depreciates the asset from the
commencement date to the end of the useful life of the asset. Otherwise,
the Group depreciates the asset from the commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the asset or the end of the lease
term.

The Group remeasures the lease liabilities at the present value of
the changed lease payments and adjusts the carrying amounts of
the right-of-use assets accordingly. When the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset is reduced to zero, and there is a further reduction in
the measurement of the lease liability, the Group recognizes the remaining
amount of the remeasurement in profit or loss.

(f) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group measures the lease
liabilities at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.

In calculating the present value of the lease payments, the Group uses
the incremental borrowing rate of lessee as the discount rate. The Group
calculates the interest expenses of lease liabilities in each period during
the lease term using the constant periodic rate of interest, and recognizes
such interest expenses in profit or loss. Variable lease payments that are
not included in the measurement of lease liabilities are recognized in profit
or loss as incurred.

After the commencement date, the Group remeasures lease liabilities by
discounting the revised lease payments if any of the following occur: (i)
there is a change in the in-substance fixed payments; (i) there is a change
in the amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee;
(iii) there is a change in future lease payments resulting from a change
in an index or a rate used to determine those payments; or (iv) there is a
change in the assessments of options to purchase the underlying asset,
extend or terminate the lease, or the circumstances of the actual exercise
of these options.

(21) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment loss. Intangible assets include computer software and other
intangible assets. Amortization for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
which generally range from 1 to 10 years.
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At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the useful lives and
amortization method of intangible assets with finite useful lives. The Group
has no intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

(22) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less
any accumulated impairment loss and is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the business combination.
Cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently whenever there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in
a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit,
and then to the other assets of the cash-generating unit on a pro-rata
basis, based on the carrying amount of each asset in the cash-generating
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognized directly in the
consolidated income statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount
of goodwill capitalized is included in the determination of the amount of
gain or loss on disposal.

(23) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than

financial instruments and goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognized for the asset. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized in profit or loss.

(24) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity holders is recognized as
a liability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by those charged with governance.

(25) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows.

(26) Fiduciary activities

The Group acts as a custodian, trustee and in other fiduciary capacities to
safeguard assets for customers in accordance with custody agreements
between the Group and securities investment funds, trust companies,
other institutions and individuals. The Group receives fees in return for
its services provided under the custody agreements and does not have
any interest in the economic risks and rewards related to assets under
custody. Therefore, assets under custody are not recognized in the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group conducts entrusted lending arrangements for its customers.
Under the terms of entrusted loan arrangements, the Group grants

loans to borrowers, as an intermediary, according to the instruction of its
customers who are the lenders providing funds for the entrusted loans.
The Group is responsible for the arrangement and collection of the
entrusted loans and receives a commission for the services rendered.
As the Group does not assume the economic risks and rewards of the
entrusted loans and the funding for the corresponding entrusted funds,
they are not recognized as assets or liabilities of the Group.

(27) Contingent liabilities

-

-

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognized, but
disclosed.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in Note 3, management is required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities. The
estimates and related assumptions are based on historical experience and
other relevant factors including on the basis of reasonable expectations
for future events.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgements and key estimation uncertainty
that the management has made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements in the next
twelve months.

Measurement of credit impairment losses

For financial assets that are measured at amortized cost and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income, and financial guarantee
contracts and loan commitments, the Group assesses the credit loss
allowance and provisions in light of forward-looking information.

Expected credit losses refer to the weighted average of the credit loss
of financial instruments weighted by the risk of default. Credit loss refers
to the difference between all contractual cash flows receivable under
the contract and all expected cash flows discounted by the Group at
the original effective interest rate, that is, the present value of total cash
shortage. Among them, POCI financial assets should be discounted at the
credit-adjusted actual interest rate of the financial assets.

The expected credit losses (“ECL") model involves periodic review of
key definitions, parameters, and assumptions, such as estimates of
future macroeconomic conditions and the borrower’s credit behavior
(e.g., the possibility of customer default and corresponding loss). A
number of significant judgements are required in applying the accounting
requirements for measuring expected credit losses, such as:

- Segmentation of business operations sharing similar credit risk
characteristics, selection of appropriate models and determination of
relevant key measurement parameters;

- Criteria for determining whether there was a significant increase in
credit risk, or a default or impairment loss was incurred as well as
definition of default and credit impairment;

—  Economic indicators for forward-looking measurement, and the
application of economic scenarios and weightings;

- The estimated future cash flows for loans and advances to customers
at amortized cost in Stage 3.

Explanations of the inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used
in measuring ECL are further detailed in Note 49 (2) Credit risk.

Consolidation of structured entities

Where the Group acts as asset manager of or investor in structured
entities, the Group makes significant judgement on whether the Group
controls and should consolidate these structured entities. When
performing this assessment, the Group assesses the Group’s contractual
rights and obligations in light of the transaction structures, and evaluates



Name of entity

-

=

the Group’s power over the structured entities, performs analysis and
tests on the variable returns from the structured entities, including but not
limited to commission income and asset management fees earned as the
asset manager or service provider, the retention of residual income, and, if
any, the liquidity and other support provided to the structured entities. The
Group also assesses whether it acts as a principal or an agent through
analysis of the scope of its decision-making authority over the structured
entities, the remuneration to which it is entitled for its role as asset
manager or service provider, the Group’s exposure to variability of returns
from its other interests in the structured entities, and the rights held by
other parties in the structured entities.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets
is determined by using valuation techniques. These include the use of
recent arm'’s length transactions, discounted cash flow method, net asset
value, comparable companies approach, and other valuation techniques
commonly adopted by market participants. To the extent practical, the
Group uses only observable market data, however areas such as credit
risk of the Group and the counterparties, weighted average cost of capital,
perpetual growth rate, liquidity discount, prepayment rate and similarity
to comparable companies and their performance indicators may not
be observable and require management to make estimates and apply
judgements. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
estimated fair value of financial instruments.

De-recognition of financial assets transferred

In the normal course of business, the Group transfers its financial assets
through various types of transactions including, among others, regular way
sales and transfers, securitization, financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements. The Group applies significant judgement in assessing
whether it has transferred these financial assets which qualify for a full or
partial de-recognition.

Where the Group enters into structured transactions by which it transfers
financial assets to structured entities, the Group analyzes whether the
substance of the relationship between the Group and these structured
entities indicates that it controls these structured entities to determine
whether the Group needs to consolidate these structured entities.

The Group analyzes the contractual rights and obligations in connection
with such transfers to determine:

- whether it has transferred the rights to receive contractual cash
flows from the financial assets or the transfer qualifies for the “pass
through” of those cash flows to independent third parties.

- the extent to which the associated risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial assets are transferred.

- Where the Group has neither retained nor transferred substantially
all of the risks and rewards associated with their ownership, the
Group analyzes whether it has relinquished its controls over these
financial assets and if the Group has continuing involvement in these
transferred financial assets.

incorporation
CDB Capital Co., Ltd. Mainland China
CDB Development Fund Mainland China
China-Africa Development Fund Mainland China
CDB Leasing Co., Ltd. Mainland China
CDB Securities Co., Ltd. Mainland China
Upper Chance Group Limited Hong Kong, China

Place of  Registered capital
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(5) Income Tax

There are certain transactions and activities for which the ultimate tax
effect is uncertain. The Group makes estimates and judgement for
items of uncertainty, taking into account existing taxation legislation and
past practice of relevant tax authorities. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will affect the income tax in the period in which such a
determination is made.

(6

-

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed regularly to determine whether the
carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount of the assets. If any
such indication exists, an impairment loss is provided.

In assessing the present value of goodwill generated from the acquisition
of subsidiaries, the Group estimates the present value of future cash flows
at appropriate discount discounting rates. In assessing the present value
of future cash flows of subsidiaries, significant judgements are exercised
over the related income, operating expenses and discounting rate to
calculate the present value.

5. TAXATION

The Group’s main applicable taxes and tax rates are as follows:

Corporate income tax

The corporate income tax rate applicable to the Group in Mainland China
is 25%. Taxation on overseas institutions is charged at the relevant local
rates. The pre-tax deduction of corporate income tax shall be implemented
in accordance with relevant state regulations.

Value added tax (“VAT”)

The Group is subject to value-added taxes on its income from credit
business, fee income on financial services and income from trading of
financial products at 6%.

In accordance with “Circular regarding the Value-added Taxes Policies for
Financial, Real Estate Development and Education Ancillary and Other
Services” (Cai Shui [2016] No.140), “Supplementary Circular regarding
Issues concerning Value-added Taxes Policies for Asset Management
Products” (Cai Shui [2017] No.2) and “Circular on the Relevant Issues
concerning Value-added Tax Levied on Asset Management Products” (Cai
Shui [2017] No. 56), managers of asset management products shall pay
VAT at 3% for taxable activities undertaken after 1 January 2018.

City construction tax
City construction tax is calculated as 1% to 7% of VAT.

Education surcharge
Education surcharge is calculated as 3% to 5% of VAT.

6. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Bank as at 31 December
2021 were as follows:

Percentage of equity

A interest and Principal business

(in millions) N
voting rights

RMB77,475 100% directly held Equity investment

RMB50,000 100% directly held Non-securities investment & mvestment

management and advisory

RMB32,548  84.99% indirectly held Fund investment & management

RMB12,642 64.40% directly held Leasing

RMB9,500 80% directly held Securities brokerage and underwriting

GBP1,584 100% directly held Investment holding

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were no changes in the proportion of equity interests or voting rights the Bank held in its subsidiaries,
and there was no restriction on the Group’s ability to access or use its assets and settle its liabilities.
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7. NET INTEREST INCOME

Year ended 31 December

Interest income

Loans and advances to customers 524,409 525,361
Debt investment securities® 57,881 64,973
Placements with banks and other financial institutions and financial assets held under resale agreements 13,124 8,031
Balances with central banks and deposits with banks and other financial institutions 5,716 9,163
Others 3 3
Subtotal 601,133 607,531
Interest expense
Debt securities issued (365,994) (343,151)
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions (74,296) (87,895)
Due to customers (7,335) (9,673)
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions (8,865) (11,248)
Others (1,011) (1,879)
Subtotal (457,501) (453,846)
Net interest income 143,632 153,685
Interest income accrued on impaired financial assets 643 368

(a) Interest income of debt investment securities includes interest income of debt instruments at amortized cost and debt instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income.

8. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Year ended 31 December

Fee and commission income

Fiduciary service fee 1,225 1,529
Loan arrangement fee 330 519
Credit commitment fee 70 156
Consultancy and advisory fee 91 323
Brokerage fee 2 68
Others 655 781
Subtotal 2,373 3,376
Fee and commission expense (930) (950)
Net fee and commission income 1,443 2,426

9. NET TRADING AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAIN/(LOSS)

Year ended 31 December

Foreign exchange loss (9,760) (52,080)
Net gain on trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss 33,881 28,230
Net (loss)/gain on foreign exchange derivatives (471) 17,291

Net gain on interest rate derivatives 100 169
Total 23,750 (6,390)

10.DIVIDEND INCOME

Year ended 31 December

Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss 10,885 11,367

Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (Designated) 68 -

Total 10,953 11,367
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11.NET (LOSS)/GAIN ON INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Year ended 31 December

Net (loss)/gain on disposal of debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (445) 33

12.0THER INCOME, NET

Year ended 31 December

Rental income, net 7,349 4,627
Others 531 (1,502)
Total 7,880 3,125

13.OPERATING EXPENSES

Year ended 31 December

Staff costs 7,593 7,109
Taxes and surcharges 4,335 4,384
General operating and administrative expenses 3,343 3,228
Depreciation and amortization 1,901 1,938
Total 17,172 16,659

14.CREDIT IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Year ended 31 December

Loans and advances to customers 74,024 1,442
Debt instruments at amortized cost (444) 815
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 351 558
Loan commitments 1,486 951

Financial guarantee contracts 3) (691)
Others 1,228 1,246
Total 76,642 4,321

15.INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Year ended 31 December

Current tax 23,516 8,428
Deferred tax (Note 27) (11,228) 14,803
Total 12,288 23,231

The income tax expense can be reconciled to profit before income tax presented in the consolidated income statement as follows:

Year ended 31 December

Profit before income tax 93,082 142,047
Tax calculated at the PRC statutory tax rate of 25% 23,270 35,512
Effect of different tax rates on subsidiaries (550) (293)
Tax effect of non-taxable income (11,596) (18,738)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences not recognized 17 330
Tax effects of expenses not deductible for tax purpose and others 1,147 1,420
Income tax expense 12,288 23,231

16.CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS

As at 31 December

Cash 38 3
Balances with central banks 92,562 131,351
Total 92,565 131,354
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17.DEPOSITS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Deposits with:

Domestic banks 109,191 276,557
Other domestic financial institutions 12,480 10,075
Overseas banks 73,088 53,509
Subtotal 194,759 340,141
Accrued interests 294 1,719
Total 195,063 341,860
Less: Allowance for impairment losses — Stage 1 © @)
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions, net 195,044 341,853

As at 31 December 2021, the restricted deposits with banks and other financial institutions of the Group amounted to RMB18,795 million (31 December 2020:
RMB11,636 million), which were mainly security deposits pledge with clearing houses.

18.PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Placements with:

Domestic banks 294,833 64,940
Other domestic financial institutions - 1,000
Overseas banks 75,828 40,550
Subtotal 370,661 106,490
Accrued interests 585 60
Total 371,246 106,550
Less: Allowance for impairment losses — Stage 1 (131) (14)
- Stage 2 (29) -

Placements with banks and other financial institutions, net 371,086 106,536

19.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(1) Derivative financial instruments

The contractual notional amounts of derivative financial instruments provide a basis for comparison with fair values of instruments recognized on the consolidated
statement of financial position, but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair values of the instruments and, therefore,
do not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The fair values of derivative instruments become favorable (assets) or unfavorable (liabilities) as a

result of fluctuations in market interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities
can fluctuate significantly.

The table below provides a detailed breakdown of the contractual or notional amounts and the fair values of the Group’s derivative financial instruments outstanding
at the balance sheet date.

31 December 2021

Exchange rate derivatives

Currency swaps (including cross-currency interest rate swaps) 686,502 9,561 (2,820)
Foreign exchange forwards and foreign exchange options 3,632 48 (7)
Subtotal 9,609 (2,827)
Interest rate derivatives

Interest rate swaps 557,243 7,256 (6,419)
Interest rate options 6,383 113 (113)
Subtotal 7,369 (6,532)

)

Total 16,978 (9,359
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31 December 2020

Exchange rate derivatives

Currency swaps (including cross-currency interest rate swaps) 981,097 26,726 (16,846)
Foreign exchange forwards and foreign exchange options 5,161 327 (78)
Subtotal 27,053 (16,924)

Interest rate derivatives

Interest rate swaps 831,536 10,446 (9,681)
Interest rate options 7,434 238 (238)
Subtotal 10,684 (9,919)
Total 37,737 (26,843)

(2) Hedge accounting
Fair value hedges
The Group uses interest rate swap contracts to hedge against changes in fair values attributable to interest rate risks of the negotiable certificates of deposits

issued by the Group as presented in "Due to Customers" in the consolidated statement of financial position. As at 31 December 2021, the notional amount of the
Group amounted to RMB7,523 million (31 December 2020: RMB10,831 million).

The Group's fair value changes on hedge instruments and the net gain or loss of hedged items arising from hedging risks, as well as the hedging ineffectiveness
portion recognized from changes in fair value gain or loss are not material.

Cash flow hedges

The Group uses interest rate swap to hedge against exposure to cash flow variability attributable to interest rate risks, with the hedged items being borrowings from
other banks for the Group's leasing business. The Group also uses cross-currency interest rate swap to hedge against exposure to cash flow variability attributable
to interest rate risks and exchange rate risks, with the hedged items being the bonds issued by the Group’s subsidiary CDB Leasing Co., Ltd. As at 31 December
2021, the notional amount of two hedge business mentioned above amounted to RMB26,024 million and RMB875 million, respectively (31 December 2020:
RMB29,506 million & RMB6,666 million, respectively).

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group recognized in other comprehensive income a cumulative profit or loss from fair value changes of cash flow hedging
were insignificant.

20.FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD UNDER RESALE AGREEMENTS

As at 31 December

Analyzed by type of collateral:

Bonds 494,383 586,804
Others 2,963 3,710
Subtotal 497,346 590,514
Accrued interests 174 171
Total 497,520 590,685

Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Stage 1 - 2
Stage 2 - -
Stage 3 (2,306) (2,371)
Subtotal (2,306) (2,373)
Financial assets held under resale agreements, net 495,214 588,312

The collateral received in connection with resale agreements is disclosed in Note 48 (5) Collateral.
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21.LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
(1) The composition of loans and advance to customers is as follows:

As at 31 December

At amortized cost, net (a) 12,746,593 12,597,398
At fair value through profit or loss (b) 45,073 42,964
Loans and advances to customers, net 12,791,666 12,640,362

(@) The composition of loans and advance to customers measured at amortized cost is as follows:

As at 31 December

Loans and advances to customers 13,020,110 12,834,470
Finance lease receivables and others 199,479 173,991
Subtotal 13,219,589 13,008,461
Accrued interests 30,902 30,195
Total 13,250,491 13,038,656
Stage 1 11,915,177 11,693,194
Stage 2 1,205,460 1,329,834
Stage 3 129,854 115,628
Less: Allowance for impairment losses
Stage 1 (192,457) (124,211)
Stage 2 (229,513) (244,654)
Stage 3 (81,928) (72,393)
Subtotal (503,898) (441,258)
Loans and advance to customers measured at amortized cost, net 12,746,593 12,597,398

(b) The composition of loans and advance to customers measured at fair value through profit or loss is as follows:

As at 31 December

Carrying amount of loans and advances to customers 42,909 41,463
Fair value change 2,164 1,501
Total 45,073 42,964

Finance lease receivables pledged by the Group is disclosed in Note 48 (5) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral.

(2) Movements of allowance for impairment losses are set out below:

As at 1 January 2021 124,211 244,654 72,393 441,258
Transfers:

Transfers to Stage 1 17,706 (17,706) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (20,124) 23,255 (3,131) -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (8,590) 8,590 -
Originated or purchased financial assets 28,013 23 9 28,045
Remeasurement® 61,204 14177 22,981 98,362
Repayment and transfer out (17,761) (22,158) (12,464) (52,383)
Write-off = = (10,494) (10,494)
Recovery of loans and advances previously write-off = = 5,976 5,976
Unwinding of discount on allowance - - (643) (643)
Foreign exchange differences (792) (4,142) (1,289) (6,223)

As a 31 December 2021 192,457 229,513 81,928 503,898
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As at 1 January 2020 187,602 231,113 98,377 517,092
Transfers:

Transfers to Stage 1 7,299 (7,299) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (35,195) 39,323 (4,128) -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (18,708) 18,708 -
Originated or purchased financial assets 19,510 914 - 20,424
Remeasurement®@ (39,940) 9,512 34,558 4,130
Repayment and transfer out (13,577) (4,111) (5,424) (23,112)
Write-off - (64,554) (64,554)
Unwinding of discount on allowance - - (368) (368)
Foreign exchange differences (1,488) (6,090) (4,776) (12,354)
As at 31 December 2020 124,211 244,654 72,393 441,258

(a) Remeasurement includes regular review of inputs to the models, e.g., reviewing of Probability of Defaults (PDs), Loss Given Defaults (LGDs) and
Exposure at Defaults (EADs); transfers between Stage 1 and Stage 2 or 3 due to financial instruments experiencing significant increases (or decrease) of
credit impairment in the period, and the consequent “set up” (or “set down”) between 12-month and lifetime Expected Credit Loss (ECL).

(i) In 2021 major changes in the principal of loans and advances to customers that have a greater impact on the Group’s credit loss allowance include:

As at 1 January 2021, the gross amount of loans and advances to customers in Stage 1 accounted for 89% of total beginning balance of loans and advances
to customers. The changes of the Group’s ECL of loans and advances to customers in Stage 1 were mainly driven by a net increase of nearly 3% in the
corresponding gross amount;

As at 1 January 2021, the gross amount of loans and advances to customers in Stage 2 accounted for 10% of total beginning balance of loans and advances
to customers. Approximately 1% of the beginning balance of Stage 1 transferred to Stage 2 in 2021;

As at 1 January 2021, the gross amount of loans and advances to customers in Stage 3 accounted for 1% of total beginning balance of loans and advances
to customers. Approximately 2% of the beginning balance of Stage 2 transferred to Stage 3 in 2021. Such increase was offset by the decrease resulting from
write-offs and recovery of approximately 18% of the beginning balance of Stage 3 loans and advances to customers.

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2021, the gross carrying amount of the loans of which credit loss allowances were transferred from Stage 3 to Stage 2, and
from Stage 3 or Stage 2 to Stage 1, which due to the modification of contractual cash flows but not resulting in derecognition were not significant.

(3) Past due loans and advance to customers by collateral types are set out below:

Loans and advances to customers are classified as past-due if the principal or the interest is past due. For loans and advances to customers repayable by
installment, if any installment repayment is past due, the total balance of the loans and advances is classified as past-due.

Past due

As at 31 December 2021

Unsecured loans 6,042 782 13,296 508 20,628
Guaranteed loans 815 328 7,028 - 8,171
Loans secured by collateral 11,236 9,742 35,863 6,362 63,203
Pledged loans 4,265 1,145 6,565 3,457 15,432
Total 22,358 11,997 62,752 10,327 107,434

As at 31 December 2020

Unsecured loans 5,415 12,248 527 391 18,581
Guaranteed loans 5,604 1,739 235 174 7,652
Loans secured by collateral 16,973 32,162 26,258 7,215 82,608
Pledged loans 799 7,097 8,417 100 16,413

Total 28,691 53,246 35,437 7,880 125,254




158 ERFALRTT CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

22.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

As at 31 December

Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss

Government and quasi-government bonds 11,861 15,321
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 49,646 41,685
Corporate bonds 17,358 19,443
Asset-backed securities - 16
Inter-bank certificates of deposit 171,243 206,146
Asset management plans 391 420
Stock and fund investments 16,425 13,806
Wealth management products issued by other banks 4,542 9,071
Other equity investments 733,860 746,809
Subtotal 1,005,326 1,052,717

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated)®

Debt securities issued by financial institutions = 40
Corporate bonds 573 2,321
Asset-backed securities 51 -
Asset management plans 16 625
Subtotal 640 2,986
Total 1,005,966 1,055,703

(a) Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss primarily include investments in bonds with funds from investors of wealth management
products, which were issued by the Group before 2019.

23.DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTIZED COST

As at 31 December

Government and quasi-government bonds 1,038,916 1,157,272
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 500 1,103
Corporate bonds 95,348 97,621
Investments in trust plans and others 3,208 6,428
Subtotal 1,137,972 1,262,424
Accrued interests 15,949 18,671
Total 1,153,921 1,281,095

Stage 1 1,151,761 1,277,550

Stage 2 - 13

Stage 3 2,160 3,532

Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Stage 1 (5,214) (5,216)
Stage 2 = (6)
Stage 3 (1,790) (2,874)
Subtotal (7,004) (8,095)
Debt instruments at amortized cost, net 1,146,917 1,273,000

For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, transfer among stages of the Group's debt instruments at amortized cost was not significant.
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(1) Movements of allowance for impairment losses are set out below:

As at 1 January 2021 5,216 5] 2,874 8,095

Transfers:

Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (5) 5 =

Originated or purchased financial assets 86 - = 86

Remeasurement (a) 71 - 20 91

Repayments or transfer out (47) - (1,111) (1,158)
Foreign exchange differences (112) - 2 (110)
As at 31 December 2021 5214 = 1,790 7,004

As at 1 January 2020 5,196 1 2,391 7,588
Transfers:

Stage 1 to Stage 2 (1) - 1 -
Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (1) 1 -
Originated or purchased financial assets 5 - 270 275
Remeasurement (a) 361 5 238 604
Repayments or transfer out (47) - (17) (64)
Foreign exchange differences (298) - (10) (308)
As at 31 December 2020 5,216 5 2,874 8,095

(a) Remeasurement mainly includes the impact of changes in parameters such as probability of default and loss given default, credit loss changes due to
stage-transfer.

24.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

As at 31 December

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Government and quasi-government bonds 223,971 158,269
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 9,345 27,520
Corporate bonds 81,474 109,004
Asset-backed securities 281 351
Inter-bank certificates of deposit 445,527 359,046
Asset management plans - 1,013
Subtotal 761,598 655,203
Accrued interests 4,964 4,903
Total 766,562 660,106
Stage 1 766,460 658,928
Stage 2 - -
Stage 3 102 1,178

Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (Designated)

Listed equity 4,060 3,310
Unlisted equity 2,000 1,500
Total 6,060 4,810
Financial Assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, total 772,622 664,916

The Group has elected to irrevocably designate strategic investments of non-trading equity instruments at FVTOCI as permitted under IFRS 9. The changes in
fair value of such instruments will no longer be reclassified to profit or loss when they are disposed of.
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(1) Movements of allowance for impairment losses are set out below:

As at 1 January 2021 74 - 726 800
Originated or purchased financial assets 51 = = 51
Remeasurement (a) 23 - 323 346
Repayment and transfer out (31) - (15) (46)
As at 31 December 2021 117 - 1,034 1,151

As at 1 January 2020 165 1 243 409
Originated or purchased financial assets 25 - - 25
Remeasurement (a) 3) - 726 723
Repayment and transfer out (112) 1 (243) (356)
Foreign exchange difference (1) - - (1)
As at 31 December 2020 74 - 726 800

(a) Remeasurement mainly includes the impact of changes in parameters such as probability of default and loss given default, credit loss changes due to
stage-transfer.

25.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

The balance of interest in associates and joint ventures is as follows:

As at 31 December

Investments in associates and joint ventures 443 1,046
Allowance for impairment losses = (528)
Net 443 518

Information of principal associates and joint ventures of the Group as at 31 December 2021 is as follows:

Investment management

Kaiyuan Guochuang Capital Management Co., Ltd Mainland China RMB100 45% indirectly held :
and advisory

Weiguang Huitong Tourism Industry Development

A, Mainland China RMBA400  44% indirectly held "MVestment management

and advisory

Kairong Cultural Tourism Industry Investment Investment management

. . o
Fund Management (Beijing) Co. Ltd Mainland China RMB24 50% indirectly held and advisory
Guar;]%dgr;g ﬁgheng private equity investment Mainland China RMB10 50% indirectly held Investment management

and advisory

26.PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

As at 31 December

Cost 137,984 119,486
Accumulated depreciation (25,987) (22,723)
Allowance for impairment losses (3,088) (2,865)
Fixed asset held for disposal 622 623

Total 109,531 94,521
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(a) Cost, accumulated depreciation and allowance for impairment losses of property and equipment are consisted of the following:

Cost
As at 31 December 2020 22,347 3,578 14,890 77,304 1,367 119,486
As at 31 December 2021 22,323 3,413 28,401 82,403 1,444 137,984

Accumulated depreciation

As at 31 December 2020 (6,564) (2,599) (1,010) (12,550) - (22,723)
As at 31 December 2021 (7,422) (2,736) (1,872) (13,957) = (25,987)
Allowance for impairment losses

As at 31 December 2020 (66) (294) (240) (2,227) (38) (2,865)
As at 31 December 2021 (67) (15) (325) (2,642) (39) (3,088)
Net book value

As at 31 December 2020 15,717 685 13,640 62,527 1,329 93,898
As at 31 December 2021 14,834 662 26,204 65,804 1,405 108,909

27.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The
following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances:

As at 31 December

Deferred tax assets 138,127 124,221
Deferred tax liabilities (8,274) (4,695)
Net 129,853 119,526

(1) Movements of deferred tax assets and liabilities:

Year ended 31 December

As at 1 January 119,526 133,663
Credited to profit or loss (Note 15) 11,228 (14,803)
Charged to other comprehensive income (947) 671
Others 46 6)
As at 31 December 129,853 119,526

(2) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) and related temporary differences, before offsetting qualifying amounts, are attributable to
the following items:

As at 31 December 2021 As at 31 December 2020

Deferred tax assets

Impairment losses 515,195 128,799 454,822 113,706
Fair value changes of financial instruments 56,078 13,971 69,236 17,309
Provisions 17,106 4,277 15,591 3,898
Others 1,680 358 1,697 388
Subtotal 589,959 147,405 541,346 135,301
Deferred tax liabilities

Fair value changes of financial instruments (61,835) (15,458) (59,959) (14,990)
Others (15,582) (2,094) (6,217) (785)
Subtotal (77,417) (17,552) (66,176) (15,775)

Net 512,542 129,853 475,170 119,526
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28.0THER ASSETS

As at 31 December

Prepayment to vendors 12,263 2,087
Interest receivable 3,301 2,843
Investment properties 2,428 3,751
Right-of-use assets 2,019 2,576
Goodwill (1) 1,241 1,243
Intangible assets 864 762
Long-term deferred expenses 751 761
Deposits with securities exchange 261 939
Held for sale assets - 1,860
Others 11,854 29,821
Total 34,982 46,643

Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Interest receivable (154) (165)

Others (3,046) (1,936)

Subtotal (3,200) (2,101)

Other assets, net 31,782 44,542
(1) Goodwill

As at 31 December

Gross amount 1,241 1,243
Allowance for impairment losses (534) (534)
Net balances 707 709

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group performed goodwill impairment test based on cash flow forecast of related cash-generating units. Based on the
result of the impairment testing, RMB534 million impairment losses on goodwill were recognized as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: RMB534 million).

29.DEPOSITS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Deposits from:

Domestic banks 2,337,622 2,751,749
Other domestic financial institutions 20,719 82,977
Overseas banks 30,093 39,357
Overseas other financial institutions 4,916 1,237
Subtotal 2,393,350 2,875,320
Accrued interests 2,164 3,952
Total 2,395,514 2,879,272

30.BORROWINGS FROM GOVERNMENTS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Borrowings from:

Domestic banks and other financial institutions 370,163 420,198
Overseas banks and other financial institutions 56,288 56,879
Foreign governments 20,777 18,862
Subtotal 447,228 495,939
Accrued interests 1,733 3,113
Total 448,961 499,052

The collateral pledged under borrowings from governments and financial institutions is disclosed in Note 48 (5) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments —
Collateral.
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31.PLACEMENTS FROM BANKS

As at 31 December

Placements from:

Domestic banks 55,426 74,597
Overseas banks 14,218 18,098
Subtotal 69,644 92,695
Accrued interests 36 169
Total 69,680 92,864

32.FINANCIAL LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group's financial liabilities measured at fair value though profit or loss mainly comprise of the borrowing with
conversion options from non-financial enterprises.

33.FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

As at 31 December

Analyzed by type of collateral:

Bonds 21,188 124,623
Subtotal 21,188 124,623
Accrued interests 17 102
Total 21,205 124,725

The collateral pledged under repurchase agreements is disclosed in Note 48 (5) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral.

34.DUE TO CUSTOMERS

As at 31 December

Demand deposits 854,627 905,818
Term deposits 118,332 113,117
Pledged deposits 2,903 3,110
Certificates of deposit 101,401 143,251
Subtotal 1,077,263 1,165,296
Accrued interests 1,933 2,242
Total 1,079,196 1,167,538

35.DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

As at 31 December

Debt securities issued by financial institutions M 11,142,456 10,361,137
Subordinated bonds issued @ 30,010 35,010
Tier-two capital bonds issued ) 84,222 114,389
Asset-backed securities issued 4) - 588
Subtotal 11,256,688 10,511,124
Accrued interests 223,689 210,968
Total 11,480,377 10,722,092

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, there was no default related to any debt securities issued by the Group.
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(1) Debt securities issued by financial institutions

As at 31 December 2021

RMB financial bonds issued in domestic market 2002-2021 2022-2065 1.86-5.90 9,758,861
RMB special bonds issued in domestic market 2015-2021 2022-2037 3.01-4.27 1,173,317
Foreign currency financial bonds issued in domestic market 2021 2022-2023 0.38-0.80 19,123
RMB financial bonds issued in overseas market 2012-2021 2023-2032 2.65-4.50 148,782
Foreign currency financial bonds issued in overseas market 2016-2021 2022-2037 0.00-4.00 134,090
Bonds issued by the Bank 11,100,173
Foreign currency bills issued by subsidiaries in overseas market 2012-2021 2022-2027 0.80-3.75 40,361
RMB bonds issued by subsidiaries in domestic market 2017-2018 2022-2023 4.50-4.70 9,989
RMB bills issued by subsidiaries in overseas market 2019 2022 3.68 269
Less: Debt securities issued by the Group and held by entities within the Group (8,336)
Debt securities issued by the Group 11,142,456

As at 31 December 2020

RMB financial bonds issued in domestic market 2001-2020 2021-2065 1.11-5.90 8,896,855
RMB special bonds issued in domestic market 2015-2020 2021-2037 2.96-4.62 1,231,702
RMB financial bonds issued in overseas market 2012-2020 2023-2032 3.03-4.50 12,300
Foreign currency financial bond issued in overseas market 2016-2020 2021-2037 0.00-4.00 170,100
Bonds issued by the Bank 10,310,957
Foreign currency bills issued by subsidiaries in overseas market 2012-2020 2021-2027 1.21-4.25 44,275
RMB bonds issued by subsidiaries in domestic market 2017-2018 2021-2023 4.35-4.70 8,488
RMB bills issued by subsidiaries in overseas market 2019 2021-2022 2.94-3.65 713
Less: Debt securities issued by the Group and held by entities within the Group (3,296)
Debt securities issued by the Group 10,361,137

(2) Subordinated bonds issued

As at 31 December 2021

RMB subordinated bonds issued by the Bank in domestic market 2011-2012 2041-2062 5.50-6.05 30,010

As at 31 December 2020

RMB subordinated bonds issued by the Bank in domestic market 2011-2012 2041-2062 5.50-6.05 30,010
RMB subordinated bonds issued by subsidiaries in domestic market 2016 2021 3.58 5,000
Subordinated bonds issued by the Group 35,010

All subordinated bonds issued by the Bank have provisions which allow the Bank to redeem them prior to maturity. If the Bank chooses not to exercise its
redemption option on a specified date, it is obligated to pay higher interest rates on the bonds.

(3) Tier-two capital bonds issued

As at 31 December 2021

RMB Tier-two capital bonds issued by the Bank in domestic market 2018-2020 2028-2030 3.88-4.45 79,807

USD Tier-two capital bonds issued by the subsidiaries in overseas market 2020 2030 2.88 4,415

Tier-two capital bonds issued by the Group 84,222
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As at 31 December 2020

RMB Tier-two capital bonds issued by the Bank in domestic market 2016-2020 2026-2030 3.65-4.45 109,876
USD Tier-two capital bonds issued by the subsidiaries in overseas market 2020 2030 2.88 4,513
Tier-two capital bonds issued by the Group 114,389

The Group issued Tier-two capital bonds which have fixed coupon rates in year 2018 and 2020. The Group has an option to redeem part or all of the bond at face
value upon the closing of the fifth year after the bonds’ issuance, if specified redemption conditions as stipulated in the offering documents were met, subject to
regulatory approval. If the Group did not exercise this option, the coupon rate of the bonds would remain the same as the existing rate.

These Tier-two capital bonds have the write-down feature of a Tier-two capital instrument, which allows the Bank to write down the entire principal of the bonds
when regulatory triggering events as stipulated in the offering documents occur and any accumulated unpaid interest would become not payable.

36.0THER LIABILITIES

As at 31 December

Deferred government subsidies for education loans 27,628 28,969
Provision for loss on loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts 17,193 15,710
Payables to other holders of consolidated structured entities 13,454 16,368
VAT and other taxes payable 10,094 9,818
Security deposits for leasing 7,221 7,591
Amounts received in advance 6,694 7,468
Accrued staff cost 3,270 3,050
Purchase payable to leasing equipment vendor 2,584 586
Maintenance deposits from lessees 1,604 2,462
Leases liabilities 935 1,245
Payables for security brokerage service 45 78
Held for sale liabilities - 1,157
Others 6,843 6,428
Total 97,565 100,929

37.SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020

MOF 153,908 36.54
Huijin 146,092 34.68
Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. 114,537 27.19
National Council for Social Security Fund 6,711 1.59
Total 421,248 100.00

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, there was no change in the Bank’s equity holders’ equity amount or their holding percentage.

38.CAPITAL RESERVE

As at 1 January 2021 182,650 (973) 181,677
Additions - 608 608
As at 31 December 2021 182,650 (365) 182,285
o colmmun  omesr T
As at 1 January 2020 182,650 (657) 181,993
Additions - (316) (316)
As at 31 December 2020 182,650 (973) 181,677

(a) Others include remeasurement of supplemental retirement benefits obligation and the effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualified as cash flow hedges.
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39.INVESTMENT REVALUATION RESERVE

As at 1 January 2021 (13,031) (1,724) (14,755)

Amount of loss of debt instruments measured at FVTOCI recognized directly
in other comprehensive income

- Fair value changes of investments in debt instruments measured at FVTOCI 2,129 (770) 2,159

- Net gain on investments in debt instruments measured at FVTOCI

reclassified to profit or loss on disposal 4 M 8
- Impairment losses of investments in debt instruments measured at FVTOCI 233 (68) 165
Amount of loss of equity instruments designated as FVTOCI recognized directly
in other comprehensive income
- Fair value changes of investments in equity instruments designated as FVTOCI 891 (10) 881
As at 31 December 2021 (8,974) (2,573) (11,547)

As at 1 January 2020 (11,409) (2,307) (13,716)

Amount of loss of debt instruments measured at FVTOCI recognized directly
in other comprehensive income

- Fair value changes of investments in debt instruments measured at FVTOCI (1,414) 354 (1,060)

- Net loss on investments in debt instruments measured at FVTOCI

reclassified to profit or loss on disposal 176 (44) 182
- Impairment losses of investments in debt instruments measured at FVTOCI 280 (111) 169
Amount of gain of equity instruments designated as FVTOCI recognized directly
in other comprehensive income
- Fair value changes of investments in equity instruments designated as FVTOCI (664) 384 (280)
As at 31 December 2020 (13,031) (1,724) (14,755)

40.SURPLUS RESERVE AND GENERAL RESERVE
(1) Statutory and general surplus reserve

According to relevant laws and regulations, the Bank is required to appropriate 10% of its profit for the year, as determined under the PRC GAAR to statutory
surplus reserve. When statutory surplus reserve has reached 50% of the Bank's share capital, the Bank would not be required to further appropriate to
statutory surplus reserve. The statutory surplus reserve appropriated by the Bank can be used to replenish accumulated loss of the Bank or to increase the
Bank’s share capital upon approval. The remaining balance of the statutory surplus reserve should not be lower than 25% of the Bank’s share capital after
such capitalization. In addition, the Bank appropriates general surplus reserve as approved by the Board of Directors.

(2) General reserve

As at 31 December

The Bank®@ 253,382 244,206
Subsidiaries® 5,137 4,760
Total 258,519 248,966

(a) Pursuant to Cai jin [2012] No. 20 “Requirements on Impairment Allowance for Financial Institutions” (the “Requirement”) issued by the MOF in 2012,
the Bank is required to establish a general reserve to address unidentified potential impairment losses. The general reserve should not be lower than
1.5% of the outstanding balance of risk-bearing assets as at the year-end date.

(b) Pursuant to relevant regulatory requirements in the PRC, subsidiaries of the Group are required to appropriate certain amounts of its profit for the
year as general reserves.

41.RETAINED EARNINGS

As at 1 January 434,686 376,035
Add: Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Bank 78,960 117,376
Less: Appropriation to statutory surplus reserve (a) (6,420) (9,084)
Appropriation to general surplus reserve (b) (i) (9,083) (11,148)
Appropriation to general reserve (b) (ii) (9,553) (10,622)
Dividends (b) (i) (22,707) (27,871)

As at 31 December 465,883 434,686
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(a) Profit appropriation for 2021

42.

—~

The Bank appropriated RMB6,420 million to the statutory surplus reserve based on profit for the year of 2021. Other proposal for profit appropriations of the
Bank for the year ended 31 December 2021 is pending for approval by the Board of Directors.

Profit appropriation for 2020

Pursuant to the Board of Directors’ Meeting held on 18 December 2021, the proposal for profit appropriations of the Bank for the year ended 31 December
2020 was approved as following:

(i) An appropriation of RMB9,083 million to the general surplus reserve by the Bank which had been included in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

(i) An appropriation of RMB9,176 million to the general reserve by the Bank which had been included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

(iii) A cash dividend of RMB22,707 million by the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2020 which has been included in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021. As ended 31 December 2021, the cash dividend has been paid.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, retained earnings include surplus reserve appropriated by the Bank’s subsidiaries that attributable to the Bank amounting
RMB8,730 million and RMB4,658 million.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Non-controlling interests of the Group are as follows:

As at 31 December

CDB Capital Co., Ltd. 9,805 12,147
CDB Leasing Co., Ltd. 10,718 9,480
CDB Securities Co., Ltd. 3,311 3,196
Total 23,834 24,823

43.CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following balances:

As at 31 December

Balance with central banks and deposits with banks and other financial institutions 160,878 189,932

Balances with an original maturity of three months or less:

Financial assets held under resale agreements 488,162 581,865
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 105,391 87,209
Investments in government bonds 1,950 -
Total 756,381 859,006

44, STRUCTURED ENTITIES
(1) Consolidated structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the Group

@

-

Structured entities consolidated by the Group include certain asset-backed securities, asset management plans and funds issued, initiated and managed by
the Group. The Group has power over these structured entities, is entitled to variable returns from its involvement in related activities and is able to use its
power to affect the amount of its variable returns from such structured entities. Therefore, the Group has control over these structured entities.

As at 31 December 2021, the total assets of the consolidated structured entities referred to above totaled RMB20,687 million (31 December 2020: RMB29,979 million).
Unconsolidated structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the Group

(a) Structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the Group

Unconsolidated structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the Group primarily include non-principal guaranteed wealth management products,
asset-backed securities, assets management plans and funds. The Group has no plans to provide financial or other support to these unconsolidated
structured entities.

As at 31 December 2021, the total assets of unconsolidated structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the Group amounted to RMB134,603 million
(31 December 2020: RMB172,623 million). The carrying amount of the Group’s share in these structured entities amounted to RMB7,533 million (31 December
2020: RMB5,325 million). These amounts represented the Group’s maximum exposure to these structured entities.

(b) Structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the third party

The Group classifies its interest held in other structured entities issued and managed by other third-party entities into financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income. As at 31 December 2021, the information on the amount of total
assets of these unconsolidated structured entities was not readily available from the public domain.

As at 31 December 2021, the balance of structured entities issued by other institutions held by the Group amounted to RMB22,961 million (31 December
2020: RMB26,351 million). Among them, the balance reported on trading assets and other financial assets amounted to RMB22,640 million (31 December
2020: RMB26,252 million), the balance reported on the investment on debt instruments at amortized cost amounted to RMB91 million (31 December 2020:
None), and the balance reported on the investment on debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income amounted to RMB230 million (31
December 2020: RMB99 million). The transactions mentioned above represent the Group’s maximum exposure to the risk on structured entities.
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TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group enters into securitization transactions by which it transfers loans to structured entities which issue asset-backed securities to investors. The Group
assessed among other factors, whether or not to derecognize the transferred assets by evaluating the extent to which it retains the risks and rewards of the
assets and whether it has relinquished its controls over these assets based on the criteria as detailed in Note 3 (13) (h) and Note 4 (4).

As at 31 December 2021, the unexpired asset-backed securities included accumulative loans transferred by the Group before impairment of RMB511 million
(31 December 2020: RMB2,057 million), among which:

- RMB511 million was in respect of loans transferred that the Group retained substantially all the risks and rewards of these special purpose trusts and
therefore has not been derecognized in the consolidated financial statements (31 December 2020: RMB1,886 million).

- As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had no continuing involvement in these assets.

- As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no balance in respect of loans transferred that qualified for full derecognition. As at 31 December 2020, RMB171
million was in respect of loans transferred that qualified for full derecognition. Carrying amount/maximum exposure to loss was RMB16 million.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group reviews the internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate resources. Segment information is presented on the same basis as the
Group’s management and internal reporting.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on an arm’s length basis, with intra-segment revenue and costs being eliminated at head office
level. Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are included in determining operating segment performance.

In accordance with IFRS 8, the Group has the following operating segments: banking, equity investment, leasing and securities. The Group’s main operating
segments are set out below:

Banking operations

This segment consists of corporate banking, debt issuance and treasury operations. The corporate banking operations primarily consist of lending, deposits,
agency services, consulting and advisory services, cash management, remittance and settlement, custody and guarantee services. Debt issuance is the major
source of funding to corporate banking operations. The treasury operations primarily include money market transactions, foreign exchange transactions, bond
investments, customer-based interest rate and foreign exchange derivative transactions and asset and liability management.

Equity investment
This segment consists of equity investment activities.
Leasing operations

This segment consists of finance lease and operating lease business in which the Group acts as a lessor.

Securities operations
This segment consists of security brokerage, proprietary trading and underwriting operations.

Interest income 591,113 746 10,131 1,257 (2,114) 601,133
Interest expense (448,833) (2,021) (8,088) (715) 2,156 (457,501)
Net interest income 142,280 (1,275) 2,043 542 42 143,632
Include: Net interest income from customers 141,120 87 2,123 302 - 143,652
Inter-segment net interest income/(expenses) 1,160 (1,362) (80) 240 42 -
Net fee and commission income 868 301 (82) 351 5} 1,443
Include: Net fee and commission from customers 810 301 (13) 345 - 1,443
Inter-segment net fee and commission 58 - (69) 6 5 =
Other income, net® 17,678 17,938 8,075 243 (1,044) 42,890
Operating expenses and credit impairment and (88.917) (320) (4,500) (850) (296) (94,889)
other impairment losses on assets
Profit before income tax 71,909 16,644 5,536 286 (1,293 93,082
As at 31 December 2021
Segment assets 16,619,924 217,855 340,163 41,540 (189,668) 17,029,814
Unallocated assets 138,127
Total assets 17,167,941
Segment liabilities 15,458,288 64,002 309,909 26,082 (236,894) 15,621,387
Unallocated liabilities 8,274
Total liabilities 15,629,661
Other information:
Depreciation and amortization 1,692 231 4,349 68 (122) 6,218
Capital expenditure 593 1 24,551 16 - 25,161
Credit Impairment losses 74,037 (504) 2,443 270 396 76,642
Other impairment losses on assets 2 - 1,067 - - 1,069

Credit commitments 3,555,880 244 — — (19,376) 3,536,748
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Interest income 597,630 864 9,476 1,250 (1,689) 607,531
Interest expense (446,125) (2,285) (6,981) (673) 2,218 (453,846)
Net interest income 151,505 (1,421) 2,495 577 529 153,685
Include: Net interest income from customers 150,605 (83) 2,652 511 - 153,685
Inter-segment net interest income/(expenses) 900 (1,338) (157) 66 529 -
Net fee and commission income 1,517 427 (81) 567 (4) 2,426
Include: Net fee and commission from customers 1,458 428 (16) 555 1 2,426
Inter-segment net fee and commission 59 (1) (65) 12 6] -
Other income, net®@ (13,189) 17,631 5,340 602 (1,871) 8,513
Operatilng expenses and credit impairment and (16,732) (1,352) (3,170) (1565) 010 (22577)
other impairment losses on assets
Profit before income tax 123,101 15,285 4,584 181 (1,104) 142,047
As at 31 December 2020
Segment assets 16,646,720 202,143 301,999 43,4083 (214,911) 16,979,354
Unallocated assets 124,221
Total assets 17,103,575
Segment liabilities 15,320,537 71,539 275,943 28,115 (77,846) 15,618,288
Unallocated liabilities 4,695
Total liabilities 15,622,983
Other information:
Depreciation and amortization 1,722 259 4,134 78 (185) 6,008
Capital expenditure 602 15 16,931 24 - 17,572
Credit Impairment losses 2,174 516 708 1,025 (102) 4,321
Other impairment losses on assets 23 - 1,574 - - 1,597
Credit commitments 3,512,038 244 - - (23,524) 3,488,758

(a) Other income includes net trading and foreign exchange gain/(loss), net gain on financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss, net
gain on derecognition of debt instruments at amortized cost, dividend income, net gain on investment securities, other income and share of profit of
associates and joint ventures.

47.RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS

(1) Ministry of Finance
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the MOF owned 36.54% of the issued share capital of the Bank.

The Group enters into transactions with the MOF in its ordinary course of business, including subscription and redemption of treasury bonds. Details of
transactions with the MOF are as follows:

As at 31 December

Treasury bonds issued by the MOF 80,734 74,432

Interest rate range (%) 0.00-4.68 1.99-4.68

Year ended 31 December

Interest income 2,294 2,429
Net trading gain 45 94
(2) Huijin

Huijin is a wholly owned subsidiary of China Investment Corporation, with a registered capital of RMB828,209 million. lts principal activities are equity
investments as authorized by the Chinese State Council and it does not engage in other commercial operations. Huijin exercises its rights and assumes the
obligations as an investor of the Bank on behalf of the PRC Government. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, Huijin owned 34.68% of the issued share capital
of the Bank.

Details of the balances and transactions with Huijin were as follows:

As at 31 December

Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss 2,992 4,099

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 49,833 42,539

Interest rate range (%) 2.15-4.38 2.15-56.15
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Year ended at 31 December

Interest income 1,647 1,106

Net trading gain 96 173

Transactions with Huijin and transactions with entities controlled or jointly controlled by Huijin are carried out in the Group’s ordinary course of business under
normal commercial terms.

—
()
-

Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. (‘Buttonwood’)

Buttonwood is a wholly owned subsidiary of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange of China. lts principal activities are domestic and overseas
investments in project, equity, debt, loan and fund, fiduciary management and investment management.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, Buttonwood owned 27.19% of the issued share capital of the Bank.

Transactions with Buttonwood and transactions with entities controlled or joint controlled by Buttonwood are carried out in the Group’s ordinary course of
business under normal commercial terms.

(4) Transaction with subsidiaries
Outstanding balances of transactions with subsidiaries included in the Bank’s statement of financial position are as follows:

As at 31 December

Assets

Derivative financial assets 19 46
Loans and advances to customers 42,175 43,232
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - 40
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 126 -
Property and equipment - 787
Other assets 4 1,214
Liabilities

Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 103 1,000
Due to customers 109,497 100,914
Debt securities issued 8,269 3,139
Other liabilities 22 676

As at 31 December 2021, the total outstanding balance of loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts issued to subsidiaries were RMB19,376 million
(81 December 2020: RMB23,524 million).

Transactions with subsidiaries included in the Bank’s income statement are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

Interest income 1,685 1,657
Interest expense (693) (915)
Fee and commission income 70 66
Fee and commission expense (11) (8)
Net trading and foreign exchange gain - (31)
Dividend income 10,517 2,075

Transactions between the Bank and its subsidiaries are carried out on normal commercial terms in ordinary course of business.

—
(3]
-

Transactions with associates and joint ventures

Transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are carried out on normal commercial terms in ordinary course of business. The Group’s
transactions and balances with associates and joint ventures for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 were not significant.

—
(=2)
-

Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons who have the authority and responsibility to plan, direct and control the activities of the Group. During the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had no material transactions with key management personnel.

—_
~
~

The Group and the Annuity Scheme

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had no material transactions with the Annuity Scheme set up by the Bank, apart from the
obligation for defined contribution to the Annuity Scheme.
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48.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(1) Legal proceedings

As at 31 December 2021, the Group was involved in certain lawsuits arising from its normal business operations. After consulting legal professionals,
management of the Group believes that the ultimate outcome of these lawsuits will not have a material impact on the financial position or operating result of
the Group.

(2) Credit commitments

As at 31 December

Loan commitments 3,615,207 3,454,884
Letters of guarantee issued 9,262 17,526
Bank acceptance 8,700 9,606
Letters of credit issued 3,579 6,742
Total 3,536,748 3,488,758

As at 31 December 2021, the amount of credit commitments with original maturities of less than one year was RMB54,294 million (31 December 2020:
RMB96,099 million), with the remainder of the credit commitments were all with original maturities over one year.

(3) Capital commitments

As at 31 December

Contracted but not provided for

- equity instruments 38,440 38,365
- property and equipment 37,911 53,133
Total 76,351 91,498

The Group’s capital commitments of property and equipment are mainly purchased fixed assets for lease. As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s capital
commitments of purchased fixed assets for lease were RMB37,262 million (31 December 2020: RMB52,333 million).

(4) Finance lease commitments
At the end of each reporting period, the Group, as a lessor, had the following non-cancellable finance lease commitments:

As at 31 December

Contractual amount 30,184 29,046

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s finance lease commitments were all within one year.
(5) Collateral
(a) Assets pledged
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as collateral under repurchase agreements at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

As at 31 December

Bonds 22,792 128,994

As at 31 December 2021, the principal of financial assets sold under repurchase agreements by the Group was RMB21,188 million (31 December 2020:
RMB124,623 million) as set out in Note 33. All repurchase agreements were due within 5 years from the effective date of these agreements.

In addition, certain finance lease receivables and leased assets under operating lease, where the Group was a lessor, were pledged as collateral for
borrowings from other banks. As at 31 December 2021, carrying amounts of these collateral amounted to RMB71,406 million (31 December 2020: RMB34,001
million).

(b) Collateral accepted

The Group received securities as collateral in connection with the purchase of financial assets under resale agreements (Note 20). The Group did not hold any
collateral that can be resold or re-pledged as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

49.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(1) Strategies adopted in managing financial risks

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The Group analyzes, identifies, monitors and reports on these financial risks or the combinations
of these financial risks during its operations. Risk-taking is a core characteristic of a financial undertaking, and business operations cannot be carried out
without being exposed to operating risks. The Group's aim is, therefore, to achieve an appropriate balance between risks and returns, and minimize the
potential adverse effects these risks may have on the Group'’s financial performance.

The Group raises funds primarily through issuing fixed-rate and floating-rate debts with different maturities, and earns spread income by investing these funds
in medium - to long-term lending projects in infrastructure sectors, basic industries and pillar industries. In China, the benchmark deposit and lending interest
rates are set by the People’s Bank of China, the central bank. The PBOC established RMB benchmark interest rates for loans whereby financial institutions are
in a position to price their loans based on credit risk, commercial and market factors. The Group seeks to increase its profitability by minimizing the funding
costs as it issues different types of bonds, where feasible under market conditions, to meet its asset and liability management needs and funding needs.



172

(2

-

ERFA4$R1T CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

The Group carries out a range of plain vanilla derivative transactions
including, among others, currency forward, currency and interest rate
swaps, interest rate floor options, for risk management purposes as well
as to meet the needs of its customers.

The Group provides appropriate risk limits and control measures in its
risk management policies, and monitors the risks and the implementation
of the risk limits in reliance of reliable and timely information from its
information systems, as part of its efforts to identify and analyze risks.
The Group regularly reviews and continues to make improvement to its
risk management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets and
products, and incorporate best practices. The most important types of
financial risks to which the Group is exposed are credit risk, liquidity risk
and market risk.

Credit risk

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk which represents the
potential loss that may arise from a customer’s or counterparty’s failing
to discharge an obligation. Credit risk is the most important risk for the
Group's business, management therefore carefully manages its exposure
to credit risk. Credit exposures arise principally in lending activities that
lead to loans and advances, and investment activities including debt
instruments and derivatives. Off-balance sheet financial instruments, such
as loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, also expose the
Group to credit risk.

In accordance with the CBIRC’s regulatory guidelines on the internal
credit rating approach, and in light of its unique business features, the
Group has established its credit rating framework, including credit rating
methodologies, procedures, control and management, data collection
and IT infrastructure. It is a two-dimensional risk rating framework
that incorporates both customer credit ratings for their probabilities of
default and the facility credit ratings for estimated loss given default
when the customers become default. To ensure the accuracy and
comprehensiveness of the ratings, the Group has also established internal
guidelines and criteria for country rating, sovereign rating, regional rating
and industry rating.

(a) Credit Risk Management

The Group performs standardized credit management procedures
on the entire credit process, including credit due diligence and loan
applications, credit review and approval, loan disbursement, post-lending
monitoring and non-performing loan management. By applying strict
and standardized credit operational procedures, the Group strives
to strengthen its end-to-end credit management for pre-lending due
diligence, credit rating, review and approval, disbursement review
and approval, and post-lending monitoring, improve the mitigating
effectiveness of collateral, accelerate the recovery and disposal of
non-performing loans, and drive the upgrade of its credit management
systems, as part of its efforts to comprehensively enhance its credit risk
management capabilities across the Group.

The Group writes off a financial asset, in whole or in part, when it comes
to the conclusion, after exhausting all necessary recovery procedures, that
it cannot reasonably expect to recover the whole or part of the financial
asset. Indicators that it has become impossible to reasonably expect to
recover a financial asset, in whole or in part, include: (1) enforcement has
been completed; and (2) the Group has no other recovery alternative but
to foreclose and dispose of the collateral, and does not expect the value
of the collateral to fully cover the principal and interest of the financial
asset.

Apart from the credit risk exposures on credit assets, the Group is
also exposed to credit risk arising from its treasury operations, and
it manages its risk exposures on its treasury operations by carefully
screening counterparties with acceptable credit quality, balancing
credit risk and investment returns, adopting rating-based underwriting
by comprehensively considering the internal and external credit rating
information, and reviewing and adjusting credit limits in a timely manner
through limit management systems. In addition, the Group also provides
off-balance sheet loan commitments and financial guarantee services to
customers, which may expose the Group to the risk of having to make
payments on behalf of customers in case they default, where the risk
approximates that of a loan. For these operations, the Group adopts risk
control procedures and policies similar to those applicable to the credit
business to minimize their credit risk.

(b) Credit risk limit control and risk mitigation policy

The Group has adopted a series of credit risk mitigation policies and
measures, including the requirement for collateral, the most widely used
and traditional measure. The Group has developed operational guidelines
for the acceptability of specific assets pledged as collateral and their

capability to mitigate credit risk, and regularly reviews the assessment
results of the collateral

The primary types of collateral are rights and commercial assets such as
toll collection rights, real estate, land use rights, equity securities, cash
deposits and equipment, collateral held for financial assets other than
loans and advances to customers are dependent on the nature of the
financial instrument. Debt instruments are generally unsecured, but for
asset-backed securities and other similar instruments, they are generally
secured by pools of financial assets. As at 31 December 2021, the Group
held no significant foreclosed assets.

(c) Credit ratings

The Group uses internal client credit ratings to reflect the probability
of default (PD) assessments of individual counterparties, and employs
different internal rating models for different types of counterparties.
Borrower information and specific information (e.g., the borrower’s
revenue and the industry/sector it operates in) is incorporated into
the rating models, and also includes external data of the borrower as
supplementary information. In addition, the models also fully consider the
expert judgments of credit and risk management officers, thus enabling
the credit ratings to capture factors that may not have been considered by
other sources.

(d) Measurement of ECL

The Group applies ECL models to calculate the credit loss allowance for
its debt financial instruments carried at amortized cost and FVTOCI, as
well as loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. The method
applied by the Group in assessing the expected credit loss of its financial
assets is a risk parameters model.

For the financial instruments incorporated into the measurement of
expected credit loss, the group uses a “3-Stage” model to measure the
credit loss allowance and ECL:

Stage 1: A financial instrument whose credit risk has not increased
significantly since its initial recognition.

Stage 2: Credit risk has increased significantly since the initial recognition,
but it is not considered as a financial instrument with credit impairment.

Stage 3: A financial instrument in which credit impairment has occurred.

A Stage 1 financial instrument credit loss allowance is measured at an
amount equivalent to the expected credit loss of the financial instrument
in the next 12 months. Stage 2 and Stage 3 financial instruments shall
have their credit loss allowances measured at an amount equivalent to the
expected credit loss of the financial instrument expected to arise over its
remaining duration.

Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those financial
assets that are credit-impaired on initial recognition. Their ECL is always
measured on a lifetime basis.

The Group assesses ECL in light of forward-looking information and uses
complex models and assumptions in calculating the expected credit
loss. These models and assumptions relate to the future macroeconomic
conditions and the borrowers’ creditworthiness (e.g., the likelihood of
default by customers and the corresponding loss). In assessing the
expected credit risks in accordance with accounting standards, the Group
uses judgments, assumptions and estimates where appropriate, including:

- Segmentation of business operations sharing similar credit risk
characteristics;

- Selection of appropriate models and determination of relevant key
measurement parameters;

- Determination of the criteria for SICR;
- Definition of default and credit impairment;

- Establishment of the number and relative weightings of
forward-looking scenarios;

- The estimated future cash flows for loans and advances to customers
at amortized cost in Stage 3.

Segmentation of business operations sharing similar credit risk
characteristics

For expected credit loss allowances modelled on a collective basis,
a grouping of exposures is performed on the basis of shared risk
characteristics, such that risk exposures within a group are homogeneous.
In performing this grouping, the Group uses information such as the
type of borrower, industry, usage, and type of collateral to ensure the
reasonableness of its credit risk grouping



Selection of appropriate models and determination of relevant key
measurement parameters

According to whether there is a significant increase in credit risk and
whether a financial asset has become credit-impaired, the Group
recognizes an impairment allowance based on the expected credit loss
for the next 12 months or the entire lifetime of the financial asset. The key
parameters of ECL measurement include possibility of default (PD), loss
given default (LGD) and exposure at default (EAD). The Group establishes
its PD, LGD and EAD based on the internal rating system currently used
for risk management purposes. In accordance with the requirements of
IFRS 9, the Group performs quantitative analyses of historical statistics
(such as counterparty ratings, guarantee methods and collateral types,
repayment methods, etc.) and forward-looking information.

The parameters are defined as follows:

PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial
obligation, either over the next 12 months (12m PD) or over the remaining
lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation. The definition of default refers to
the failure to pay the debt as agreed in the contract or other violations
of the debt contract that have a significant impact on the normal debt
repayment.

LGD represents the Group’s expectation of the extent of loss on defaulted
exposure. LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of exposure at
the time of default (EAD).

EAD is based on the amounts the Group expects to be owed at the time
of default.

The group uses an internal credit rating to track the default probability
assessment results of a single counterparty and adopts different internal
rating models for different types of counterparties. Borrowers and
specific loan information collected at the time of a loan application are
incorporated into the rating model. The group regularly monitors and
reviews the assumptions associated with the calculation of expected
credit loss, including the probability of default and changes in value of the
collateral over each period

In 2021, no significant changes were made to the estimated methodology
or key assumptions.

Determination of the criteria for SICR

The Group assesses whether the credit risk of the relevant financial
instruments has increased significantly since the initial recognition at
each balance sheet date. For the purpose of staging an assessment of
its financial assets, the Group thoroughly considers various reasonable
and supportable criteria that may reflect whether or not there has been
a significant change in their credit risk. Key factors considered include
regulatory and operating environments, internal and external credit ratings,
solvency, viability as a going concern, terms of loan contracts, repayment
behaviors, among others. The Group compares the risk of default of
financial instruments on the reporting date against that on the initial
recognition date in order to determine the changes of default risk.

The Group sets quantitative and qualitative criteria to help determine
whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased significantly
since its initial recognition. The criteria include changes in the borrower’s
PD, changes in its credit risk rating and other factors. The Group decided
that credit risk has significantly increased if contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due. The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition
if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. As of the report date, low credit risk financial instruments
with a high credit rating (internal rating above admittance threshold) are
deemed to have a low credit risk and no assessment is performed as
to whether the credit risk on the report date has significantly increased
compared with the initial recognition.

Since the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has provided
credit facilities for temporary deferral in principal repayment and interest
payment to some of the borrowers affected by the epidemic in accordance
with the government'’s regulations. For above credit facilities, the Group
insists on substantial risk judgment, and comprehensively considers
the changes of the borrower’s operating ability, solvency and epidemic
situation, so as to assess whether the credit risk of related financial
instruments has increased significantly since initial recognition.

Definition of default and credit impairment

The criteria used by the Group to determine whether a credit impairment
occurs under IFRS 9 is consistent with the internal credit risk management
objectives. In assessing whether a borrower has become credit-impaired,
the Group mainly considers the following quantitative and qualitative
factors:
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- Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event in relation
to interest or principal payment, or the borrower is overdue for more
than 90 days in any principal, advances, interest or investment in
corporate bonds due to the Group;

- The lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

- It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganization;

- The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties;

- The purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount
that reflects the incurred credit loss.

The credit impairment of a financial asset may be caused by the combined
effect of multiple events rather than any single discrete event.

Establishment of the number and relative weightings of
forward-looking scenarios

The assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk and the calculation of ECL both involve forward-looking
information. Through the analysis of historical data, the Group identifies
the key economic indicators that affect the credit risk and ECL of various
business types, including macroeconomic index, Enterprise prospect
index and Real estate index, etc. The impact of these economic indicators
on the PDs and the LGDs varies from one type of business to another.
The Group comprehensively considers internal and external data, expert
forecasts and statistical analyses to determine the relationships between
these economic indicators and the PDs and LGDs. The Group assesses
and forecasts these economic indicators at least on an annual basis,
calculates the best estimates for the future, and regularly reviews the
assessment results.

Based on statistical analyses and expert judgements, the Group
determines the weightings of the optimistic scenario, base scenario and
pessimistic scenario and the corresponding macro-economic forecast
under each scenario. The group’s multi-scenario economic forecasts
include the most likely base scenario and a number of possible scenarios
that reflect positive or negative trends in the economy. The group assesses
and determines the weighting of each scenario. The weighting of base
scenario is greater than the aggregated weightings of the rest scenarios.
The Group uses the weighted 12-month ECL (Stage 1) or weighted lifetime
ECL (Stage 2 and Stage 3) to measure relevant impairment allowances.
These weighted credit losses are calculated by multiplying the expected
credit loss under each scenario by the corresponding scenario weighting.

ECL impairment allowances recognized in the financial statements
reflect the effect of a range of possible economic outcomes, and the
weighted amount of the expected credit loss recognized in the financial
statements is generally higher than that calculated by using only the
benchmark scenario. In 2021, the Group has taken into account different
macroeconomic scenarios, combined with the impact of factors such
as the Covid-19 epidemic on economic development trends, and made
forward-looking forecasts of macroeconomic indicators. Including:
quarter-on-quarter GDP growth, used to estimate ECL, ranges from 4.6%
to 5.9% in the neutral scenario for 2022.

At 31 December 2021, the Group concluded that three scenarios are
appropriate, being the optimistic scenario, base scenario and pessimistic
scenario. As at 31 December 2021, the incremental impact to the credit
loss allowance of using the probability-weighted ECL against the base
scenario was less than 5%.

Scenario weightings

Scenario weighting is one of the important methods of sensitivity analysis.
The decremental impact would be less than 5%, assuming a 10% increase
of probability-weighting of the optimistic scenario and a 10% decrease of
the probability-weighting of the base case scenario when measuring the
ECL derived from using aforesaid three scenarios. The incremental impact
would be less than 5%, assuming a 10% increase on probability-weighting
of the pessimistic scenario and a 10% decrease on probability-weighted
of the base case scenario when measuring the ECL derived from using
aforesaid three scenarios.

The estimated future cash flows for loans and advances to customers
at amortized cost in Stage 3

At each measurement date, the Group projects the future cash inflows of
each future period related to credit-impaired financial assets. The cash
flows are discounted and aggregated to determine the present value of
the assets’ future cash flows.
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(e) Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements

As at 31 December

Credit risk exposures relating to financial assets

Balances with central banks 92,562 131,351
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 195,044 341,853
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 371,086 106,536
Derivative financial assets 16,978 37,737
Financial assets held under resale agreements 495,214 588,312
Loans and advances to customers 12,791,666 12,640,362
Financial investments
Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss 829,248 912,140
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated) 640 2,353
Debt instruments at amortized cost 1,146,917 1,273,000
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 766,562 660,106
Others 6,097 10,100
Subtotal 16,712,014 16,703,850
Credit risk exposures relating to credit commitments
Loan commitments 3,615,207 3,454,884
Letters of guarantee issued 9,262 17,526
Bank acceptance 8,700 9,606
Letters of credit issued 3,679 6,742
Subtotal 3,536,748 3,488,758
Total 20,248,762 20,192,608

The above table represents a worst-case scenario of credit risk exposures to the Group as at 31 December 2021 and 2020, without taking into account any
collateral held or other credit enhancements attached. For financial assets on the consolidated statement of financial position, the exposures set out above are

based on carrying amounts of these assets.

(f) Credit commitments and provision

Change in provision for loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

As at 1 January 2021 2,596 12,564 550 15,710
Transfers:

Transfers to Stage 2 (168) 168 - -
Remeasurement®@ 354 (1) 2 355
Charge for the year 1,943 2,085 - 4,028
Reverse (694) (1,753) (304) (2,751)
Foreign exchange differences (12) (133) “ (149)
As at 31 December 2021 4,019 12,930 244 17,193

©saget sz siaged

As at 1 January 2020 6,862 7,202 1,386 15,450
Transfers:

Transfers to Stage 1 4,407 (4,407) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (441) 441 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (97) 97 -
Remeasurement® (7,440) 8,849 (832) 577
Charge for the year 1,123 3,947 - 5,070
Reverse (1,862) (2,997) (101) (4,960)
Foreign exchange differences (53) (374) - (427)
As at 31 December 2020 2,696 12,564 550 15,710

(a)

Remeasurement includes regular review of inputs to the models, e.g., reviewing of PDs, LGDs and EADs; transfer between Stage 1 and Stage 2 or 3

due to loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts experiencing significant increases (or decrease) of credit impairment in the period, and
the consequent “set up” (or “set down”) between 12-month and lifetime Expected Credit Loss (ECL).
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(9) The following financial instruments subject to impairment are analyzed for the different expected credit loss
The Group classified the credit grades of loans and advances to customers into “Low Risk", “Medium Risk", “High Risk”.

- “Low Risk” exposures demonstrate a strong capacity to meet financial commitments, with negligible or low probability of default and/or low levels of
expected loss.

- "Medium Risk” exposures require closer monitoring and demonstrate a good capacity to meet financial commitments, with low default risk.
- "High Risk” exposures require varying degrees of special attention and default risk is of greater concern.

The following financial instruments subject to impairment are analyzed for the different expected credit loss, unless otherwise stated, Stage 1 represents a
12-month expected credit loss, and Stages 2 and 3 represent lifetime expected credit loss.

Loans and advances to customers at amortized cost

Credit Grade

Low Risk 11,892,965 = = 11,892,965
Medium Risk = 1,197,129 = 1,197,129
High Risk = = 129,495 129,495
Total 11,892,965 1,197,129 129,495 13,219,589
Less: Credit impairment losses on assets (192,457) (229,513) (81,928) (503,898)
Net 11,700,508 967,616 47,567 12,715,691

Credit Grade

Low Risk 11,570,166 - - 11,570,166
Medium Risk - 1,322,929 - 1,322,929
High Risk - - 115,366 115,366
Total 11,670,166 1,322,929 115,366 13,008,461
Less: Credit impairment losses on assets (124,211) (244,654) (72,393) (441,258)
Net 11,445,955 1,078,275 42,973 12,567,203

Debt instruments at amortized cost

Credit Grade

Low Risk 1,151,761 - - 1,151,761
Medium Risk - - - -
High Risk - - 2,160 2,160
Total 1,151,761 = 2,160 1,153,921
Less: Credit impairment losses on assets (5,214) - (1,790) (7,004)
Net 1,146,547 = 370 1,146,917

Credit Grade

Low Risk 1,277,550 - - 1,277,550
Medium Risk - 13 - 13
High Risk - - 3,632 3,532
Total 1,277,550 13 3,632 1,281,095
Less: Credit impairment losses on assets (5,216) (5) (2,874) (8,095)
Net 1,272,334 8 658 1,273,000

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Credit Grade

Low Risk 766,460 - - 766,460
Medium Risk - - - -
High Risk - - 102 102
Total 766,460 - 102 766,562

Expected credit loss on assets (117) - (1,084) (1,151)
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Credit Grade

Low Risk 658,928 - - 658,928
Medium Risk - - - -
High Risk - - 1,178 1,178
Total 658,928 - 1,178 660,106
Expected credit loss on assets (74) - (726) (800)

Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

Credit Grade

Low Risk 3,414,777 - - 3,414,777
Medium Risk - 121,727 = 121,727
High Risk - - 244 244
Total 3,414,777 121,727 244 3,536,748

Credit Grade

Low Risk 3,376,927 - - 3,376,927

Medium Risk - 109,564 - 109,564

High Risk - - 2,267 2,267

Total 3,376,927 109,564 2,267 3,488,758
Provision

Credit Grade

Low Risk 4,807 - - 4,807
Medium Risk - 12,930 - 12,930
High Risk - - 244 244
Total 4,807 12,930 244 17,981

Credit Grade

Low Risk 3,486 - - 3,486
Medium Risk - 12,564 - 12,564
High Risk - - 550 550
Total 3,486 12,564 550 16,600

Collateral and Other Credit Enhancements

The Group closely monitors collateral held for financial assets considered to be credit-impaired, as it becomes more likely that the Group will take possession
of collateral to mitigate potential credit loss. Financial assets that are credit-impaired and related collateral held in order to mitigate potential loss are shown
below:

Credit impaired assets

Loans and advances to customers 129,854 (81,928) 47,926 60,253
Debt instruments at amortized cost 2,160 (1,790) 370 -
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 102 (1,034) 102 -

Total 132,116 (84,752) 48,398 60,253
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Credit impaired assets

Loans and advances to customers 115,628 (72,393) 43,235 65,638
Debt instruments at amortized cost 3,532 (2,874) 658 -
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 1,178 (726) 1,178 -
Total 120,338 (75,993) 45,071 65,638

The fair value of collateral presented in the table above is up to the book value of the credit risk exposure. As at 31 December 2021, the quality of the Group’s

collateral or credit enhancement did not change significantly compared to prior year.

(h) Loans and advances to customers

The gross amounts of loans and advances to customers by types of collateral and maturity are as follows:

31 December 2021

Unsecured loans 411,358 1,002,629 1,904,140 3,318,127
Guaranteed loans 102,432 222,029 664,318 988,779
Loans secured by collateral 77,593 157,008 1,482,030 1,716,631
Pledged loans 15,142 53,730 7,170,089 7,238,961
Total 606,525 1,435,396 11,220,577 13,262,498

31 December 2020

Unsecured loans 696,201 850,506 1,843,022 3,389,729
Guaranteed loans 117,532 221,455 590,933 929,920
Loans secured by collateral 69,370 134,830 1,379,521 1,583,721
Pledged loans 20,188 44,281 7,082,085 7,146,554
Total 903,291 1,251,072 10,895,561 13,049,924

Loans and advances to customers by industry of counterparties:

31 December 2021

31 December 2020

Loans and advances to customers

Urban renewal 2,924,303 22 3,092,802 24
Road transportation 2,451,616 18 2,695,315 21
Elegrt]r(ijcszgxgﬁlr, heating and water production 1,089,544 10 1,086,599 8
Wa;igcggsﬁévitiﬁ?ésenV|ronmental protection 1,236,152 9 1,034,051 8
Urban public transportation 956,820 7 737,599 6
Railway transportation 945,765 7 901,978 7
Manufacturing industry 833,559 6 781,640 6
Petroleum, petrochemical and chemical industry 566,233 4 692,729 5
Other transportation 392,847 3 329,675 3
Mining industry 310,443 2 304,316 2
Education 253,652 2 189,082 1
Financial industry 212,995 2 429,914 3
Tel(seé:rc\)/rizr;sunication and other information transmission 83118 ’ 70,094 ’
Others 805,451 7 704,130 5

13,262,498 100 13,049,924 100
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Contractual modification of loans

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the terms of loans and advances provided to customers due to deterioration in the borrower’s
financial position which resulted in the borrower’s inability to meet its repayment obligations, with a view to maximising recovery. Such restructuring activities
include extended payment term arrangements, payment holidays and payment forgiveness, etc. Restructuring measures are based on indicators or criteria
which, in the judgment of management, indicate that payment will most likely continue. These measures are kept under continuous review. As at 31 December
2021, the Group's total restructured loans amounted to RMB47,870 million (31 December 2020: RMB23,789 million).

(i) Investment in debt instruments
Carrying amount of investment in debt instruments analyzed by credit rating from independent rating agencies is as follows:

As at 31 December 2021

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi governments 98,097 817 10 - 1,194,808 - 1293732
Financial institutions 64,408 987 4,846 3,885 - - 74126
Corporates 182,518 4,269 - 2,759 - 2,757 192,303
Asset-backed securities 247 128 - - - - 375
Inter-bank certificates of deposit® 592,210 - 13,891 10,715 - - 616,816
Wiayltgtrrrear\n;agnizent products issued B B B B B 4,54 4,542
Investments in trust plans and others - - - - - 960 960
Asset management plans - - - - - 407 407
Total 937,480 6,201 18,747 17,359 1,194,808 8,666 2,183,261

As at 31 December 2020

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments 42,468 - 2,104 - 1,307,063 - 1,351,635
Financial institutions 52,457 966 21,629 2,514 - - 77,466
Corporates 213,954 5,064 - 4,759 - 2,821 226,598
Asset-backed securities 217 229 - - - 16 462
Inter-bank certificates of deposit® 521,222 9,498 34,394 - - 148 565,262
Wiayltgtrrrear\n;agnizent products issued B B B B B 9,071 9,071
Investments in trust plans and others - - - - - 2,426 2,426
Asset management plans - - - - - 1,466 1,466
Total 830,318 15,757 58,027 7,273 1,307,063 15948 2,234,386

(a) Analyzed by ratings of issuers of inter-bank certificates of deposit.

(b) Unrated debt securities issued by PRC government and quasi-governments are from issuers including the MOF, the PBOC, Huijin and policy banks
of China.

(c) Other unrated debt instruments mainly include subordinated bonds issued by insurance companies, super short-term commercial papers, asset
management plans, and wealth management products issued by other banks and investments in trust plans.
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() Financial assets other than loans and advances to customers by nature of counterparties:

31 December 2021

Balances with central banks 92,562 - - 92,562
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions - 195,044 - 195,044
Placements with banks and other financial institutions - 371,086 - 371,086
Derivative financial assets 5,417 9,377 2,184 16,978
Financial assets held under resale agreements - 494,557 657 495,214
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 177,260 239,334 413,294 829,888
Debt instruments at amortized cost 1,064,245 513 92,159 1,146,917
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 227,122 455,944 83,496 766,562
Other financial assets 2,102 1,495 2,500 6,097
Total 1,558,708 1,767,350 594,290 3,920,348
31 December 2020

Balances with central banks 131,351 - - 131,351
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions - 341,853 - 341,853
Placements with banks and other financial institutions - 106,536 - 106,536
Derivative financial assets 15,774 18,136 3,827 37,737
Financial assets held under resale agreements - 586,273 2,039 588,312
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 199,313 263,847 451,333 914,493
Debt instruments at amortized cost 1,175,433 636 96,931 1,273,000
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 127,302 386,651 146,153 660,106
Other financial assets 1,937 2,007 6,156 10,100
Total 1,651,110 1,705,939 706,439 4,063,488

(3) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss, in respect of the Group’s on and off-balance sheet activities, arising from movements in market rates including interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, and stock and commodity prices. The Group’s major market risks are interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk in it trading book
and banking book.

The objective of the Group’s market risk management is to establish an effective market risk management system, which can fully identify, accurately measure,
continuously monitor and effectively control market risks in trading and non-trading businesses, and ensure that market risk exposures are controlled within an
acceptable range of the Group, and achieve a balance between risks and benefits.

Market risk is managed using risk limits approved by the Board of Directors and its affiliated committees. The Governors on Risk Management supervise
overall market risk, meetings and review risk management reports periodically to ensure that all market risks are effectively managed.

Segregation of trading book and banking book

The Group'’s exposures to market risk mainly exist in its trading book and banking book.

Trading book consists of financial instruments and commodity positions held for trading or for economic hedging purposes. Banking book consists of on and
off-balance sheet financial instruments not held in the trading book.

Market risks arising from trading and banking books are managed by the Risk Management Department and the Business Development Department within
the scope of their respective roles and responsibilities. The Risk Management Department is responsible for managing the market risk of the whole bank, and
specifically manages the market risk of the treasury transaction business. The Business Development Department assumes the responsibility for the overall
asset and liability management as well as management of interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk in the banking book, and the periodical preparation of
interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk reports related to banking book.

Market risk measurement and management approaches
Market risk is monitored and managed through established limits, market value revaluation, duration analysis, gap analysis and sensitivity analysis indicators.

Trading book

The Group monitors and manages its various risk exposures in trading book through exposure limit control, stop-loss limit control and sensitivity limit control.
The Group establishes appropriate risk limits considering various risk factors of market risk, business complexity and other factors. The Risk Management
Department is responsible for the identification, measurement, monitoring and reporting of risk exposures from all trading portfolios.

Banking book

The Bank monitors market risks for banking mainly through sensitivity analysis for foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk. The Risk Management
Department is responsible for reporting risk measurement results to Risk Management Committee by means of market value revaluation, duration analysis, etc.
The Business Development Department is responsible for the accurate and timely identification and measurement of interest rate risk and foreign exchange
risk using gap analysis, sensitivity analysis, exposure analysis and other methods.

For sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk, please refer to Note 49 (3) (a) interest rate risk and Note 49 (3) (b) foreign exchange rate
risk (including trading book and banking book).
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(a) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk of the banking book is the risk of loss arising from unfavorable movements in interest rate, duration and other elements of the risk.

The Group’s pricing strategy in China mainland is impacted by the macro-economic environment and the monetary policies of the PBOC. The PBOC
established RMB benchmark interest rates for loans whereby financial institutions are in a position to price their loans based on credit risk, commercial and
market factors. In general, the interest rates of interest-bearing assets and liabilities with the same currency and maturity terms will move in the same direction.

Interest rate risk of the Bank’s banking book is principally managed based on assessing impact of interest rate change on both the income and economic
value, by using gap analysis, duration analysis and net interest income simulation model. The Group adjusts its asset and liability structure and uses hedging
instruments to mitigate the interest rate risk of banking book. Interest rate risk of trading book is mainly managed and monitored by using interest rate limits,
sensitivity analysis, exposure analysis by currency, mark-to-market and breakeven analysis.

In terms of measuring and managing interest rate risk, the Group regularly measures interest rate repricing gaps, portfolio duration and monitors the sensitivity
of projected net interest income and fair value changes to interest net moves under varying interest rate scenarios (simulation modeling).

Repricing gap analysis

The table below summarizes the Group’s financial assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorized by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity
dates.

At 31 December 2021

Financial assets:

Cash and balances with the central banks 85,786 - - - - 6,779 92,565
Dgpolsng with banks and other financial 132,486 43,203 B _ _ 19,335 195,044
institutions
P\gce_meﬂts with banks and other financial 162,345 169,818 38,338 _ _ 585 371,086
institutions
Derivative financial assets - - - - - 16,978 16,978
Financial assets held under resale 494,383 B B _ _ 831 495214
agreements
Loans and advances to customers 4,435,990 7,265,345 239,544 125,226 670,945 54,616 12,791,666
Financial asselts measured at fair value 279,338 4,461 14,949 1,829 81 705,308 1,005,966
through profit or loss
Include: Trading assets and other financial
assets mandatorily classified at 279,093 4,461 14,671 1,829 81 705,291 1,005,326
fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (Designated) 245 B 78 16 640
Debt instruments at amortized cost 7,868 205,071 630,649 196,861 90,210 16,258 1,146,917
Financial asse?s alt fair value through other 349073 157,785 199,062 41,344 14,009 11,149 772,622
comprehensive income
Other financial assets 385 44 19 - - 5,649 6,097
Total financial assets 5,947,854 7,845,747 1,122,561 365,260 775,245 837,488 16,894,155
Financial liabilities:
D(?po.snsv from banks and other financial 524048 1,859,955 B _ _ 11311 2,395,514
institutions
quroyvm.gs from governments and financial 185,569 211,831 2,291 40,283 7.304 1,683 448,961
institutions
Placements from banks 65,070 1,739 1,839 403 593 36 69,680
Financial I|ab|I|lt|es measured at fair value B B B _ _ 2,085 2,085
through profit or loss
Derivative financial liabilities - - - - - 9,359 9,359
Financial assets sold under repurchase 20,940 o8 B a a 17 21,205
agreements
Due to customers 978,000 81,422 8,216 2,837 2,951 5,770 1,079,196
Debt securities issued 804,750 1,408,085 4,578,240 3,823,058 642,555 223,689 11,480,377
Other financial liabilities 124 501 726 - - 5,306 6,657
Total financial liabilities 2,578,701 3,563,781 4,591,312 3,866,581 653,403 259,256 15,513,034

Net interest repricing gap 3,369,153 4,281,966 (3,468,751) (3,501,321) 121,842 578,232 1,381,121
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31 December 2020
Within 3 5 15 months 1-5 years 5-10 years SIS Total
months 10 years bearing
Financial assets:
Cash and balances with the central banks 127,762 - - - - 3,692 131,354
Dt‘apo.sns‘ with banks and other financial 156,761 158,772 126 _ _ 26,194 341,853
institutions
Plgcemeﬂts with banks and other financial 99,684 6,792 B B B 60 106,536
institutions
Derivative financial assets - - - - - 37,737 37,737
Financial assets held under resale 587,394 265 B B B 653 588312
agreements
Loans and advances to customers 5,225,663 4,564,712 375,742 450,321 1,980,561 43,363 12,640,362
Financial assets measured at fair value 145342 81,660 57403 12,540 81 758,677 1,055,703

through profit or loss

Include: Trading assets and other financial
assets mandatorily classified at 144,441 81,339 55,965 12,365 81 758,565 1,052,756
fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss (Designated) 901 321 1,458 176 - 112 2,947
Debt instruments at amortized cost 24,230 139,180 705,620 292,535 92,321 19,114 1,273,000
F'rc‘irr‘rfp'lﬁzrsgjeafnfé%’:'“e through other 279,971 157,869 141,264 73511 2,462 9,839 664,916
Other financial assets 1,069 33 - - - 8,998 10,100
Total financial assets 6,647,876 5,109,283 1,280,155 828,907 2,075,425 908,227 16,849,873
Financial liabilities:
D?ﬁ;ﬁtfi;osm banks and other financial 715714 2,142,346 100 - - 21112 2,879,272
Bci’r:rsciivtﬂ?i%i;mm governments and financial 196,180 295,126 3,720 913 - 3,113 499,052
Placements from banks 85,861 6,834 - - - 169 92,864
FlTﬁrr;iSthrt();]\z:tt\isr lrg;e:sured at fair value B B . B B 2,051 2,051
Derivative financial liabilities - - - - - 26,843 26,843
Fir;zr;;:(i;l]:rs]tssets sold under repurchase 124,615 8 B _ B 102 124,725
Due to customers 1,063,736 80,886 12,850 1,169 5,793 3,104 1,167,538
Debt securities issued 1,009,402 1,219,377 4,137,682 3,510,988 633,675 210,968 10,722,092
Other financial liabilities 177 67 77 21 - 22,398 22,740
Total financial liabilities 3,195,685 3,744,644 4,154,429 3,613,091 639,468 289,860 15,637,177
Net interest repricing gap 3,452,191 1,364,639 (2,874,274) (2,684,184) 1,435,957 618,367 1,312,696

Sensitivity analysis of net interest income and other comprehensive income

The following table illustrates the potential pre-tax impact of a parallel upward or downward shift of 100 basis points in all financial instruments’ yield curves on
the Group’s net interest income and other comprehensive income for the next twelve months from the reporting date, based on the Group’s net positions of
interest-bearing assets and liabilities at the end of each reporting period. This analysis assumes that interest rates of all maturities move by the same amount,
and does not reflect the potential impact of unparalleled yield curve movements.

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Net interest Otl?er
. comprehensive
income .
income
Increase 100 basis points 45,537 (11,605) 35,324 (9,274)
Decrease 100 basis points (45,537) 12,342 (35,324) 10,230

The sensitivity analysis above is based on reasonably possible changes in interest rates with the assumption that the structure of financial assets and financial
liabilities held at the period end remains unchanged and does not take changes in customer behavior, basis risk or any prepayment options on debt securities
into consideration.

The sensitivity analysis on other comprehensive income reflects only the effect of changes in interest rates on fair value changes on financial assets at FVTOCI
held at the period end.

The assumptions do not consider the Group’s capital and interest rate risk management policy. Therefore, the above analysis may differ from the actual
situation. In addition, the impact of interest rate fluctuation is only for illustrative purpose, showing the potential impact on net interest income and other
comprehensive income of the Group under different yield curve movements and current interest rate risk situation. The impact did not take into account the
risk management activities to mitigate the interest rate risk.
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(b) Foreign exchange rate risk
The Group takes on foreign currency exposure arising from moves of foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows.

The Group's primary business is conducted in RMB, with certain foreign currency transactions in USD, Euro (‘EUR"), Japanese Yen (‘JPY”) and, to a much
lesser extent, other currencies. The Group’s foreign currency exposures are mainly concentrated on USD. RMB appreciated by 0.1492RMB/1 USD during the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: appreciated by 0.4513 RMB/1 USD).

The Group measures the impact from exchange rate risk primarily by using foreign currency exposure management, sensitivity analysis of foreign currency
exchange rates, and Earnings at Risk (“EaR”). The Group adjusts its asset and liability structure and uses hedging instruments to mitigate the foreign
exchange risk to the extent possible.

The table below summarizes the Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at the end of the reporting period, with the Group’s assets and
liabilities presented at carrying amounts in RMB or RMB equivalents categorized by the original currency.

As at 31 December 2021

Financial assets:

Cash and balances with central banks 85,719 6,560 286 6,846 92,565
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 82,279 87,799 24,966 112,765 195,044
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 289,645 80,719 722 81,441 371,086
Derivative financial assets 13,342 2,196 1,440 3,636 16,978
Financial assets held under resale agreements 495,214 - - - 495,214
Loans and advances to customers 11,658,348 961,579 171,739 1,133,318 12,791,666
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 974,499 30,785 682 31,467 1,005,966

Include: Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily
classified 973,859 30,785 682 31,467 1,005,326
at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(Designated) 640 B N B 640
Debt instruments at amortized cost 1,056,299 90,618 - 90,618 1,146,917
Eionrir;iarl]l;sssi\t/e;si:gii;s:red at fair value through other 706,511 60,737 5,374 66,111 772.622
Others 4,002 1,805 290 2,095 6,097
Total financial assets 15,365,858 1,322,798 205,499 1,628,297 16,894,155
Financial liabilities:
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 2,343,074 43,896 8,544 52,440 2,395,514
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 225,508 221,297 2,156 223,453 448,961
Placements from banks 8,503 58,557 7,640 61,177 69,680
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss 2,084 1 - 1 2,085
Derivative financial liabilities 6,427 2,665 267 2,932 9,359
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 21,205 - - - 21,205
Due to customers 907,856 126,314 45,026 171,340 1,079,196
Debt securities issued 11,281,871 142,958 55,548 198,506 11,480,377
Others 4,153 2,030 474 2,504 6,657
Total financial liabilities 14,800,681 592,698 119,655 712,353 15,513,034
Net on-balance sheet position 565,177 730,100 85,844 815,944 1,381,121
Currency forwards and swaps (Contractual/Notional amount) 299,286 (204,259) (57,906) (262,165) 37,121

Credit commitments 3,314,874 199,879 21,995 221,874 3,636,748
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As at 31 December 2020

usb Others i

A8 (RMB equivalent) (RMB equivalent) (FF?';'eBIg:qfll;\:;T:;})l fotal
Financial assets:
Cash and balances with central banks 127,728 3,626 - 3,626 131,354
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 237,505 79,859 24,489 104,348 341,853
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 62,087 36,262 8,187 44,449 106,536
Derivative financial assets 31,570 3,827 2,340 6,167 37,737
Financial assets held under resale agreements 588,312 - - - 588,312
Loans and advances to customers 11,350,895 1,104,430 185,037 1,289,467 12,640,362
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 1,040,834 13,852 1,017 14,869 1,055,703

Include: Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily
classified 1,037,887 13,852 1,017 14,869 1,052,756
at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(Designated) 2947 B N N 2,947
Debt instruments at amortized cost 1,179,634 93,466 - 93,466 1,273,000
E(i)r;;a;rzihae\nsaiizit]iomsasured at fair value through other 558,123 90,620 16,173 106,793 664.916
Others 7,618 2,214 268 2,482 10,100
Total financial assets 15,184,206 1,428,156 237,511 1,665,667 16,849,873
Financial liabilities:
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 2,666,954 196,208 16,110 212,318 2,879,272
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 185,773 304,794 8,485 313,279 499,052
Placements from banks 64,889 13,973 14,002 27,975 92,864
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss 2,050 1 - 1 2,051
Derivative financial liabilities 21,598 4,926 319 5,245 26,843
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 124,725 - - - 124,725
Due to customers 957,551 145,061 64,926 209,987 1,167,538
Debt securities issued 10,502,630 132,048 87,414 219,462 10,722,092
Others 22,210 169 361 530 22,740
Total financial liabilities 14,548,380 797,180 191,617 988,797 15,687,177
Net on-balance sheet position 635,826 630,976 45,894 676,870 1,312,696
Currency forwards and swaps (Contractual/Notional amount) 162,399 (79,380) (32,862) (112,242) 50,157
Credit commitments 3,231,391 222,557 34,810 257,367 3,488,758

The table below indicates the potential effect on profit before tax arising from 1% possible movement of RMB spot and forward foreign exchange rates against
a basket of all other currencies on the net positions of foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities and derivative instruments in the statement of financial
position. There is no significant impact on the Group’s other comprehensive income.
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As at 31 As at
December 2021 31 December 2020

USD against RMB _ Profit before tax

1% appreciation 5,263 5,527

1% depreciation (5,263) (5,527)

=

In analyzing the impact on profit before tax exchange gain or loss due possible exchange rate movements, simplified assumptions and scenarios are adopted
and do not take into account the following:

- changes in the Group’s net position in USD subsequent to the balance sheet date;

- the impact on the customers’ behavior due to the movement of the exchange rate; and

- the impact on market prices as a result of the movement of exchange rate.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that although the Group has the payment capacity, however is unable to raise sufficient funds at a reasonable cost to increase

its assets as needed or to replace matured debt. The consequence may be the failure to meet obligations to repay debtors and depositors and fulfill
commitments to lend.

The Group has established a set of liquidity management policies and to mitigate the liquidity risk effectively. These policy and approaches include the
forecasting and monitoring of future cash flows, stress testing scenarios, plans for emergency, etc.

In 2021, the Bank continued to obtain funds from markets through issuance of debt securities. In accordance with the approval from the CBIRC, all RMB
bonds issued by the Bank enjoys sovereign debt credit rating, which enables the Bank to continuously raise funds in the domestic markets through issuance
of sovereign debt.

Objectives of liquidity risk management and processes

The Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources from current customer deposit, matured customer term deposits, repayment of debt
securities issued, loan drawdown, fulfil obligations under guarantees and other calls on cash settled derivatives.

To maintain the mismatching of the cash flows and maturities of assets and liabilities within a reasonable range is an important mission of the Group. It is
impracticable for the Group to be completely matched in such positions since business transactions are often of uncertain terms and of different types. A
mismatched position might enhance profitability, but at the same time carries the risk of loss. The Group takes effect to manage its mismatched positions
within a reasonable range.

The Business Development Department and Treasury Department are the execution departments for detailed daily management. The Group’s liquidity
management processes include:

- Projecting cash flows by major currencies with consideration of the level of liquid assets necessary in relation thereto;
- Monitoring the liquidity gaps on the balance sheet;

- Managing the concentration risk of debt maturities; and

- Maintaining debt financing plans.

The Group does not need to maintain cash resources to meet all of its liquidity needs for demand payment as the Group has the ability to finance of new
debts in the market. In addition, experience shows that a certain level of matured liabilities such as term deposit from customers will be renewed and not to be
withdrawn. Management maintains an appropriate level of highly liquid assets to address unexpected cash demands.

In general, the Group does not generally expect third-parties to draw all of the committed funds under letters of guarantees or letters of credit issued. The total
outstanding contractual amount of commitment to extend credit does not necessarily represent future cash requirements, since some of these commitments
will either expire, be terminated or not meeting requirements for drawdown due to customers’ inability to fulfill the related conditions.

Liquidity analysis of financial instruments

Sources of liquidity are regularly reviewed by the Group to maintain a wide diversification in terms of liquidity provider, product, term, currency and
geographical area.

The Group’s funding policy is to seek a long-term healthy balance between its funding requirements and demands from investors by maintaining a presence
and participation in, and constantly making returns to, the debt capital markets, and to raise funds under its different funding programs. The Group issues
fixed rate and floating rate debt securities each year. These debt instruments might be with embedded options that allow the Group or the bond holders to
redeem them prior to the bonds’ respective maturity. However, bonds with redemption options only comprise a small portion of all bonds issued. As at 31
December 2021, long-term (with a maturity of one year or longer) debt securities issued of the Group amounted to RMB9.37 trillion, and other long-term debts
(include deposits from banks and other financial institutions, borrowings from governments and financial institutions, financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements and due to customers) amounted to RMB104.08 billion.
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The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under non-derivative financial instruments and derivatives, whether settled in net or gross by
their contractual maturities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractually undiscounted cash flows. The expected cash flows of these financial
instruments by the Group may have different with the table as below:

As at 31 December 2021

Non-derivative financial assets

Cash and balances with central

- 92,419 147 - - - - - 92,566
banks

Deposits with banks and other 12566 121,984 8,669 15,260 38,054 - - - 196,553
financial institutions

Placements with banks and ofher - ~ 115336 49,113 173265 39,470 - - 377,184
financial institutions

Financial assets held under 659 B 494,685 a B B a B 495,344
resale agreements

Loans and advances o 95,781 ~ 168,865 281,897 1,500,075 5566693 4,544,671 6475450 18,633,441
customers

Financial assets measured at fair 64 cog 3,990 52,143 89,861 54,438 123452 138,607 397,639 1,021,728
value through profit or loss

Debtinsiruments at amortized 854 - 831 15322 240,131 735315 220,422 97,268 1,310,143

cost

Financial assets measured
at fair value through other 6,060 - 117,243 222,850 176,051 229,190 46,974 21,478 819,846
comprehensive income

Other financial assets 75 3,447 47 453 48 1,873 124 30 6,097

Total non-derivative financial

assets 277,593 221,840 957,966 674,756 2,182,062 6,695,993 4,950,798 6,991,874 22,952,882

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Deposits from banks and other

! o - 51,337 1,703 483,734 1,883,788 114 - - 2,420,676
financial institutions

Borrowings from governments - - 31051 139425 201,035 72,229 11,579 - 455,319
and financial institutions

Placements from banks - - 35,062 30,074 1,855 2,204 439 650 70,284

F|naﬁmal liabilities measlured at 2,085 B B B B B B B 2,085
fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets sold under B B 18,084 2887 250 B B B 21,201
repurchase agreements

Due to customers - 919,891 18,345 37,828 83,531 12,122 4,315 3,719 1,079,751

Debt securities issued - - 365,879 191,168 1,697,860 5,878,325 4,511,951 1,050,538 13,695,721

Other financial liabilities 243 2,694 64 978 1,348 1,314 6 10 6,657

Total non-derivative financial

liabilities 2,328 973,922 470,188 886,094 3,869,667  5966,308 4,528,290 1,054,917 17,751,714

Net position 275,265 (752,082) 487,778 (211,338) (1,687,605)  (729,685) 422,508 5,936,957 5,201,168

Derivative cash flows

Derivatives settled on a net basis:

Net inflow - - 102 8 (50) 475 526 320 1,381
Derivatives settled on a gross

basis:

Total inflow = = 140,191 121,749 452,310 2,938 = = 717,188

Total outflow - - (139,998)  (120,493)  (444,063) (2,890) - - (707,444)

Total derivative cash flows - - 295 1,264 8,197 523 526 320 11,125
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As at 31 December 2020

Past due/ Within 1-3 3-12 1-5 5-10 Over 10
On demand Total
undated 1 month months months years years years
Non-derivative financial assets
Cash and balances with central B 131,280 74 B B B B B 131,354
banks
Deposits with banks and other 19531 112,324 4700 46,005 162,616 107 - - 345,373
financial institutions
Placements with banks and ofher - - 83849 10,927 6,817 - - - 106,593
financial institutions
Financial assets held under B 08 587,095 B 1357 B B B 588,480
resale agreements
Loans and agvances o 108,577 - 48622 241040 1937245 5223086 4355824 6339519 18,253,913
customers
Financial assets measured atfair g oo 1,729 22,765 124,329 89,089 98,282 140257 465253 1,061,359
value through profit or loss
Deczls'tns"umems at amortized 513 - - 30722 177634 821,837 321,563 101,849 1,454,118
Financial assets measured
at fair value through other 4,810 - 210,317 56,655 167,260 186,799 86,006 2,560 714,407
comprehensive income
Other financial assets 1,469 4172 21 514 324 3,561 - 39 10,100
T°;:'52t°sn'der"’at"’e financial 254555 249,533 962,443 510282 2542342 6333672 4,903,650 6909220 22,665,697
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Deposits from banks and other - 64174 119813 553160 2171115 103 - - 2908365
financial institutions
Borrowings from governments - - 28571 133,341 263,294 70,935 12,130 13,361 501,632
and financial institutions
Placements from banks - - 5,440 80,015 4172 124 3,487 762 94,000
F|ngn0|al liabilities meas‘ured at 2,051 B B B B B B B 2051
fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets sold under B B 119.765 5,007 8 B B B 124.800
repurchase agreements
Due to customers - 975,631 25,084 56,560 106,430 22,311 2,709 6,880 1,195,605
Debt securities issued - - 227,486 505,963 1,382,932 5,503,307 4,202,351 1,074,640 12,896,679
Other financial liabilities 2 20,806 167 243 1,086 1,309 740 10 24,363
T"If:'bnl‘::a :e”"at“’e financial 2053 1,060,611 526326 1,334,309 3,929,037 5598089 4,221.417 1,095653  17.767,495
Net position 252,502 (811,078) 436,117 (824,027)  (1,386,695) 735,583 682,233 5,813,567 4,898,202
Derivative cash flows
Derivatives settled on a net basis:
Net inflow - - 219 111 (276) 320 596 468 1,438
Derivatives settled on a gross
basis:
Total inflow - - 193,503 326,440 625,961 19,079 88 - 1,165,071
Total outflow - —  (194,106)  (329,500)  (609,906) (17,060) (85) - (1,150,657
Total derivative cash flows - - (384) (2,949) 15,779 2,339 599 468 15,852
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Off-balance sheet items

Letters of guarantee issued, letters of credit issued, bank acceptance and loan commitments are included below based on the earliest contractual maturity
date.

As at 31 December 2021

Loan commitments 3,015 6,873 87,411 254,943 234,365 2,928,600 3,515,207
Letters of guarantee issued 1,441 114 2,141 3,566 2,000 - 9,262
Bank acceptance 507 1,640 6,553 - - - 8,700
Letters of credit issued 270 767 2,633 9 = = 3,579
Total 5,233 9,394 98,638 258,518 236,365 2,928,600 3,636,748

As at 31 December 2020

Loan commitments 8,612 35,461 186,918 223,425 212,993 2,787,475 3,454,884
Letters of guarantee issued 232 398 2,275 14,621 - - 17,526
Bank acceptance 2,125 1,194 6,287 - - - 9,606
Letters of credit issued 467 2,317 3,892 66 - - 6,742
Total 11,436 39,370 199,372 238,112 212,993 2,787,475 3,488,758

(5) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The best evidence of fair value for a financial instrument is the quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. If the market for
a financial instrument is not active, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. The valuation technique makes maximum use of observable market
data and relies as little as possible on the unobservable inputs. The valuation techniques adopted by the Group incorporate all factors that market participants
could consider in setting a price, and are consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments.

Substantially all financial instruments classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are securities and funds listed on exchange. The fair values are quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Substantially all financial instruments classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are securities investments, derivatives, underlying assets of
principal-guaranteed wealth management products and the associated liabilities to investors in relation to the principal-guaranteed wealth management
products. Fair value of securities investments denominated in RMB is determined based upon the valuation published by the China Central Depository &
Clearing Co., Ltd. Fair value of debt investments denominated in foreign currencies is determined based upon the valuation results published by the
Bloomberg. Fair value of derivatives is calculated by applying discounted cash flow method or the Black Scholes Pricing Model. All significant inputs for the
fair valuation of these financial assets and liabilities are observable in the market.

Level 3 financial assets of the Group are primarily unlisted equity investments and equity investments with embedded derivatives. Management uses valuation
techniques to determine the fair value, which mainly include discounted cash flow method, net asset value, and comparable companies’ approach. The fair
value of these financial instruments based on unobservable inputs which may have significant impact on the valuation of these financial instruments, including
credit risk of the counterparties, weighted average cost of capital, perpetual growth rate, liquidity discount, prepayment rate and similarity to comparable
companies and their performance indicators, etc.
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(a) Financial instruments measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value are as follows:

As at 31 December 2021

Financial assets

Derivative financial assets

- Exchange rate derivatives = 9,609 = 9,609
— Interest rate derivatives - 7,369 - 7,369
Loans and advances to customers - - 45,073 45,073

Financial investment

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified
at fair value through profit or loss

- Bonds 4,249 73,748 868 78,865
- Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 171,243 - 171,243
- Stock and fund 5,489 867 10,069 16,425
- Wealth management products issued by other banks 72 = 4,470 4,542
- Equity investments 17,527 14,102 702,231 733,860
- Asset management plans = 376 i3 391

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated)

- Bonds - 624 - 624

— Asset management plans - 16 - 16

Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income

- Bonds 19,399 300,517 103 320,019

- Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 446,543 - 446,543

- Asset management plans = = - -

- Equity investments 4,060 - 2,000 6,060

Total 50,796 1,025,014 764,829 1,840,639

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (1) - (2,084) (2,085)

Derivative financial liabilities

- Exchange rate derivatives - (2,827) - (2,827)

- Interest rate derivatives - (6,532) - (6,532)

Total (1) (9,359) (2.084) (11,444)
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Financial assets

As at 31 December 2020

Derivative financial assets

- Exchange rate derivatives - 27,053 - 27,053
- Interest rate derivatives - 10,684 - 10,684
Loans and advances to customers - - 42,964 42,964
Financial investment
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified
at fair value through profit or loss
- Bonds 173 71,903 4,389 76,465
— Inter-bank certificates of deposit 50 206,096 - 206,146
- Stock and fund 2,834 234 10,738 13,806
- Wealth management products issued by other banks 50 1,614 7,407 9,071
- Equity investments 8 7,011 739,790 746,809
— Asset management plans - 420 - 420
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated)
- Bonds - 2,361 - 2,361
- Asset management plans - 625 - 625
Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income
- Bonds 11,152 288,388 436 299,976
- Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 359,115 - 359,115
- Asset management plans - - 1,015 1,015
- Equity investments 3,294 - 1516 4,810
Total 17,561 975,504 808,255 1,801,320
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (38) (2,013) - (2,051)
Derivative financial liabilities
- Exchange rate derivatives - (16,924) - (16,924)
- Interest rate derivatives - (9,919) - (9,919)
Total (38) (28,856) - (28,894)

There were no significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

The reconciliation of Level 3 financial assets and financial liabilities presented at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position is as follows:

Financial assets

As at 1 January 2021 42,964 792,324 2,967 808,255
Disposals - (16,396) - (16,396)
Additions 6,186 27,212 500 33,898
Settlements (4,740) (71,049) (1,527) (77,316)
Transfer out from Level 3 - (7,285) (16) (7,301)
Total loss recognized in

- Profit or loss 663 22,838 24 23,5625

- Other comprehensive income - 9 155 164
As at 31 December 2021 45,073 717,653 2,103 764,829
Change in unrealized loss for the year recognized in

- Profit or loss 663 18,003 - 18,666

- Other comprehensive income - 9 179 188
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Financial assets

As at 1 January 2020 38,291 791,853 2,907 833,051
Disposals - (22,111) - (22,111)
Additions 3,988 25,228 500 29,716
Settlements - (49,741) (879) (50,620)
Transfer out from Level 3 - (1,224) 1,145 (79)
Total loss recognized in

- Profit or loss 685 19,059 (13) 19,731

- Other comprehensive income - (740) (693) (1,433)
As at 31 December 2020 42,964 762,324 2,967 808,255

Change in unrealized loss for the year recognized in
- Profit or loss 685 17,679 (13) 18,351
- Other comprehensive income - (740) (693) (1,433)

(b) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

In respect of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at other than fair value, the following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
value of each type of financial instruments for which it is practicable. The fair value hierarchy is primarily categorized as Level 2.

(i)  Cash and balances with central banks, deposits with banks and other financial institutions, placements with banks and other financial institutions, financial
assets held under resale agreements, demand deposits from banks and other financial institutions, demand deposits from customers, placements from
banks, financial assets sold under repurchase agreements, current receivables or payables due in one year within other assets and other liabilities.

Given that these financial assets and liabilities are short-term in nature and reprice to current market rates frequently, the carrying amounts approximate
the fair value.

(i) Debt investments

Fair value of listed securities is estimated using quoted market price. Fair value of unlisted securities is estimated using valuation techniques that take
into consideration future cash flows and market price of similar quoted securities.

(i) Loans and advances to customers

The carrying amounts of variable rate loans and advances to customers are reasonable approximate of fair values because interest rates reflect market
rates which are based on PBOC's established rates and are adjusted when applicable. Fair value of fixed rate loans and advances to customers is
estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis utilizing the rates currently offered for loans of similar remaining maturities.

(iv) Fixed interest-bearing customer deposits, deposits from banks and other financial institutions and borrowings

Fair value of fixed rate customer deposits, deposits from banks and other financial institutions and borrowings is estimated using a discounted cash flow
analysis utilizing the rates currently offered for deposits and borrowings with similar remaining maturities.

The carrying amount of financial instruments referred to in (i) to (iv) are approximate fair value.
(v) Debt securities issued

Fair value of debt securities issued is determined using quoted market prices where available or by reference to quoted market prices for similar
instruments. For those securities where quoted market prices or quoted market prices for similar instruments are not available, a discounted cash flow
analysis is used based on a current yield curve appropriate for the remaining maturity of the instruments.

The tables below summarize the carrying amounts and fair values of debt securities issued:

As at 31 December 2021

Debt securities issued 11,480,377 11,572,243

As at 31 December 2020

Debt securities issued 10,722,092 10,854,183

(6) Capital management

Capital of the Group uses for capital management, which is a broader concept than the “equity” as presented on the consolidated statement of financial
position. The purpose of the Group’s capital management is:

- to comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators of the banking markets where the Group entities operate;
- to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to generate returns for equity holders; and
- to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

Capital adequacy of the Group and the utilization of regulatory capital are closely monitored by management in accordance with the guidelines established
by the Basel Committee and relevant regulations promulgated by the CBIRC. Required information related to capital levels and utilization is filed quarterly with
the CBIRC. As of 31 December 2021, the Group had a total capital of RMB1,718,252 million, total Tier 1 capital RMB1,451,521 million, total Core Tier 1 capital
RMB1,450,291 million, capital adequacy ratio 11.66%, Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 9.85%, Core Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 9.84%.
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